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Financial Highlights

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2011* 2010* 2009* 2008*
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premiums $ 2,107.1 $ 2,1736 $ 2,2894 $ 24555 $ 2,376.6
Net Investment Income 295.9 298.0 325.7 319.9 208.5
Other Income 0.8 1.0 1.3 25 4.1
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments 65.4 33.7 426 24.6 59.2
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings (6.9) (11.3) (16.5) (50.4) (152.9)
Total Revenues $ 24623 $ 24950 $ 26425 $ 2,752.1 $ 2,4955
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 91.8 $ 617 $ 1624 S 1618 S (15.8)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 11.6 12.8 15.5 (2.8) (13.9)
Net Income (Loss) $ 1034 $ 745 $ 1779 $ 1590 $  (29.7)
Per Unrestricted Share: E

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 155 $ 1.02 $ 262 $ 260 $  (0.25)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 0.20 0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22)

Net Income (Loss) $ 175 $ 123 $ 287 $ 255 §  (0.47)
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution:

Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations $ 154 $ 1.02 $ 262 $ 260 $  (0.25)

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations 0.20 0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22)

Net Income (Loss) $ 174 $ 123 $ 287 $ 255 $  (0.47)
Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share) $ 096 $ 096 $ 088 S 1.07 § 1.88
AT YEAR END
Total Assets $ 8,009.1 Hﬂ_ .‘?ﬂ S 8,489.8 S__m
Insurance Reserves $ 41322 $ 4,131.8 $ 4,182.4 $ 42393 $ 42413
Unearned Premiums 650.9 666.2 678.6 724.9 733.5
Certificates of Deposits — — 321.4 682.4 1,110.8
Notes Payable 611.4 610.6 609.8 561.4 560.8
All Other Liabilities 452.9 409.5 445.6 447.9 523.8
Total Liabilities 5,847.4 5,818.1 6,237.8 6,655.9 7,170.2
Shareholders’ Equity 2,161.7 2,116.6 2,023.0 1,833.9 1,570.6
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity s 8.009.1 S 7934.7 $ 8.260.8 S 8489.8 s 8.740.8
Book Value Per Share $ 3698 $ 3513 S 3313 $ 2941 $ 2520

* Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing
Insurance Contracts, and retrospectively applied its provisions to the prior periods presented. The retrospective application
reduced Shareholders’ Equity by $77.9 million at January 1, 2008. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.



To Our Shareholders,

In 2012, we saw the continuation of higher claims trends and
further declines in an already low interest rate environment,
both of which pressured earnings. Yet we remained focused

on executing on our strategy and shaping our businesses for

the future.

I’ll touch on our progress for each of our priorities as well
as initiatives important to our shareholders:

e Improving the profitability in each of our businesses

e Optimizing our investment portfolio in a difficult
investment environment

e Managing capital to deliver shareholder value over time

Donald G. Southwell e Fulfilling our promises to our policyholders

Investing in our future

We continued our investments in technology, people and
analytics in 2012. We implemented operational efficiencies to
better serve our policyholders, increased our use of predictive
modeling and enhanced our enterprise risk analytics. We drove
change in other areas too, as we continued our successful roll-
out of the Kemper brand and expanded our investor outreach
with the goal of providing our investors with a better
understanding of the company and more interaction with our
leadership team. We recognize the importance of these
communications and are committed to continue on this front.

Improving profitability

2012 was a difficult year, in part due to weather, low and
declining interest rates and rising claim settlement costs. We
are taking steps to reduce exposures and increase premium
rates in excess of claim cost trends. We believe interest rates
will begin to rise over the medium term, but the loss of
investment income in the interim pressures our life insurance
returns.

Catastrophes and weather-related losses continued to present
challenges across the property and casualty insurance industry.

e Total 2012 insured catastrophe losses in the U.S. are
estimated to be more than $37 billion — making 2012 one
of the top three years for industry catastrophe losses.

o Insured losses from Superstorm Sandy alone, including
flooding, exceeded $20 billion — placing it among the five
most costly disasters in U.S. history.

Given Kemper’s diverse product offerings, and with customers
in nearly every state, we were not immune to these weather
events. In total, we incurred $125 million of pre-tax

catastrophe losses, or $81 million after tax, the majority of
which were in our Kemper Preferred business. As significant
as this was to the bottom line, we are in business to fulfill on
our promises to customers. This is our value proposition; it’s
the commitment we make — to be there when our policyholders
need us.

Despite the storms of 2012, we like the overall portfolio of
businesses that we have in place. We consider each of our
businesses to be core, with opportunities for each to grow
profitably. We expect the greatest growth opportunities to be in
the Property and Casualty group.

Our Kemper Preferred business continued to refine its business
mix. Policies in force of packaged auto and home products for
target market customers increased 10 percent. These product
offerings historically have better retention and loss
performance, resulting in higher lifetime returns. In addition,
both Kemper Preferred and Kemper Specialty remain focused
on implementing rate actions and tightening underwriting
requirements to improve profitability.

In 2012, we made a strategic decision to cease all direct-to-
consumer marketing activities in Kemper Direct. Our worksite,
affinity and renters programs will continue to be offered. As
we manage the Kemper Direct run-off block, we expect it to be
accretive to net income and to free up the majority of its capital
over the next two to three years.

Our Life and Health segment generated $91 million in net
operating income in 2012. In particular, the Reserve National
business made good progress on repositioning its health
product portfolio, introducing new products and channels to
address the changing market needs.



Optimizing our investment portfolio

We continued to manage our investment portfolio to maximize
both after-tax investment income and total return over the long
term, while balancing risk. Overall, the portfolio delivered a
pre-tax equivalent book yield of 5.5 percent, bolstered by fixed
maturity book yields. As shown in the graph below, our pre-tax
equivalent book yield from fixed maturities has been steady over
the past three years in a low interest rate environment. The total
return of our investment portfolio over the last three years has

averaged 8.4 percent, about 50 basis points above our benchmark.

As of the end of the year, our total investment portfolio was
$6.5 billion. Our core portfolio was comprised of $5.2 billion
of fixed maturities and short-term investments, and totaled 80
percent of the investment portfolio at year end. On average,
these assets are rated A and are well diversified in terms of
issuer, sector, duration and geographic exposure. Around this
core portfolio, we maintain a diversified mix of mostly
dividend-paying common and preferred stocks, a portfolio of
income-focused limited partnership investments and a portfolio
of owned real estate. We completed the process of reducing
our large, single-name common stock exposures in the
portfolio over the past few years. We will continue to manage
the portfolio to perform amidst changing market conditions.

Kemper Fixed Maturity portfolio yield versus
10-year Treasury note
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Managing capital to deliver shareholder value

Kemper ended the year with $2.2 billion of shareholders’
equity, up 2 percent over 2011. The combination of increasing
asset valuations and effective capital management has
positioned us well for the future.

Our capital deployment priorities encompass three key areas:
e  Profitable organic growth

e  Considering opportunistic acquisitions that enhance
our existing businesses

e Returning capital to our shareholders through
dividends and share repurchases

We repurchased more than 2 million shares of common

stock and maintained a competitive common stock dividend of
$0.24 per quarter. In total, considering both dividends and
common stock repurchases, Kemper returned $118 million to
shareholders in 2012. Looking ahead, we remain focused on
improving our return on equity, increasing our capital
flexibility and improving our ratings over time.

Fulfilling our promises to our policyholders

With 6 million policies in force, 6 thousand dedicated
employees and 13 thousand distribution relationships, we
remain committed to delivering on our promises every day.

With our diverse mix of businesses and markets we serve,
Kemper is poised to capitalize on the opportunities before us as
we manage through the challenges we face and deliver the
returns we seek for you, our shareholders.

February 15,2013

st L E0H

Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation

At Kemper, we provide security and peace of mind to our
customers by helping them manage life’s risks with products
and services that are based on our commitment to being

Personal, Trusted, Straightforward and Attuned.

We believe that by doing this well, we will deliver superior

returns for our shareholders.
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Caution Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K (the “2012 Annual Report”), including the accompanying consolidated financial
statements of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries (individually and collectively referred to herein as the
“Company”’) and the notes thereto appearing in Item 8 herein (the “Consolidated Financial Statements™), the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations appearing in Item 7 herein (the “MD&A”) and the
other Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules filed as a part hereof or incorporated by reference herein, may contain or
incorporate by reference information that includes or is based on forward-looking statements within the meaning of the safe-
harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

Forward-looking statements give expectations or forecasts of future events. The reader can identify these statements by the
fact that they do not relate strictly to historical or current facts. They use words such as “believe(s),” “goal(s),” “target(s),”
“estimate(s),” “anticipate(s),” “forecast(s),” “project(s),” “plan(s),” “intend(s),” “expect(s),” “might,” “may” and other words
and terms of similar meaning in connection with a discussion of future operating, financial performance or financial condition.
Forward-looking statements, in particular, include statements relating to future actions, prospective services or products, future
performance or results of current and anticipated services or products, sales efforts, expenses, the outcome of contingencies

such as legal proceedings, trends in operations and financial results.

29 < 2 & 2 <&

Any or all forward-looking statements may turn out to be wrong, and, accordingly, readers are cautioned not to place undue
reliance on such statements, which speak only as of the date of this 2012 Annual Report. These statements are based on current
expectations and the current economic environment. They involve a number of risks and uncertainties that are difficult to
predict. These statements are not guarantees of future performance; actual results could differ materially from those expressed
or implied in the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements can be affected by inaccurate assumptions or by
known or unknown risks and uncertainties. The reader should consider the following list of general factors that could affect the
Company’s future results and financial condition, as well as those discussed below under Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” in this 2012
Annual Report.

Among the general factors that could cause actual results and financial condition to differ materially from estimated results and
financial condition are:

» The incidence, frequency, and severity of catastrophes occurring in any particular reporting period or geographic
concentration, including natural disasters, pandemics and terrorist attacks or other man-made events;

»  The frequency and severity of insurance claims (including those associated with catastrophe losses) and their impact
on the adequacy of loss reserves;

»  Changes in facts and circumstances affecting assumptions used in determining loss and loss adjustment expense
(“LAE”) reserves;

»  The impact of inflation on insurance claims, including, but not limited to, the effects attributed to scarcity of resources
available to rebuild damaged structures, including labor and materials and the amount of salvage value recovered for
damaged property;

»  Changes in the pricing or availability of reinsurance, or in the financial condition of reinsurers and amounts
recoverable therefrom;

*  Orders, interpretations or other actions by regulators that impact the reporting, adjustment and payment of claims;

»  The impact of residual market assessments and assessments for insurance industry insolvencies;

»  Changes in industry trends and significant industry developments;

*  Uncertainties related to regulatory approval of insurance rates, policy forms, license applications and similar matters;

*  Developments related to insurance policy claims and coverage issues, including, but not limited to, interpretations or
decisions by courts or regulators that may govern or influence such issues arising with respect to losses incurred in
connection with hurricanes and other catastrophes;

»  Changes in ratings by credit ratings agencies;

«  Adverse outcomes in litigation or other legal or regulatory proceedings involving Kemper or its subsidiaries or
affiliates;

»  Developments in, and outcomes of, initiatives by state officials that could result in significant changes to unclaimed
property laws and claims handling practices with respect to life insurance policies, especially to the extent that such
initiatives result in retroactive application of new standards to existing life insurance policies;

*  Regulatory, accounting or tax changes that may affect the cost of, or demand for, the Company’s products or services;



»  Governmental actions, including, but not limited to, implementation of the provisions of the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act, the Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (the “Health Care Acts”) and the
Dodd-Frank Act (the “DFA”), new laws or regulations or court decisions interpreting existing laws and regulations or
policy provisions;

»  Changes in distribution channels, methods or costs resulting from changes in laws or regulations, lawsuits or market
forces;

»  Changes in general economic conditions, including performance of financial markets, interest rates, unemployment
rates and fluctuating values of particular investments held by the Company;

»  The level of success and costs expended in realizing economies of scale and implementing significant business
consolidations and technology initiatives;

»  Heightened competition, including, with respect to pricing, entry of new competitors and the development of new
products by new and existing competitors;

» Increased costs and risks related to data security;

»  Absolute and relative performance of the Company’s products or services; and

e Other risks and uncertainties described from time to time in Kemper’s filings with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”).

No assurances can be given that the results contemplated in any forward-looking statements will be achieved or will be
achieved in any particular timetable. The Company assumes no obligation to publicly correct or update any forward-looking
statements as a result of events or developments subsequent to the date of this 2012 Annual Report. The reader is advised,
however, to consult any further disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.



PART I
Item 1. Business.

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide life, health, automobile, homeowners and
other insurance products to individuals and small businesses. Kemper’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments thereto are accessible free of charge through Kemper’s website,
kemper.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after such materials are filed with, or furnished to, the SEC.

(a) GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS
Kemper Direct

During the third quarter of 2012, Kemper Direct ceased direct-to-consumer marketing activities, and the Company began an
evaluation of strategic options for the business. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company concluded its evaluation and
determined that, to optimize the value for the business, Kemper Direct would continue to solicit business for its worksite,
affinity and renters programs and would place its direct-to-consumer operations in run-off.

Conversion of Fireside to General Business Corporation

On March 31, 2012, Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside Bank, converted from an industrial bank to a general business corporation
and changed its name to Fireside Auto Finance, Inc. (“FAF”). Accordingly, FAF is no longer regulated by the Federal
Depository Insurance Corporation or the California Department of Financial Institutions and may pay dividends or make other
distributions without prior regulatory approval. On April 5, 2012, FAF distributed $20 million of its capital to its parent
company, Fireside Securities Corporation (“FSC”), which then, distributed the same amount to its parent company, Kemper. On
June 22, 2012, FAF merged with FSC, with FAF being the surviving entity. Fireside Bank, FAF and FSC hereinafter are
referred to as “Fireside.” Fireside is reported as a discontinued operation in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.

Credit Agreements

On March 7, 2012, Kemper entered into a new, four-year, $325.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement, expiring
March 7, 2016 (the “2016 Credit Agreement”), with a group of financial institutions. The 2016 Credit Agreement replaced
Kemper’s $245.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement that was scheduled to expire on October 30, 2012 (the
“Former Credit Agreement”) and was terminated on March 7, 2012. There were no borrowings under the Former Credit
Agreement at either December 31, 2011 or at its termination. The 2016 Credit Agreement provides for fixed and floating rate
advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The 2016 Credit Agreement contains various financial
covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios
for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance Company of America (“United Insurance™) and Trinity Universal
Insurance Company (“Trinity”). Proceeds from advances under the 2016 Credit Agreement may be used for general corporate
purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness. There were no outstanding borrowings under the 2016 Credit
Agreement at December 31, 2012, and, accordingly, $325.0 million was available for future borrowings.

Kemper Common Stock Repurchases

In 2011, the Board of Directors approved a new common stock repurchase program. Under this program, Kemper is authorized
to repurchase up to $300 million worth of its common stock. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date.
Repurchases may be made from time to time at prevailing prices in the open market or in privately-negotiated transactions,
subject to market conditions and other factors. Repurchases will be financed through Kemper’s general corporate funds.
During 2012, Kemper repurchased 2.0 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $60.7 million in open market
transactions.

(b) BUSINESS SEGMENT FINANCIAL DATA

Financial information about Kemper’s business segments for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is contained
in the following sections of this 2012 Annual Report and is incorporated herein by reference: (i) Note 19, “Business Segments,”
to the Consolidated Financial Statements; and (ii) MD&A.



(c) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Kemper is a diversified insurance holding company, with subsidiaries that provide automobile, homeowners, life, health, and
other insurance products to individuals and small businesses. The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property
and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses. The Company conducts its operations through four operating
segments: Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty, Kemper Direct and Life and Health Insurance. The Company’s operations are
conducted solely in the United States.

Kemper’s subsidiaries employ approximately 6,075 full-time associates supporting its operations, of which approximately 350
are employed in the Kemper Preferred segment, 200 are employed in the Kemper Specialty segment, 100 are employed in the
Kemper Direct segment, 1,300 are shared by the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct segments, 3,925 are
employed in the Life and Health Insurance segment and the remainder are employed in various corporate and other staff
functions.

Property and Casualty Insurance Business

General

The Company’s property and casualty insurance business operations are conducted primarily through the Kemper Preferred,
Kemper Specialty, and Kemper Direct segments. In addition, the Life and Health Insurance segment’s career agents also sell
property insurance to its customers. Collectively, these segments provide automobile, homeowners, renters, fire, and other types
of property and casualty insurance to individuals and commercial automobile insurance to businesses.

Automobile insurance in these segments accounted for 52%, 54% and 56% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums
earned in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Automobile insurance in these segments accounted for 44%, 47% and 49% of
Kemper’s consolidated revenues from continuing operations in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Homeowners insurance in
these segments accounted for 15%, 14% and 13% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums earned in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. Homeowners insurance in these segments accounted for 13%, 12% and 11% of the Company’s consolidated
revenues from continuing operations in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Property insurance indemnifies an insured with an interest in physical property for loss of, or damage to, such property.
Casualty insurance primarily covers liability for damage to property of, or injury to, a person or entity other than the insured. In
most cases, casualty insurance also obligates the insurance company to provide a defense for the insured in litigation arising out
of events covered by the policy.

Kemper Preferred and Kemper Specialty distribute their products through independent agents who are paid commissions for
their services. Kemper Direct distributes its products through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other affinity
relationships and formerly marketed its products directly to consumers. Kemper Direct ceased direct-to-consumer marketing
activities in the third quarter of 2012.

Kemper Preferred

Kemper Preferred, based in Jacksonville, Florida, conducts business in 38 states and the District of Columbia. In 2012, the
following states provided over half of the premium revenues in this segment: New York (19%), North Carolina
(13%), California (12%) and Texas (9%).

Kemper Preferred primarily sells preferred and standard risk automobile and homeowners insurance. Kemper Preferred’s
insurance products accounted for 57% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s property and casualty
insurance business in 2012. Its insurance products are marketed by approximately 2,900 independent insurance agents to
individuals who have demonstrated favorable risk characteristics and loss history.

Kemper Specialty

Kemper Specialty, based in Dallas, Texas, conducts business in 21 states, principally in the southwest and western United
States. In 2012, the following states provided more than three-fourths of the premium revenues in this segment: California
(41%), Texas (19%), Washington (7%}, Louisiana (6%) and Colorado (4%).

Kemper Specialty provides personal and commercial automobile insurance to value-minded consumers who have had difficulty
obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually because of their driving records, claims experience or premium payment



history. Kemper Specialty’s insurance products accounted for 27% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the
Company’s property and casualty insurance business in 2012. Kemper Specialty’s products are marketed through approximately
8,900 independent agents and brokers.

Kemper Direct

Kemper Direct, based in Chicago, Illinois, underwrites a broad spectrum of personal automobile insurance risks, ranging from
preferred to non-standard. Kemper Direct also offers homeowners and renters insurance complementing its automobile
insurance business. It currently distributes its products through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other
affinity relationships. Prior to ceasing direct-to-consumer marketing activities in the third quarter of 2012, Kemper Direct also
marketed its products directly to consumers through a variety of direct-to-consumer websites, including its own websites. The
Kemper Direct segment’s insurance products are available in 47 states and the District of Columbia. In 2012, the following
states provided approximately two-thirds of the premium revenues in this segment: New York (17%), Florida (12%), California
(11%), Georgia (6%), Connecticut (6%), Washington (6%), Pennsylvania (5%) and Texas (4%). Kemper Direct’s insurance
products accounted for 11% of the aggregate insurance premium revenues of the Company’s property and casualty insurance
business in 2012.

Property and Casualty Loss and Loss Adjustment Expense Reserves

The Company’s reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance (“Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves™)
are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end
of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves by business segment at
December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Business Segments:
KEMPET PIETEITE ... eececeeeeeirieeeeieesecsesssessesesessastseesssessessanasssaesesssessesssencasasscsesenssssseseserenesesens $ 4523 § 4162
KemPEr SPECIALLY ....c.couevieriuiiiiniiicicen it st nes 215.9 225.9
KEIMPET DATECE ..c.vueeveteneiicieee ettt ettt cae s s bt sre st s b e ae et se st she st s s s s s as e s eneens 177.8 223.9
Life and Health INSUTANCE ........cccoeeeriicceiirieinintictiiticiee seenees st esse s ssesressstsassassssnsnssssesassenes 7.0 83
Total BUSINESS SEZMENLS.....couciiiiiiiiiieiitiiiiie et st srss e b bt sne bbb assssne s s e sebennens 853.0 874.3
DiSCONINUEA OPEIALIONS ... .cveveuireeeirrecteeeeeentsereest et stssesest sbeasstatsssatshesasss e sasse st st sssssssssesassssassesanss 100.7 133.0
UNAHOCALEA RESEIVES ....cuceieeciieniiectnect ettt st ss st bbb s s sa et mr s b snansnens 16.9 21.8
Total Property and Casualty Insurance ReSEIVES..........cocriviniiiiiniminiciininiitiiiessnsseseseesenns $ 9706 § 1,029.1

Certain reserves acquired in connection with a business acquisition from SCOR Reinsurance Company (“SCOR”) in 2002 (the
“Unallocated Reserves™) are reinsured 100% by an insurance subsidiary of SCOR (see Note 6, “Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The Company does not allocate these reserves to its business
segments.

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures that may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, of which $45.2
million was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2012. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 54 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.



The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while minimizing variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and LAE are
fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE, also referred to as “development,” will occur
over time and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements
when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net income in the
period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements when the
Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net income. The Company
recognized total favorable development of $31.5 million, $33.1 million and $24.9 million before tax in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Development for each of the Company’s continuing business segments and Unitrin Business Insurance in 2012,
2011 and 2010 was: ‘

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Continuing Operations:
KEMPEr PIEfEITE........cvoveeiiirieeiiirieecieeceee ettt ettt et e e st $ 48 $§ 191 §$§ 238
KemMPET SPECIALLY.....cceeiireiiriiiriiriericreetccrrteretree et s re st ese e e e e e e s s ssesessaene 23 9.4 “4.1)
Kemper DITECE .....c.cucvieiiiiiiiiiiicciini st nen 17.8 3.9 6.8
Life and Health Insurance 03 2.6 4.5)
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net 25.2 35.0 22.0
Discontinued Operations:
Unitrin Business INSUTANCE ..........c.ccerrereererieiriniecntriectniescsessiese s sscseesestesenessensesesessenes 63 (1.9) 29

Total Favorable Development, Net $ 315 $ 331 § 249
See MD&A, “Catastrophes,” “Kemper Preferred,” “Kemper Specialty,” “Kemper Direct,” and “Life and Health Insurance” for
the impact of development on the results reported by the Company’s business segments. Also see MD&A, “Critical Accounting
Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses” for
additional information about the Company’s reserving practices.

Development in Unitrin Business Insurance comprised all of the Company’s development reported in discontinued operations.
On June 1, 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty
Insurance Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the effective date of the sale. Development in Unitrin
Business Insurance in 2012 is due primarily to the commutation of certain insurance liabilities that had been previously
assumed.

See Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular reconciliation
for the three most recent annual periods setting forth the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves as of the
beginning of each year, incurred losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, changes in incurred losses and LAE for
insured events of prior years, payments of losses and LAE for insured events of the current year, payments of losses and LAE
for insured events of prior years and the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves at the end of the year and
additional information regarding the nature of adjustments to incurred losses and LAE for insured events of prior years.

Catastrophe Losses

Catastrophes and storms are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events and
natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and winter
storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and are expected to be, a material factor in the results of operations and
financial position of Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of insured losses that
could occur in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses contribute to material year-to-year fluctuations in the
results of the operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are more likely to
occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and casualty insurance
claims. The occurrence and severity of catastrophic events cannot be accurately predicted in any year. However, some
geographic locations are more susceptible to these events than others. The Company has endeavored to manage its direct
insurance exposures in certain regions that are prone to naturally occurring catastrophic events through a combination of
geographic diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, and reinsurance.
The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events promulgated by Insurance
Services Office, Inc. (“ISO”) to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when



the event causes $25 million or more in direct losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers.
ISO-classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions
throughout this 2012 Annual Report utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. See Note 20, “Catastrophe
Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of the factors that influence the process of estimating
and establishing reserves for catastrophes.

Reinsurance

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions, and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains a primary catastrophe reinsurance program for its property and
casualty insurance businesses. Coverage for the primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers. In
addition to this program, the Kemper Preferred segment purchases reinsurance for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at
retentions lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program. The Company also purchases reinsurance from
the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund (the “FHCEF”) for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described
below for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance program. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for
2012, 2011 and 2010. The Company’s catastrophe reinsurance program for 2013 is described below.

Coverage for the catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2013 is provided in various layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses
and LAE Percentage
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Upto of Coverage
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments
Retained ......ooeeeecereceeermnemececneniisnans eeereres bbbttt e r et Rs bR an $ — § 50.0 —%
15t Layer 0f COVEIAZE.......cvvirimrinmrrrreinetentsrssetsescennssistess sttt es 50.0 100.0 65.0
2nd Layer Of COVETAZE .......cvuimvuriirirenietereiessistesss et ene st 100.0 200.0 95.0
3rd Layer of Coverage... 200.0 350.0 90.0
4th Layer Of COVEIAZE .......ccvurimriirisniereresissssssisssssssssssssestsssssssassasssasssnsssssssnans 350.0 450.0 50.0

The estimated aggregate annual premium in 2013 for the program presented in the preceding table is $23.4 million for the
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty catastrophe reinsurance program. In the event that the Company’s
incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by its catastrophe reinsurance program exceed the retention for a particular layer,
the program requires one reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement
premium to the reinsurers to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a
percentage of the original premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’
coverage limit.

Prior to 2013, companies operating in the Life and Health Insurance segment participated in a catastrophe reinsurance program
separate and apart from the catastrophe reinsurance programs covering the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper
Specialty segments. Over the last several years, the Life and Health Insurance segment has been reducing its exposure to
catastrophic events through the intentional run-off of its dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, the Life and Health
Insurance segment did not renew its catastrophe reinsurance program for 2013. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for information pertaining to the Life and Health Insurance segment’s participation in the
Company’s catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2012, 2011 and 2010.

In addition to the catastrophe loss exposures caused by natural events described above, Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies are exposed to losses from catastrophic events that are not the result of acts of nature, such as acts of
terrorism, the nature and level of which in any period cannot be accurately predicted. While there were no reported losses
experienced by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies in relation to the terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001,
the companies have reinsurance coverage to address certain exposures to potential future terrorist attacks. The reinsurance
coverage for certified events, as designated by the federal government, is from the Terrorist Risk Insurance Act and the
coverage for non-certified events is available in the catastrophe reinsurance program for Kemper’s property and casualty




insurance companies. However, certain perils, such as biological, chemical, nuclear pollution or contamination, are excluded
from the Company’s reinsurance coverage for non-certified events.

In addition to the catastrophe reinsurance programs described above, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies
utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize
exposures on larger risks.

Under the various reinsurance arrangements, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies are indemnified by
reinsurers for certain losses incurred under insurance policies issued by the reinsurers. As indemnity reinsurance does not
discharge an insurer from its direct obligations to policyholders on risks insured, Kemper’s property and casualty insurance
companies remain directly liable. However, so long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s
property and casualty insurance companies is limited to the amount of risk that they retain. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies purchase their reinsurance only from reinsurers rated “A-" or better by A. M. Best Co., Inc. (“A.M. Best”),
at the time of purchase. A.M. Best is an organization that specializes in rating insurance and reinsurance companies.

For further discussion of the reinsurance programs, see Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” Note 20,
“Catastrophe Reinsurance,” and Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Pricing

Pricing levels for property and casualty insurance are influenced by many factors, including the frequency and severity of
claims, state regulation and legislation, competition, general business and economic conditions, including market rates of
interest, inflation, expense levels, and judicial decisions. In addition, many state regulators require consideration of investment
income when approving or setting rates, which reduces underwriting margins. See MD&A under the captions “Kemper
Preferred,” “Kemper Specialty” and “Kemper Direct.”

Competition

Based on the most recent annual data published by A.M. Best as of the end of 2011, there were 1,326 property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States. Kemper’s property and casualty group was among the top 10% of property and casualty
insurance groups in the United States as measured by net written premiums, policyholders’ surplus and admitted assets in 2011.
Among all personal lines automobile insurance writers, Kemper’s property and casualty group was the 20th largest writer as
measured by net written premiums in 2011.

In 2011, the property and casualty insurance industry’s estimated net premiums written were $447 billion, of which nearly 80%
were accounted for by the top 50 groups of property and casualty insurance companies. Kemper’s property and casualty
insurance companies wrote less than 1% of the industry’s estimated 2011 premium volume.

Property and casualty insurance is a highly competitive business, particularly with respect to personal automobile insurance.
Kemper’s property and casualty insurance companies compete on the basis of, among other measures, (i) using suitable pricing
segmentation, (ii) maintaining underwriting discipline, (iii) selling to selected markets, (iv) utilizing technological innovations
for the marketing and sale of insurance, (v) controlling expenses, (vi) maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and other
ratings agencies and (vii) providing quality services to agents and policyholders. See Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the
caption “The insurance industry is highly competitive.”

Life and Health Insurance Business

The Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment consists of Kemper’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, United Insurance, The
Reliable Life Insurance Company (“Reliable”), Union National Life Insurance Company (“Union National Life””), Mutual
Savings Life Insurance Company (“Mutual Savings Life”), United Casualty Insurance Company of America (“United
Casualty”), Union National Fire Insurance Company (“Union National Fire’), Mutual Savings Fire Insurance Company
(“Mutual Savings Fire”) and Reserve National Insurance Company (“Reserve National”). As discussed below, United
Insurance, Reliable, Union National Life, Mutual Savings Life, United Casualty, Union National Fire and Mutual Savings Fire
(the “Kemper Home Service Companies™) distribute their products through a network of employee, or “career,” agents. Reserve
National distributes its products through a network of exclusive independent agents. These career agents and independent
agents are paid commissions for their services.

In 2012, the following states provided approximately two-thirds of the premium revenues in this segment: Texas (21%),
Louisiana (11%), Alabama (7%), Mississippi (6%), Illinois (4%), Florida (4%), Georgia (4%), North Carolina (4%) and
Missouri (4%). Life insurance accounted for 19%, 18%, and 17% of the Company’s consolidated insurance premiums earned in



2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Life insurance accounted for 16%, 16% and 15% of the Company’s consolidated revenues
from continuing operations in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Kemper Home Service Companies

The Kemper Home Service Companies, based in St. Louis, Missouri, focus on providing individual life and supplemental
accident and health insurance products to customers of modest incomes who desire basic protection for themselves and their
families. Their leading product is ordinary life insurance, including permanent and term insurance. Face amounts of these
policies are lower than those of policies typically sold to higher income customers by other companies in the life insurance
industry. Approximately 79% of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s premium revenues are generated by the Kemper
Home Service Companies.

The Kemper Home Service Companies employ nearly 2,600 career agents to distribute their products in 25 states and the
District of Columbia. These career agents are full-time employees who call on customers in their homes to sell insurance
products, provide services related to policies in force and collect premiums, typically monthly. Premiums average about $18 per
policy per month. Permanent and term policies are offered primarily on a non-participating, guaranteed-cost basis. These career
agents also distribute certain property insurance products for the Kemper Home Service Companies.

Reserve National

Reserve National, based in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, is licensed in 35 states throughout the south, southwest and midwest,
and specializes in the sale of Medicare Supplement insurance and limited health insurance coverages such as fixed indemnity,
dental and vision, and accident-only plans, primarily to individuals in rural areas who often do not have access to a broad array
of accident and health insurance products tailored to meet their individual and family needs. See MD&A, “Life and Health
Insurance,” “Regulation,” under this Item 1 beginning on page 10 and Item 1A., “Risk Factors,” under the caption “Reserve
National’s response to American health care reform may be unsuccessful,” for a discussion of the impact of American health
care reform on Reserve National.

Reserve National has approximately 260 independent agents appointed to market and distribute its products. These independent
agents typically represent only Reserve National.

Reinsurance

Consistent with insurance industry practice, the Company’s life and health insurance companies utilize reinsurance
arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and minimize exposures on larger risks. Prior
to 2013, the segment’s reinsurance arrangements included excess of loss reinsurance coverage specifically designed to protect
against losses arising from catastrophic events under the property insurance policies distributed by the Kemper Home Service
Companies’ agents and written by Kemper’s subsidiaries, United Casualty, Union National Fire and Mutual Savings Fire, and
reinsured by Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity, or written by Capitol County Mutual Fire Insurance Company (“Capitol”), a mutual
insurance company owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, Old Reliable Casualty Company (“ORCC”), and reinsured
by Trinity. Over the last several years, the segment has been intentionally reducing its exposure to catastrophic events through
the run-off of its dwelling insurance business. Accordingly, except for catastrophe reinsurance provided by the FHCF, the
Kemper Home Service Companies, Capitol and ORCC did not renew the primary catastrophe reinsurance program for 2013.
The FHCF provides reinsurance for catastrophe losses in Florida. See Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information pertaining to the segment’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for 2012,
2011 and 2010.

Lapse Ratio

The lapse ratio is a measure of a life insurer’s loss of in-force policies. For a given year, this ratio is commonly computed as the
total face amount of individual life insurance policies lapsed, surrendered, expired and decreased during such year, less policies
increased and revived during such year, divided by the total face amount of policies at the beginning of the year plus the face
amount of policies issued and reinsurance assumed in the prior year. The Life and Health Insurance segment’s lapse ratio for
individual life insurance was 8%, 9% and 8% in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The customer base served by the Kemper Home Service Companies and competing life insurance companies tends to have a
higher incidence of lapse than other demographic segments of the population. Thus, to maintain or increase the level of its
business, the Kemper Home Service Companies must write a high volume of new policies.



Pricing

Premiums for life and health insurance products are based on assumptions with respect to mortality, morbidity, investment
yields, expenses, and lapses and are also affected by state laws and regulations, as well as competition. Pricing assumptions are
based on the experience of Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries, as well as the industry in general, depending on the
factor being considered. The actual profit or loss produced by a product will vary from the anticipated profit if the actual
experience differs from the assumptions used in pricing the product.

Premiums for policies sold by the Kemper Home Service Companies are set at levels designed to cover the relatively high cost
of “in home” servicing of such policies. As a result of such higher expenses, incurred claims as a percentage of earned
premiums tend to be lower for companies utilizing this method of distribution than the life insurance industry average.

Premiums for Medicare supplement and other accident and health policies must take into account the rising costs of medical
care. The annual rate of medical cost inflation has historically been higher than the general rate of inflation, necessitating
frequent rate increases, most of which are subject to approval by state regulatory agencies.

Competition

Based on the most recent data published by A.M. Best as of the end of 2011, there were 497 life and health insurance company
groups in the United States. The Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment ranked in the top 20% of life and health
insurance company groups, as measured by admitted assets (86), net premiums written (91) and capital and surplus (83) for
2011.

Kemper’s life and health insurance subsidiaries generally compete by using appropriate pricing, selling to selected markets,
controlling expenses, maintaining adequate ratings from A.M. Best and providing competitive services to agents and
policyholders.

Investments

The quality, nature, and amount of the various types of investments that can be made by insurance companies are regulated by
state laws. Depending on the state, these laws permit investments in qualified assets, including, but not limited to, municipal,
state and federal government obligations, corporate bonds, real estate, preferred and common stocks, investment partnerships,
limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships and mortgages where the value of the underlying real estate
exceeds the amount of the loan.

The Company employs a total return investment strategy, with an emphasis on yield, while maintaining liquidity to meet both
its short and long-term insurance obligations. See the discussions of the Company’s investments under the headings
“Investment Results,” “Investment Quality and Concentrations,” “Investments in Limited Liability Investment Companies and
Limited Partnerships,” “Liquidity and Capital Resources™ and “Critical Accounting Estimates,” in the MD&A, “Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” in Item 7A and Note 4, “Investments,” Note 14, “Income from Investments,”
and Note 22, “Fair Value Measurements,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulation
Insurance Regulation

Kemper is subject to the insurance holding company laws of a number of states. Certain dividends and distributions by an
insurance subsidiary are subject to approval by the insurance regulators of the state of incorporation of such subsidiary. Other
significant transactions between an insurance subsidiary and its holding company or other subsidiaries of the holding company
may require approval by insurance regulators in the state of incorporation of each of the insurance subsidiaries participating in
such transactions.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they do business. Such regulation
pertains to a variety of matters, including, but not limited to, policy forms, premium rate plans, licensing of agents, licenses to
transact business, trade practices, claims practices, investments and solvency. The majority of Kemper’s insurance operations
are in states requiring prior approval by regulators before proposed rates for property, casualty, or health insurance policies may
be implemented. However, rates proposed for life insurance generally become effective immediately upon filing with a state,
even though the same state may require prior rate approval for other types of insurance. Insurance regulatory authorities
perform periodic examinations of an insurer’s market conduct and other affairs. Kemper’s health insurance subsidiaries are also
subject to certain regulation by the federal government. For example, the Health Care Acts, and the regulations promulgated
thereunder, have already established or will establish minimum loss ratios, rating restrictions, mandates for essential health
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benefit coverages, and restrictions or prohibitions on pre-existing condition exclusions and annual and lifetime policy limits for
health insurance policies.

Insurance companies are required to report their financial condition and results of operation in accordance with statutory
accounting principles prescribed or permitted by state insurance regulators in conjunction with the National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC™). State insurance regulators also prescribe the form and content of statutory financial
statements, perform periodic financial examinations of insurers, set minimum reserve and loss ratio requirements, establish
standards for the types and amounts of investments and require minimum capital and surplus levels. Such statutory capital and
surplus requirements include risk-based capital (“RBC”) rules promulgated by the NAIC. These RBC standards are intended to
assess the level of risk inherent in an insurance company’s business and consider items such as asset risk, credit risk,
underwriting risk and other business risks relevant to its operations. In accordance with RBC formulas, a company’s RBC
requirements are calculated and compared to its total adjusted capital to determine whether regulatory intervention is warranted.
At December 31, 2012, the total adjusted capital of each of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels
required under RBC rules.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required under the guaranty fund laws of most states in which they transact business to pay
assessments up to prescribed limits to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insolvent insurance companies. Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries also are required to participate in various involuntary pools or assigned risk pools, principally involving
windstorms and high risk drivers. In most states, the involuntary pool participation of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is in
proportion to their voluntary writings of related lines of business in such states.

In addition to the regulatory requirements described above, a number of legislative and regulatory measures pending or recently
approved may significantly affect the insurance business in a variety of ways. In particular, the NAIC adopted extensive
modifications to its Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act and related regulation in December 2010.
Several states have already adopted legislation that incorporates the principal aspects of the NAIC’s proposed revisions, and it
is reasonable to assume that the various other state legislatures and regulators will enact conforming revisions into law to
maintain their accredited status with the NAIC. These modifications will, among other things, substantially expand the
oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators not only with respect to licensed insurance companies, but also
with respect to their presently unregulated non-insurance affiliates, and impose new reporting requirements on the ultimate
controlling persons of such insurance companies in respect of, among other things, enterprise risk to the organization as a
whole, affiliated transactions, and any divestiture of controlling interests in an insurer. Other significant measures enacted in
recent years include, among other things, tort reform, the Health Care Acts, the DFA, consumer privacy requirements, credit
score regulation, producer compensation regulations, corporate governance requirements and financial services deregulation
initiatives.

State insurance laws intended primarily for the protection of policyholders contain certain requirements that must be met prior
to any change of control of an insurance company or insurance holding company that is domiciled or, in some cases, an
insurance company having such substantial business that it is deemed commercially domiciled, in that state. These requirements
may include the advance filing of specific information with the state insurance regulators, a public hearing on the matter, and
the review and approval of the change of control by such regulators. The Company has insurance subsidiaries domiciled in
Alabama, California, Illinois, Louisiana, Missouri, New York, Oklahoma, Oregon, Texas or Wisconsin. In these states, except
Alabama, “control” generally is presumed to exist through the direct or indirect ownership of 10% or more of the voting
securities of an insurance company. Control is presumed to exist in Alabama with a 5% or more ownership interest in such
securities. Any purchase of Kemper’s shares that would result in the purchaser owning Kemper’s voting securities in the
foregoing percentages for the states indicated would be presumed to result in the acquisition of control of Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in those states. Therefore, acquisitions subject to the 10% threshold generally would require the prior approval of
the insurance regulatory authorities in each state in which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or deemed to be
commercially domiciled, including those in Alabama, while acquisitions subject to the 5% threshold generally would require
the prior approval of only Alabama regulatory authorities. Similarly, consistent with the changes the NAIC adopted to the
Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act, several states have enacted legislation that requires either the
acquiring and/or divesting company to notify and receive insurance regulatory authority approval for a change in control. Other
states are expected to adopt similar provisions to their holding company acts.

In addition, many states require pre-acquisition notification to the state insurance regulators of a change of control of an
insurance company licensed in that state if specific market concentration thresholds would be triggered by the acquisition.
While those pre-acquisition notification statutes generally do not authorize the state insurance regulators to disapprove the
change of control, they do authorize the issuance of a cease and desist order with respect to the insurance company if certain
conditions, such as undue market concentration, would result from the acquisition. These insurance regulatory requirements
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may deter, delay or prevent transactions effecting control of the Company or the ownership of Kemper’s voting securities,
including transactions that could be advantageous to Kemper’s shareholders.

Dodd-Frank Act

In July 2010, the DFA was enacted into law. The DFA brings about a profound increase in the regulation of the financial
services industry. Among other things, the DFA forms within the Treasury Department a Federal Insurance Office that is
charged with monitoring all aspects of the insurance industry, gathering data, and conducting a study on methods to modernize
and improve the insurance regulatory system in the United States. A report on this study that was to be delivered to Congress
within 18 months after enactment of the DFA is still forthcoming, and could be influential in reshaping the current state-based
insurance regulatory system and/or introducing a direct federal role in such regulation.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Most issuers, including Kemper, are exposed to numerous risk factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from
recent results or anticipated future results. The following discussion details the significant risk factors that are more specific to
the Company. In addition to those described below, the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operation could
be materially affected by other factors not presently known by, or considered material to, the Company. Readers are advised to
consider these factors along with the other information included in this 2012 Annual Report, and to consult any further
disclosures Kemper makes on related subjects in its filings with the SEC.

Catastrophe losses, whether resulting from natural disasters, terrorism or other man-made events, and reinsurance risks
could adversely affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries are subject to claims arising out of catastrophes that may have a
significant effect on their results of operations, liquidity and financial condition. Catastrophes can be caused by various events,
including, but not limited to, hurricanes, tornadoes, windstorms, earthquakes, hail storms, explosions, severe winter weather
and wildfires and may include man-made events, such as terrorist attacks and hazardous material spills. The incidence,
frequency and severity of catastrophes are inherently unpredictable, and may be impacted by the uncertain effects of climate
change. The extent of the Company’s losses from a catastrophe is a function of both the total amount of insured exposure in the
area affected by the event and the severity of the event.

Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance subsidiaries are particularly exposed to risks of catastrophic mortality, such as pandemic or
other events that result in large numbers of deaths. In addition, the occurrence of such an event in a concentrated geographic
area could have a severe disruptive effect on the Company’s workforce and business operations. The likelihood and severity of
such events cannot be predicted and are difficult to estimate.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries seek to reduce their exposure to catastrophe losses through underwriting strategies and the
purchase of catastrophe reinsurance. Reinsurance does not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their direct liability to
their policyholders. As long as the reinsurers meet their obligations, the net liability for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries is
limited to the amount of risk that they retain. While the Company’s principal reinsurers are each rated “A-” or better by A.M.
Best at the time reinsurance is purchased, the Company cannot be certain that reinsurers will pay the amounts due from them
either now, in the future, or on a timely basis. A reinsurer’s insolvency or inability to make payments under the terms of its
reinsurance agreement with Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations and liquidity.

In addition, market conditions beyond the Company’s control determine the availability and cost of the reinsurance protection
that Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries may purchase. A decrease in the amount of reinsurance protection that Kemper’s
insurance subsidiaries purchase generally should decrease their cost of reinsurance, but increase their risk of loss. An increase
in the amount of reinsurance protection that Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries purchase generally should increase their cost of
reinsurance, but decrease their risk of loss. However, if the amount of available reinsurance is reduced, Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries could pay more for the same level, or a lower level, of reinsurance coverage. Accordingly, the Company may be
forced to incur additional expenses for reinsurance or may not be able to obtain sufficient reinsurance on acceptable terms,
which could adversely affect the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to write future insurance policies or result in their
retaining more risk with respect to such insurance policies.
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Estimating losses and LAE for determining property and casualty insurance reserves, or determining premium rates, is
inherently uncertain, and the Company’s results of operations may be materially impacted if the Company’s insurance
reserves or premium rates are insufficient. :

The Company establishes loss and LAE reserves to cover estimated liabilities, which remain unpaid as of the end of each
accounting period, and to investigate and settle all claims incurred under the property and casualty insurance policies that it has
issued. Loss and LAE reserves are established for claims that have been reported to the Company as of the end of the
accounting period, as well as for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to the Company. The estimates of
loss and LAE reserves are based on the Company’s assessment of the facts and circumstances known to it at the time, as well as
estimates of the impact of future trends in the severity of claims, the frequency of claims and other factors. See MD&A,
“Critical Accounting Estimates,” under the caption “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment
Expenses” beginning on page 54 for a discussion of the Company’s reserving process and the factors considered by the
Company’s actuaries in estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves.

As the process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves is inherently uncertain, the reserves established by the
Company are not precise estimates of liability and could prove to be inadequate to cover its ultimate losses and expenses for
insured events that have occurred. The process of estimating loss reserves is complex and imprecise. The estimate of the
ultimate cost of claims for insured events that have occurred must take into consideration many factors that are dependent on
the outcome of firture events associated with the reporting, investigation and settlement of claims. The impacts on the
Company’s estimates of property and casualty insurance reserves from these factors are difficult to assess accurately. A change
in any one or more of the factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate loss that is different than the previous projected
ultimate loss, and may have a material impact on the Company’s estimate of the projected ultimate loss. Increases in the
estimates of ultimate losses and LAE will decrease earnings, while decreases in such estimates will increase earnings, as
reported by the Company in the results of its operations for the periods in which the changes to the estimates are made by the
Company.

The Company’s actuaries also consider trends in the severity and frequency of claims and other factors, when determining the
premium rates to charge for its property and casualty insurance products. An unanticipated change in any one or more of these
factors or trends, as well as a change in competitive conditions, may also result in inadequate premium rates charged for
insurance policies issued by Kemper’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries in the future. Such pricing inadequacies
could have a material impact on the Company’s operating results.

Reserve National’s response to American health care reform may be unsuccessful.

Reserve National’s business model, which focuses on providing limited benefit and supplemental accident and health insurance
coverages to persons who lack access to traditional private options, is likely to be adversely affected by the Health Care Acts. In
response, Reserve National has begun adapting its business model by placing emphasis on designing and selling supplemental
health insurance products that are not expected to be as severely impacted by the Health Care Acts and ceasing to issue health
insurance products that are expected to be severely impacted. In particular, Reserve National has ceased issuing health
insurance products that are subject to certain provisions that establish minimum loss ratios for health insurance policies
significantly above the levels historically experienced by Reserve National. While this action is likely to mitigate Reserve
National’s risk, the minimum loss provisions could adversely impact its ability to achieve an adequate return on its renewal
book of these affected products. The creation of health insurance exchanges beginning in 2014 may result in Reserve National
losing a significant number of customers.

If Reserve National’s sales of supplemental health insurance products are insufficient to offset the loss of business impacted by
the Health Care Acts, a significant loss of business for Reserve National may result. A significant loss of business could have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition, the results of operations and the valuation of Reserve National.

Kemper is dependent on receiving dividends from its subsidiaries to service its debt and to pay dividends to its shareholders.

As a holding company with no business operations of its own, Kemper depends on the dividend income that it receives from its
subsidiaries as the primary source of funds to pay interest and principal on its outstanding debt obligations and to pay dividends
to its shareholders. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory restrictions under state insurance laws
and regulations that limit their ability to declare and pay dividends. These laws and regulations impose minimum solvency and
liquidity requirements on dividends between affiliated companies and require prior notice to, and may require approval from,
state insurance regulators before dividends can be paid. The inability of one or more of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to pay
sufficient dividends to Kemper may materially affect Kemper’s ability to timely pay its debt obligations or to pay dividends to
its shareholders.



A significant downgrade in the ratings of Kemper or its insurance subsidiaries could adversely affect the Company.

Third-party rating agencies assess the financial strength and rate the claims-paying ability of insurance companies based on
criteria established by the rating agencies. Third-party ratings are important competitive factors in the insurance industry.
Financial strength ratings are used to assess the financial strength and quality of insurers. A significant downgrade by a
recognized rating agency in the ratings of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries, particularly those operating in the preferred and
standard market or offering homeowners insurance, could result in a substantial loss of business if agents or policyholders of
such subsidiaries move to other companies with higher claims-paying and financial strength ratings. Any substantial loss of
business could have a material adverse effect on the financial condition and results of operations of such subsidiaries. A
downgrade in Kemper’s credit rating by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”), Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s”) or Fitch Ratings
(“Fitch”) may reduce Kemper’s ability to access the capital markets for general corporate purposes or refinance existing debt.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulation by state insurance departments.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation in the states in which they do business. Current regulations
encompass a wide variety of matters, including policy forms, premium rates, licensing, trade practices, claims practices,
investment standards, statutory capital and surplus requirements, reserve and loss ratio requirements, restrictions on transactions
among affiliates and consumer privacy.

Insurance regulatory agencies conduct periodic examinations of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries and require the filing of
annual and other reports relating to financial condition, holding company issues and other matters. If an insurance company
fails to obtain required licenses or approvals, or if any of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries fail to comply with other regulatory
requirements, the regulatory agencies can suspend or delay their operations or licenses, require corrective action, and impose
penalties or other remedies available under the applicable laws and regulations.

These laws and regulations, and their interpretation by the various regulatory agencies and courts, are undergoing continual
revision and expansion. The regulatory structures in the financial services industry have come under intense scrutiny as a result
of the turmoil experienced by the financial markets. While it is not possible to predict how new legislation or regulations or
new interpretations of existing laws and regulations may impact the operations of Kemper’s subsidiaries, two recent
developments have the potential to significantly impact such operations.

In July 2010, the DFA was enacted into law. For more information about the potential impact of the DFA on the Company’s
operations, see “Dodd-Frank Act” under “Regulation” in Item 1, beginning on page 12.

In addition, the NAIC adopted extensive modifications to its Model Insurance Holding Company System Regulatory Act and
related regulation in December 2010. Several states have already adopted legislation that incorporates the principal aspects of
the NAIC’s proposed revisions, and it is reasonable to assume that the various other state legislatures and regulators will enact
conforming revisions into law to maintain their accredited status with the NAIC. These modifications will, among other things,
substantially expand the oversight and examination powers of state insurance regulators, not only with respect to licensed
insurance companies, but also with respect to their presently unregulated non-insurance affiliates, and will impose new
reporting requirements on the ultimate controlling persons of such insurance companies with respect to, among other things,
enterprise risk to the organization as a whole, affiliated transactions, and any divestiture of controlling interests in an insurer.

These new developments (including regulations that have been or that are required to be promulgated under the DFA), as well
as significant changes in, or new interpretations of, existing laws and regulations could make it more expensive for Kemper’s
subsidiaries to conduct their businesses and could materially affect the profitability of their operations and the Company’s
financial results. See the discussion in the risk factor above entitled “Reserve National’s response to American health care
reform may be unsuccessful” regarding the potential effect of the Health Care Acts on Reserve National’s business model. For a
more detailed discussion of the regulations applicable to Kemper’s subsidiaries, see “Insurance Regulation” under “Regulation”
in Item 1, beginning on page 10.
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The Company is subject to interest rate risk and credit risk in its fixed maturity investment portfolio.

One of the Company’s primary market risk exposures is to changes in interest rates. A decline in market interest rates could
have an adverse effect on the Company’s investment income as it invests cash in new investments that may yield less than the
portfolio’s average rate. In a declining interest rate environment, borrowers may seek to refinance their borrowings at lower
rates and, accordingly, prepay or redeem securities the Company holds as investments more quickly than the Company initially
expected. Such prepayment or redemption action may cause the Company to reinvest the redeemed proceeds in lower yielding
investments. An increase in market interest rates could also have an adverse effect on the value of the Company’s investment
portfolio, for example, by decreasing the fair values of the fixed income securities that comprise a substantial majority of its
investment portfolio.

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is subject to credit risk from the issuers of the securities in the portfolio.
Deterioration in the financial conditions of the issuers could result in a decline in the fair value of the Company’s fixed maturity
investment portfolio. Deterioration in the financial conditions of the issuers could also result in issuer defaults and impact the
Company’s ability to recover the reported value of its fixed maturity investment portfolio. Accordingly, deterioration in the
credit quality of the Company’s investment portfolio could adversely affect the Company’s operating results and financial
position.

The Company’s investments in limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships are concentrated in
companies and partnerships that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt and secondary transactions.

At December 31, 2012, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries had $253.0 million invested in limited liability investment companies
and limited partnerships accounted for under the equity method of accounting (“Equity Method Limited Liability Investments™)
that invest in distressed and mezzanine debt of other companies and secondary transactions. In addition, Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $141.5 million at December 31, 2012, including $88.7 million
of unfunded commitments related to investments reported as Other Equity Interests and included in Equity Securities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, in limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships. Such unfunded commitments
generally may be used to fund additional investments made, or losses incurred, by such limited liability investment companies
and limited partnerships. The underlying investments of such limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships
generally provide opportunities for higher returns, but at a higher risk than investment-grade investments. General economic
swings influence the performance of the underlying investments in distressed and mezzanine debt and secondary transactions.
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have also made direct investments in the same or similar distressed and mezzanine debt
securities of certain issuers in which such limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships have made
investments, which could exacerbate any losses attributable to poor performance of any such investments. A severe and
continued downturn in the economy may result in deterioration in the business prospects of the issuers of the underlying
investments that could adversely affect the Company’s operating results and financial position.

The insurance industry is highly competitive.

The Company’s insurance businesses face significant competition, and its ability to compete is affected by a variety of issues
relative to others in the industry, such as product pricing, service quality, financial strength and name recognition. Competitive
success is based on many factors, including, but not limited to, the following:

o Competitiveness of prices charged for insurance policies;
»  Selection of agents, web portals and other business partners;
+  Compensation paid to agents;

»  Underwriting discipline;

«  Selectiveness of sales markets;

»  Effectiveness of marketing materials;

»  Product and technological innovation;

»  Ability to detect and prevent fraudulent insurance claims;
«  Ability to control operating expenses;

+  Financial strength ratings; and

+  Quality of services provided to agents and policyholders.

The inability to compete effectively in any of the Company’s insurance businesses could materially reduce the Company’s
customer base and revenues and could adversely affect the future results and financial condition of the Company.
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See “Competition” in Item 1 of Part I beginning on page 8 and page 10, for more information on the competitive rankings in the
property and casualty insurance markets and the life and health insurance markets, respectively, in the United States.

The effects of an evolving legal and regulatory landscape on Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are uncertain.

The legal and regulatory landscape within which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries conduct their businesses is often
unpredictable. As industry practices and regulatory, judicial, political, social and other conditions change, unexpected and
unintended issues may emerge. These emerging practices, conditions and issues could adversely affect Kemper’s insurance
subsidiaries in a variety of ways, including by expansion of coverages beyond their underwriting intent, by increasing the
number or size of claims or accelerating the payment of claims. Industry practices that were considered legally-compliant and
reasonable for years may suddenly be deemed unacceptable by virtue of an unexpected court or regulatory ruling or changes in
regulatory enforcement policies and practices. Anticipating such shifts in the law and the impact they may have on the
Company and its operations is a difficult task and there can be no assurances that the Company will not encounter such shifts in
the future. The effects of such changes are hard to predict, but could materially affect the financial results of the Company.

Legal and regulatory proceedings are unpredictable.

Kemper and its subsidiaries are from time to time involved in lawsuits, regulatory inquiries, and other legal proceedings arising
out of the ordinary course of their businesses. Some of these proceedings may involve matters particular to Kemper or one or
more of its subsidiaries, while others may pertain to business practices in the industry in which Kemper and its subsidiaries
operate. Some lawsuits may seek class action status that, if granted, could expose the Company to potentially significant
liability by virtue of the size of the putative classes. These matters raise difficult factual and legal issues and are subject to
uncertainties and complexities, and the outcomes of these matters are difficult to predict, and the amounts or ranges of potential
loss at particular stages in the proceedings are in most cases difficult or impossible to ascertain. A further complication is that
even where the possibility of an adverse outcome is deemed to be remote using traditional legal analysis, juries sometimes can
and do substitute their subjective views in place of facts and established legal principles. Given the unpredictability of the legal
and regulatory landscape in which the Company operates, there can be no assurance that one or more of these matters will not
produce a result that could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial results for any given period.

For information about the Company’s pending litigation, see Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” beginning on page 18.

Changes in state enforcement of unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could have a
significant effect on (including an acceleration of) the payment and/or escheatment of life insurance death benefits relative
to what is currently contemplated by Kemper and significantly increase claims handling costs.

In recent years, many states have begun to aggressively enforce compliance with their respective unclaimed property laws to
assure that companies are properly reporting and remitting such property. The treasurers of a large majority of states have
engaged private firms to examine the practices and procedures of life insurance companies for the handling of unclaimed
insurance benefits under life insurance policies, annuity contracts and retained asset accounts.

Certain other measures are also being taken or considered by state insurance regulators, both individually and collectively,
through the auspices of the NAIC. Some state insurance regulators have held administrative hearings and/or have initiated
market conduct examinations focused on claims handling and escheatment practices of life insurers. Based on published
reports, at least six companies have entered into settlement agreements in which they commit to change their historic claims
practices by agreeing to periodically search for deceased insureds, prior to the receipt of a death claim, by comparing their in-
force policy records against a database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration (the “SSA Death
Master File”). Separately, state legislators, through the auspices of the National Council of Insurance Legislators, have
proposed model legislation which, if enacted by various states, could require life insurers to compare their in-force policy
records against the SSA Death Master File, for the purpose of proactively identifying potentially deceased insureds for whom
the life insurer has not yet received a death claim. Kentucky, New York, Maryland and Alabama have each enacted legislation
of this type, with effective dates of January 1, 2013, June 17, 2013, October 1, 2013 and January 1, 2014, respectively. These
statutes, if construed to apply to life insurance policies in force on the statutes’ effective dates, could have a significant effect
on, including an acceleration of, the payment of life insurance benefits to beneficiaries or, in instances where beneficiaries
could not be located, the escheatment of such benefits to the states. A declaratory judgment action filed by the Company in
November 2012 is pending in state court in Kentucky asking the court to construe the Kentucky statute such that it would only
apply prospectively, i.e., only with respect to life insurance policies issued on or after the statute’s effective date, consistent with
the requirements of applicable Kentucky statutory law and Kentucky and federal constitutional provisions.
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Kemper’s life insurance companies are currently the subject of an unclaimed property compliance examination by a private
firm retained by the treasurers of thirty-eight states. Kemper’s life insurance companies have provided a significant amount of
information to such firm. The results of this examination are not likely to be known for some time. One state insurance
regulator has also commenced a market conduct exam of Kemper’s life insurance companies for the purpose of verifying such
companies’ compliance with relevant regulations governing life insurance claims handling and escheatment practices.

Should these various efforts by state officials succeed in applying new claims handling and escheatment practices to existing
life insurance policies, they could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s profitability and financial position.

See Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the sections of the MD&A entitled “Life and
Health Insurance” and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for additional information on these matters.

Managing technology initiatives to address business developments and increasing data security regulations and risks present
significant challenges to the Company.

While technological developments can streamline many business processes and ultimately reduce the cost of operations,
technology initiatives can present short-term cost and implementation risks. In addition, projections of expenses,
implementation schedules and utility of results may be inaccurate and can escalate over time. The financial services industry is
highly regulated, and the Company faces rising costs and competing time constraints in meeting compliance requirements of
new and proposed regulations. Companies operating in the financial services industry obtain and store vast amounts of personal
data. The expanding volume and sophistication of computer viruses, hackers and other external hazards may increase the
vulnerability of the Company’s data systems, including, but not limited to, the personal data used in and stored on such systems,
to security breaches. These increased risks and expanding regulatory requirements, including requirements related to personal
data security, expose the Company to potential data loss and damages and significant increases in compliance and litigation
costs.

In addition, non-compliance with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard, an information security standard for
organizations that handle cardholder information for the major debit, credit, prepaid, e-purse, ATM and point-of-sale cards,
could result in fines from such organizations or the inability to transact business with customers using these cards.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties.
Owned Properties

The Company owns the 41-story office building at One East Wacker Drive, Chicago, Illinois, that houses the executive offices
of Kemper and the home office of its Kemper Direct operations, which together occupy approximately 58,000 square feet of the
527,000 rentable square feet in the building. In addition, Kemper’s subsidiaries together own and occupy 13 buildings located
in seven states consisting of approximately 47,000 square feet in the aggregate. Kemper’s subsidiaries hold additional
properties solely for investment purposes that are not utilized by Kemper or its subsidiaries.

Leased Facilities

Kemper Preferred leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 89,000 at 8 locations in eight states. The
latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018, Kemper Specialty leases facilities with an aggregate square
footage of approximately 20,000 at two locations in two states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in June of
2018. Kemper Direct leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 63,000 at five locations in four states.
The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in October of 2016. Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct
share leased facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 329,000 at 15 locations in 10 states. The latest
expiration date of the existing leases is in September of 2018. Kemper’s Life and Health Insurance segment leases facilities
with aggregate square footage of approximately 496,000 at 124 locations in 26 states. The latest expiration date of the existing
leases is in October of 2019. Kemper’s corporate data processing operation leases facilities with aggregate square footage of
approximately 36,000 square feet at two locations in two states. The latest expiration date of the existing leases is in September
of 2018. Fireside leases facilities with an aggregate square footage of approximately 48,000 at one location in one state. The
expiration date of the lease is in August of 2014.

The properties described above are in good condition. The properties utilized in the Company’s operations consist of facilities
suitable for general office space, call centers and data processing operations.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.
Proceedings

Information concerning pending legal proceedings is incorporated herein by reference to Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Market Information

Kemper’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the symbol of “KMPR.” Quarterly
information pertaining to market prices of Kemper common stock in 2012 and 2011 is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Common Stock Market Prices:
High. ..o $ 3099 $ 3123 § 3300 $ 3198 § 33.00
LOW ettt essrssassae et 27.77 28.14 30.08 28.20 27.77
ClOSE...ueeeirecreieerresree et eeecneteeeeneaeesreecssssaraens 30.28 30.75 30.71 29.50 29.50
Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Common Stock Market Prices:
High oot $ 31,11 $ 3169 $ 30.11 $ 2971 $ 31.69
LOW et eerreerrree e e s e 30.68 27.80 22.25 22.07 22.07
ClOSE..uvveeeiireeererrrreesecsereseescssrnaeeesssseesassocsssensenas 30.88 29.67 23.96 29.21 29.21
Holders

As of January 17, 2013, the number of record holders of Kemper’s common stock was 4,690.

Dividends

Quarterly information pertaining to payment of dividends on Kemper’s common stock is presented below.

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)...... $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 024 $ 0.96

Three Months Ended Year Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS PER SHARE 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)....... $ 024 $ 024 $§ 024 $§ 024 $ 0.96

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to various state insurance laws that restrict the ability of these insurance
subsidiaries to pay dividends without prior regulatory approval. See MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 9,
“Shareholders’ Equity,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for information on Kemper’s ability and intent to pay

dividends.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On February 2, 2011, Kemper’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $300 million of Kemper’s common
stock. The repurchase program does not have an expiration date. No shares were repurchased under the repurchase program
during the fourth quarter of 2012. The maximum dollar value of shares of Kemper’s common stock that may yet be repurchased
under the program was $211.9 million at December 31, 2012.

There were 31,379 shares withheld to satisfy tax withholding obligations relating to the exercise of stock appreciation rights under
Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans during the quarter ended December 31, 2012. No restricted stock awards
vested under Kemper’s long-term equity-based compensation plans during the quarter ended December 31, 2012.

Kemper Common Stock Performance Graph

The following graph assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2007 in (i) Kemper common stock, (ii) the S&P MidCap 400
Index and (iii) the S&P Composite 1500 Insurance Index, in each case with dividends reinvested. Kemper is a constituent of
each of these two indices.

The comparisons in the graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast the possible future
performance of Kemper common stock.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
$150 [E—
S&P MidCap 400
/‘—\/‘ index
$100
Kemper Corporation
S&P Composite 1500
Insurance Index
$50
$0 - T . T Y 1
12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12
Company / Index 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
Kemper Corporation.........ceeeveeveeenesresseressnsresessenses $ 10000 $ 3559 § 5311 $§ 6126 $ 7545 $ 78.71
S&P MidCap 400 IndeX........cccovrererrererrererreernnerarenens 100.00 63.77 87.61 110.94 109.02 128.51
S&P Composite 1500 Insurance Index........c.cccveruennene 100.00 46.76 51.80 60.11 55.96 66.65
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Selected financial information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2011* 2010* 2009+ 2008*
FOR THE YEAR
Earned Premitms .........covuvoeereereeerneeeeneensorseencssmcscsssssaesencas $ 21071 $ 2,173.6 $ 22894 $ 24555 $ 2,376.6
Net Investment INCOME .....c...oeeceerieeverninrcinvenniiniencenenns 295.9 298.0 325.7 319.9 208.5
Other INCOME........ceeceerenerrecerreseesesseseessestesesceaessesssaneseas 0.8 1.0 1.3 25 4.1
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments............coceceueneee 65.4 33.7 42.6 24.6 59.2
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings ................. 6.9) (11.3) (16.5) (50.4) (152.9)
Total REVENUES .......veovereerenrererenrenseneeneenceneneeeemseecesssrsssessesens $ 24623 $ 24950 $ 26425 $ 2,752.1 $ 24955
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations ...........c.cccouveene $ 91.8 §$ 617 $§ 1624 $ 1618 § (15.8)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations............c.cc..c.. 11.6 12.8 15.5 2.8) (13.9)
Net INcome (LOSS) ..ccuvveeererrrrenrerrenerissecessecssreseesesocssnsecesas $ 1034 $ 745 $ 1779 $ 1590 $ (29.7)
Per Unrestricted Share: -
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations.............c.... $ 155 § 1.02 §$ 262 $ 260 $ (0.25)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations ................ 0.20 0.21 0.25 (0.05) 0.22)
Net InNCOme (LO0SS) ..coverrrerererreecrneenrinseensescensesesseesensanes $ 175 $ 123 § 287 $ 255 $ 0.47)
Per Unrestricted Share Assuming Dilution: -
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations............ccc.e.. $ 154 $ 1.02 $ 262 $ 260 $§  (0.25)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations ................ 0.20 0.21 0.25 (0.05) (0.22)
Net INCoOme (LOSS) ...coveeeeerrerernnenensersecetiseersessceseesaessenees $ 174 $ 123 $ 287 $ 255§ (047)
Dividends Paid to Shareholders (per share)........cccccccoeee. § 096 $ 096 $ 088 $ 107 $ 188
AT YEAR END -
TOtAl ASSELS....viveereeeriiieierereeseerrerreerestessessssosessessasssssssssssssesss $ 8,009.1 $ 79347 $ 82608 $ 8489.8 $ 8740.8
Insurance RESEIves......coovvmiviicceeniiccennininenecniinneeniinenns m m m W m
Unearned PIemilms ........oceveeecererenceerseresensrsencenenestsnessessens 650.9 666.2 678.6 724.9 733.5
Certificates of DEPOSILS .......cc.cccvverrirniinniinientiiinriienennes —_ — 3214 682.4 1,110.8
Notes Payable..........ccoeurueueencnieieenmeireinresensssesenisssassaseseseass 611.4 610.6 609.8 561.4 560.8
All Other Liabilities ........ccoceeuereerereecerrrrerrenercenreriesenssesesnnens 452.9 409.5 445.6 447.9 523.8
Total Liabilities......ccvererriruererrrenerreeeteenresenneresnerssesssessosenens 5,847.4 5,818.1 6,237.8 6,655.9 7,170.2
Shareholders” EQUILY ........ccocvueveremrereernureeseresenessesassenseseeses 2,161.7 2,116.6 2,023.0 1,833.9 1,570.6
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity............cccvveceenencne $ 80091 $ 79347 $ 82608 $ 84898 $ 87408
Book Value Per Share...........ccccovevevinniccinniennccninniseeinees m m m m m

* Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing
Insurance Contracts, and retrospectively applied its provisions to the prior periods presented. The retrospective application
reduced Shareholders’ Equity by $77.9 million at January 1, 2008. See Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

Net Income was $103.4 million ($1.75 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to
$74.5 million ($1.23 per unrestricted common share) for the year ended December 31, 2011. Income from Continuing
Operations was $91.8 million ($1.55 per unrestricted common share) in 2012, compared to $61.7 million ($1.02 per
unrestricted common share) in 2011.

Catastrophe losses and LAE from continuing operations (excluding loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident
years) were $124.5 million before tax for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $163.8 million in 2011, a decrease of
$39.3 million. Kemper Preferred contributed $38.8 million to the decrease in catastrophe losses and LAE before tax, with the
Life Health Insurance segment contributing $3.1 million to the decrease. The Company reported Income from Discontinued
Operations of $11.6 million and $12.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

A reconciliation of Total Segment Net Operating Income to Net Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
is presented below:

2012 2011
Increase Increase

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 (Decrease) 2010 (Decrease)
Segment Net Operating Income (Loss):

Kemper Preferred .......c.oceeeereccnieenenincrseseensinsiinenn: $ 112§ (@176 $ 64 $ 529 $ (70.5)

Kemper Specialty ........oovveveereeeninerieninecerercenneoniisninens 1.2 19.8 (18.6) 21.0 (1.2)

Kemper DIreCt .......ccccoreceevrinncinisinsiniriniisisserennines 0.9) (27.5) 26.6 1.7 (25.8)

Life and Health INSUrance ..........o.eceeveevcemenveceeserneosssnnvennns 90.8 98.9 8.1) 87.4 11.5
Total Segment Net Operating Income...........ccovveueeverennrnencns 79.9 73.6 6.3 159.6 (86.0)
Unallocated Net Operating Loss ......cccoeeceiniccnmnninniincnnnnnes (26.1) (26.5) 04 (14.4) (12.1)
Consolidated Net Operating Income........c...ccocerinvivirnrcninnns 53.8 47.1 6.7 145.2 (98.1)
Net Income (Loss) From:

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments................... 2.5 21.9 20.6 279 (6.0)

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............. “.5) (7.3) 2.8 (10.7) 34
Income from Continuing Operations...........cccoceveeruvevunsirnene 91.8 61.7 30.1 1624 (100.7)
Income from Discontinued Operations .......c..ccccccevvevcrnenrennnn 11.6 12.8 (1.2) 15.5 2.7)
NEt INCOME ....vovvereaeririnieeenereneteeensssaesessntsesssesensasssesssessssaes $ 1034 $ 745 $ 280 $§ 1779 $§ (103.4)

Earned Premiums were $2,107.1 million in 2012, compared to $2,173.6 million in 2011, a decrease of $66.5 million. Earned
Premiums decreased by $54.7 million and $25.4 million in the Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty segments, respectively,
offset by a $19.6 million increase in premiums in the Kemper Preferred segment.

Net Investment Income decreased by $2.1 million in 2012 due primarily to $4.1 million in higher Other Investment Expenses,
partially offset by $1.2 million of higher net investment income from Real Estate and $1.2 million of higher investment income
from Loans to Policyholders.

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments were $65.4 million in 2012, compared to $33.7 million in 2011. Net Impairment
Losses Recognized in Earnings for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were $6.9 million and $11.3 million,
respectively. The Company cannot predict when or if similar investment gains or losses may occur in the future. See MD&A,
“Investments Results,” for information pertaining to investment performance.



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in certain regions and reinsurance. To limit
its exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various primary catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property
and casualty insurance businesses. Coverage for each primary catastrophe reinsurance program is provided in various layers
(see Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of these programs). In
addition to these programs, the Kemper Preferred segment purchases reinsurance for catastrophe losses in North Carolina at
retentions lower than the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs (“the Kemper Preferred NC Program™). The

Company purchases reinsurance from the FHCF for hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than the Company’s primary
catastrophe reinsurance programs.

Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary reinsurance programs, the Kemper Preferred NC Program and
the FHCF reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010

Kemper PIEferred ........c.ocoivivicniniieieiniieinrctcnee s tseseesessaesesesebesesss st esssesesassssesesesassssssenes $ 246 $ 200 $ 219
KempPer SPECIANLY ........uceieeiieicrieert sttt tsee st s es e n s aenena 0.1 0.1 0.3
KEMPEE DATECE ...ttt ettt sasre st sba et ste e sae e sae e s e s ssessasasssnasasnns 0.4 0.8 0.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .........cccvveruiiiimiiiicciiceneciennsietsesensieesnisesnsesesesesssesesssesssssssssns 2.0 23 3.6
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premitms............coeveveievereeieessssesereiessesensseresnenenes $ 271 $§ 232 § 266

Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums for the Life and Health Insurance segment for the year ended December 31, 2011 in
the preceding table includes a reduction of $0.2 million in the Company’s estimate for reinsurance reinstatement premiums for
certain hurricanes that occurred in prior years. Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance Premiums for the Life and Health Insurance
segment in the preceding table includes reinsurance reinstatement premiums of $0.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2010 to reinstate coverage following certain hurricanes that occurred in prior years.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years) from continuing
operations were $124.5 million, $163.8 million and $79.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by business segment for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010

KEmPET PTEIEITEA ...ttt sttt st ssa st st sbase s et es st ess s asssesetasanensnes $ 1054 $§ 1442 $ 70.1
KeMPET SPECIALLY ..covveieiririeiieiniriceeeecetstst et eestses et sr st saesaesesesssestsssaaseseassassatasansannns 4.8 3.8 29
KEMPET DIIECE ....cccviieeeierimiierire ettt seeees st seeveene st seesesa st esesesessssssssesasssnsssssasasesssnns 83 6.7 1.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .......c.cccoueiirieeiniiireeceeiecent e cnesaer s eere b sae et ssenessene 6.0 9.1 4.5
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE ............cooovieieeiceeee ettt $ 1245 $§ 1638 § 793
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CATASTROPHES (Continued)

The number of catastrophic events and catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding loss and LAE reserve development) by range of
loss for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:

Year Ended
Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31,2011
Number of Losses and Number of Losses and

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Events LAE Events LAE
Range of Losses and LAE Per Event:

BELOW $5..ecvivvreeereeeseetese s assensesesessasssssncasbessssssmsssssissssssnssssssnsssnssnsars 19 § 25.6 22 3 374

85 = 10 ettt a s s a s e 5 394 3 21.9

B0 - 1S ettt e b a e e e e e n e et s 1 11.0 1 10.9

B15 = $20. ettt et e st s — — 2 37.2

B20 - B25 .ttt — — 1 23.0

Greater Than $25.......cccoriirvirirereerieneieseesressninse s sessasnssasses 1 48.5 1 334

71 OO OO OO U OO PP POPOITN 26 $ 1245 30 § 1638

As shown in the preceding table, catastrophe losses and LAE decreased for the year ended December 31, 2012 due primarily to
lower severity of losses below $5 million per event and lower frequency of losses in excess of $15 million per event, partially
offset by higher frequency of losses ranging from $5 million to $10 million per event. The five events in the $5 million to $10
million range and one event in the $10 million to $15 million range for the year ended December 31, 2012 were related to hail
or wind events in either Texas, Colorado or the Midwest and mid-Atlantic states. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company
incurred claims related to one event in the greater than $25 million range which was Superstorm Sandy. Events below $5
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 are due primarily to spring storms. In the second quarter of 2011, the United
States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of tornadoes in April resulting in two events in the
$15 million to $20 million range and one event which was $32.1 million. In the third quarter of 2011, the Company incurred
claims related to one event in the $20 million to $25 million range which was Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe losses and LAE for .
the year ended December 31, 2011 include $23.0 million related to Hurricane Irene.

In late October 2012, Superstorm Sandy, a named catastrophe and at one point a level two hurricane while over the Atlantic ocean,
caused a significant amount of damage in several northeastern states. Catastrophe losses and LAE for the year ended December 31,
2012 include $48.5 million related to Superstorm Sandy, of which $44.0 million is included in the Kemper Preferred segment.

In the second quarter of 2011, the United States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of
tornadoes in April. These storms contributed significantly to the increase in the Company’s catastrophe losses and LAE in 2011,
compared to 2010. In the third quarter of 2011, the Company also incurred claims related to Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe losses
and LAE for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes $23.0 million related to Hurricane Irene, of which $22.1 million is
included in the Kemper Preferred segment. No major hurricanes that significantly impacted the Company made landfall in the
United States during 2010.

Total Catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $6.3 million, $6.4 million
and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. See MD&A, “Loss and LAE Reserve
Development,” of this 2012 Annual Report for catastrophe loss and LAE reserve development by business segment.
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LOSS AND LAE RESERVE DEVELOPMENT

Increases (decreases) in the Company’s property and casualty loss and LAE reserves for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 to recognize adverse (favorable) loss and LAE reserve development from prior accident years, hereinafter also
referred to as “reserve development” in the discussion of segment results, is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Kemper Preferred:

NOR-CALASTIOPRE ...ttt ettt ettt e eenes $ 14 $ (136) $ (18.9)

CALASITOPRE ...ttt ettt ettt b s s sss s e aonebensasatesobann 6.2) (5.5) 4.9)

TOEALL. ettt ettt et et a et s et st e enenesaenenes 4.8) 19.1) (23.8)
Kemper Specialty:

NOD-CALASTIOPRE ......cevvieeirieiririeteiceesc ettt e ss s s b e se bbb e sessanans 24 9.5) 4.0

CALBSIIOPNE ...ttt ettt et ae et es st e s aseasbetesssbebessesabesstebensressossreneasrseroten 0.1 0.1 0.1

TOLAL. ... ettt b e et ae bbb e b s b s n b s asatens 2.3) 9.4) 4.1
Kemper Direct:

NON-CAASITOPHE ......ocveeveeeeececece sttt eneet s eeseneee s reesessea e eeaeneaeen e 17.5) 4.4) (7.0)

CAASLTOPNE ..ottt er ettt ettt ettt e ssa et e et e et ene st ene e eneneene 0.3) 0.5 0.2

TOLAL ..ttt s et se et et se e s st e bt ebe e serensebenbasentaberentensstosebesreneane 17.8) (3.9) (6.8)
Life and Health Insurance:

NOD-CALASTIOPIE ...ttt sttt ettt ee s eae s ebebe s esbessensonsosesasnnonsonsons 0.4) (1.1) 1.1

CatASITOPNE ...ttt ettt st s s e er et et ssas et s eseseasarasbeneten 0.1 (1.5) 34

TOAL ettt ettt et et e s e e s s e s e e re b erestare s e rertenenrenentetons 0.3) (2.6) 45
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserves Related to Prior Years:

NON-CALASIIOPNE ... .ttt ete et ettt e sttt eae e s see s et seessssesessosenessenssesennsneanen (18.9) (28.6) (20.8)

CAASLTOPNE ...ttt er e et e et neatsrereenenesnene 6.3) 6.4) (1.2)
Decrease in Total Loss and LAE Reserve Related to Prior Years.........cocvveeevvreerrecrererernene $ (252) § (3500 $ (22.0)

See MD&A, “Critical Accounting Estimates,” of this 2012 Annual Report for additional information pertaining to the
Company’s process of estimating property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, development of property and
casualty insurance losses and LAE, estimated variability of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, and a
discussion of some of the variables that may impact development of property and casualty insurance losses and LAE and the
estimated variability of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE.

NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES
Underlying Combined Ratio

The following discussions for the Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty and Kemper Direct segments use the non-GAAP
financial measures of (i) Underlying Losses and LAE and (ii) Underlying Combined Ratio. Underlying Losses and LAE (also
referred to in the discussion as “Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE”) exclude the impact of catastrophe losses, and
loss and LAE reserve development from the Company’s Incurred Losses and LAE, which is the most directly comparable
GAAP financial measure. The Underlying Combined Ratio is computed by adding the Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses
and LAE Ratio with the Incurred Expense Ratio. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is the combined ratio,
which uses total incurred losses and LAE, including the impact of catastrophe losses, and loss and LAE reserve development.
The Company believes Underlying Losses and LAE and the Underlying Combined Ratio are useful to investors and are used by
management to reveal the trends in the Company’s Property and Casualty insurance businesses that may be obscured by
catastrophe losses and prior year reserve development. These catastrophe losses may cause the Company’s loss trends to vary
significantly between periods as a result of their incidence of occurrence and magnitude, and can have a significant impact on
incurred losses and LAE and the combined ratio. Prior year reserve developments are caused by unexpected loss development
on historical reserves. Because reserve development relates to the re-estimation of losses from earlier periods, it has no bearing
on the performance of the Company’s insurance products in the current period. The Company believes it is useful for investors
to evaluate these components separately and in the aggregate when reviewing the Company’s underwriting performance.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES (Continued)
Consolidated Net Operating Income

Consolidated Net Operating Income is an after-tax, non-GAAP measure and is computed by excluding from Income from
Continuing Operations the after-tax impact of 1) Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of Investments, 2) Net Impairment
Losses Recognized in Earnings related to investments and 3) other significant non-recurring or infrequent items that may not be
indicative of ongoing operations. Significant non-recurring items are excluded when (a) the nature of the charge or gain is such
that it is reasonably unlikely to recur within two years, and (b) there has been no similar charge or gain within the prior two
years. The most directly comparable GAAP financial measure is Income from Continuing Operations.

The Company believes that Consolidated Net Operating Income provides investors with a valuable measure of its ongoing
performance because it reveals underlying operational performance trends that otherwise might be less apparent if the items
were not excluded. Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings
related to investments included in the Company’s results may vary significantly between periods and are generally driven by
business decisions and external economic developments such as capital market conditions that impact the values of the
Company’s investments, the timing of which is unrelated to the insurance underwriting process. Significant non-recurring items
are excluded because, by their nature, they are not indicative of the Company’s business or economic trends.

These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered a substitute for the comparable GAAP financial measures, as
they do not fully recognize the overall underwriting profitability of our business.

A reconciliation of Consolidated Net Operating Income to Income from Continuing Operations for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME ........ccoueverrirecernernnninierintiesistseseeeeseseessessessesssanasens $ 538 $§ 471 $ 1452
Net Income (Loss) From:
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENLS ........ccoeeveeiriereereriereeereneesereeeeieecseeereeeesens 425 21.9 27.9
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........co.ccceeeeerereenircnenneescnceeseeencncenenenes “.5) (7.3) (10.7)
Income from Continuing OPErations..........eveeerrecrereeremreercereriesenssirsssseesiesesssssensessessscssersons $ 918 $§ 617 $§ 1624

There were no applicable significant non-recurring items that the Company excluded from the calculation of Consolidated Net
Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.
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KEMPER PREFERRED

Selected financial information for the Kemper Preferred segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Net Premiims WIEEN ........ccceeeeierireteteeceereiere s e e ess s neseasesesesassssssesesssasassasesessssssssase $ 891.7 868.8 § 872.2
Earned Premiums: -
AULOMODILE ...ttt st et ettt see e bbb et s be s b e s as et e et sse e sasaesas $ 515.5 5109 $ 5447
HOMEOWIIETS ..ocvveveviiiceieteiise e sieecns st eseesnesaessnessasanssnassasassssesosteseessassnssnasssssseassssaesnes 308.5 294.9 290.0
Other PErsonal .........ccueoiiiiiiieirieiencsiertertcsteteetsreeseseessessasesessessessassasssassssssessseseesness 554 54.0 533
Total Earned Premilms ........ceoiviiiiinieniensierenieeitesesrtessesesssessassaseeessessseessessessnsssesessasssanssees 879.4 859.8 888.0
Net Investment INCOME......c.eieiiiiciniiinir et esae s eane 45.0 48.8 55.4
Other INCOME .....eovveiiiieieeresteriertete e seeeeseesseestee st et et s e s e sae s asessssaesostesessssssssssasssessessasnnes 0.4 0.3 04
TOLA]l REVEIUES ...cvevreriieiiiecetiteie sttt rtes st s e ee e s nosan e s s saeesaesasesatesbssuesaseasssesnnas 924.8 908.9 943.8
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........cccoevieennentnnnienteereneeneeseneceeeseseeseaone 608.4 584.6 587.3
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ... cteiesisscseesssscssnas 1054 144.2 70.1
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE.........cccoevviivnmnininniccieiteeseniseseseessenes 14 (13.6) (18.9)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ..........ccoocveriininmincnctnieiteentneesesrecesescseseeesennes 6.2 (5.5) “4.9)
Total Incurred L.osses and LAE ... neneenenesssreesnssee st ssessssesnsssessnessesuessnes 709.0 709.7 633.6
InSurance EXPENSES ... et e 2438 239.8 2433
Operating Profit (LOSS)...ccceoveuemmiiiermimenccimiinnninieintnrntsces e s sessssenssescsaesesnesesssnssonsansasns (28.0) (40.6) 66.9
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE)......ccvuerrrreerrereiririeniresieensenestesessestessseesestesessesensssenesenesaenens 16.8 23.0 (14.0)
Segment Net Operating InCome (LLOSS) ...eveveeerereneeirrenrenerrereriesereseeeseeesseentseessesessessssessane $ (11.2) (176) $§ 529
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ececceverreneerenereercrinnnnencncsenenennnene 69.1% 67.9% 66.2%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......cccocccceeverincincvninccneeercenincnnnne 12.0 16.8 7.9
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccvevrviirineinnccnenninenieeninieeane 0.2 (1.6) 2.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.covvernienninminiiiienes ©.7) (0.6) (0.6)
Total Incurred Loss and LAE RatiO.........cc.ccvveeerreierinerienenrennesaeeneseseesseeessssessessessessessene 80.6 82.5 714
Incurred EXPense RAtIO .......cccervevininieinenierinecinseeceeeesseestssees et sre s essessesssessesnesreeneesnes 27.7 279 274
COmMDBINEA RALIO......cuevuiierieerrenrinteereerissessesesesiessesaessestasesseseseenssenessesseneasseneensesessmssesnessesasse 108.3% 110.4% 98.8%
Underlying Combined Ratio - -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......cccoccccvvvevceinicinicnncnnneneencneenenns 69.1% 67.9% 66.2%
Incurred EXPense RAIO ........ccceivirrenviiiienrerenneieenseseesseensesseseeseesessensseseessesessseseasassessessen 27.7 27.9 274
Underlying Combined Ratio.........cocviivicciniiiniiinniinisnstinitsscasessssesseseseonees 96.8% 95.8% 93.6%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation - -
Underlying Combined Ratio..........cooreveriercrircnteienintcenteesteesteeseesesaestseese e eeseseesenessessssens 96.8% 95.8% 93.6%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........c.coecveiivinccnincinncnneninicninnen, 12.0 16.8 7.9
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........c..cccouviiinincciniininninicienniinens 0.2 (1.6) 2.1
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio......c.c.coconevcnncninncnninnnininnns ©.7) (0.6) (0.6)
Combined Ratio as REPOIted...........cccovrerrririeeinenienieiiniiinineeiieesesessenneeenneseensssesnssnesnons 108.3% 110.4% 98.8%

28



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

KEMPER PREFERRED (Continued)

INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Insurance Reserves:
AULOTTIODILE . eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeaesesesessesssesessseasssasaessesassasseasbt s eaantssssesbaesseornaesaanannssessateaneesntnes $ 2876 $ 2747
THOINICOWIIETS. ... ceeveeeeeveeeeeneeecseeseseeessssaessssassssesssnssassnseesassssssssnsssss ssaessasssnsssesssnasssssoessstessssnsssssnnsnsens 123.7 106.2
OUNET PEISONAL....veeeveeeeeeeeeeesseecuesseeerssesserssessssesssasssassssessresstissasssssassssosssssssnssssanstesssassassssesssesssasssss 41.0 35.3
TIISUTANCE RESEIVES .. veerveeeeereeeirrrissresiseerssesssessesssesenesesassstosssnsssssssnessrnssssnasstassrsssesssseessessssmssansssasssnsnss $ 4523 $ 4162
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
S vevvvueeeeeeerseseeeansssseaessssssesssssssssesssesssseeorsssetsssssssonssssesenterssnnassseteesssstsstasisssssnsnissstiieesstansansanes $ 2847 $§ 259.0
Incurred but Not REPOIEd......c.coceermireurmimimiiiiiiiriintisi ettt es 105.5 92.9
TOtAL LLOSS RESEIVES. ...uveetveeeeeeeueereeessueessessssesssesssssasaasseesssssssessstssesssssersrsasssssssessssssssnsssssassssaosssosss 390.2 351.9
LA RESEIVES...cvveeeveeerereseeesenseessesssesssressssessessnsessaessstssssssssesssetssssssssessnssranassssessesssessseessesssnsssessss 62.1 64.3
TIISUTANICE RESEIVES ...vveereeeveeereereerstessessssessseeassassasssssssssssssesssssssesssntissssessassssenssnssessraassssssssssssssassssens $ 4523 $ 4162

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Preferred segment increased by $19.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to the same period in 2011, due primarily to higher volume, and to a lesser extent, higher average premium. Earned
premiums on automobile insurance increased by $4.6 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume,
partially offset by lower average premium. Earned premiums on homeowners insurance increased by $13.6 million in 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume and, to a lesser extent, higher average premium. Earned premiums on other
personal insurance increased by $1.4 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume and, to a lesser extent,
higher average premium.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The
Kemper Preferred segment reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments of $4.0 million
in 2012, compared to $8.0 million in 2011.

Operating Loss in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $12.6 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to the same period in 2011, due primarily to lower incurred catastrophe losses and LAE, partially offset by
lower levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development, higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned
premiums and lower Net Investment Income. Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss
and LAE reserve development. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $105.4 million in 2012, compared
to $144.2 million in 2011. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe development) was $4.8 million
in 2012, compared to $19.1 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 69.1% in
2012, compared to 67.9% in 2011. Kemper Preferred continues to take actions intended to improve profitability, including
additional rate increases, enhanced pricing segmentation, higher deductibles, in particular for wind or hail events, and other
underwriting actions.

Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE were $413.7 million, or 80.3% of automobile insurance earned premiums, for
the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $389.5 million, or 76.2% of automobile insurance earned premiums, for the
same period in 2011. Automobile insurance incurred losses as a percentage of automobile earned premiums increased by 4.1%
due primarily to higher underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums and an
unfavorable impact from a change in loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by lower incurred catastrophe losses
and LAE (excluding development). Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums were
76.4% in 2012, compared to 73.8% in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned
premiums increased due primarily to higher frequency in bodily injury coverages and higher severity in all coverages, partially
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offset by lower frequency in comprehensive and personal injury protection coverages. Unfavorable loss and LAE reserve
development was $7.4 million in 2012, compared to favorable loss and LAE reserve development of $1.3 million in 2011.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $12.7 million in 2012, compared to $14.1 million in 2011.

Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE were $264.5 million, or 85.7% of homeowners insurance earned premiums,
for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $293.5 million, or 99.5% of homeowners insurance earned premiums, for
the same period in 2011. Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned
premiums decreased due primarily to lower catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development), lower underlying losses and
LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned premiums, partially offset by lower levels of favorable loss and LAE,
reserve development. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) on homeowners insurance were $87.8 million in
2012, compared to $124.5 million in 2011. Catastrophe losses and LAE incurred in 2012 were due in part to $44.0 million of
catastrophe losses and LAE from Superstorm Sandy and several hail and wind events throughout the United States. For the year
ended December 31, 2011, the catastrophe losses were primarily related to Hurricane Irene and several severe tornadoes and
other storms throughout the United States. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners insurance earned
premiums were 60.3% in 2012, compared to 61.6% in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of homeowners
insurance earned premiums decreased by 1.3% due primarily to lower non-catastrophe storm losses, partially offset by higher
fire and water damage losses. Favorable non-catastrophe loss and LAE reserve development was $3.6 million in 2012,
compared to $7.1 million in 2011.

Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE were $30.8 million, or 55.6% of other personal insurance earned premiums,
for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $26.7 million, or 49.4% of other personal insurance earned premiums, for
the same period in 2011. Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $4.1 million due primarily to lower
levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development and higher underlying losses and LAE, partially offset by lower
catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding reserve development). Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $2.7 million in
2012, compared to $5.0 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE were $28.6 million in 2012, compared to $26.1 million in
2011. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $4.9 million in 2012, compared to $5.6 million in 2011.

Insurance Expenses increased by $4.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to
increased new business and renewal production.

The Kemper Preferred segment reported Segment Net Operating Loss of $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to Segment Net Operating Loss of $17.6 million for the same period in 2011. The Kemper Preferred segment’s
effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and
dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $20.2 million in 2012,
compared to $24.5 million in 2011.

2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $28.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011
compared to 2010, due to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates. Volume decreased due, in part, to
Kemper Preferred’s decision to maintain its underwriting discipline and increase premium rates while facing increased
competition in a soft personal lines insurance market. Also contributing to the decrease in volume was Kemper Preferred’s
ongoing strategy to reduce its mix of non-package and non-target market business. Earned premiums from package policies (a
package policy provides both automobile and homeowners insurance coverages in a single policy) comprised 55% of earned
premiums in the Kemper Preferred segment in 2011, compared to 52% in 2010. Earned premiums on automobile insurance
decreased by $33.8 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due to lower volume and, to a lesser extent, lower average premium
rates. The weighted-average number of automobile insurance policies in force decreased by 7.2% in 2011, compared to 2010.
Earned premiums on homeowners insurance increased by $4.9 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher
average premium rates, partially offset by lower volume. The weighted-average number of homeowners insurance policies in
force decreased by 2.5% in 2011, compared to 2010. Earned premiums on other personal insurance increased by $0.7 million in
2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher average premium rates, partially offset by lower volume.
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Net Investment Income in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially
offset by higher dividends on equity securities and a higher level of allocated investments. The Kemper Preferred segment
reported net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments of $8.0 million in 2011, compared to $16.2
million in 2010.

Operating results in the Kemper Preferred segment decreased by $107.5 million before taxes for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development), higher
homeowners insurance underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, the impact of lower favorable loss and
LAE reserve development (including catastrophe development), higher insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums
and lower net investment income.

Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $144.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$70.1 million in 2010, an increase of $74.1 million. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (including catastrophe
development) was $19.1 million in 2011, compared to $23.8 million in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of
earmned premiums were 67.9% in 2011, compared to 66.2% in 2010.

Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE were $389.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to

$399.1 million in 2010. Automobile insurance incurred losses and LAE decreased by $9.6 million due primarily to lower claim
volume resulting principally from fewer automobile insurance policies in force and lower underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums, partially offset by higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
development) and the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development).
Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums were 73.8% in 2011, compared to 74.1%
in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of automobile insurance earned premiums decreased due primarily to
lower average frequency of losses. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $14.1 million in 2011, compared
to $7.2 million in 2010. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development) was $1.3 million in
2011, compared to favorable development of $11.6 million in 2010.

Homeowners insurance incurred losses 4nd LAE were $293.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$210.0 million in 2010. Homeowners insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $83.5 million in 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to higher catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) and higher underlying losses and LAE,
partially offset by the impact of higher favorable loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development).
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) on homeowners insurance were $124.5 million in 2011, compared to
$61.4 million in 2010. The catastrophe losses and LAE in 2011 included losses from Hurricane Irene and several severe
tornadoes and other storms throughout the United States. Underlying losses and LAE were $181.7 million in 2011, compared to
$156.9 million in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE increased due primarily to higher average estimated frequency and severity
of losses. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development (excluding catastrophe development) was $7.1 million in 2011,
compared to $3.6 million in 2010.

Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE were $26.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$24.5 million in 2010. Other personal insurance incurred losses and LAE increased by $2.2 million due primarily to higher
catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development), partially offset by the impact of higher favorable loss and LAE reserve
development (excluding catastrophe development). Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) on other personal
insurance were $5.6 million in 2011, compared to $1.5 million in 2010. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development
(excluding catastrophe development) was $5.2 million in 2011, compared to $3.7 million in 2010.

Insurance Expenses decreased by $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower
acquisition expenses, partially offset by higher underwriting expenses, largely due to information technology expenses related
to several new systems initiatives.

The Kemper Preferred segment reported Segment Net Operating Loss of $17.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to Segment Net Operating Income of $52.9 million for the same period in 2010. The Kemper Preferred segment’s
effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and
dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $24.5 million in 2011,
compared to $25.6 million in 2010.
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Selected financial information for the Kemper Specialty segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Net Premiums WIIEI.........ucuevvereeerererereseeesssesessssesesesesessssesesssssesesesssessssesonesossasssesesessnes $ 4151 $ 4382 $ 4572
Earned Premiums: -
Personal AULOMODILE. ........coeererererieiresireseesieressisiessssessessssesssssssssersassesssasseresssssssesss $3763 $ 4052 §$ 4313
Commercial AULOMODILE..........cccverreriverierierereriesiseentesssstrasessessesessssssesesserssssssassessessesssss 43.5 40.0 43.6
Total EArned PIEMIUINS ......ccccevirriereeriaireereeiesernsessessseesersressasssesssessassssssasssssssssessssssessessessanss 419.8 4452 474.9
Net Investment INCOME. ........cccooiiiriricreeerceceresieercrniaenss e sassesesssssressesessssaesssssssessessansens 19.0 22.8 25.8
Oher INCOME ...ttt ettt teste e st e vt e e st et e st st s ba st e st essassaessasasessasseessersesssensesseens 0.3 0.5 0.6
TOtAl REVETIUES ...c..ovneeeeeiiiccieenienieereiesesnessessorassessessassansaseessesasssensessensessansesseseesersensassesenanne 439.1 468.5 501.3
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE..........c..cccoevviriiniinnnremnieneeniesesssesesessessesssssessssense 347.9 358.4 376.0
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........ccocviioiiiniiiiiniieneniennrenenieceeesesessesssesssessssssssens 4.8 3.8 2.9
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE.........cccooconivniinonirnniiesriinnenesienessessssessssssseenes 24 9.5) 4.0
Catastrophe Losses and LAE ... sress s ssssessssssssenees 0.1 0.1 0.1
Total Incurred Losses and LAE.........cccvceeirverieerenrerinrenieniesentesssienessesssssssssssssssssessessessssenss 3504 352.8 383.0
INSUTANCE EXPENSES ..cevevirniiiiiieiiiieenteieeeeseectsse st esaestee st esaesssessesssessnssnsssnssesssesssassesesenees 91.5 91.5 92.7
Operating Profit (LOSS)...c.coceueirrieenrrteiininreeiertencetscssessesessesasssessessessorsssessessessessessessesassesns 2.8 24.2 25.6
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE) .....ccccerreierierererreceerrssnersssassessessessessersessessossarssssssessossansesseseons 4.0 “4.4) (4.6)
Segment Net Operating INCOIME ........vvveviverveierinioverinressoresieresressssssesessesesersssessessssesssssssssssenes $ 12 §$ 198 $ 210

Ratios Based On Earned Premiums

Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......ccccoceveeivvecnninncnninvcnreneenrnneesenenns 83.0% 80.4% 79.2%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......c.cccooeveereeccnnccinnenicenineerenesenseescsnenes 11 0.9 0.6
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........cocvevemvreeeenreienveerereeneneesresensennens 0.6) 2.1 0.8
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE RatiO.........ccooveeevenreniiveernenrneneneeressnessssesseessenenns — s —
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio.........cccococvieceeineninenireinererinesseneeeeseesessesensssessssesersssesns 83.5 79.2 80.6
Incurred EXPense RAtiO ........ccovueueuiriiecernieieiriireeereeeesestesesessesesesssesssssossssssosssesossassssssseses 21.8 20.6 19.5
CoMDBINEd RALIO.......cocvieeiireeciiieetree et cest et e e eseeesessesss e sssessesesessasssaasassasassensssesenns 105.3% 99.8% 100.1%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......c.ccceerrcennnnnenennnnenneninerersnneens 83.0% 80.4% 79.2%
Incurred EXPense RAtIO .......ccccoeeuirienierinerieieieceereetestesesesecsmeenceseseassassessensasassassessassossessons 21.8 20.6 19.5
Underlying Combined Ratio...........covveerirrerrreninennnererissssirinssenesessssassrssassessesssesssssssesassssans 104.8% 101.0% 98.7%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying COmbIned RALIO...........cceverrvervreieessaisssssssssissssssssssssessssesesssssesssessesesssessseons 104.8% 101.0% 98.7%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......cccecvveeerrrrrienrenicsenesencsresesseseesesneens 11 0.9 0.6
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccoceerreurrererenennrenresrennseneessesenns 0.6) 2.1 0.8
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......cccccoeeviviieneeeneevrcieieneeeeseeieeeeeee e — —_ —
Combined Ratio as REPOIted..........coceiiuiciriricirrnecsrestescsninenecesstssesessessensesseseesessessorsassones 105.3% 99.8% 100.1%
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INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Insurance Reserves:
PerSONAl AULOIMIODILE ..c...e.eeveeirevireaereteeieteeseeseseesesserensesesessasessesesesessssaessesnesesessessssesssessessesesenes $ 1648 $ 166.6
Commercial AULOMODILE .........vecveiriiiirrerireereesceeieeressveesresseeesanesssesneasssesssssssessssassessssssssassnsssnne 43.9 515
BT vt cte et eeteete s e et e e et e e eae s b e s b ees s et esassssesbessesseaassasstontesesstesnessesntsosesseostetesatsntestos 7.2 7.8
INSUTANCE RESEIVES...cviviverrririeemeeeesisestesessssesssssssesanessssessssesessosaasessessssasestsssssssesestssssscsnesssssesssseses $ 2159 § 2259
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
CASE cveirrricriereeeeeteesseessaetrestasseestesssressaassaserstesanssseeeastinessssrtessassissosstseessnesstesssessressntossnsonnas $ 1309 §$ 1351
Incurred but Not REPOTted........cccccuiiviniiiiniiiiiiiiiniinin e saessssesesans 48.3 47.7
TOtAl LLOSS RESEIVES....uvieviierriiieetiieireerrerseersreseasssesssessseessnesssessssassstessassssasssesosessnessssssstosssossosases 179.2 182.8
LLAE RESEIVES ... veirireeeirieerrreenieesireeessnneessseesssssesostossusssssnseesssssiassssesesssessntesesstssosnssssssnsssssesssssnens 36.7 43.1

TIISUTANICE RESEIVES ..uveveevieriireeeseereesseseeeessessesssesssessesssonsessassasssessessstsssensesesssonsessesnsassessessaesnessnensasees $ 2159 §$§ 2259

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $25.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to the same period in 2011, due primarily to lower earned premiums for personal automobile insurance, partially
offset by higher earned premiums on commercial automobile insurance. Personal automobile insurance earned premiums
decreased by $28.9 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average
premium. Personal automobile insurance policies in force were approximately 260,000 at December 31, 2012, compared to
302,000 at the beginning of 2012 and 329,000 at the beginning of 2011. Commercial automobile insurance earned premiums
increased by $3.5 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher volume from an increase in new business
production.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and lower
levels of investments allocated to Kemper Specialty. The Kemper Specialty segment reported net investment income of $1.7
million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in 2012, compared to $3.7 million for 2011.

Operating Loss in the Kemper Specialty segment was $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to
Operating Profit of $24.2 million in 2011. Operating results deteriorated due primarily to higher underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums, lower favorable reserve development, lower net investment income and higher underwriting
expenses as a percentage of earned premiums.

Personal automobile insurance operating results decreased by $30.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to 2011, due primarily to higher underlying incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned
premiums, unfavorable loss and LAE reserve development, higher insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile
insurance earned premiums and lower net investment income. Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of
catastrophes and loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying incurred losses and LAE were $312.5 million, or 83.0% of
personal automobile insurance earned premiums in 2012 compared to $328.5 million, or 81.1% of personal automobile
insurance earned premiums in 2011. Personal automobile insurance underlying incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of
personal automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to higher claims handling costs in 2012, compared to
2011. Loss and LAE reserve development on personal automobile insurance had an adverse effect of $10.3 million in 2012,
compared to a favorable effect of $3.6 million in 2011, and was related primarily to the 2011 and 2010 accident years.
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Commercial automobile insurance operating profit increased by $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to 2011, due primarily to the favorable effects of loss and LAE reserve development, partially offset by higher underlying
incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums. Favorable loss and LAE
reserve development on commercial automobile insurance was $12.6 million in 2012, of which $5.9 million related to 2011 and
2010 accident years, with the balance of $6.7 million dispersed over several older accident years. Favorable loss and LAE
reserve development was $6.1 million in 2011. Underlying incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile
insurance earned premiums were 81.5% in 2012, compared to 74.3% in 2011, and increased due primarily to higher frequency
of losses.

Other insurance operating profit increased by $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011. Other
insurance consists of certain reinsurance pools in run-off and other personal insurance in run-off. Loss and LAE reserve
development on certain reinsurance pools in run-off, had adverse development of $0.4 million in 2011. There was no loss and
LAE reserve development on reinsurance pools in run-off in 2012.

Insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums was 21.8% for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 20.6%
in 2011. Insurance expenses as a percentage of earned premiums increased in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher
expenses associated with information technology initiatives.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Kemper Specialty segment was $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to $19.8 million in 2011. The Kemper Specialty segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory
income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment
income and dividends received deductions were $8.5 million in 2012, compared to $11.3 million in 2011.

2011 Compared with 2010

Eamed Premiums in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $29.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due to lower earned premiums for both personal and commercial automobile insurance. Personal automobile
insurance earned premiums decreased by $26.1 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower volume and, to a
lesser extent, lower average earned premium per policy. Throughout 2010 and 2011, Kemper Specialty’s personal automobile
insurance policies in force decreased due to economic conditions, increased competition and higher premium rates, particularly
in California. Personal automobile insurance policies in force were approximately 329,000 at the beginning of 2011, compared
to approximately 351,000 at the beginning of 2010. Commercial automobile insurance earned premiums decreased by $3.6
million in 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to lower volume. Commercial automobile insurance volume has decreased
due primarily to a smaller renewal book of business, partially offset by higher retention rates and increased new business
production.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $3.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. The
Kemper Specialty segment reported net investment income of $3.7 million from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
in 2011, compared to $7.5 million in 2010. '

Operating Profit in the Kemper Specialty segment decreased by $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to 2010, due primarily to lower operating profit in personal automobile insurance, offset by higher operating profit in
commercial automobile insurance and other insurance.

Personal automobile insurance operating profit decreased by $6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to higher underlying incurred losses and LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned
premiums, higher insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums and lower net
investment income, partially offset by the favorable effects of loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying incurred losses
and LAE as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to higher frequency of
losses and, to a lesser extent, higher severity of losses in 2011, compared to 2010. Loss and LAE reserve development on
personal automobile insurance had a favorable effect of $3.6 million in 2011, compared to an adverse effect of $3.7 million in
2010. Insurance expenses as a percentage of personal automobile insurance earned premiums increased due primarily to
investment in policy and billing systems.
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Commercial automobile insurance operating profit increased by $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to 2010, due primarily to the favorable effects of loss and LAE reserve development and lower underlying incurred losses and
LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums. Favorable Loss and LAE reserve development on
commercial automobile insurance was $6.1 million in 2011, compared to $1.1 million in 2010. Underlying incurred losses and
LAE as a percentage of commercial automobile insurance earned premiums decreased in 2011, compared to 2010, due
primarily to lower severity, partially offset by higher frequency of losses.

Other insurance consists of certain reinsurance pools in run-off and other personal insurance in run-off. Other insurance
operating loss was $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to $0.6 million in 2010. Adverse loss and
LAE reserve development on certain reinsurance pools in run-off was $0.4 million in 2011, compared to $0.7 million in 2010.
Excluding development from these reinsurance pools, loss and LAE reserve development on other personal insurance had an
adverse effect of $0.9 million in 2010 and was almost entirely related to two liability claims, one from 2003 and the other from
2005. Insurance expenses in 2010 included a reduction of expense of $0.8 million related to a change in estimate for
uncollectible reinsurance.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Kemper Specialty segment was $19.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to $21.0 million in 2010. The Kemper Specialty segment’s effective income tax rate differs from the federal statutory
income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions. Tax-exempt investment
income and dividends received deductions were $11.3 million in 2011, compared to $12.0 million in 2010.
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KEMPER DIRECT

Selected financial information for the Kemper Direct segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Net Premitms WITHEN .......c.covecieieceeereeeiecee st e errere e srsesess s e sressessessseesesssssessessensensanes $1473 $ 209.0 $ 269.3
Earned Premiums: -
AULOMODILE ..ttt a e s e b e e et e e e e ena e e se s $ 1583 $ 2133 § 2735
HOMEOWRNETS ...ttt e st see st s saneseessaesaesassebassassaesasennesnesenensas 9.5 9.2 8.7
Other PeTSONAL ........c.ceeuieriieieeieecee ettt seseseetesssassberebessssaseaessssasasenesosenen 0.2 0.2 0.2
Total Earned Premilms .........ccccevvvereienieiereeeereseestesessesessessessssessssssssssssssosereessssosessssensses 168.0 2227 2824
Net Investment INCOME.........c.ooueceivirrriniiirnicsieesneeorenseressesesasassessesessesessssessssessessssssansans 13.9 17.4 20.6
OthEr INCOMIE ......c.cvireeeriieeeeireresieesteresieserensereniesessesessesesessesesssesensesensosassasesessenssserassesassesens —_ 0.1 0.1
TOtAl REVEIIUES ....vcvvvevererereererenieresenseiisssessesesieressstnsessessensssssessesssssessessssessssosessossssessssosensases 181.9 240.2 303.1
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........cccooivivieviecieveeneereereniesreeesesereesesnessesnensenes 139.0 194.8 228.9
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........ccccoviireiiieiicirierisieeesseereeneeeseseesesassesesseseses 8.3 6.7 1.8
Prior Years:
Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE...........ccccoceivviveninenioenennisnieiecnnenesseeessssssssessesens 17.5) 4.4) (7.0)
Catastrophe Losses and LAE .........c.ccccivivnivinierninenee e ssssessesesestessssossssenesnenense 0.3) 0.5 0.2
Total Incurred Losses and LAE...........ccocvevenervenrerienrnirmrrerissnssesssssrenssesesssssessessesssssssssssensas 129.5 197.6 2239
INSUFANCE EXPENSES ....coveueruieeiciinieicinecienreietseeesssessastesseseesesssassassessesesssssensarsessansessessesersens 572 76.3 87.1
Write-off of Intangible Asset from Direct Response ACqUiSition..........ceceeerececreceeerressennnns — 135 —
OPETAtING LLOSS..c.veureeirreerrreeieeieeriresteeeresteraeseesessessessessessesaesesssessessensasassessessessersessassennessasees 4.8) “417.2) (7.9)
Income Tax Benefit.......ccccervrieerirereirinieninennisnnenenesientestesesnseessessesseseessenessessessessessessnsenens 3.9 19.7 6.2
Segment Net OPErating LOSS..........c.cvevereeeuereerereteresisesesrssssssesssesssessssssssssssssssssassesssesesssess $ (09 $ (275 $ Q.1
Ratios Based On Earned Premiums
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccvceveveeeninniinniennnressiesesrensernanns 82.8% 87.5% 81.1%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio........ccccveverererceecinienreneenrecnnnrenresesserensennens 4.9 3.0 0.6
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.......ccccccceververcerrerieninreceesieceeeeeeensennens (10.4) 2.0) 2.5)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE RatiO.........cccccceereverevrieniieeeiscreresseesssecsssssessesesens ©0.2) 0.2 0.1
Total Incurred Loss and LAE Ratio..........cccccevcvurceverinrenecnireneinerererssiersserssnsssssssesenessesens 771 88.7 79.3
Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible Asset..........ccccoevveevervevirnreernnene 34.0 403 30.8
COMDBINEd RALIO.......cceerieeiiiietiirinrertneresseresiereesieresaesesaesessorassersoseseesassrsasassesaesessasessasesessosens 111.1% 129.0% 110.1%
Underlying Combined Ratio -
Current Year Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.....cc..ccovveeeneenincrncnnescnenccrecccnnene 82.8% 87.5% 81.1%
Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible Asset............cccovvrevreceerervrveennnnn. 34.0 40.3 30.8
Underlying Combined RAtiO..........ccccvrievreriererreierrsrasreeererestessesresssssessarsssssssssssesessesessssesesses 116.8% 127.8% 111.9%
Non-GAAP Measure Reconciliation -
Underlying Combined Ratio...........cceeeeeuerenrieneninniieciereeseeieesseaeeesssaeessessesssssssssessesssensens 116.8% 127.8% 111.9%
Current Year Catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio.........ccccovveeeeeceriicnneeniesieesesenceeceneeennes 4.9 3.0 0.6
Prior Years Non-catastrophe Losses and LAE Ratio..........ccoceveerivevnnivnnsnnnrnienneneresssennenns (10.4) (2.0 2.5)
Prior Years Catastrophe Losses and LAE RatiO..........cccceeveeieecicenenreneenrenseeesesessensersenens 0.2) 0.2 0.1
Combined Ratio as REPOILEd.........ccuvrerrirerireeieiineirirereseeeeeseeesee e e ssessseassssesesessessssasens 111.1% 129.0% 110.1%
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INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Insurance Reserves:
ATLOMODIIE......e.eeeiccteieeicre sttt e e ree et ra e st e sass s eeessessesessessessseseesssssessssmnesesseessessesesstentansasssass $ 1733 § 2165
HOMMEBOWIIETS.....c vieiereeieeriineeneestesteetsntestessesesestessesssassessasasossassasssassssasensesasesssnssensersossssssensensessasssensesses 2.7 4.8
OBRET ... ettt ettt ve s b e s sre e sae b e e e s s s e s s e s e st shesssnsesaes s bessentobrea s berbessessesentemeetessntennan 1.8 2.6
TOtal INSUIANCE RESEIVES.......eeeiuieeiereeierteeeeiesteseetee e eseesseeseessessrasssossessisessssssessesseassssassesssensenssssssnsonnas $ 1778 $ 2239
Insurance Reserves:
Loss Reserves:
CASE .vvreeeereeeteree et e sttt s st e s s et e s b e e b e e st st e bt e bt e et e s e R e e Rt e Rt e eR e e st e reeraesbe R eeasebaerasebeereesnestennrenee $ 1154 $ 1409
Incurred but NOt REPOTLEQ........ccovevieiiiiriiiriririrnnsniiriertreesescstesssssssssseessesessesssesseseanenesensessnsesens 39.7 54.0
TOtAl LOSS RESEIVES...cueevereriieeerienretriierersesserseraesessessestessesestesaessssensessessesessersossessssensessesessssensossassnses 155.1 194.9
LAE RESEIVES.....ueeieererrieieianieeestrsreetsssessesseessessesstessasssassantesssasssessessessassnensensessnessessessnensessssssensonssnes 22.7 29.0
INSUTANCE RESEIVES........eeuieererecrierieeeetietrereeetestestesseestesssessessssssessssosessesseessossesnssnsessessssssesessssssossessesssessenne $ 1778 $ 2239

2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $54.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to the same period in 2011, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates.

In the third quarter of 2012, the Company announced that it was reviewing strategic options for Kemper Direct and that it
would cease direct-to-consumer marketing activities. In the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company concluded its evaluation and
determined that, to optimize the value for the business, it would continue to solicit business for its worksite, affinity and renters
programs and would place its direct-to-consumer operations in run-off. The Company expects positive earnings from the run-
off as a result of premium rate increases and further optimization of operations. Kemper Direct expects that its policies in-force
will decline 15% to 25% over the next twelve months as a result of this and other actions.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and lower
levels of investments allocated to Kemper Direct. Net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments
was $1.3 million in 2012, compared to $2.9 million in 2011.

The Kemper Direct segment reported an Operating Loss of $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to an
Operating Loss of $47.2 million in 2011. Operating results improved in the Kemper Direct segment in 2012, compared to 2011,
due primarily to lower levels of unprofitable business, higher levels of favorable reserve development, the impact of the partial
write-off in 2011 of an intangible asset from the acquisition of Direct Response Corporation (“Direct Response™) that did not
recur in 2012 and lower underlying losses and LAE, partially offset by lower net investment income.

Incurred losses and LAE were $129.5 million, or 77.1% as a percentage of earned premiums, for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to $197.6 million, or 88.7% as a percentage of earned premiums, in 2011. Incurred losses and LAE decreased
in 2012, due primarily to the impact of lower earned premiums, higher levels of favorable loss and LAE reserve development
and lower underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, partially offset by higher incurred catastrophe losses
and LAE (excluding development). Underlying incurred losses and LAE exclude the impact of catastrophes and loss and LAE
reserve development. Favorable loss and LAE reserve development was $17.8 million in 2012, compared to $3.9 miilion in
2011. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums were 82.8% in 2012, compared to 87.5% in 2011.
Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums decreased in both automobile and homeowners insurance.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $8.3 million in 2012, compared to $6.7 million in 2011.
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The Incurred Expense Ratio, Including Write-off of Intangible Asset, was 34.0% of earned premiums for the year ended
December 31, 2012, compared to 40.3% of earned premiums in 2011. In 2011, the Direct Response book of business was not
improving at the rate that Kemper Direct had initially expected, and Kemper Direct determined that the customer relationships
intangible asset related to the Direct Response acquisition was impaired at December 31, 2011 and recognized a charge of $13.5
million in 2011 to write down the asset to its estimated fair value. Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums were
34.0% in 2012 compared to 34.3% of earned premiums in 2011. Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums
decreased due primarily to reduced acquisition and marketing related expenses, partially offset by other underwriting costs not
declining at the same pace as earned premiums.

Kemper Direct reported a Segment Net Operating Loss of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to a
Segment Net Operating Loss of $27.5 million for the same period in 2011. The Kemper Direct segment’s effective income tax
rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income and dividends received
deductions. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions were $6.2 million in 2012, compared to $8.7
million in 2011.

2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $59.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to 2010, due primarily to lower volume, partially offset by higher average premium rates.

Net Investment Income in the Kemper Direct segment decreased by $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to lower net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. Net
investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments was $2.9 million in 2011, compared to $6.0 million in
2010.

The Kemper Direct segment reported Operating Loss of $47.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
Operating Loss of $7.9 million in 2010. Operating results declined in the Kemper Direct segment in 2011, compared to 2010,
due primarily to the partial write-off of an intangible asset acquired in the Kemper Direct Response acquisition, higher
underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, higher insurance expenses as a percentage of earned
premiums, higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) and lower net investment income.

Incurred Losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums was 88.7% for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
79.3% in 2010. Incurred Losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums increased in 2011 due primarily to higher
underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of earned premiums, higher incurred catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding
development) and the impact of lower favorable loss and LAE reserve development. Underlying losses and LAE as a
percentage of earned premiums was 87.5% in 2011, compared to 81.1% in 2010. Underlying losses and LAE as a percentage of
earned premiums increased in 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to increased severity on automobile insurance.
Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) was $6.7 million in 2011, compared to $1.8 million in 2010. Favorable
loss and LAE reserve development was $3.9 million in 2011, compared to $6.8 million in 2010.

Insurance Expenses in the Kemper Direct segment were 34.3% of earned premiums for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 30.8% of earned premiums in 2010. Insurance Expenses as a percentage of earned premiums increased in 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to higher amortization expense related to the acquisition of Direct Response, higher
restructuring costs and higher consulting expenses.

In 2011, the Direct Response book of business was not improving at the rate that Kemper Direct had initially expected, and
Kemper Direct determined that the customer relationships intangible asset related to the Direct Response acquisition was
impaired at December 31, 2011 and recognized a charge of $13.5 million in 2011 to write down the asset to its estimated fair
value.

Kemper Direct reported a Segment Net Operating Loss of $27.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to a
Segment Net Operating Loss of $1.7 million for the same period in 2010. The Kemper Direct segment’s effective income tax
rate differs from the federal statutory income tax rate due primarily to tax-exempt investment income, dividends received
deductions and changes in certain recoverables that are not taxable for tax purposes. Tax-exempt investment income and
dividends received deductions were $8.7 million in 2011, compared to $10.3 million in 2010.
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Selected financial information for the Life and Health Insurance segment follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Earned Premiums:
LI oo eeeseeseseeseseeseseesessessesssrsasassenaaas e R e s e b e st et Rt R e s Rs L sRe e s hs LSt e e e R s e b e e e s Rt et e b e e e e sns $ 3934 $§ 3951 $ 3967
ACCIAEnt AN HEAIN ......oveeeeeeeeceeeeieeeteeeresresseses e resneseeeseenssassresbesss st e s e s s sassassassssnssasaens 165.2 166.3 161.9
PLOPEILY oo eureerecsereereseisces it sse st r s bbb ses st s s s 81.3 84.5 85.5
Total FArned PIEMITIMS ....cooveeveriereeeerererenrerresioscesessessossessmsssssssssseassssessessssssssssessessessossssssnsses 639.9 645.9 644.1
Net INVESTMENE INCOMIE. ...oeeioeeeeverieiereerreesreeteeseessenseseesstesstiossesstnessasessssnessarasseseseessussssessn 204.3 200.5 213.0
OLhET TICOMMNE oeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeenessceseeseessasssassesesssessesss st asessessnssnesaes srnssssnsarsnassosaesnsasessssssnsess 0.1 0.1 0.2
TOA] REVEIIUES .vvevveveeeeeereeeeesssstessasssensossessessseseesstassssasssesssassesssosesssssssssssesnsensessssstentsstossssnsens 844.3 846.5 857.3
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE ..o 393.1 385.6 406.8
TNSUTANCE EXPEISES .-cuvvueermrserrimisitsiseseisessissssssssstsssse st sese s seas bbb sb s 310.8 308.6 293.8
WITEE-OfF OF GOOAWILL....vveeveeeririicrieireteesersresieseeeseeesesreessessessretesrs s e s st s ssassaessesaessnsntasssnnsnsens — — 14.8
OPETALING PIOMIL ....coovvvrivrirreriessessssssss sttt s 140.4 152.3 141.9
INCOME TAX EXPENSE. ..evvereeereeueeminiriiiniaserss b ssssssssnasshsess et s st nsuss s (49.6) (53.4) (54.5)
Segment Net Operating INCOME .........cvvurrmmurisesecissrmsisissssinisisssst s ssisssnssensses $ 908 $ 989 § 874
INSURANCE RESERVES
Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Insurance Reserves:
Future Policyholder BEnefits..........ovuiueiurirerininisnisiesesseiersisii it $3,103.1 $ 3,046.8
Incurred Losses and LAE Reserves:
LLIEE oo e eeseeseeeaseteae e eeaeeset et e R b eA e R e s e b e R s R e R et e R e s A e e et s R s SRS RS SR SRR SRR R R e b e e e Rt e e e p st e R e r st a b n 36.8 33.8
ACCIAETIE ANA HEAIH «.evveeeeev e eeeeeeisvesiee e e esteereresbes s esesssscseestsneshsoressnssssassassansessesasenesonsssssessesns 21.7 22.1
PLOPETLY .vvvrevecraeresssincaseassssssess b sas sttt b R R SR SR AL 8RS o 7.0 8.3
Total Incurred Losses and LAE RESEIVES ......coreieieriieriireronisisiniienieinesinssssesinnsissssssssesssssssesisnees 65.5 64.2
INISUTANICE RESETVES.....veveeeeeeeeeeeussssesentratasssesessssssasasesssessasaratossssssssssssessassssnssesesasssssessssasssssssessiossassssssnssesss $3,168.6 §$ 3,111.0
2012 Compared with 2011

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment decreased by $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to the same period in 2011. Earned premiums on life insurance decreased by $1.7 million in 2012, compared to 2011,
due primarily to lower volume of insurance. Earned premiums on accident and health insurance decreased by $1.1 million in
2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to lower volume of insurance resulting from the suspension of sales of certain health
insurance products described below and, to a lesser extent, lower volume of Medicare supplement insurance, partially offset by
higher volume of supplemental health insurance products and higher average premium. Earned premiums on property insurance
decreased by $3.2 million in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to lower volume of insurance from the run-off and, in
certain geographical areas, the non-renewal of dwelling coverage. .

Kemper believes that some of the health insurance products sold by its subsidiary, Reserve National, could be adversely
impacted by some provisions of the Health Care Acts. In particular, a provision which sets minimum loss ratios for health
insurance policies and a provision, beginning in 2014, establishing health insurance exchanges could adversely impact Reserve
National’s business prospects. Such affected health insurance products (the “Affected Products”) accounted for $62.5 million,
or 38%, of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2012. Reserve National
has been adapting its business model in response and suspended sales of the Affected Products at the end of 2011. In 2011,
Reserve National began transitioning its sales to other health insurance products that are not expected to be as severely
impacted by the Health Care Acts (the “Supplemental Products™). Supplemental Products accounted for $29.8 million, or 18%,
of the Life and Health Insurance segment’s accident and health insurance earned premiums in 2012. Reserve National expects
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earned premiums from the Affected Products to decrease by approximately 20% in 2013 due to such suspension of sales and
expects an increase in earned premiums from the Supplemental Products to offset much of the decline. The Life and Health
segment cannot predict what impact the establishment of health insurance exchanges will have on its premiums beginning in
2014. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the transition will fully offset the impact from suspending sales of the
affected health insurance products.

The Life and Health Insurance segment continued to intentionally run off insurance policies providing dwelling coverage
("Dwelling Policies”) to reduce its exposure to catastrophe risks. Over the last several years, the Life and Health Insurance
segment has halted new sales of Dwelling Policies in all markets and non-renewed Dwelling Policies in certain geographical,
mainly coastal, areas while continuing to renew policies in other geographical areas. Accordingly, except for catastrophe
reinsurance provided by the FHCF, the Life and Health Insurance segment did not renew its primary annual catastrophe
reinsurance program for 2013. Earned premiums from dwelling coverage comprised 26%, 30% and 32% of the Life and Health
Insurance segment’s earned premiums on property insurance in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Net Investment Income increased by $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to
higher investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially offset by lower book yields on fixed
maturities and lower levels of capital allocated to the segment. Net investment income from Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments was income of $1.8 million in 2012, compared to a loss of $6.3 million in 2011.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $140.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared
to $152.3 million in 2011. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE increased by $7.5 million in 2012 due
primarily to higher policyholders’ benefits on life insurance and the impact of Loss and LAE reserve development on property
insurance, partially offset by lower catastrophe losses and LAE and lower underlying losses on property insurance.
Policyholders’ benefits on life insurance were $265.3 million in 2012, compared to $253.2 million in 2011, an increase of $12.1
million. Policyholder benefits on life insurance increased due primarily to reserve adjustments in 2011 associated with
correcting expiry dates for certain extended term life insurance policies and a lower level of net lapse in 2012, partially offset
by better mortality experience. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $88.9 million, or 53.8% of accident and
health insurance earned premiums, in 2012, compared to $88.9 million, or 53.4% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2011. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were flat as higher average incurred claim costs for Medicare
supplement insurance and, to a lesser extent, a higher average incurred claim cost for hospitalization and limited benefit
insurance products, were offset by lower frequency of Medicare supplement insurance claims and, to a lesser extent, lower
frequency of hospitalization and limited benefit insurance products. Incurred Losses and LAE on property insurance were $38.9
million in 2012, compared to $43.5 million in 2011. Underlying losses and LAE on property insurance were $33.2 million, or
40.8% of property insurance earned premium, in 2012, compared to $37.0 million, or 43.8% of property insurance earned
premium, in 2011. Catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) were $6.0 million in 2012, compared to $9.1 million
in 2011. Favorable loss reserve development on property insurance was $0.3 million (including adverse development of $0.1
million on catastrophes) in 2012, compared to favorable development of $2.6 million (including favorable development of $1.5
million on catastrophes) in 2011. Insurance Expenses in the Life and Heaith Insurance segment increased by $2.2 million in
2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher commission and fringe benefit expenses, partially attributable to an increase in
the number of career agents employed, and higher amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $90.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2012, compared to $98.9 million in 2011.

Certain state insurance regulators, legislators and treasurers are involved in an array of initiatives that could result in significant
changes to unclaimed property laws and claims handling practices with respect to life insurance policies. These initiatives seek,
in various ways, to impose a new duty on the part of life insurers to proactively search for deaths of their insureds. It is the
Company's position that state officials lack authority to establish new procedures that change existing contracts. See Item 1A.,
Risk Factors,” under the caption “Changes in state enforcement of unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims
handling practices could have a significant effect on (including an acceleration of) the payment and/or escheatment of life
insurance death benefits relative to what is currently contemplated by Kemper and significantly increase claims handling costs,”
Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&A, “Liquidity and Capital Resources” for
additional information about these matters.

40



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

LIFE AND HEALTH INSURANCE (Continued)
2011 Compared with 2010

Earned Premiums in the Life and Health Insurance segment increased by $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to 2010, due primarily to higher accident and health insurance earned premiums. Earned premiums on accident and
health insurance increased by $4.4 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher average premium rates, partially
offset by lower volume of insurance. Net Investment Income decreased by $12.5 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due
primarily to lower net investment income on Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, partially offset by higher levels of
investments.

Operating Profit in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $152.3 million for year ended December 31, 2011, compared to
$141.9 million in 2010. Operating Profit increased due primarily to lower Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE
and the impact of a charge to write off goodwill in 2010, partially offset by the lower net investment income and higher

 insurance expenses. Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and LAE decreased by $21.2 million in 2011, compared to
2010, due primarily to lower policyholders’ benefits on life insurance, lower accident and health insurance losses as a
percentage of accident and health earned premiums and the favorable impact of Loss and LAE reserve development on property
insurance, partially offset by higher catastrophe losses and LAE (excluding development) on property insurance. Policyholders’
benefits on life insurance were $253.2 million in 2011, compared to $263.0 million in 2010, a decrease of $9.8 million.
Policyholder benefits on life insurance decreased due primarily to reserve adjustments in 2011 associated with correcting expiry
dates for certain extended term life insurance policies and better mortality experience, partially offset by higher reserve
additions for persisting policies. Incurred accident and health insurance losses were $88.9 million, or 53.5% of accident and
health insurance earned premiums, in 2011, compared to $95.7 million, or 59.1% of accident and health insurance earned
premiums, in 2010. Incurred accident and health insurance losses as a percentage of accident and health insurance earned
premiums decreased due primarily to lower frequency and severity of health claims. Incurred Losses and LAE on property
insurance were $43.5 million in 2011, compared to $48.1 million in 2010. Favorable loss reserve development on property
insurance was $2.6 million (including favorable development of $1.5 million on catastrophes) in 2011, compared to adverse
development of $4.5 million (including adverse development of $3.4 million on catastrophes) in 2010. Catastrophe losses and
LAE (excluding development) were $9.1 million in 2011, compared to $4.5 million in 2010. Insurance Expenses in the Life and
Health Insurance segment increased by $14.8 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher commission and
fringe benefit expenses, partially attributable to an increase in the number of career agents employed, and higher amortization
of deferred policy acquisition costs. The Company wrote off $14.8 million of goodwill in 2010 related to Reserve National.

Segment Net Operating Income in the Life and Health Insurance segment was $98.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2011, compared to $87.4 million in 2010.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS
Net Investment Income

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities. ..........coo.eveeeeerevrereeressoeoesoeeeoeeoeoooeooeoon $ 2461 $ 2466 $ 2438
Dividends on EQUIty SECUITES .........cceerrvriuirurrrerieeeeeesereceseeesessssese s sess s 25.7 25.2 16.0
ShOrt-term INVESHMENES. .......covuruerienieeieeseceeeeie e 0.2 0.1 0.3
L0ans to POLCYNOIAETS .........cc.ocorururirreietcee it oo 18.9 17.7 16.5
REAI ESLALE ...ttt s e s e s e 274 26.0 27.1
Equity Method Limited Liability INVEStMENLS .............coevreveeereeereereresrereoesoosooeeesooo 9.3 9.6 48.8
OBRET ..ottt sttt s e e ettt 0.1 0.3 —
Total INVEStMENE INCOME ........corvvrerrnrerieierie s e see s s e 327.7 325.5 352.5
Investment Expenses:
REALESIALE .....o.vviveitcect ettt s s s et e e ean 26.1 25.9 25.7
Other INVeStMENt EXPONSES .........cvvurverrienrierirencseseeneseeeseseseseessssssssessssssss s se e 5.7 1.6 1.1
Total INVEStMENt EXPENSES........ouvveeertrtceoeeceieeeaeeeeseeeeseeeses s e eessee s es e eeses 31.8 27.5 26.8
Net INVEStMENt INCOME.........curvurrererrrreeetireesetsiseeeeeeeseeessesesseressesessess s s s e esees e $ 2959 § 2980 $ 3257
2012 Compared with 2011

Net Investment Income decreased by $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to the same period in 2011,
due primarily to higher other investment expenses, partially offset by higher interest income from loans to policyholders and
higher real estate net investment income. Interest income from loans to policyholders increased by $1.2 million in 2012,
compared to 2011, due to a higher level of loans outstanding. Net investment income from real estate increased by $1.2 million
in 2012, compared to 2011, due primarily to higher occupancy.

2011 Compared with 2010

Net Investment Income decreased by $27.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010. Investment
income from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments decreased by $39.2 million in 2011, compared to 2010, due
primarily to a lower total rate of return. Dividends on equity securities increased by $9.2 million in 201 1, compared to 2010,
due primarily to higher levels of income producing equity securities. Interest and dividends on fixed maturities and
policyholder loans increased by $2.8 million and $1.2 million, respectively in 2011, compared to 2010.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments

The components of Net Realized Géins on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS ON SALES....eveeeieietireieririieesieressessesessesesseseesessesseseortsssasesassssesesaassssassnsnesressassassssassoses $ 569 $ 142 § 215

LLOSSES 01 SALES ...vveveeeieveresiererereraiesestseeesseees et assesesssssrrsasassts s ssasasenas b asessesetesenestessane 0.1) 0.1 0.1)
Equity Securities:

GAINS ON SALES......viivireereeeieieeieenesteeeestesrsstesassseesnsssesstsrtsssssannsrressaasseasaanesssssaasesssesanssess 8.3 34.0 11.7

TLOSSES OTL SALES ...veveireeererieeeeiesreseeet e e srssasssessessessessasaessessbassrasstansassesssesnasesesessssssaes ©.2) (13.5) —
Former Investee — Intermec:

GAINS O SALES...eevicviiriireerecrieeeeeesreseeseeseseeae st et essesseestarass shnernsrresabasbassresnansassasutensessess — — 0.8
Real Estate:

GAINS O SALES....cvieriirieereireeieerrereetesteeesseeieretsse et s b asbe e n s shssss st s sbas s sssesssensenseostsntontons 0.2 0.1 8.2
Other Investments:

GAINS ON SALES...c..viviereereeitietrerrereeseessesteeseastessesseersesisossessesrssansastsesssnasnassnassassasseasssassese — — 0.1

LOSSES ON SAIES ....vvevierrereereereriesreesieseeseseessesstessesstssesaesreasbe sebnssnassessaassssasssossasssssssssssnes — 0.1) 0.1)

Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES) ...vcverrririirisnerninnissecsensteiisissnessenens 0.3 0.9 0.5

Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESTMENTS ......cvvvieveeriierreerrerirreraseeseeessnssseesssesssesssnsssssssaees $ 654 $ 337 $§ 426

In the third quarter of 2012, the Company sold $320.1 million of municipal securities to take advantage of attractive pricing for
such securities and for tax planning and other portfolio management purposes. Realized Gains on Sales of Fixed Maturities for
the year ended December 31, 2012 include realized gains of $44.9 million from such sales.

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
FIXEA MATULILICS . ..o.vverereeeesiaeseresesrsesessseseseseresesesesensasssssssissarssssasnssssnsssssessanssatsssssssnaesenensassens $ 19 3% (228 (144
EQUILY SECUITLIES ...evueueveercmaicieriisimnieness ettt sns sttt s et sa s s b 1.9) (1.9) 2.1)
REAL ESTALE . .eveeeeieeeeeerreeteettereeresresstsssesse st anteeseeuessesatsssessesanonsbasbansssrnesaessaasassassesasenesssnns 3.1 (7.2) —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.......cc.ocoveverneiriesencinemniesiniisinnn. $ (69 $ (113) $ (16.5)

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other than temporary. Losses arising from other-than-temporary declines in fair value are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the declines are determined to be other than temporary. Net Impairment
Losses recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 include
other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) losses of $6.9 million, $11.3 million and $16.5 million, respectively. OTTI losses
recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 included pre-tax losses
of $3.1 million and $7.2 million, respectively, to write down real estate investments. OTTI losses recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2010 included pre-tax losses of $11.9 million due to the
deterioration of the business prospects of a single issuer in the waste management business. OTTI losses recognized in the
Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2010 included pre-tax foreign currency losses of $2.1
million.
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains

Total Comprehensive Investment Gains are comprised of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments and Net Impairment
Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and unrealized investment gains and losses
that are not reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income, but rather are reported in the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income. The components of Total Comprehensive Investment Gains for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Fixed Maturities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GaINS 01 SALES.....c.coeieerereciereeeetrseteeee et eeer b sr e s e st st ne e seeaaenne $ 569 $§ 146 $§ 215
LOSSES 0N SALES ....oovivecriieciieeicttncetece et en et st et e et e e eenaen 0.1) ©.1) (0.1)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.............ccecocvevnivernvereereereceenssierenenes 19 2.2) (14.4)
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME..........ooveeervveeeereenveereeseecenranees 54.9 12.3 7.0
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOmME (LOSS).....uuvivervicemieiesisererreeeserseseseseeeesenn 69.1 272.8 86.4
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Fixed Maturities............covvveeeneceenen. 124.0 285.1 93.4

Equity Securities:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:

GAINS O SALES......cirmeeeicreretriirecrietstsbessrsetetsse e besssbebese s s esstessrassssssasessesstsssesanssnns 8.3 34.0 11.7
LLOSSES 01 SALES ....ecuveeececreiecrrininteeeee ettt et sn e ettt e e eneeeeen e 0.2) (13.5) —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Barnings ...........cccvevevveveviieiseiievecceirieeereeeeeene 1.9 1.9) 2.1
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME..............cueveevemreeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeenas 6.2 18.6 9.6
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOME (LOSS).....vvvevreiviveeierrerieeemseceneenesesonsaens 29.2 (71.2) 90.2
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains (Losses) on Equity Securities..........ooovvvvuevreecen. 354 (52.6) 99.8
Former Investee:

Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:

GAINS 0N SALES......covvciicrerieieirrrrinr et es st es et ettt nessesn s essssasneseenenenenons — — 0.8
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOmE (LLOSS).....c.cvrerrrernrrrenrererererereereeensnsssssnnnns — — 2.9
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains on Former INVEStee. ........c.oveeveveeveeeceereeeeeneeeennns — — 3.7

Real Estate:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:

GAINS 0N SALES.......coeieeerireieierrrcrtrtnree ettt erer e srebobe s st st e e e estssasbe e e nesneen 0.2 0.1 8.2
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Barnings...........coocveveueeeveevevereeeineeseceseccesnnes 3.1 (7.2) —
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME...........coveveeemereeeeereeeereeeereereeenens 2.9) .1 8.2
Other Investments:
Recognized in Consolidated Statements of Income:
GAINS 0N SALES......coriieireeieece ettt ss sttt st sene — — 0.1
LOSSES ON SALES .....ovucvreeeieieiniicinrecrtsrenteeretese e ste e sesasstosesesbes s se e nesentesessesensons — 0.1) (0.1)
Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES).......cccvrirreeerrererineerireiiesssreseseseseeseneesssecseens 0.3 (0.9) 0.5
Total Recognized in Consolidated Statements of INCOME.............coevvvverreiemecereeerrnens 0.3 (1.0) 0.5
Total Comprehensive Investment Gains...........ccoeeriveeeeervnvieinieneeieeeesseseeesreesesssesessesaeeassens $ 1568 $ 2244 $ 2056
Recognized in Consolidated Statements 0f INCOME ..........covvvireveveireicricerirenerereeeeeeseeeeenns $ 585 $ 228 § 261
Recognized in Other Comprehensive INCOME.........cocruemimriernneiveiereerereresereeeesseeescenenens 98.3 201.6 179.5
Total Comprehensive INVEStMEnt GAINS........c.ccvvverrirereurerersssensssineesssesesessssssssssssssssssssens $ 1568 $ 2244 $ 2056

As aresult of a decrease in the Company’s ownership percentage and other qualitative factors, the Company determined that its
investment in the common stock of Intermec no longer qualified for the equity method of accounting in the third quarter of
2010. Accordingly, beginning with the Company’s September 30, 2010 interim consolidated financial statements, the
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INVESTMENT RESULTS (Continued)

Company’s investment in Intermec common stock was included in Investments in Equity Securities and was reported at its fair
value. See Note 14, “Income from Investments,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Investment gains recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 31, 2011, included an other comprehensive loss of $50.6 million
from disposing of all of the Company’s holding of Intermec common stock. Other Comprehensive Income from Equity
Securities for the year ended December 31, 2010 include other comprehensive gains of $50.6 million related to the Company’s
investment in the common stock of Intermec.

INVESTMENT QUALITY AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio is comprised primarily of high-grade municipal, corporate and agency
bonds. At December 31, 2012, 93% of the Company’s fixed maturity investment portfolio was rated investment grade, which is
defined as a security having a rating of AAA, AA, A or BBB from S&P; a rating of Aaa, Aa, A or Baa from Moody’s; a rating of
AAA, AA, A or BBB from Fitch; or a rating from the NAIC of 1 or 2. The following table summarizes the credit quality of the
fixed maturity investment portfolio at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2011

NAIC Fair Value Percentage Fair Value Percentage
Rating  S&P Equivalent Rating in Millions of Total in Millions of Total

1 AAA, AA, Aottt e e snes $ 3,319.1 68.3% $ 3,591.8 75.2%

2 J 235 5 USROS 1,199.0 24.7 839.4 17.6

3 23 5 J O OO TU OOV 65.3 13 108.6 23

4 B et e e sae s e s et e e e s b b st e b bt e s aa s b nre s e s nnes 93.6 1.9 89.1 1.9

5 CCOC . ieeerctteecesrrree s ssess e se s sstesesssssasn s s e s sat e e s s s s rassasaassnsanes 178.0 3.7 127.8 2.7

6 In or Near Default .........coccoereenmeneniniininiiicieesvesreneeens 5.2 0.1 16.7 0.3
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities .........ccoveeevvenveensercmmssiessensssseesnsisnees $ 4,860.2 100.0% $ 4,773.4 100.0%

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s investments in below-investment-grade fixed maturities were $4.3 million and $5.4
million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had $288.5 million of bonds issued by states and political subdivisions, commonly
referred to as “municipal bonds,” that had been pre-refunded with U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities
obligations held in trust for the full payment of principal and interest (“Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds”). At December 31,
2012, the Company had $1,112.9 million of investments in municipal bonds that had not been pre-refunded, of which $103.5
million were enhanced with insurance from monoline bond insurers. The Company’s municipal bond investment credit-risk
strategy is to focus on the underlying credit rating of the issuer and not to rely on the credit enhancement provided by the
monoline bond insurer when making investment decisions. To that end, the underlying rating of nearly 96% of the Company’s
entire municipal bond portfolio that has not been pre-refunded is AA or higher, half of which are direct obligations of states.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in governmental fixed maturities at December 31,
2012 and 2011:

Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2011
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities................... $ 4289 6.6% $ 4917 7.9%
Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds...............ccooevveeeeeeecreiereeeeceeeeeveenennae 288.5 4.5 275.2 44
Other Municipal Bonds:

SEALES ...ueuriveriereririneeerieereerestste e st ese st sre e teberaste e et eraesesasesensssessssrerasneseane 545.1 84 937.8 15.1

Political SUDIVISIONS......cccovreeuirenereirieeiniereriererrenesreesaeresaeseeesseseenns 122.9 1.9 178.9 2.9

RevenUE BONAS ......cccovvrierririeierienietetecesesveste e eeneereeesesasevensesaens 444.9 6.9 460.7 7.4
Total Investments in Governmental Fixed Maturities .............coouvevrvuennane. $ 1,830.3 283% $ 23443 37.7%

The Company’s short-term investments primarily consist of overnight repurchase agreements and money market funds. At
December 31, 2012, the Company had $183.7 million invested in overnight repurchase agreements primarily collateralized by
securities issued by the U.S. government and $111.8 million invested in money market funds which primarily invest in U.S.
Treasury securities. At the time of borrowing, the repurchase agreements generally require the borrower to provide collateral to
the Company at least equal to the amount borrowed from the Company. The Company bears some investment risk in the event
that a borrower defaults and the value of collateral falls below the amount borrowed. The Company does not have any
investments in sovereign debt securities issued by foreign governments.

The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s investments in non-governmental fixed maturities by industry
at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Dec 31, 2012 Dec 31, 2011
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value  Investments Fair Value  Investments
ManUACUTING ........cuevcviveieinieercreterneeterecesese et sess e sbessanssesens $ 1,371.1 21.2% $§ 1,153.1 18.5%
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate ............cccoocevevieicieiiceiiicicereen e 780.8 12.1 590.4 9.5
SEIVICES ....cuiuiireeereerieeiritese e teretesess sttt e bess s ssssse s e s se e e nesebaseesenesbenssaene 298.6 4.6 233.8 3.8
Transportation, Communication and Utilities............ccocevververeerrerreerernennene. 289.2 4.5 252.2 4.1
MINNEZ .cutriieiereiecccrteseeee et es st es s bt en s b se st erseresnenens 143.4 2.2 89.6 14
REtail TTACE.....coecteveeeeeeecieeeecte ettt et et b reae 66.5 1.0 50.1 0.8
WHhOIESale TTAE......c..orereiernierreteeeeeete e sre e eresrerereesees et ensenis 57.8 0.9 41.5 0.7
Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing..........ccceeeevvvenieeiecenicicienrereeeeeeeseeevens 19.2 0.3 17.8 0.3
OBRET ..ottt et ebess b b enr s e s es s senssrsnees 33 0.1 0.6 —
Total Investments in Non-governmental Fixed Maturities....................... $ 3,029.9 469% $ 2,429.1 39.1%

Seventy-four companies comprised over 75% of the Company’s fixed maturity exposure to the Manufacturing industry at
December 31, 2012, with the largest single exposure, Merck & Co. Inc., comprising 3.2%, or $43.5 million, of the Company’s
fixed maturity exposure to such industry. Thirty-three companies comprised over 75% of the Company’s exposure to the
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate industry at December 31, 2012, with the largest single exposure, Citigroup Inc., comprising
4.6%, or $36.1 million, of the Company’s exposure to such industry.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s ten largest exposures to issuers of investment securities,

excluding exposures to short term investments and investments in U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities

and Pre-refunded Municipal Bonds, at December 31, 2012:

Percentage
Fair of Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Investments
Fixed Maturities:
States and Political Subdivisions:
TEXAS cueiveeeeeeuisrisseseseesessessesassessesasaensssessersasaeasenteessreesres shebasribeasshe b e s b e b e b s e R s b e e R e s e R e e R et e aenteR et $ 84.7 1.3%
GIEOTZIA «..vovveveveereeniseeessresesesraccresssscas s tn st s bobabesb s shoheR s R s e s e R e R e ATt e e s e s e S e s s e sn e s s s asns e n e st e e ens s esanens 73.0 1.1
Colorado .......... 62.5 1.0
Washington 54.4 0.8
LOUISIANA. c.vvevivrereererterereeeesestessesteee e s et eonaatsassssseeshesesassshassessssssassbessarsssnensssabessasnasessarsassaraasasss 454 0.7
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes:
MBEICK & C0., INC. «.veverrerirreriereierieeeneestsaetseentet e ssmsaestsbesesbssesesess s s s b srsaebsasasasesnsbesnsatass 43.5 0.7
Equity Securities:
iShares® iBoxx $ Investment Grade Corporate Bond Fund.........c.ccoovivnvinvninincnininnncncnenineenns 101.0 1.6
METCK & C0.y INC. ettt sae st s st esae st s ra st st esesasne st comeenessneshes s o sesassrssssesansasennesbuessente 1.5 —_—
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments: ‘
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC........ccoviiiiiemmcininisiinsessnssssssesesssescsssnsesas 69.9 1.1
Special Value Opportunity Fund, LLC.......coueeirninnisnnne et 59.4 0.9
Goldman Sachs Vintage Fund IV, L.P.........ccccoiiimniinneiiieseee e esess s ssssassssssssssnses 58.9 0.9
TOtAL .ottt e e etesreree s sessasae s s e se s e s e s et e e ae e e e e et b e SRS RS s e S e R s as Rt s R e R bR s R e b e e s R e rens $ 6542 10.1%
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INVESTMENTS IN LIMITED LIABILITY INVESTMENT COMPANIES AND LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

The Company owns investments in various limited liability investment companies and limited partnerships that primarily invest
in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. The Company’s investments in these limited liability investment
companies and limited partnerships are reported either as Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, or Other Equity
Interests and included in Equity Securities depending on the accounting method used to report the investment. See Note 2,
“Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Additional information
pertaining to these investments at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is presented below:

Unfunded Carrying Value Stated
Commitment Dec 31, Dec 31, Fund End
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Asset Class Dec 31, 2012 2012 2011 Date
Reported as Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments at Cost Plus
Cumulative Undistributed Earnings:
Tennenbaum Opportunities Fund V, LLC...... Distressed Debt $ — $ 699 $ 756 10/10/2016
Special Value Opportunities Fund, LLC........ Distressed Debt — 59.4 67.8  7/13/2014
Goldman Sachs Vintage Fund IV, LP............ Secondary Transactions 17.3 58.9 64.2 12/31/2016
BNY Mezzanine - Alcentra Partners III, LP.. Mezzanine Debt 21.2 18.9 22.7  2021-2022
NYLIM Mezzanine Partners II, LP................ Mezzanine Debt 4.0 10.3 13.5 7/31/2016
BNY Mezzanine Partners, LP........................ Mezzanine Debt 1.1 9.2 12.9 4/17/2016
Ziegler Meditech Equity Partners, LP............ Growth Equity 0.8 8.9 13.3 1/31/2016
Special Value Continuation Fund, LLC......... Distressed Debt — — 224 —
Other Funds.......cccoocevvevereniecnnenernneenieeneneens 84 17.5 13.9 Various
Total for Equity Method Limited Liability
Investments ........cccoceievenenennccirrneeeenns 528 253.0 306.3
Reported as Other Equity Interests and
Reported at Fair Value:
Highbridge Principal Strategies Mezzanine
Partners, LP.....ccooveieeeeeeeeeeeeecieeecreeee Mezzanine Debt 25 221 20.8 1/23/2018
Goldman Sachs Vintage Fund V, LP.............. Secondary Transactions 6.9 13.7 13.9 12/31/2018
Highbridge Principal Strategies Credit
Opportunities Fund, LP.......c.ccccecvcrvirccrnnuensn. Hedge Fund — 11.0 — None
GS Mezzanine Partners V, LP........c..coveeunen. Mezzanine Debt 14.8 9.3 8.2 12/31/2021
Other ...ovevreececierenreiceeie e teeeieveeasnraaas 64.5 85.2 50.2 Various
Total Reported as Other Equity Interests and
Reported at Fair Value.........ccccccovvervvrrrrnennns 88.7 141.3 93.1
TOtal.e et $ 1415 $ 3943 $ 3994

In April 2012, the Special Value Continuation Fund, LLC, which was previously accounted for under the equity method of
accounting and reported in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments, converted from a Delaware limited liability company
to a Delaware corporation and became a publicly-traded company. Accordingly, the Company’s investment was converted to
common stock and is now reported in Equity Securities at December 31, 2012.

The Company does not directly participate, as either a lender or borrower of securities, in any securities lending program. The
Company does not participate directly in credit default swaps. The Company does not engage directly in hedging activities,
including, but not limited to, activities involving interest rate swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, commodities contracts,
exchange traded and over-the-counter options or warrants. The Company has limited exposure to such programs and activities
by virtue of an investment of $1.0 million at December 31, 2012 included in Other under the heading “Reported as Other
Equity Interests and Reported at Fair Value” in the preceding table. Such investment consists solely of restricted assets that are
being redeemed over several periods.
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INTEREST AND OTHER EXPENSES

Interest and Other Expenses was $85.5 million, $83.9 million and $68.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively. Interest expense, excluding interest on a mortgage note payable included in real estate investment
expense, was $37.6 million, $36.9 million and $32.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Other Corporate Expenses were $47.9 million, $47.0 million and $36.1 million for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Other Corporate Expenses increased by $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012,
compared to 2011, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs and salaries. Other Corporate Expenses increased by
$10.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010, due primarily to higher postretirement benefit costs,
costs incurred with changing the Company’s name and other corporate initiatives.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s effective income tax rate from continuing operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the effects of tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions, the effects of the write-off of
goodwill in 2010, and the net effects of state income taxes. Tax-exempt investment income and dividends received deductions
were $39.8 million, $50.6 million and $54.4 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company wrote off $14.8
million of goodwill in 2010 that is not deductible for income taxes. State income tax expense, net of federal benefit, from
continuing operations was $0.8 million, $1.0 million and $1.0 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Company’s effective income tax rate from discontinued operations differs from the Federal statutory income tax rate due
primarily to the net effects of state income taxes. State income tax, net of federal taxes, from discontinued operations was $0.7
million of expense, $0.3 million of benefit, and $1.1 million of expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. State income tax includes changes in the state deferred tax asset valuation allowance related to Fireside and is net
of a $0.2 million benefit, $2.3 million benefit, and $0.5 million expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

On March 7, 2012, Kemper entered into a new four-year, $325.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement, expiring
March 7, 2016 (the “2016 Credit Agreement”), with a group of financial institutions. The 2016 Credit Agreement replaced
Kemper’s $245.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement which was scheduled to expire on October 30, 2012 (the
“Former Credit Agreement”) and was terminated on March 7, 2012. There were no borrowings under the Former Credit
Agreement at either December 31, 2011 or at its termination. The 2016 Credit Agreement provides for fixed and floating rate
advances for periods up to six months at various interest rates. The 2016 Credit Agreement contains various financial
covenants, including limits on total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios
for Kemper’s largest insurance subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity. Proceeds from advances under the 2016 Credit
Agreement may be used for general corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness. There were no
outstanding borrowings under the 2016 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2012, and accordingly, $325.0 million was available
for future borrowings. Management estimates that it could borrow the full amount under the 2016 Credit Agreement and still
meet the financial covenants therein.

During the third quarter of 2011, Kemper borrowed $95.0 million under the Former Credit Agreement. The proceeds from the
borrowing were used, in part, to make a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to fund the Company’s defined benefit pension
plan. The contribution consisted of cash of $32.2 million and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec common stock purchased from
Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity (see Note 17, “Pension Benefits”). Kemper’s subsidiary, United Insurance, paid a cash dividend of
$25.0 million to Kemper in September 2011, which was used along with cash on hand to repay $30 million of the borrowings
under the Former Credit Agreement during the third quarter of 2011. As described below, during October 2011, the borrowings
under the Former Credit Agreement were repaid in full.

In 2010, Kemper issued $250 million of its 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015 (the “2015 Senior Notes™). The 2015
Senior Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at
specified redemption prices. Kemper issued the 2015 Senior Notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, net of transaction costs, for
an effective yield of 6.21%. Kemper used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2015 Senior Notes to repay borrowings
of $140 million under the Former Credit Agreement and to make a capital contribution of $60.0 million to its subsidiary, United
Insurance. Interest expense under the 2015 Senior Notes was $15.4 million, $15.4 million and $1.6 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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In 2007, Kemper issued $360 million of its 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017 (the “2017 Senior Notes”). The 2017 Senior
Notes are unsecured and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified
redemption prices. Kemper issued the 2017 Senior Notes for proceeds of $354.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an
effective yield of 6.19%. Kemper used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2017 Senior Notes to repay the $300
million aggregate principal amount of its 5.75% senior notes which matured on July 1, 2007. Interest expense under the 2017
Senior Notes was $22.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 and $22.0 million for each of the annual periods ended
December 31, 2011, and 2010, respectively.

In 2003, Kemper issued $200 million of its 4.875% senior notes due November 1, 2010 (the “2010 Senior Notes™) for an
effective yield of 5.04%. The 2010 Senior Notes were repaid and retired in 2010. Interest expense under the 2010 Senior Notes
was $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Various state insurance laws restrict the ability of Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends without regulatory
approval. Such insurance laws generally restrict the amount of dividends paid in an annual period to the greater of statutory net
income from the previous year or 10% of statutory capital and surplus. Kemper’s direct insurance subsidiaries paid dividends
consisting of $95.0 million in cash to Kemper during 2012. In 2013, Kemper estimates that its direct insurance subsidiaries
would be able to pay $179.0 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.

On March 31, 2012, Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside Bank, converted from an industrial bank to a general business corporation
and changed its name to Fireside Auto Finance. Accordingly, Fireside is no longer regulated by the Federal Depository
Insurance Corporation or the California Department of Financial Institutions and may pay dividends or make other distributions
without prior regulatory approval. On April 5, 2012, FAF distributed $20 million of its capital to its then parent company,
Fireside Securities Corporation, who then, in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company, Kemper. In October
2011, Fireside Bank distributed $250 million of its capital to its then parent company, Fireside Securities Corporation, who
then, in turn, distributed the same amount to its parent company, Kemper.

On February 2, 2011, the Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase program under which Kemper is authorized to
repurchase up to $300 million of its common stock. During 2012, Kemper repurchased approximately 2.0 million shares of its
common stock at an aggregate cost of $60.7 million in open market transactions under the new repurchase program. During
2011, Kemper repurchased approximately 0.9 million shares of its common stock at an aggregate cost of $27.4 million in open
market transactions.

Kemper paid a quarterly dividend to shareholders of $0.24 per common share in each quarter of 2012. Dividends paid were
$56.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Kemper directly held cash and investments totaling $190.2 million at December 31, 2012, compared to $217.0 million at
December 31, 2011. Sources available for the repayment of indebtedness, repurchases of common stock, future shareholder
dividend payments, and the payment of interest on Kemper’s senior notes include cash and investments directly held by
Kemper, receipt of dividends from Kemper’s subsidiaries and borrowings under the 2016 Credit Agreement. The primary
sources of funds for Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are premiums, investment income and proceeds from the sales and
maturity of investments. The primary uses of funds are the payment of policyholder benefits under life insurance contracts,
claims under property and casualty insurance contracts and accident and health insurance contracts, the payment of
commissions and general expenses and the purchase of investments. Generally, there is a time lag between when premiums are
collected and when policyholder benefits and insurance claims are paid. Changes in the legal environment relative to state
enforcement of unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could result in changes in the manner
in which Kemper's life insurance companies administer life insurance death benefits and escheat unclaimed benefits to the
states, and could have a significant effect on, including decreasing such time lag due to an acceleration of, the payment and/or
escheatment of such benefits relative to what is currently contemplated by Kemper. See Item 1A., Risk Factors,” under the
caption “Changes in state enforcement of unclaimed property laws and related insurance claims handling practices could have a
significant effect on (including an acceleration of) the payment and/or escheatment of life insurance death benefits relative to
what is currently contemplated by Kemper and significantly increase claims handling costs,” Note 23, “Contingencies,” to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and MD&A, “Life and Health Insurance” for additional information about these matters.
During periods of growth, insurance companies typically experience positive operating cash flows and are able to invest a
portion of their operating cash flows to fund future policyholder benefits and claims. During periods in which premium
revenues decline, insurance companies may experience negative cash flows from operations and may need to sell investments
to fund payments to policyholders and claimants. In addition, if the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries
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experience several significant catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time, investments may have to be sold in
advance of their maturity dates to fund payments, which could either result in investment gains or losses. Management believes
that its property and casualty insurance subsidiaries maintain adequate levels of liquidity in the event that they experience
several future catastrophic events over a relatively short period of time. Prior to the sale of its active portfolio of automobile
loan receivables, the primary sources of funds for Fireside included the repayments of automobile loans, interest on automobile
loans, investment income and proceeds from the sales and maturity of investments. The primary uses of funds for Fireside were
general expenses and purchase of investments. Prior to the redemption of its Certificates of Deposits, the primary uses of funds
for Fireside also included the repayment of customer deposits and interest paid to depositors.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities increased by $90.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to
2011. Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities decreased by $83.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared
to 2010.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities decreased by $291.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to the
same period in 2011. The Company did not use cash for the Repayments of Certificates of Deposits for the year ended
December 31, 2012, compared to net cash used of $321.8 million in 2011. Kemper used $60.7 million of cash during 2012 to
repurchase shares of its common stock, compared to $27.4 million of cash used to repurchase shares of its common stock in
2011. Kemper used $56.9 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to $58.2 million of
cash used to pay dividends in the same period of 2011. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24 per common share for each
quarter of 2012 and 2011.

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities increased by $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to 2010. In
2011, net cash used for the Repayments of Certificates of Deposits was $321.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to net cash used of $366.9 million in 2010. Kemper used $27.4 million of cash during 2011 to repurchase shares of
its common stock, compared to $34.4 million in 2010. Kemper used $58.2 million of cash to pay dividends for the year ended
December 31, 2011, compared to $54.6 million of cash used to pay dividends in 2010. The quarterly dividend rate was $0.24
per common share for each quarter of 2011, compared to $0.22 per common share in 2010.

Cash available for investment activities in total is dependent on cash flow from Operating Activities and Financing Activities
and the level of cash the Company elects to maintain. Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities decreased by $670.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012, compared to the same period of 2011. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of
Fixed Maturities by $41.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of
Fixed Maturities by $13.1 million in 2011. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $66.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2012. Sales of Equity Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity Securities by $49.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2011. Net cash used by acquisitions of short-term investments was $80.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2012, compared to net cash of $155.5 million provided by dispositions of short-term investments in 2011.
Net proceeds from the sale of Fireside’s inactive portfolio of automobile loan receivables provided $16.7 million of cash for the
year ended December 31, 2012. Net proceeds from the sale of Fireside’s active loan portfolio provided $220.7 million of cash
for the year ended December 31, 2011. Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables provided $2.0 million of cash for the year
ended December 31, 2012, compared to $166.5 million of cash provided in 2011.

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities increased by $245.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the
same period of 2010. Purchases of Fixed Maturities exceeded Sales of Fixed Maturities by $13.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2011. Sales of Fixed Maturities exceeded Purchases of Fixed Maturities by $174.6 million in the same period of
2010. Sales of Equity Securities exceeded Purchases of Equity Securities by $49.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2011. Purchases of Equity Securities exceeded Sales of Equity Securities by $155.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2010. Net cash provided by dispositions of short-term investments was $155.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to net cash of $7.3 million used by acquisitions of short-term investments in 2010. Net proceeds from the sale of
Fireside’s active portfolio of automobile loan receivables provided $220.7 million of cash for the year ended December 31,
2011. Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables provided $166.5 million of cash for the year ended December 31, 2011,
compared to $339.6 million of cash provided in 2010. Receipts from the disposition of a business provided $4.1 million of cash
for the year ended December 31, 2010.
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The Company has no material obligations under a guarantee contract. The Company has no material retained or contingent
interests in assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity. The Company has no material obligations, including contingent
obligations, under contracts that would be accounted for as derivative instruments. The Company has no obligations, including
contingent obligations, arising out of a variable interest in an unconsolidated entity held by, and material to, the Company,
where such entity provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to, or engages in leasing, hedging or research
and development services with the Company. Accordingly, the Company has no material off-balance sheet arrangements.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

Estimated cash disbursements pertaining to the Company’s contractual obligations at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Jan 1, 2013 Jan 1, 2014 Jan 1, 2016

To To To After

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Dec 31, 2013 Dec 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2017 Dec 31, 2017 Total
Long Term Debt Obligations...........ccceoeecrerceurvcncrueane $ 55 8 2500 $ 360.0 $ — 8 615.5
Capital Lease Obligations .........ccceveevniviriericnniininns 1.9 24 1.2 — 5.5
Operating Lease Obligations.........ccocccvvrcvirneviiuennnns 283 38.0 22.3 7.8 96.4
Purchase Obligations...........eceoeveecrmrervurresenreesereeeenes 1.2 0.6 — — 1.8
Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits................. 267.5 452.8 434.7 5,476.8 6,631.8
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves .............. 496.5 308.1 99.2 66.8 970.6
Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long

Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet under GAAP........cccoivvnicniciiiceennen 374 74.9 32.6 — 144.9
Total Contractual Obligations ..........coeveererrereruecennnes $ 8383 § 11,1268 $ 9500 $ 55514 S 8,466.5

Amounts included in Life and Health Insurance Policy Benefits within the contractual obligations table above represent the
estimated cash payments to be made to policyholders and beneficiaries. Such cash outflows are based on the Company’s current
assumptions for mortality, morbidity and policy lapse, but are undiscounted with respect to interest. Policies must remain in
force for the policyholder or beneficiary to receive the benefit under the policy. Depending on the terms of a particular policy,
future premiums from the policyholder may be required for the policy to remain in force. The Company estimates that future
cash inflows would total $3.7 billion using the same assumptions used to estimate the cash outflows. The Company’s Life
Insurance Reserves in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet are generally based on the historical assumptions for
mortality and policy lapse rates and are on a discounted basis. Accordingly, the sum of the amounts presented above for Life
and Health Insurance Policy Benefits significantly exceeds the amount of Life and Health Insurance Reserves reported on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012.

In addition to the purchase obligations included above, the Company had certain investment commitments totaling $155.4
million at December 31, 2012. The funding of such investment commitments is dependent on a number of factors, the timing of
which is indeterminate. The contractual obligations reported above also exclude the Company’s liability of $6.4 million for
unrecognized tax benefits. The Company cannot make a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount and period of related future
payments for such liability. Other Contractual Obligations Reflected in Long Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet under GAAP primarily consist of interest obligations related to Long Term Debt Obligations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Kemper’s subsidiaries conduct their businesses in two industries: property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance.
Accordingly, the Company is subject to several industry-specific accounting principles under accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. The process of estimation is inherently uncertain. Accordingly, actual results could ultimately differ materially from the
estimated amounts reported in a company’s financial statements. Different assumptions are likely to result in different estimates
of reported amounts. The Company’s critical accounting policies most sensitive to estimates include the valuation of
investments, the valuation of property and casualty insurance reserves for losses and LAE, the assessment of recoverability of
goodwill and the valuation of pension benefit obligations.
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Valuation of Investments

The reported value of the Company’s investments was $6,460.1 million at December 31, 2012, of which $5,386.6 million, or
83%, was reported at fair value, $253.0 million, or 4%, was reported under the equity method of accounting, $266.3 million, or
4%, was reported at unpaid principal balance and $554.2 million, or 9%, was reported at cost or depreciated cost. Investment
securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and overall market volatility risk.
Accordingly, it is reasonably possible that changes in the fair values of the Company’s investments reported at fair value will
occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements. Also, it is
reasonably possible that changes in the carrying values of the Company’s Equity Method Limited Liability Investments will
occur in the near term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the financial statements because these
issuers follow specialized industry accounting rules which require that they report all of their investments at fair value.

As more fully described under the heading, “Fair Value Measurements,” in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and
Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes
and ranks the market price observability used in fair value measurements.

The fair value of the Company’s investments measured and reported at fair value was $5,386.6 million at December 31, 2012,
of which $4,866.2 million, or 90%, was based on quoted market prices or significant value drivers that are observable and
$520.4 million, or 10%, was based on significant value drivers that are unobservable. Fair value measurements based on readily
available, active, quoted market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are
deemed to have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment, compared to fair value
measurements based on significant unobservable inputs used in measuring fair value. The prices that the Company might
realize from actual sales of investments are likely to vary from their respective estimated fair values at December 31, 2012 due
to limitations inherent in the estimation process and changing market conditions.

The classification of a company’s investment in a financial instrument may affect its reported results. For investments classified
as trading, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported. Both the reported
and fair value of the Company’s investments classified as trading were $4.5 million at December 31, 2012. For investments in
fixed maturities classified as held to maturity, a company is required to carry the investment at amortized cost, with only
amortization occurring during the period recognized into income. None of the Company’s investments in fixed maturities were
classified as held to maturity at December 31, 2012. Changes in the fair value of investments in fixed maturities classified as
available for sale, investments in equity securities classified as available for sale and an insurance entity’s investments in equity
securities without readily determinable fair values are not recognized to income during the period, but rather are recognized as a
separate component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income until realized. All of the Company’s investments in fixed
maturities were classified as available for sale at December 31, 2012. Except for investments accounted for under the equity
method of accounting or classified as trading, all of the Company’s investments in equity securities at December 31, 2012 were
required to be reported at fair value with changes in fair value reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income until
realized. The Company’s investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting consist of the Company’s
investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments and are valued at cost plus cumulative undistributed
comprehensive earnings or losses, and not at fair value.

Under GAAP, a company may elect to use the fair value option for some or all of its investments in financial instruments.
Under the fair value option, a company is required to recognize changes in the fair values into income for the period reported.
The Company has not elected the fair value option for any of its investments in financial instruments. Had the Company elected
the fair value option for all of its investments in financial instruments, the Company’s reported net income for the year ended
December 31, 2012, would have increased by $63.3 million.

The Company regularly reviews its investments for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost or amortized cost is other than temporary. Such reviews are inherently uncertain in that the value of the
investment may not fully recover or may decline further in future periods.

Some factors considered for fixed maturity and equity securities in evaluating whether or not a decline in fair value is other than
temporary include, but are not limited to, the following:

Fixed Maturity Securities

»  The financial condition, credit rating and prospects of the issuer;
»  The extent to which the fair value has been less than cost;
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»  The ability of the issuer to make scheduled principal and interest payments;

+  The volatility of the investment;

e Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

»  The Company’s intentions to sell or not to sell the investment; and

»  The Company’s determination of whether it will be required to sell the investment before a full recovery in value.

Equity Securities

*  The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

+  The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

»  The volatility of the investment;

¢ Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

»  Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

*  Market liquidity;

»  Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

»  The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

Changes in these factors from one evaluation date to the next evaluation date could result in the Company determining that a
temporary decline in the fair value of an investment at December 31, 2012 is no longer temporary at a subsequent evaluation
date. Such determination would result in an impairment loss recognized in earnings in the period such determination is made.

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses

The Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are reported using the Company’s estimate of its ultimate liability
for losses and LAE for claims that occurred prior to the end of any given accounting period but have not yet been paid. The
Company had $970.6 million and $1,029.1 million of gross loss and LAE reserves at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves for the Company’s business segments at December 31, 2012 and 2011
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Business Segments:
KEMPET PIEIEITEM ... .. veveveriereiesiereiireserricisecaesetseesetses et e eness s tas et srss s ssss s ss s bbb asbases $ 4523 $ 4162
KemMPer SPECIALLY ......coveeeiiieietiiirieiieteee ittt st r bbb e raas 215.9 2259
KEMPET DIFECE....eeuvrvreucriiiiiiiieicietiii bbb b bbb bbb e bbb b ba s b s s a s eses 177.8 223.9
Life and Health INSUIANCE ........cceeviivieieereeeeieeeeteteetteree st eeeesaestessaes st stesaeseessesasossessssssessesassssossesns 7.0 8.3
TOtal BUSINESS SEEIMENLS.....cveueeiiiterreeeereetenteiritesenteseereesesresseestsseesssiestassesesasssetessessosnensshnsssssasessensenes 853.0 874.3
DiSCONtINUEd OPEIALIONS......coveuiriirertrieiriiertetesirteseensieseersreassisnsib et et sts st e s bosssbensrbebesassasssasssasanes 100.7 133.0
UNAIIOCAEd RESEIVES ...c.oeiereeeetieteeiecteteeeesteertereesteeseeat e e e et satebe s estesaessessasases st anaesaseseesastesasssssnsesesnnsrneen 16.9 21.8
Total Property and Casualty InSurance RESEIVES........ccovueueurrererecerniererciiennnrereen s ssesessnses $ 970.6 $ 1,029.1

The Unallocated Reserves were acquired in connection with a business acquisition from SCOR in 2002 and are reinsured by an
insurance subsidiary of SCOR (see Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements). The Company does not allocate these reserves to its business segments or Unitrin Business Insurance.

In estimating the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional
judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many variables that are difficult to quantify. Accordingly, the process of
estimating and establishing the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves is inherently uncertain and the actual
ultimate net cost of claims may vary materially from the estimated amounts reserved. The reserving process is particularly
imprecise for claims involving asbestos, environmental matters, construction defect and other emerging and/or long-tailed
exposures which may not be discovered or reported until years after the insurance policy period has ended. Property and
Casualty Insurance Reserves related to the Company’s Discontinued Operations are predominantly long-tailed exposures, $45.2
million of which was related to asbestos, environmental matters and construction defect exposures at December 31, 2012.

54



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—(Continued)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (Continued)

The Company’s actuaries generally estimate reserves at least quarterly for most product lines and/or coverage levels using
accident quarters or accident months spanning 10 or more years, depending on the size of the product line and/or coverage level
or emerging issues relating to them. The Company’s actuaries use a variety of generally accepted actuarial loss reserving
estimation methodologies, including, but not limited to, the following:

+ Incurred Loss Development Methodology;

«  Paid Loss Development Methodology;

»  Bomhuetter-Ferguson Incurred Loss Methodology;
«  Bornhuetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Methodology; and
»  Frequency and Severity Methodology.

The Company’s actuaries generally review the results of at least four of the estimation methodologies, two based on paid data
and two based on incurred data, to initially estimate the ultimate losses and LAE for the current accident quarter and re-estimate
the ultimate losses and LAE for previous accident quarters to determine if changes in the previous estimates of the ultimate
losses and LAE are indicated by the most recent data. In some cases, the methodologies produce a cluster of estimates with a
tight band of indicated possible outcomes. In other cases, however, the methodologies produce conflicting results and wider
bands of indicated possible outcomes, and the Company’s actuaries perform additional analyses before making their final
selections. However, such bands do not necessarily constitute a range of outcomes, nor does the Company’s management or the
Company’s actuaries calculate a range of outcomes.

The key assumption in these estimation methodologies is that patterns observed in prior periods are indicative of how losses
and LAE are expected to develop in the future and that such historical data can be used to predict and estimate ultimate losses
and LAE. However, changes in the Company’s business processes, by their very nature, are likely to affect the development
patterns, which generally results in the historical development factors becoming less reliable over time in predicting how losses
and LAE will ultimately develop. The ultimate impact of a single change in a business process is difficult to quantify and
detect, and even more difficult if several changes to business processes occur over several years. Initially after a change is
implemented, there are fewer data points, as compared to the historical data, for the Company’s actuaries to anatyze. With fewer
data points to analyze, the Company’s actuaries cannot be certain that observed differences from the historical data trends are a
result of the change in business process or merely a random fluctuation in the data. As the Company’s actuaries observe more
data points following the change in business process, the Company’s actuaries can gain more confidence in whether the change
in business process is affecting the development pattern. The challenge for the Company’s actuaries is how much weight to
place on the development patterns based on the older historical data and how much weight to place on the development patterns
based on more recent data.

At a minimum, the Company’s actuaries analyze 45 product and/or coverage levels for over 40 separate current and prior
accident quarters for both losses and LAE using many of the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified above as well
as other generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In all, there are over 10,000 combinations of accident quarters,
coverage levels, and generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies used to estimate the Company’s unpaid losses and
LAE. In some cases, the Company’s actuaries make adjustments to the loss reserving estimation methodologies identified
above or use additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies to estimate ultimate losses and LAE.

For each accident quarter, the point estimate selected by the Company’s actuaries is not necessarily one of the points produced
by any particular one of the methodologies utilized, but often is another point selected by the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, that takes into consideration each of the points produced by the several loss reserving estimation
methodologies used. In some cases, for a particular product, the current accident quarter may not have enough paid claims data
to rely upon, leading the Company’s actuaries to conclude that the incurred loss development methodology provides a better
estimate than the paid loss development methodology. Therefore, the Company’s actuaries may give more weight to the
incurred loss development methodology for that particular accident quarter. As an accident quarter ages for that same product,
the actuary may gain more confidence in the paid loss development methodology and begin to give more weight to the paid loss
development methodology. The Company’s actuaries’ quarterly selections are summed by product and/or coverage levels to
create the actuarial indication of the ultimate losses. More often than not, the actuarial indication for a particular product line
and accident quarter is most heavily weighted towards the incurred loss development methodology, particularly for short-tail
lines such as personal automobile insurance. Historically, the incurred loss development methodology has been more reliable in
predicting ultimate losses for short-tail lines, especially in the more recent accident quarters, compared with the paid loss
development methodology. However, in some circumstances changes can occur which impact numerous variables, including,
but not limited to, those variables identified below that are difficult to quantify and/or impact the predictive value of prior
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development patterns relied upon in the incurred loss development methodology and paid loss development methodology. In
those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries must make adjustments to these loss reserving estimation methodologies or use
additional generally accepted actuarial estimation methodologies. In those circumstances, the Company’s actuaries, using their
professional judgment, may place more weight on the adjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies or other generally
accepted actuarial estimation methodologies until the newer development patterns fully emerge and the Company’s actuaries
can fully rely on the unadjusted loss reserving estimation methodologies. In the event of a wide variation among results
generated by the different projection methodologies, the Company’s actuaries further analyze the data using additional
techniques.

In estimating reserves, the Company’s actuaries exercise professional judgment and must consider, and are influenced by, many
variables that are difficult to quantify, such as:

*  Changes in the level of minimum case reserves, and the automatic aging of those minimum case reserves;

»  Changes to claims practices, including, but not limited to, changes in the reporting and impact of large losses, timing
of reported claims, adequacy of case reserves, implementation of new systems for handling claims, turnover of claims
department staffs, timing and depth of the audit review of claims handling procedures;

»  Changes in underwriting practices;

+ Changes in the mix of business by state, class and policy limit within product line;

*  Growth in new lines of business;

+  Changes in the attachment points of the Company’s reinsurance programs;

*  Medical costs, including, but not limited to, the ability to assess the extent of injuries and the impact of inflation;

»  Repair costs, including, but not limited to, the impact of inflation and the availability of labor and materials;

*  Changes in the judicial environment, including, but not limited to, the interpretation of policy provisions, the impact of
Jjury awards and changes in case law; and

+  Changes in state regulatory requirements.

A change in any one or more of the foregoing factors is likely to result in a projected ultimate net loss and LAE that is different
from the previously estimated reserve and/or previous frequency and severity trends. Such changes in estimates may be
material.

For example, the Company’s actuaries review frequency (number of claims per policy or exposure), severity (dollars of loss per
claim) and average premium (dollars of premium per exposure). Actual frequency and severity experienced will vary depending
on changes in mix by class of insured risk. Similarly, the actual frequency and rate of recovery from reinsurance will vary
depending on changes in the attachment point for reinsurance. In particular, in periods of high growth or expansion into new
markets, there may be additional uncertainty in estimating the ultimate losses and LAE. The contributing factors of this
potential risk are changes in the Company’s mix by policy limit and mix of business by state or jurisdiction.

Actuaries use historical experience and trends as predictors of how losses and LAE will emerge over time. However, historical
experience may not necessarily be indicative of how actual losses and LAE will emerge. Changes in case reserve adequacy,
changes in minimum case reserves and changes in internal claims handling procedures could impact the timing and recognition
of incurred claims and produce an estimate that is either too high or too low if not adjusted for by the actuary. For example, if,
due to changes in claims handling procedures, actual claims are settled more rapidly than they were settled historically, the
estimate produced by the paid loss development methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and
adjust for the impact of the changes in claims handling procedures. Similarly, if, due to changes in claims handling procedures,
actual claim reserves are set at levels higher than past experience, the estimate produced by the incurred loss development
methodology would tend to be overstated if the actuary did not identify and adjust for the impact of the changes in claims
handling procedures.

The final step in the quarterly loss and LAE reserving process involves a comprehensive review of the actuarial indications by
the Company’s corporate actuary and corporate management who apply their collective judgment and determine the appropriate
estimated level of reserves to record. Numerous factors are considered in this determination process, including, but not limited
to, the assessed reliability of key loss trends and assumptions that may be significantly influencing the current actuarial
indications, changes in claim handling practices or other changes that affect the timing of payment or development patterns,
changes in the mix of business, the maturity of the accident year, pertinent trends observed over the recent past, the level of
volatility within a particular line of business, the improvement or deterioration of actuarial indications in the current period as
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compared to prior periods, and the amount of reserves related to third party pools for which the Company does not have access
to the underlying data and, accordingly, relies on calculations provided by such pools.

The Company’s goal is to ensure that its total reserves for property and casualty insurance losses and LAE are adequate to cover
all costs, while sustaining minimal variation from the time reserves for losses and LAE are initially estimated until losses and
LAE are fully developed. Changes in the Company’s estimates of these losses and LAE over time, also referred to as
“development,” will occur and may be material. Favorable development is recognized and reported in the consolidated financial
statements when the Company decreases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in an increase in net
income in the period recognized, whereas adverse development is recognized and reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements when the Company increases its previous estimate of ultimate losses and LAE and results in a decrease in net
income. The Company reported total favorable development of $31.5 million, $33.1 million and $24.9 million before tax for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Development for each of the Company’s continuing business
segments and Unitrin Business Insurance for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, was:

Favorable (Adverse) Development

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Continuing Operations: ,
KemPEr PrEfITEA ... cvvvueeierrererceeieenirsirecsessasesssssssssssssasiscsssssessssssesssassessnssassssssassssnnes $ 48 $ 191 § 2338
KEMPET SPECIAILY .....cecerrrrenririeierereeriricsiecsestaessssenressassesssensssnesnssessisssasssssassssssseseses 23 9.4 “.1)
KEMPEE DIIECE.......cveveerieeeenreeneiceenisiseiissrsrssisssse st ersassssasbe e s s b ssebesabassenensnas 17.8 3.9 6.8
Life and Health INSUFANCE .........c.ceceeververeereenerenreceeseenresesssniesssseermssessessssessssssssesssssossaness 0.3 2.6 4.5)
Total Favorable Development from Continuing Operations, Net ..........coveeeriveinineceienennnn. 25.2 35.0 22.0
Discontinued Operations:
Unitrin BuSiness INSUTANCE...........ccvevrrreeerernrernesirssssoriesessiosesnisisnssessessessssesiverasssesnes 6.3 1.9 2.9
Total Favorable Development, Net......c.occccriininiinnniiiiiiniesnniseeesisessssessssessersens $ 315 $ 331 $§ 249

Development in the Kemper Preferred segment comprised the largest portion of the Company’s development reported in
continuing operations in 2011 and 2010. Additional information regarding the Kemper Preferred development is discussed
below. Development in the Kemper Direct segment comprised the largest portion of the Company’s development reported in
continuing operations in 2012. Development in the Kemper Direct segment in 2012 is due primarily to claims developing more
favorably than expected for liability and PIP coverages. Development in the Life and Health Insurance segment in 2011 and
2010 is due primarily to development on certain hurricanes. See MD&A, “Life and Health Insurance.”

Development in Unitrin Business Insurance comprised all of the Company’s development reported in discontinued operations.
In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to June 1, 2008, the effective date of the sale.

Estimated Variability of Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves

Although development will emerge in all of the Company’s personal lines’ product lines, development in Kemper Preferred
segment’s personal automobile insurance product line could have the most significant impact due to the relative size of its loss
and LAE reserves. To further illustrate the sensitivity of Kemper Preferred segment’s reserves for automobile insurance losses
and LAE to changes in the cumulative development factors, for each quarterly evaluation point the Company’s actuaries
calculated the variability of cumulative development factors observed in the incurred loss development methodology using one
standard deviation. The Company believes that one standard deviation of variability is a reasonably likely scenario to measure
variability for its loss and LAE reserves under the incurred development method for automobile insurance. Assuming that the
Kemper Preferred segment’s automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves were based solely on the incurred loss development
methodology and the variability in the cumulative development factors occurred within one standard deviation, the Company
estimates that Kemper Preferred’s automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves could have varied by $34.7 million in either
direction at December 31, 2012 for all accident years combined under this scenario. In addition to the factors described above,
other factors may also impact loss reserve development in future periods. These factors include governmental actions, including
court decisions interpreting existing laws, regulations or policy provisions, developments related to insurance policy claims and
coverage issues, adverse or favorable outcomes in pending claims litigation, the number and severity of insurance claims, the
impact of inflation on insurance claims and the impact of residual market assessments. Although the Company’s actuaries do
not make specific numerical assumptions about these factors, changes in these factors from past patterns will impact historical
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loss development factors and, in turn, future loss reserve development. Significant favorable changes in one or more factors will
lead to favorable future loss reserve development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even below, the
lower end of the Company’s estimated reserve variability. Significant unfavorable changes in one or more factors will lead to
unfavorable loss reserve development, which could result in the actual loss developing closer to, or even above, the higher end
of the Company’s estimated reserve variability. Accordingly, due to these factors and the other factors enumerated throughout
the MD&A and the inherent limitations of the loss reserving estimation methodologies, the estimated and illustrated reserve
variability may not necessarily be indicative of the Company’s future reserve variability, which could ultimately be greater than
the estimated and illustrated variability. In addition, as previously noted, development will emerge in all of the Company’s
product lines over time. Accordingly, the Company’s future reserve variability could ultimately be greater than the illustrated
variability.

Additional information pertaining to the estimation of and development of the Company’s Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves is contained in Item 1 of Part I of this 2012 Annual Report under the heading “Property and Casualty Loss and Loss
Adjustment Expense Reserves.”

Gooawill Recoverability

While the Company believes that none of its reporting units with material goodwill are at risk of failing step one of the
goodwill impairment test, the process of determining whether or not an asset, such as Goodwill, is impaired or recoverable
relies on projections of future cash flows, operating results and market conditions. Such projections are inherently uncertain
and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash flows. In evaluating the recoverability of
Goodwill, the Company performs a discounted cash flow analysis for each of the Company’s reporting units carrying Goodwill.
The discounted cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between a willing
buyer and a willing seller. Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment rates. Changes to
these rates might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the recoverability of Goodwill. For example,
an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the discounted cash value. There is likely to be a similar, but
not necessarily as large as, increase in the investment rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income
earned on the Company’s investments. Accordingly, an increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash
value.

Pension Benefit Obligations

The process of estimating the Company’s pension benefit obligations and pension benefit costs is inherently uncertain and the
actual cost of benefits may vary materially from the estimates recorded. These liabilities are particularly volatile due to their
long-term nature and are based on several assumptions. The main assumptions used in the valuation of the Company’s pension
benefit obligations are: ‘

»  Estimated mortality of the employees and retirees eligible for benefits;

»  Estimated expected long-term rates of returns on investments;

»  Estimated compensation increases;

«  Estimated employee turnover; and

»  Estimated rate used to discount the ultimate estimated liability to a present value.

A change in any one or more of these assumptions is likely to result in an ultimate liability different from the original actuarial
estimate. Such changes in estimates may be material. For example, a one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s
estimated discount rate would increase the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2012 by $86.1 million, while a one—
percentage point increase in the rate would decrease the pension benefit obligation at December 31, 2012 by $69.1 million. A
one—percentage point decrease in the Company’s estimated long-term rate of return on plan assets would increase the pension
expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 by $4.3 million, while a one—percentage point increase in the rate would
decrease pension expense by $4.3 million for the same period.
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Except for rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws and a limited number of
grandfathered standards, the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) is the sole source of authoritative GAAP
recognized by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) and applicable to the Company. The FASB issues
Accounting Standards Updates (“ASUs”) to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There were seven ASUs issued in 2012
that amend the original text of ASC. These ASU’s are not expected to have an impact on the Company.

Changes in accounting standards that are most critical or relevant to the Company are discussed in Note 2, “Summary of
Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements under the headings “Adoption of New
Accounting Standards” and “Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted.” The accounting changes discussed are as follows:

»  ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts;

s ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements;

e ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment; and

«  ASU 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05.
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Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Quantitative Information About Market Risk

The Company’s consolidated balance sheet includes three types of financial instruments subject to the material market risk
disclosures required by the SEC:

1. Investments in Fixed Maturities;
2. Investments in Equity Securities and,;
3. Notes Payable.

Investments in Fixed Maturities and Notes Payable are subject to material interest rate risk. The Company’s Investments in
Equity Securities include common and preferred stocks and, accordingly, are subject to material equity price risk and interest
rate risk, respectively.

For purposes of this disclosure, market risk sensitive financial instruments are divided into two categories: financial instruments
acquired for trading purposes and financial instruments acquired for purposes other than trading. The Company’s market risk
sensitive financial instruments are generally classified as held for purposes other than trading. The Company has no significant
holdings of financial instruments acquired for trading purposes. The Company has no significant holdings of derivatives.

The Company measures its sensitivity to market risk by evaluating the change in its financial assets and liabilities relative to
fluctuations in interest rates and equity prices. The evaluation is made using instantaneous changes in interest rates and equity
prices on a static balance sheet to determine the effect such changes would have on the Company’s market value at risk and the
resulting pre-tax effect on Shareholders’ Equity. The changes chosen represent the Company’s view of adverse changes which
are reasonably possible over a one-year period. The selection of the changes chosen should not be construed as the Company’s
prediction of future market events, but rather an illustration of the impact of such events.

For the interest rate sensitivity analysis presented below, the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100—
basis points in the yield curve at both December 31, 2012 and 2011 for Investments in Fixed Maturities. Such 100-basis point
increase in the yield curve may not necessarily result in a corresponding 100-basis point increase in the interest rate for all
investments in fixed maturities. For example, a 100-basis point increase in the yield curve for risk-free, taxable investments in
fixed maturities may not result in a 100-basis point increase for tax-exempt investments in fixed maturities. For Investments in
Fixed Maturities, the Company also anticipated changes in cash flows due to changes in the likelihood that investments would
be called or prepaid prior to their contractual maturity. All other variables were held constant. For preferred stock equity
securities the Company assumed an adverse and instantaneous increase of 100—basis points in market interest rates from their
levels at both December 31, 2012 and 2011. All other variables were held constant. For Notes Payable, the Company assumed
an adverse and instantaneous decrease of 100-basis points in market interest rates from their levels at December 31, 2012 and
2011. All other variables were held constant. The Company measured equity price sensitivity assuming an adverse and
instantaneous 30% decrease in the Standard and Poor’s Stock Index (the “S&P 500”) from its level at December 31, 2012 and
2011, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s investments in common stock equity securities were correlated
with the S&P 500 using the portfolio’s weighted-average beta of 0.91 and 0.92 at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The portfolio’s weighted-average beta was calculated using each security’s beta for the five-year periods ended December 31,
2012 and 2011, and weighted on the fair value of such securities at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. For equity
securities without observable market inputs the Company assumed a beta of 1.00 at December 31, 2012 and 2011. Beta
measures a stock’s relative volatility in relation to the rest of the stock market, with the S&P 500 having a beta coefficient of
1.00.
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The estimated adverse effects on the market value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2012 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)

Interest Equity Total
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk  Market Risk
ASSETS '
Investments in Fixed Maturities. .........oocvveeenrereereesceerinnioniininenisneesmnsesenne $ 48602 $ (334.0) $ — $ (340
Investments in EQUItY SECUTILIES.......cooevceeireeiniiiiieseeicenesestnsseseaces 521.9 (19.0) (82.3) (101.3)
LIABILITIES
NOteS PAYADIE. .......cveeeeieireeireneceeninisiiieiscsscsess s e s nss s sessssens $ 6755 § 231 § — 3 23.1

The estimated adverse effects on the market value of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2011 using these
assumptions were:

Pro Forma Increase (Decrease)
Interest Equity Total

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Fair Value Rate Risk Price Risk  Market Risk
ASSETS

Investments in Fixed Maturiti€s.........c.ceeverererereersererrernssesensessessereseseensneneas $ 47734 $ (3484) § — § (3484
Investments in EQUity SECULIIES.....cccoeveeurrerrninercrrciiiiieienreisreennas 397.3 (10.4) (63.3) (73.7)
LIABILITIES

NOLES PAYADIE. ......coovrerecrereeeinieaeeitieeeeseeseeresesesseerensassssssssssssssasnsssssnseses $ 6387 $ 269 $ — $ 26.9

The market risk sensitivity analysis assumes that the composition of the Company’s interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities,
including, but not limited to, credit quality, and the equity price sensitive assets existing at the beginning of the period remains
constant over the period being measured. It also assumes that a particular change in interest rates is uniform across the yield
curve regardless of the time to maturity. Interest rates on certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of
changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may lag behind changes in market rates. Also, any future
correlation, either in the near term or the long term, between the Company’s common stock equity securities portfolio and the
S&P 500 may differ from the historical correlation as represented by the weighted-average historical beta of the common stock
equity securities portfolio. Accordingly, the market risk sensitivity analysis may not be indicative of, is not intended to provide,
and does not provide, a precise forecast of the effect of changes of market rates on the Company’s income or shareholders’
equity. Further, the computations do not contemplate any actions the Company may undertake in response to changes in interest

rates or equity prices.

To the extent that any adverse 100-basis point change occurs in increments over a period of time instead of instantaneously, the
adverse impact on fair values would be partially mitigated because some of the underlying financial instruments would have
matured. For example, proceeds from any maturing assets could be reinvested and any new liabilities would be incurred at the

then current interest rates.

Qualitative Information About Market Risk

Market risk is a broad term related to economic losses due to adverse changes in the fair value of a financial instrument and is
inherent to all financial instruments. SEC disclosure rules focus on only one element of market risk—price risk. Price risk
relates to changes in the level of prices due to changes in interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates or other factors
that relate to market volatility of the rate, index, or price underlying the financial instrument. The Company’s primary market
risk exposures are to changes in interest rates and equity prices.

The Company manages its interest rate exposures with respect to Investments in Fixed Maturities by investing primarily in
investment-grade securities of moderate effective duration.
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DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS
Assets:

Investments:

Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Amortized Cost: 2012 - $4,283.8; 2011 - $4,266.1)................
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2012 - $462.7; 2011 - $367.3)....cccouvrrenceerenceecrenceennen

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative Undistributed
BAININGS.....cveueueeieeceereeeeeenrceesesseeeeecnseeeestesconeesrensnsatseesrsstssassossssastsassensnssestsassessnsnssssenens

Short-term Investments at Cost which Approximates Fair Value

Other INVESHMENLS ......ceeviieiiiiieceeceeeecet et et esseseerssrsebessasssasseerssssessessrsssertsesssnsessssssensonss

Receivables from POLCYROIAELS ......ccceoviririinircerricrnincccentrreesneeesesnecessntsseessesersnsssnssessssssssnseneoses
Other RECEIVADIES ....c.ucveerereeererirerrenieietreseseessestestessesesestesesstessesteseesessentenssstesessessenseseesesasesneane
Deferred Policy AcqUiSItion COSES........ovvurrerereerinrrvusniereereniesnontessssssasesssvessessonsosessessesasssesessesaescsss
GOOAWILL ...ttt seseese s e ssesssstssmesnanssonsasssas treeeeeresaeaenesesrasiesases
Current and Deferred INCOME Tax ASSELS.........ccvriveerireernenierisnniesrerssseiosssssseossssssossssesosessesssssrssssees
OtHET ASSEES...uverriiirieiiereticeeiieeteeiteeirteseesteeseeessesssnes st esssessnessnesssassreessrsensassstessnesssessansnsessssarssones
TOUAL ASSEES..cuverrereeriertiererserseessesassnsnseosessseossssessesssssnsesesasesnsansessessstestessesasentesssaseeneosassseessessesssssanes

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:
Insurance Reserves: A

LIfe A HEAIN ...ttt ettt e e rvessressbesessbasssassssesssersssssssonnsssessssessnesssesns
Property and CasUalty .........coceeeeriereerereneinrressrsi e sessesessesssessesessessassessossssessassesessessassersasssses
Total INSUFANCE RESEIVES......coivueeieeriveiiiiieiie it irteeesseeesseeessssressesseessesesstesssssasesssessessosssessaseesess

UNEArNed PrOIMIUIMIS. ....ccoveiiveeiriiieerieiesnreiessrerissresisssesessssessssesssssesassreessssssasssesssssesssssesssssessssesssasenses

Liabilities for INCOME TAXES ........covuiieieriricrmiininiiicniicerniiissre st essssessesessssssessssenee
Notes Payable at Amortized Cost (Fair Value: 2012 - $675.5; 2011 - $638.7) ...cevvvveervrerernvnnnes
Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities. ........cccooiiiivieniiiniicneiienincsnctnnsssesessscccssaenenes
TOtal LIADILILIES. c.c.coueeeeireereiereneeiceniieiecteeeestse et se e se sttt sae e b s s e et s e esen et eneateseneneen

Shareholders’ Equity:

Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value Per Share, 100 Million Shares Authorized; 58,454,390
Shares Issued and Outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 60,248,582 Shares Issued and
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 ........ccooiviriniienreierreeeese et sttt sese e saesasnavene

Paid-in Capital ........coveeieuieeieirteteteteeet ettt ettt sme st st sae b e se e st n st sne et esetnaens

Retained Barmings ........cocovivieueiiieieniniiieniiiiereiensinientsicsesssnesaestssesessssessssensesesessenesssssnssossaessess

Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME...........ccvireeueirreeeerrrreerereseesesesesessesessesssssssessans
Total Shareholders” EQUItY.......ccoeeecrueeeieririeenirte et esesireecteetstesnatseesaseeaesessesassoseseseesassssssasenssses

Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUILY........cceceeverieccemrererenreecreseesceerraseesensensesrermesessessassosnenenes $

December 31,

2012 2011

48602 $ 4,7734

521.9 397.3
253.0 306.3
3275 2474
497.5 498.3
6,460.1 6,222.7
96.3 251.2
369.3 379.2
206.1 218.7
303.4 294.0
311.8 311.8
54 6.4
256.7 250.7

8,009.1 $ 7,934.7

31616 $  3,102.7

970.6 1,029.1
4,132.2 4,131.8
650.9 666.2
21.5 6.2
611.4 610.6
431.4 403.3
5,847.4 5,818.1
5.8 6.0
725.0 743.9
1,118.2 1,108.7
312.7 258.0
2,161.7 2,116.6

8,009.1 § 7,934.7

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2011 2010
Revenues:

Earned PIEMIUIMS. .......cc.vevuiiiiiieierieeieiesteereseretseseestesseesesseessnessessesssessesssessessessasssasssensens $2,107.1 $2,173.6 $2,2894

Net Investment INCOME.......cc.vivieiriirrenienieerinenniessestenireeeseesssecsesseesesstsseessessesssscnsssessens 295.9 298.0 325.7

Other INCOME ....cuveuriceeeieieiireriee s sreestes st et esse st ssnesarsssasaesssssssessesssassessnessessasssenssesneseans 0.8 1.0 1.3

Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENLS .........ccuevveeeeieceecrecieseeereseeseenseseeeeessesssneas 65.4 33.7 42.6

Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:

Total Other-than-temporary Impairment LOSSES...........coceeerurerierererrnverisesseresaeseseeseneee 71.2) (11.4) 17.7)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income...........cccoeeevcnurennneee. 03 0.1 12

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........c.ccceeeeinirennencnencnercinnenceeneneene 6.9 (11.3) (16.5)
TOtAl REVEIIUES .....vevinreeieiiiecceiecectrecirecetireessesceereseseeessssresssssesessstesssssessssesssesesnssesessnesennnsens 2,462.3 2,495.0 2,642.5
Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses................. 1,582.1 1,645.7 1,647.2

INSUranCe EXPENSES.........ccveirieerereeerniessenniccetineisseiniessiseossssssestesassssessossesssessssssesassssasees 672.3 683.6 685.9

Write-off of Goodwill and Other Intangibles Acquired..........ccoveveevcenininiincernineieccnnns — 13.5 14.8

Interest and Other EXPENSes .........ccoceviiierinieienineenisienereeesenesessesesseessesssassessessssssensesessnne 85.5 83.9 68.3
TOLAl EXPENSES.....cueeveerreererereeerarsesesessessserassesassessessassossassssessessassessssessersassassassessssassessessens 2,339.9 2,426.7 2,416.2
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Loss of

FOrmer INVESTEE.........c.oiiuieieiitetecer ettt ettt e s s sa s e seeaene s 1224 68.3 226.3
INCOME TAX EXPEIISE......ocueeerererereerernresrerentrserrestsonssseserssssossessessaseessestenseseesersessessesseneonssasnes (30.6) (6.6) (63.8)
Income from Continuing Operations before Equity in Net Loss of Former Investee........... 91.8 61.7 162.5
Equity in Net Loss of Former INVESLEE.........coverrecerrrercieneccmnieiinsircinninsnissisacnisssesissessissessesne — — 0.1)
Income from Continuing OPETAtiONS.......c...coerereietriiiemesisiessinssisseisisrsssssiisisssssssassessssenss 91.8 61.7 162.4
Discontinued Operations:

Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes........ccceceevervcecerereeneeccrcnnes 18.9 19.5 25.8

INCOME TaX EXPENSE........covvrieieeraneesentnesieneeeesteneseceseseesseessesseseessesessssstenessssnoresssossasens 7.3 6.7) (10.3)
Income from Discontinued OPErations ............ccceeeveveerrriaciresrecseeisessessessesissssssseesseseesseseen 11.6 12.8 15.5
NEL INCOIMIE ....overiierireeetereeeestesteeseeseseestestsesssssssosessaostsnsssssansaaseesessessastsssestsnsssssesseneesees $ 1034 74.5 177.9

Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share:

BASIC ..uviveerierentecteerrertesee et ee e sse e se e s e e ee st e sae s b e s ate st e st e st e s e e sts soba st e st e serassaentasnasnsessnenteaes $ 155

DHIULEA ...ttt e e e sae s e s e s et essee e e se s e asaessessasss sabtsssasnnessassassesssassasssesaseneesnns $ 154
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share:

BASIC ..ot icretete e ste et e tete b ettt e st et et b e et era s e e s nareaseRen s e s e Re et e se e e s aatese st sennaseas $ 175

DHIILED ...ttt te e s ee et estesseressasseseassosnersessensensestsnsessasesraesseseesassens $ 174
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share .............cceevveeeeevercenreerrresrreenessenssesesroseensens $ 096

1.02

1.02

1.23

1.23

0.96

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended
Dec 31, Dec 31, Dec 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
INEEIICOME.......vueecrrrererseersiseirersnsersssnsesesssssessasssesesesssassessssstessssesssssosssssssnsssssssssassesssassssssasns $ 1034 $ 745 § 1779
Other Comprehensive Income Before Income Taxes:

Unrealized HOIAINg Gains ........cccoveverriiierinecinineereinssreresesenessseseessssssesenssesssssesssesssosessssns 96.7 201.2 177.0

Foreign Currency Translation AdJUStmMents..........ccouvueueveercriereeeceseeseereenessernessseseessessssens 1.6 04 .5

Equity in Other Comprehensive Income of Former Investee............coevvvevereerereerereenecennes —_ — 2.9

Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs.........ccurrerernrrernrerenrisessvenseeeressisseesens 13.2) (45.2) 26.7)
Other Comprehensive Income Before INCOME TaXES.......ccccvuerreeereereereverereensrereseennssssssesns 85.1 156.4 152.7
Other Comprehensive Income TaX EXPEnNSe..........cccocvevcrvvireenirerevinsesesinesisiesesssseseseseseenens 30.9) (55.8) (54.1)
Other Comprehensive INCOME ............ecereeerecrecreeieeereeeteeere e et sesssensssnesen 54.7 100.6 98.6
Total Comprehensive INCOME .........coiuriemieeiuinencnnerntreetsrsnserssssssessssssssesessssetsssssssessssssesns $§ 1581 § 1751 § 276.5

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For The Years Ended December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Operating Activities:
NEE INCOIE «..eervvvevereeereesnssssereseseesssaeseressaessaeseseresssssossasiorstessssssssasssnnssnssssssnssssssnsasases $ 1034 $§ 745 $ 1779
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating
Activities:
Increase in Deferred Policy Acquisition COStS........ccocveveinniinnminisiinrinicenenesseressennes (CX)) (7.8) 4.7
Amortization of Insurance in FOrce ACqUIred........co.cveevieririnsmnrinininnsininisessvenseresiones 8.0 11.4 11.0
Equity in Net Loss of Former Investee before Taxes..........ocoveiereeinieinnrerernnnincscences — — 0.2
Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments..........ccccoocvevvnneenne 9.3) (9.6) (48.8)
Distribution of Accumulated Earnings of Equity Method Limited Liability
INIVESLITIENIES 1veeveirverrrrrrressrereeeesreesneessuenssesssaesssesssressessnsssssnessassssissnsssessssessssesssasssnasass 15.4 — —
Amortization of Investment Securities and Depreciation of Investment Real Estate ..... 15.2 16.0 17.6
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESEMENLS.....c..ovvieiririiniiiiinniciniieiicsesseenessnenes (65.4) (34.1) (42.6)
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........oocoeoininniiiinninnninnnncencee 6.9 113 16.5
Gain on Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables..........ccovvevicencncirirnenne 12.9) 4.5) —
Benefit for Loan LOSSES......ccieirieriereneresieniecieseenessisscsessesisssssssssssssssssssssssasesassessessssens 2.0 (42.0) (14.2)
Depreciation of Property and EQUIPMENt.........cocoviiiriniiinniisininiinieensesesesessiensnes 15.3 10.9 14.5
Write-0ff 0f GOOAWILL...c.cerviriiiirrieiiicciiiiii e — — 14.8
Impairment of P&C Customer Relationships Acquired..........oovvvenvicerneininnnnennncns — 13.5 —
Decrease (Increase) in Other ReCeivables.........oviiiieriemiieinniiiesssseesisssissnennne 139 0.2) 28.0
Decrease in INSUrance RESEIVES ..uueuiiiierieeruerieniieniersininsesssisssiiniiesiessessssnsssssessacssssnes 1.1 (52.1) (52.1)
Decrease in Unearned PremIUImS. ......ocveivieerrerererceecruecrsessasesnssecsessseessssssssesssessassorsessssonns (15.2) (12.4) (46.4)
Change in INCOME TAXES.....ccvcrmecreriiierriiinisiistsirssssssstsess st ssssas s st s sassenesssensens (14.9) 17.2 8.7
Decrease in Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities..........cocovevienminnviiiinneeecccnnnen (15.6) 47.5) (41.0)
OLNET, NET ...voveiririerericrer et e estesseses e eseeserreses s enesaessesstaesbasstsbssbabsbenbssnerssbaeassaaaesrassannas 334 30.4 19.1
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating ACtiVItIes .......ccoeverierrresiiieieieniieiencnetsiees e 65.7 (25.0) 58.5
Investing Activities:
Sales and Maturities of Fixed Maturities ......c..ovceevevieeererrenenmrricninteiieeiees st seesesnns 9144 650.3 706.7
Purchases of FIXed MatUITLES .......cevueeiecererreenreseenceeeeesesessessessissssaesiasesseseonssessessassesasss (872.6) (663.4) (532.1D)
Sales Of EQUILY SECUIITIES........couviimiiiriiriiirictierere ettt sb s 70.8 2483 33.8
Purchases of EQUItY SECUITES .....cccovvereiriininiiiiiriiisireersn st ssenescas (137.7) (199.2) (189.1)
Sales Of FOImEr INVESTEE ..c..ceuevvevreciirrieciiiinncncnt i restess st e s e as s e s s s nasesans — — 2.7
Acquisition and Improvements of Investment Real EState .......c.couvvrinnineernscscnnecnnncnnns 5.5 6.4) 3.9
Sales of Investment Real EState ........cccooveeervueninencieniiiinnineiienictine s sasstsessssanons 6.0 0.3 9.6
Return of Investment of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments...........c.coeveuecnnee 56.0 57.0 38.1
Acquisitions of Equity Method Limited Liability Investments ...........cocoeviveivineiivnniicnencnns (31.0) (25.7) (31.9)
Decrease (Increase) in Short-term INVEStIMENLS ......ociivirniririninieeiisniseserennnsncceeseienes (80.0) 155.5 (7.3)
Receipts from Automobile Loan Receivables...........ooveiiinninnniinniniescneeecceneneines 2.0 166.5 339.6
Net Proceeds from Sale of Portfolio of Automobile Loan Receivables...........ccouvuvnrerennnnnas 16.7 220.7 —
Disposition of Business, Net of Cash DiSposed..........coviiiiiniiiniinnsecieccnnene — — 4.1
Increase in Other INVESTMENLS .........ccevuierirrierencerseeserinesiinesresnises e srsessessssssssnessessasssens (12.4) (15.6) (14.7)
OHHET, NEL ......oviiieeeeeteeetiieie e teseseeeeeesseseseseeaessreeasaeataseeesesemsenessassbsbstobsasasneserssst s basebessseans (32.9) (23.7) (36.3)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACLIVILIES ........ccconvviririiineineirieensseinsssnnsesnessieenes (106.2) 564.6 319.3
Financing Activities:
Repayments of Certificates 0f DEPOSILS ... — (321.8) (366.9)
Proceeds from Issuance of Notes Payable...........ccccoeriecermemirccniiininiiniiiinrneesinneceseenns — 95.0 387.8
Repayments 0f NOtes Payable ..ot — (95.0) (340.1)
Common Stock REPUICHASES.......cccverrireeuecrerinereieiisniintriss ettt (60.7) (27.4) (34.4)
Cash Dividends Paid to Shareholders .........cccvveerereerrieiniiinniiiniennsieniiissesssessesesssssssancs (56.9) (58.2) (54.6)
Cash Exercise 0f StOCK OPtiONS ......eceueueetreirencoriiiniiini ettt sesnesssssvessssasssssssssesesns 13- 0.2 0.5
Excess Tax Benefits from Share-based AWards...........cooviiiniiniiiiiiniininecneioinesesennene 0.5 0.2 0.2
OhET, NEL....v v et et ee ettt sbe st st a st s rs s s et s sbe s bs b s b e R s e assba s e s b e b et e basasaesnnans 1.4 1.4 3.2
Net Cash Used by Financing ACtiVItIES .....cocvvvvvviniiiiiniciniinnineiintsissssnsssnsssessesesesesssseens (114.4) (405.6) (404.3)
Increase (Decrease) in Cash.....c.ccvccniiiiimniiiii ettt ene (154.9) 134.0 (26.5)
Cash, Beginning 0f YT .......ccccevieriemiiniiiniiieiit ettt se st st sssn s sesasasain 251.2 117.2 143.7
Cash, BNd OF PEHOM ......c.ovovevevierierecreie et ssesaaeesese s sesesessessessasssesesssssensasssssnssssssnsasssasassens $ 963 $ 2512 $§ 1172

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For The Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Accumulated

DOLLARS AND SHARES IN Number Other Total
MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE of Common Paid-in  Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
AMOUNTS Shares Stock Capital Earnings Income Equity
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 As Reported.. 624 $ 62 $ 7659 $ 1,08.7 $ 588 $ 1,917.6
Cumulative Effect of Adoption of New Accounting

Standard..........coecriinecnennnnenenesee s — — — (83.6) — (83.6)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2009 As Adjusted... 624 $ 62 $ 7659 $ 1,003.1 $ 588 $ 1,834.0
Net INCOME .....ovueeecrreneereicecreeisinie s s e resenes — —_— —_— 177.9 — 177.9
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13)..................... — — — — 98.6 98.6
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.88 per share) .... — — — (54.6) — (54.6)
Repurchases of Common Stock .........eccrereceriereeenerenns (1.4) ©.1) (17.0) (17.3) — (34.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 10)............... — — 42 — — 42
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(DOt 10) ottt eeere e teae b benenes 0.1 —_ 2.0 (0.6) — 2.6)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2010 ...... 61.1 $ 61 § 751.1 $ 1,1085 §$ 1574 $ 2,023.1
Net Income........ccmeeeeerrieeneecninncncnnresenenans — — — 74.5 — 74.5
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13) — —_ — — 100.6 100.6
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — - — (58.2) — (58.2)
Repurchases of Common Stock ..........ccvevverreeninnnne (0.9) ©.1) (11.6) (15.7) — 27.4)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 10)............... — — 53 — — 53
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(DOLE 10) ..ttt enannens 0.1 — 0.9) 0.4) — (1.3)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2011 603 §$ 6.0 $ 7439 §$ 1,108.7 $ 2580 $ 2,116.6
NEt INCOME ...ttt nresss s eneraes — — — 103.4 — 1034
Other Comprehensive Income (note 13)........cceveeee. —_ _— - — 54.7 54.7
Cash Dividends to Shareholders ($0.96 per share) .... — — —_— (56.9) — (56.9)
Repurchases of Common Stock ........ocvviveveviereennene. 2.0) 0.2) (24.9) 35.6) — (60.7)
Equity-based Compensation Cost (note 10)............... — — 58 — — 5.8
Equity-based Awards, Net of Shares Exchanged

(note 10) . reeesreeaeseans 0.2 — 0.2 14 — 1.2)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31,2012 ........................ 585 $ 58 $ 7250 $ 1,1182 § 3127 $ 2,161.7

The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES

The Consolidated Financial Statements included herein have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of Kemper Corporation (“Kemper”) and its subsidiaries
(individually and collectively referred to herein as the “Company”). All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated.

As discussed in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
on January 1, 2012, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated
with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts, and retrospectively adjusted its financial statements for prior periods for the
impact of the adoption. On January 1, 2012, the Company also implemented a new model for allocating capital and net
investment income to its business segments. Accordingly, the Company has also reclassified certain amounts in its segment
results in the retrospectively adjusted financial statements to conform to the current presentation. The Company accounts for
Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside, and the Company’s former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as discontinued operations.
See Note 3, “Discontinued Operations,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could materially differ from
those estimates and assumptions.

The fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities, Investments in Equity Securities, Short-term Investments
and Notes Payable are estimated using a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks market price observability. The
carrying amounts reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets approximate fair value for Cash, Short-term Investments and
certain other assets and other liabilities because of their short-term nature. The actual value at which financial instruments could
actually be sold or settled with a willing buyer or seller may differ from estimated fair values depending on a number of factors,
including, but not limited to, current and future economic conditions, the quantity sold or settled, the presence of an active
market and the availability of a willing buyer or seller.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for losses and LAE for property and casualty insurance is inherently
uncertain and the actual ultimate net cost of a claim may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The reserving
process is particularly imprecise for claims involving long-tailed exposures, which may not be discovered or reported until
years after the insurance policy period has ended. Management considers a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, past
claims experience, current claim trends and relevant legal, economic and social conditions, in estimating reserves. A change in
any one or more factors is likely to result in the ultimate net claim cost to differ from the estimated reserve. Changes in such
estimates may be material and would be recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements when such estimates change.

The process of determining whether an asset is impaired or recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows, operating
results and market conditions. Projections are inherently uncertain and, accordingly, actual future cash flows may differ
materially from projected cash flows. As a result, the Company’s assessment of the impairment of long-lived assets is
susceptible to the risk inherent in making such projections.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES
Investments

Investments in Fixed Maturities include bonds, notes and redeemable preferred stocks. Investments in Fixed Maturities are
classified as available for sale and reported at fair value. Net Investment Income, including amortization of purchased
premiums and accretion of market discounts, on Investments in Fixed Maturities is recognized as interest earned using the
effective yield method.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Investments in Equity Securities include common and non-redeemable preferred stocks and other equity interests and are
reported at fair value. Investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks with readily determinable fair values are
classified as available for sale. Dividend income on investments in common and non-redeemable preferred stocks is recognized
on the ex-dividend date. Other equity interests primarily consist of exchange traded funds and partnership interests in limited
liability partnerships in which the Company’s interests are deemed minor. The Company’s share of distributed earnings from
other equity interests is recognized as dividend income when received.

Unrealized appreciation or depreciation, net of applicable deferred income taxes, on fixed maturities and equity securities is
reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income included in Shareholders’ Equity.

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting.

Short-term Investments include fixed maturities that mature within one year from the date of purchase, money market mutual
funds, Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements. Short-term Investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair
value.

Other Investments primarily include loans to policyholders and real estate. Loans to policyholders are carried at unpaid
principal balance. Real estate is carried at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Real estate is depreciated over the estimated
useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of depreciation. Real estate is evaluated for impairment when events or
circumstances indicate the carrying value of the real estate may not be recoverable. An impairment on real estate is recognized
when carrying value exceeds the sum of undiscounted cash flows.

Gains and losses on sales of investments are computed on the specific identification method and are reported in the
Consolidated Statements of Income in the period in which the sales occur. The Company regularly reviews its investment
portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment is other than temporary. Losses are computed
on the specific identification method and reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the period that the decline is
determined to be other than temporary. The portion of an impairment of an investment in a fixed maturity attributed to a credit
loss is reported in Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings in the Consolidated Statement of Income, with the balance of
such impairment reported in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company uses a hierarchal framework which prioritizes and ranks the market price observability used in fair value
measurements. Market price observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability and the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability being measured. Assets and liabilities with readily available, active, quoted
market prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally are deemed to have a higher degree
of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. The Company classifies the inputs
used to measure fair value into one of three levels as follows:

* Level 1 — Quoted prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than Level 1, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active, and model-derived prices whose
inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable; and

* Level 3 — Assets and liabilities whose significant value drivers are unobservable.

Observable inputs are based on market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs are based on the
Company’s market assumptions. Unobservable inputs require significant management judgment or estimation. In some cases,
the inputs used to measure an asset or liability may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those instances, the
Company classifies the fair value measurement using the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
Such determination requires significant management judgment. In accordance with GAAP, the Company is not permitted to
adjust quoted market prices in an active market, even if the Company owns a large investment, the sale of which could -
reasonably impact the quoted price.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)
Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Costs directly associated with the successful acquisition of business, principally commissions and certain premium taxes and
policy issuance costs, are deferred. On January 1, 2012, the Company retrospectively adopted ASU 2010-26, Accounting for
Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts. See discussion below under the caption “Adoption of New
Accounting Standards” regarding the adoption of the new standard. Costs deferred on property and casualty insurance products
and health insurance products are amortized over the period in which premiums are earned. Costs deferred on traditional life
insurance products are primarily amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related policies in proportion to
the ratio of the annual premiums to the total premiums anticipated, which is estimated using the same assumptions used in
calculating policy reserves.

Goodwill

The cost of an acquired entity over the fair value of net assets acquired is reported as Goodwill. Goodwill is not amortized, but
rather is tested annually for recoverability or when certain triggering events require testing. On January 1, 2012, the Company
adopted ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment. See discussion below under the caption “Adoption of New Accounting
Standards” regarding the adoption of the new standard.

Insurance Reserves

Reserves for losses and LAE on property and casualty insurance coverage and health insurance coverage represent the
estimated claim cost and loss adjustment expense necessary to cover the ultimate net cost of investigating and settling all losses
incurred and unpaid. Such estimates are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and estimates for incurred but
not reported losses. These estimates are adjusted in the aggregate for uitimate loss expectations based on historical experience
patterns and current economic trends, with any change in the estimated ultimate liabilities being reported in the Consolidated
Statements of Income in the period of change. Changes in such estimates may be material.

For traditional life insurance products, the reserves for future policy benefits are estimated on the net level premium method
based on rates for expected mortality, lapse rates and interest rates, including provisions for adverse mortality. These
assumptions vary by such characteristics as plan, age at issue and policy duration. Mortality assumptions are based on the
Company’s historical experience and industry standards. Interest rate assumptions principally range from 3% to 7%. Lapse rate
assumptions are based on actual and industry experience.

Other Receivables
Other Receivables primarily include reinsurance recoverables and accrued investment income.
Other Assets

Other Assets primarily include property and equipment, internal use software, insurance licenses acquired in business
combinations, the value of other intangible assets acquired and prepaid expenses. Property and equipment is depreciated over
the useful lives of the assets, generally using the straight-line or double declining balance methods of depreciation depending on
the asset involved. Internal use software is primarily amortized over the useful life of the asset using the straight-line method of
amortization. Insurance licenses acquired in business combinations and other indefinite life intangibles are not amortized, but
rather tested periodically for recoverability.

The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in life insurance in force acquired (“Life VIF”)
based on actuarial estimates of the present value of estimated net cash flows. Life VIF was $46.4 million and $52.1 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Life VIF is amortized using the effective interest method using interest rates
consistent with the rates in the underlying insurance contracts. The Company estimates that it will record Life VIF amortization,
net of interest, of $5.2 million in 2013, $4.6 million in 2014, $4.2 million in 2015, $3.7 million in 2016 and $3.2 million in
2017. The Company evaluates the Life VIF for recoverability annually.
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The Company accounts for the present value of the future profits embedded in Property and Casualty Insurance customer
relationships acquired (“P&C Customer Relationships”) based on the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
customer relationships acquired. P&C Customer Relationships was $18.7 million and $20.8 million at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively. P&C Customer Relationships is amortized using the effective interest method. P&C Customer Relationships
are tested for recoverability using undiscounted projections of future cash flows and written down to estimated fair value if the
carrying value exceeds the sum of such projections of undiscounted cash flows. The Company recorded a loss of $13.5 million
before tax for the year ended December 31, 2011 to write down the carrying value of P&C Customer Relationships related to
the acquisition of Direct Response to its estimated fair value.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities primarily include accrued salaries and commissions, pension benefits, postretirement
medical benefits and accrued taxes, licenses and fees.

Recognition of Earned Premiums and Related Expenses

Property and casualty insurance and health insurance premiums are deferred when written and recognized and earned ratably
over the periods to which the premiums relate. Unearned Premiums represent the portion of the premiums written related to the
unexpired portion of policies in force which has been deferred and is reported as a liability. A premium deficiency reserve is
established if the sum of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses, unamortized deferred policy acquisition costs and
maintenance costs exceeds the related unearned premiums. For each business segment, the analysis is performed at a product
line level, namely automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and other insurance, which is consistent with the manner in
which the Company acquires, services and measures profitability. Anticipated investment income is excluded from such
analysis.

Traditional life insurance premiums are recognized as revenue when due. Policyholders’ benefits are associated with related
premiums to result in recognition of profits over the periods for which the benefits are provided using the net level premium
method.

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses include provisions for future policy benefits under
life and certain accident and health insurance contracts and provisions for reported claims, estimates for claims incurred but not
reported and loss adjustment expenses. Benefit payments in excess of policy account balances are expensed.

Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries reinsure certain risks above certain retention levels with
other insurance enterprises. These reinsurance agreements do not relieve Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries of their legal
obligations to the policyholder. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers for benefits and losses are included in Other Receivables.

Gains related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are deferred and amortized over the life of the underlying reinsured
policies. Losses related to long-duration reinsurance contracts are recognized immediately. Any gain or loss associated with
reinsurance agreements for which Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries have been legally relieved of their obligations to the
policyholder is recognized in the period of relief.

Income Taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred
income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance is maintained for the portion of deferred income tax assets that
the Company does not expect to recover. Increases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as
income tax expense. Decreases in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets are recognized as income tax benefit.
The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period in which
the change is enacted.

The Company reports a liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken, or expected to be
taken, in an income tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in
income tax expense.

71




Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING CHANGES (Continued)

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In October 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-26, Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance
Contracts. The standard is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The
provisions of the standard can be applied either prospectively or retrospectively. The standard amends ASC Topic 944,
Financial Services—Insurance, and modifies the definition of the types of costs incurred by insurance entities that can be
capitalized in the acquisition of new and renewal contracts. The Company adopted the standard on January 1, 2012 and applied
its provisions retrospectively. The adoption of the standard reduced consolidated shareholders’ equity by $99.5 million on
January 1, 2012. The Company’s financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted as if ASU 2010-26 had been adopted

to all prior periods presented.

The following line items presented in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were affected by the

adoption of the new accounting standard:

As Computed
without As Reported
Change in with Change Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Accounting in Accounting Change
Impact on Assets at December 31, 2012:
Deferred Policy AcqUISition COStS..........cceereeieereenrinernsrenereersrerensesesesseressssessons $ 467.7 $ 3034 § (164.3)
TOLAl ASSELS....eveueueeriieiersreieiereireerssesesasessssesesesessnseseseresesssnsssssasssssessassnssseressnnarons 8,173.4 8,009.1 (164.3)
Impact on Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity at December 31, 2012:
Liabilities for INCOME TaXES........cecverrererurirrereieeserneeieisneesersesesesesesessesesesesesensseens $ 80.0 $ 215 $ (58.5)
Total Liabilities.......c.cemeucrerereeerrurireniirneeereecsissesssesesssseresssesassessssesssesesnasssesenens 5,905.9 5,847.4 (58.5)
Retained Earmings.........ccceeveeireeerurnerninininrerceeencenesesesseseseseneesenssssesnssesesessasssens 1,224.0 1,118.2 (105.8)
Total Shareholders” EQUILY.........ccveererueereceereeenteetererescreesessessresressesesssessssesssssoses 2,267.5 2,161.7 (105.8)
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUILY.........c.cvervvevermrcerrrvecrrirereerereeenesenes 8,173.4 8,009.1 (164.3)
As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Reported As Adjusted Change
Impact on Assets at December 31, 2011:
Deferred Policy ACqUiSition COStS........covuirererirreessrrvesrenssssersensesssssessserenssssesenes $ 4485 § 2940 $  (154.5)
Current and Deferred Income Taxes..........c.cccuveervenniensinienniessnnnsnensssssnsesssnees 3.1 6.4 33
TOtAL ASSEES.....cverereueniererenteertetenstesaesesestesesesnssessesesneseressesensessessesessnsensnsesassnsnrnen 8,085.9 7,934.7 (151.2)
Impact on Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity at December 31, 2011:
Liabilities for Income Taxes $ 579 $ 62 $ (51.7)
Total Liabilities. .. ..c.cccetreeieirieiecsiriceetceiseenise s sseseseseste et sebesnssesesnesesnssenrnereas 5,869.8 5,818.1 51.7)
Retained Earmings.........ccoveereereeiererieiereesenseressereressetmsessesessssssssesesssssscssssesssnssons 1,208.2 1,108.7 (99.5)
Total Shareholders’ EqUItYi....ccosrecerrrerereersrsrerereressssesesssssersssesaessressseressonsssserssseses 2,216.1 2,116.6 (99.5)
Total Liabilities and Shareholders” EQUItY........cccocervevermrievernricnenneniessesaescrnsnens 8,085.9 7,934.7 (151.2)
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The following line items in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2012 were affected by the

adoption of the new accounting standard:

Year Ended December 31, 2012

As Computed
without As Reported
Change in with Change Effect of

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS Accounting in Accounting Change
TOTA]l REVENUES ...vvvvveerererierercerireseesisesssseseessssesssessssessssesessasessesesasssssosssessessasestssssasssnes $ 24623 § 24623 $ _
Expenses:

Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses..... 1,582.1 1,582.1 —

INSUTANCe EXPENSES.....cvviiiviriiiieiniiinriinicinries et essesssestosssaosasnesasans 662.5 672.3 9.8

Interest and Other EXPenses ........o.oveevverreeennenerenincntiininsmiscsiniensnienee e, 85.5 85.5 —
TOtAl EXPENSES...cvvcreremcieeniiricstniiisnesinieiesissenistesrss et sbesssasnnssessssasssbessesessssesssnsssans 2,330.1 2,339.9 9.8
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.........cccocvvvivinnniinneininns 132.2 122.4 9.8)
INCOME TaX EXPENSE......cccorirreeeerreeceicrinieisiesiinssesssnessissssie e sssssesesanssssssssssessssens (34.1) (30.6) 35
Income from Continuing OPETations..........cecerereerervererseorssensesssmeneeesseseesmseseensseeseens 98.1 91.8 6.3)
Income from Discontinued Operations .........c.cceeerreererreecerseerennenneneniensusseosesnnennes 11.6 11.6 —
INELINCOINIE ....cceverrerieerecteerieeestereeseestessesstasressssssessesaeseessssasensesressssosssssessnsssesassssessens $ 109.7 1034 6.3)
Income from Continuing Operations per Unrestricted Share: -

BASIC c.ovevinreieeirrei e ettt st sttt e ettt b et sa e b nes $ 1.65 1.55 (0.10)

DAIIEEA oo eseeesesssessesesssesssesssssssessssssesssassesssnsssaseesssssenssssssessssssenes $ 1.65 154 §  (0.11)
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share:

BASIC c.oeveriierererterietres e s e ree e s sase e s e seessesaesre e et st ae e et besbete b s e s b e sbe e s $ 1.85 1.75 (0.10)

DALUEEA oo eereaeesesesseesesssssssssssssssssssssssssenssssssssssssenssssssssssssssssssssssanans $ 1.85 174 $  (0.11)
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The following line items in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2011 were affected by the

adoption of the new accounting standard:

Year Ended December 31, 2011

As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS Reported As Adjusted Change
TOtAl REVEIIUES ...ttt eessessestessesesseesesseseseesssasans ssesssnsssesnsssemmsssenemnsan $ 24950 $ 24950 $ —
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses..... 1,645.7 1,645.7 —
INSUrance EXPENSES.....c.cocueerierueruecireceinieieeneeeisicteressee e saessnesssessesssenessensaseessrnes 669.3 683.6 143
Write-off of Goodwill and Other Intangibles Acquired.............coceeveeeerenrerrcnnee. 135 13.5 —
Interest and OtheT EXPENSES .....ccccovevveeriereriinieinenersteneeseessessseacsesssessessssssessessnens 83.9 83.9 —
TOtA] EXPEINISES....ceueererirrreeierrenirrersteesristrsesseesessessessasessessansessaseesssssessassessessassessasosans 2,412.4 2,426.7 14.3
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes..........ccorverrerverrncrrernnnens 82.6 68.3 (14.3)
INCOME TaX EXPENSE....c..cveuirriieieieiiienienieeeiseseniestesasseesesuessessnssessnssesaessesansessesees 11.7) (6.6) 5.1
Income from Continuing OPErations..........c.ceevirieeereeresereseressssessssesessesessesessssessens 70.9 61.7 9.2)
Income from Discontinued OPErations .............cceecvereerreerrereerreesrvereereerseressaessesseenns 12.8 12.8 —
NELINCOIMIE ...ttt re e ess et resssreessesssaesseensersesessssassensersensones $ 83.7 74.5 9.2)
$ 1.17 1.02 (0.15)
$ 1.17 1.02 (0.15)
$ 1.38 1.23 (0.15)
$ 138 123§ (0.15)
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The following line items in the Consolidated Statement of Income for the year ended December 31, 2010 were affected by the

adoption of the new accounting standard:

Year Ended December 31, 2010

As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS Reported As Adjusted Change
TOLAL REVEIUES. ......ceveereeierieeseereaeeseeessossesssessessessessessssensessessssessensessessessensesessessansoses $ 26425 $ 26425 $ —
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses..... 1,647.2 1,647.2 —
INSUTANCE EXPENSES «...cmuceemnieeriiiicriitricisst st sssses st saessssssssnssesnaneases 675.5 685.9 10.4
Write-off of Goodwill and Other Intangibles Acquired...........cccoovvcernccenciinnennns 14.8 14.8 —
Interest and Other EXPEnses........cccouvviviiinmiinniininniniicencnnssessnseessessenes 68.3 68.3 —
TOtAl EXPENSES ...cuveuieencmiriiniesiiiniiiininiisistets sttt ess st b srsssoranssbessnesesens 2,405.8 2,416.2 10.4
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Loss
OF FOIMET INVESLEE ....vcueveererieerieienreiieiinicenieisiitsesistcnsstsessnessessssssessessessssnsses 236.7 226.3 (10.4)
Income Tax EXPENSE......cccoeemmmiicvirininmiininiiiiniiestiitstsssesssisessess s ssesssessesasssseses (67.5) (63.8) 3.7
Income from Continuing Operations before Equity in Net Loss of Former
IIIVESTEE. .. veererererereereereesseteeste et e st se et se e sas e b s et as s eent e sbestsatstontsasresasRe e asaratn 169.2 162.5 (6.7)
Equity in Net Loss of Former INVEStee ..........covvviinininniniireninninininnisenseeesavens 0.1 0.1 —
Income from Continuing OPErations .........ccceveeeeererirsensrrreerireesessanesnsiesseisesisenens 169.1 162.4 6.7)
Income from Discontinued OPerations..........ccceeeeeerrescenermecorsrnesesesessmsisiessessesnens 15.5 15.5 —
NELINCOME........ocueuevevereieriseressersesesseseesnessessscacssassesssesseseseneereatarsssisssesssenesmisssssssses $ 1846 $ 1779 $ 6.7)
Income from Continuing Operations per Unrestricted Share:
BASIC ...t eceeeetese et tetes et s s s st s et et eb b as e e n s s R e bt e s e s s e s s e s bt esonsanasarentes $ 273 $ 262 $ (0.11)
DHEIEEA e eeooeeeeeoeoeeeeseeseseeessssssssessesssssssssseseeeessseesssssessssssesssssssssssseseeseeseeseeeeeeee $ 273§ 262§ (0.11)
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share:
BaSIC..ouiiireirrreiercereese sttt e s s sR s et R b b e s $ 298 $ 287 $ 0.11)
DAIUEM. oo eesseceessesesseseseseessesesesessssnasssessssssssssssensessssssssssnessssssssssnnns $ 298 § 287 $  (0.11)

The following line items presented in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31,

2012, 2011 and 2010 were affected by the adoption of the new accounting standard:

Year Ended December 31, 2012

As Computed
without As Reported
Change in with Change Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Accounting in Accounting Change
NEL INCOIMIE ....oovereeeeeieerr e eieee e esee s ee e e saesae s besssassasstsnssas st srsssssb s b ebssbesssnens $ 109.7 $ 1034 $ 6.3)
Total Comprehensive INCOME.........coeuevcrurccieminreeinincenireseesesess et ssesssaesronsnes 164.4 158.1 (6.3)

Year Ended December 31, 2011

As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Reported As Adjusted Change
NEEINCOMIE «...vovervrereereirerreressseseesasssssesessssssessssesessassnsssestsesessenssencssesensiessesssossssssenses $ 83.7 §$ 745 $ 9.2)
Total Comprehensive INCOME. ..ottt 184.3 175.1 .2)
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Year Ended December 31, 2010

As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Reported As Adjusted Change
INEE ICOINC ....vvvereveeesnceressesseessesessssesssessesssasessssensesssaessessessesessssssasesssseseesssmseses $ 1846 $ 1779 § 6.7)
Total Comprehensive INCOME........c.uiveriirerierivenieiinnienisieseseeesienessesessorsssssssnersrsssens 283.2 276.5 6.7)

The following line items in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
were affected by the adoption of the new accounting standard:

Year Ended December 31, 2012

As Computed
without As Reported
Change in with Change Effect of

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Accounting in Accounting Change
Impact on Operating Activities:

NEt INCOMEL. ...ttt ettt aestria e s e e s e e s aesenesensesannasassasensssans $ 109.7 $ 1034 $ 6.3)

Increase in Deferred Policy Acquisition COStS.........c...cceeverereereerereerereereseeressesennens 19.2) 9.9) 9.8

Change in INCOME TAXES......c.ccvevvireerieierieietiereeteet et et resae e neenes (11.4) (14.9) 3.5)
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACtiVIties..........cveueeiereerereniesreeieieniieeeeseeseecneeeens 65.7 65.7 —

Year Ended December 31, 2011

As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Reported As Adjusted Change
Impact on Operating Activities:
NEL IICOME......evveriiirereteeetiseerteseseteiassetssetseesesessssetssosssesssssssssssasssesesssnressssansanns $ 83.7 $ 745 $ 9.2)
Increase in Deferred Policy AcquiSition COStS......cccvververernnrirrerneveresereseereerennes (22.1) (7.8) 14.3
Change in INCOME TAXES........cccevvrrerreererreriereereereeesrereeseesesreesersesessessessessensessens 22.3 17.2 5.1
Net Cash Used by Operating ACtIVItIes..........coveervrrerernrereiresieiiesisnresensesesseseessesesns (25.0) (25.0) —
Year Ended December 31, 2010
As Originally Effect of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Reported As Adjusted Change
Impact on Operating Activities:
NEEINCOMIE......ccuiiiieciiiietntee ettt sre st s sn e s s e e sbeea s se e sre e s e asnane $ 1846 $ 1779 $ 6.7)
Increase in Deferred Policy Acquisition COStS.......ccvvveverenieraiessnienneenssenneroennes (15.1) @.7 104
Change in INCOME TAXES........cvceivmrrerrrnrenrinnsnsimrensarteereseressessessssesesaosessesenssresenses 12.4 8.7 3.7
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACtivities.....coecvereinriseererninsionieneereensereneissevsons 58.5 58.5 —

Line items presented in the Investing Activities and Financing Activities sections of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were unaffected by the adoption of the new accounting standard.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-04, Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements. The standard is effective for the first interim or annual period beginning on or after December 15, 2011. The new
standard amends the existing fair value definition and enhances disclosure requirements, The Company adopted the standard

in the first quarter of 2012 and, except for the additional disclosure requirements, the initial application of the standard did

not have an impact on the Company.
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In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-08, Testing Goodwill for Impairment. The standard is effective for the first
interim or annual period beginning on or after December 15, 2011. The standard amends ASC Topic 350, “Intangibles” —
Goodwill and Other, and gives companies the option to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. The Company adopted the standard in the
first quarter of 2012 and the initial application of the standard did not have an impact on the Company.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12, Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of
Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update No. 2011-05. The
standard deferred certain paragraphs in ASU 2011-05, Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of Comprehensive
Income, related to the presentation of reclassification adjustments but also required companies to report comprehensive income
either in a single continuous financial statement or in two separate but consecutive financial statements. The Company adopted
the standard in the first quarter of 2012. Other than the inclusion of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
initial application of the standard did not have an impact on the Company.

Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted

The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There were seven ASUs issued in 2012 that amend the
original text of the ASC. The ASUs are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

NOTE 3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Company accounts for Kemper’s subsidiary, Fireside, and the Company’s former Unitrin Business Insurance operations as
discontinued operations.

Summary financial information included in Income from Discontinued Operations for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 is presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2011 2010

Interest, Loan Fees and Earned DISCOUNLS............ccuivevreverieiniinieieiereesrsseesessesasssesesssssessens S — $ 318 $ 976
Other Automobile Finance REVENUES............cocevvveeriiiierivisieenirerenireee e sesesssessesesesesensssssssns — 14 14
Gain on Sale 0f Loan POTtfOli0s .......cecveeeriniiieneinninrereinnesssesseenesneseeensssssssessonssssosssssnes 12.9 4.5 —
Total Automobile Finance REVENUES........c.ccoveernerrerienrenrenerireseererseseenseeesssessesessssesessenes 12.9 37.7 99.0
Net Investment INCOME........c..covuieirriireeirieeirieesrereessestessnistrcsnesseesseesessessessessessesssessessossens — 0.5 1.9
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVEStMENLS .......cocceurecrererererensenrecrnnseneeneeeesesseresereesesees — 0.4 —
Total Revenues Included in Discontinued Operations...............cceeveverevereienirnereresenesesessenes $ 129 $§ 386 $ 1009

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes:

Fireside:
ReSUILS OF OPEIAtiONS .....ccveveuereeeireeeieieeerresrestessererseareseseessssesessensssessessossssnssesssssaneas $ 02 $ 187 $ 246
Gain on Sale of Loan Portfolios..........ccoemveiieccrneeiiririerese et ssesssenes 12.9 4.5 —
Unitrin Business Insurance:

Change in Estimate of Retained Liabilities Arising from Discontinued Operations .. 6.2 3.7 1.2
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes...........occouvvvivrrvervrernevcneernennns 18.9 19.5 25.8
INCOME TaX EXPEIISE....c.ovcetiiiieiieiceteeetnnesesteseetricsessestesesssesseseseesesasssansessesessensensessnes (7.3) 6.7) (10.3)
Income from Discontinued OPerations.............cecucueererercsenisisenreenieereesesssessessssresessssssesssnes $ 116 $ 128 $§ 155

Income from Discontinued Operations Per Unrestricted Share:

BaSIC ..viveiiuerrierinririeretirrree e te et ese s e e e b e st b e b a s sre s shsae b be b neses s bt antateneaaesesaasenentsassentan $ 020 $§ 021 $ 025
DIAIILEA ...ttt e et e e e e st eeesseesesseasosesssassnsessmseessessssesseesnsenssenssessresensns $ 020 $ 021 $ 0.25
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During the first four months of 2011, all of the Certificates of Deposits that were outstanding at December 31, 2010 either
matured or were redeemed by Fireside in advance of their respective maturity dates. On March 31, 2012, Kemper’s subsidiary,
Fireside, converted from an industrial bank to a general business corporation. Accordingly, Fireside is no longer regulated by
the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation or the California Department of Financial Institutions.

During 2011, Fireside sold its active portfolio of automobile loan receivables at a gain of $4.5 million, net of transaction and
other costs, while retaining its inactive portfolio of loans that had been previously charged-off (the “Inactive Portfolio”). The
Inactive Portfolio was not carried on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet. During 2012, Fireside sold $283 million of
loans in the Inactive Portfolio at a gain of $12.9 million, net of transaction, shutdown and other costs of $13.3 million, of which
$3.7 million was unpaid at December 31, 2012.

In 2008, the Company sold its Unitrin Business Insurance operations. The Company retained Property and Casualty Insurance
Reserves for unpaid insured losses that occurred prior to the date of the sale. Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves reported
in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include $99.2 million and $125.6 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively, for the retained liabilities. In accordance with GAAP, changes in the Company’s estimate of such retained
liabilities after the sale are reported as a separate component of the results of discontinued operations. See Note 6, “Property
and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

NOTE 4. INVESTMENTS

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2012 were:

Amortized Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities ........c..cocvvennen $ 3840 $ 451 $ (0.2) $ 4289
States and Political SUDAIVISIONS ......cueeviviirerereneninnnreciieeecnneirissesessieeeeneens 1,251.0 150.5 0.1) 14014
Corporate Securities:

Bonds and NOTES .....ccvveeeeeeiieeieeeieerreeeeeeeeseee e eseessacsseessatesssessestessnsssssessasasss 2,615.5 3854 (7.5 29934

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ....ovevevveeirrreiiiniinnnciniietinenesneeeiecnnssnens 30.1 25 — 32.6

Mortgage and AsSet-backed.........cocoremriiiinininneiiiisineie e 3.2 1.0 0.3) 3.9
Investments in Fixed Maturities. .......ccocoverirrireeieneninnieenrenesoneniininsnsseseeesnene $42838 $§ 5845 $§ (8.1) $4,860.2

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2012 are $2.3 million of collateralized

debt obligations, $1.3 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities and $0.3 million of other asset-
backed securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2011 were:

Amortized Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and Authorities...........cocovvevennen $ 4394 $ 523 § — $ 4917
States and Political SUBAIVISIONS .........ccoeveeeecrcneeneneerinrcnrene oo sasaesassens 1,705.0 148.4 (0.8) 1,852.6
Corporate Securities:

Bonds aNd NOES .......cuceiirreerrieieneeeiteseseeereeceeseeseeesrresaesenesesssssesssasssrsrsans 2,040.1 311.6 94) 23423

Redeemable Preferred StOCKS ......c.cevveceeereneneniriciniciniene sttt 76.7 5.1 0.1) 81.7

Mortgage and Asset-backed..........occeiriiiniinininiiininee s 4.9 1.0 (0.8) 5.1
Investments in Fixed Maturities.........coeerverierierrrenncerneeenereeeainssnsinsesnesnenns $42661 $ 5184 $ (11.1) $4,7734

Included in the fair value of Mortgage and Asset-backed investments at December 31, 2011 are $2.9 million of collateralized
debt obligations, $1.7 million of non-governmental residential mortgage-backed securities, $0.4 million of other asset-backed
securities and $0.1 million of commercial mortgage-backed securities.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair values of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2012 by
contractual maturity were:

Amortized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Fair Value
DUE 1 ONE YEAT OF LLESS....neeviiriiiireeeteisieeeereesaeessestessessssssessssssessesssessssssessessnsssesssassassassssssassssssssssonssntessass $ 640 $ 658
Due after One Year 10 FIVE YEaIS.....cciviererninenreecritiieniinisesisssssrinsnsssesssssssssssssssossessesassassssessnsssssnses 606.0 639.0
Due after Five YEars t0 TN YEaATIS......ccoverieeerreireerersreontastecsssesseessnississesssessssiessssssssessassssssessssnsssassssssesos 1,139.2 1,251.8
DUE AFLEE TN YEATS. ...veeeeeeeeeeeeeiereesessestesessasseesessesessastensesmessssassensesseestsbsossssssisssssenssssesesnesssssssssssssssassesasses 2,280.9 2,690.2
Asset-backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date..........cooveieininnnininnninnienennsseinn 193.7 213.4
Investments in FIXed MAtULILIES ....cvcvereeververeereereriesseressaesteesimseessessesssssessossesmesssssssesssssssessassasessesssssesnescsses $ 4,283.8 §$ 4,860.2

The expected maturities of the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
issuers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments in Asset-
backed Securities Not Due at a Single Maturity Date at December 31, 2012 consisted of securities issued by the Government
National Mortgage Association with a fair value of $189.3 million, securities issued by the Federal National Mortgage
Association with a fair value of $19.6 million, securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation with a fair
value of $0.6 million and securities of other issuets with a fair value of $3.9 million.

There were no unsettled sales of Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2012. Accrued Expenses and Other
Liabilities at December 31, 2012 includes a payable of $1.5 million for purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities that settled
in January 2013. There were no unsettled sales or purchases of Investments in Fixed Maturities at December 31, 2011.

Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2012
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate..........ccoouvvemiiinriininiinninnnnncnnnienneneee $ 754 8§ 39 § (@01 $ 792

Other INAUSLIIES ...vveveiveerererreestenreseresieeseereteriesossssesisssnesnsssssassensssensssesses 184 38 0.9) 21.3
Common Stocks:

MANUFACHUTING .....vovveececnerererersnsaecssecesensrsrssssesessnssnsanssstasesssassasnsssessssssssess 67.0 20.9 0.4) 87.5

Other INAUSHIES .....eeveevereerieeeesereeesstsieseseresrsites s stesseseessassesnsrsnssasssanses 59.1 8.1 ©.5) 66.7
Other Equity Interests:

Exchange Traded FUnAS.........c.cccoviviiniiiininisiorereminnsnesnsesssssssssenes 119.6 6.3 — 125.9

Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships..........cccocovevrecrercnnnns 123.2 19.5 1.49) 141.3
Investments in EQUILY SECUITLIES. ......covuierirereinirisnietscetsteessn s ennesnesies $ 4627 $ 625 § (33) § 5219
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Gross unrealized gains and gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Equity Securities at December 31, 2011
were:

Gross Unrealized

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.............ccevvivereeeeenenecrieeeeesseeeseessssnenens $ 944 § 1.0 $ @7 $ 867
Other INQUSLIIES .........c.evieerrirereinise ettt esesensenasens 18.0 2.6 0.1) 20.5
Common Stocks:
ManUTACIUTING ......vevevererrereirieeeeceeie et esas e e e e e seaseses e e sees 64.6 18.9 0.1 83.4
Other INAUSHTIES.......c..eovrireeeeeirierneteets sttt sserebeeenanenonane 414 74 (1.8) 47.0
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded FUnds........ccocouoeeeecenieenieeeeeeieeeees e cstseenenes 66.0 0.6 — 66.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships.............cocecvuvvrenennn. 82.9 11.7 (1.5) 93.1
Investments in EQUity SECUTILIES........ccccouvvriererieeeereieneereeeetesiene e sesssaene $ 3673 $ 422 $§ (122) $ 3973

An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2012 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUhOTIHIES ...covveciieeee e $§ 408 $§ (02) $ — — $ 408 $ (0.2)
States and Political Subdivisions..............ccevevennnnn 6.3 ©.1) 0.3 — 6.6 ©.1)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOtes ........ccovvvvverevrnerenrereceennrevenne, 268.5 5.2) 38.1 2.3) 306.6 (7.5)
Redeemable Preferred Stocks ..............cuvneneee. —_ — 04 — 0.4 —
Mortgage and Asset-backed............ccoevvvennneee. —_— — 1.7 0.3) 1.7 0.3)
Total Fixed Maturities.........ccoceeveerrenererereeerenenennns 315.6 5.5 40.5 2.6) 356.1 3.1
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate................... — — 24 ©.1) 24 0.1)
Other IndUSLTIES.......cevveevieereierireeeererereserenes 23 0.8 3.7 ©.1H 6.0 0.9
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing........cceceeeerneeenreveecennereesececennens 6.3 0.4 — — 6.3 0.9
Other Industries..........ccoeueveerereerieecesieeienane, 14.2 0.4 13 ©.1) 15.5 (0.5)
Other Equity Interests:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......ceoeeeeemneeveereeeeeeeeee e, 55 0.5) 6.7 0.9) 12.2 1.4
Total Equity Securities...........coceeureeerrrevrerererirennnne 28.3 2.1) 14.1 (1.2) 424 33)
TOtAl...ceeeeeee et s $ 3439 § (76) $ 546 $ (38 $ 3985 $ (114

The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in fair value of an investment
is other-than-temporary. The portions of the declines in the fair values of investments that are determined to be other-than-temporary
are reported as losses in the Consolidated Statements of Income in the periods when such determinations are made.
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Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company has determined to be temporary at December 31, 2012, were $8.1
million, of which $2.6 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
Included in the preceding table under the heading “Less Than 12 Months” there were unrealized losses of $0.3 million at
December 31, 2012 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings. There were no
unrealized losses at December 31, 2012 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in
the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Included in the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or
Longer” are unrealized losses of $0.1 million at December 31, 2012 related to securities for which the Company has previously
recognized foreign currency losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $3.8 million and
below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $4.3 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed
maturities at December 31, 2012. Unrealized losses for below-investment-grade fixed maturities included unrealized losses
totaling $0.1 million for one issuer that the Company previously recognized foreign currency impairment losses in earnings. For
the other remaining below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss
amount, on average, was less than 3% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2012, the Company did
not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be required to sell
these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the Company’s evaluation at
December 31, 2012 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of the issuers of the
investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would not be required
to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of
the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the evaluation date.

For equity securities, the Company considers various factors when determining whether a decline in the fair value is other than
temporary, including, but not limited to:

» The financial condition and prospects of the issuer;

» The length of time and magnitude of the unrealized loss;

» The volatility of the investment;

» Analyst recommendations and near term price targets;

* Opinions of the Company’s external investment managers;

« Market liquidity;

» Debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks and issuer ratings; and

+ The Company’s intentions to sell or ability to hold the investments until recovery.

The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in preferred and common stocks at December 31, 2012
were temporary based on the relative short length and magnitude of the losses and overall market volatility. The Company’s
investments in other equity interests include investments in limited liability partnerships that primarily invest in distressed debt,
mezzanine debt and secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that its
investments in the limited liability partnerships also exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company
considers when evaluating these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors in the preceding paragraph,
the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities were temporary at
December 31, 2012.
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An aging of unrealized losses on the Company’s Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities at December 31, 2011 is
presented below:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULhOTIEIES. ...t seres i $ 13 § — 8 — 3 — 8 13 8§ —
States and Political Subdivisions...........ccccceeuruenene. 2.0 — 12.0 0.8) 14.0 0.8)
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and NOLES........cceveerererrerreneerneenrenreneraens 169.6 6.1 74.7 4.3) 2443 .4
Redeemable Preferred Stocks..........cceevieenncnnn 0.6 0.1) 0.1 — 0.7 (0.1)
Mortgage and Asset-backed ............ccceeverennnnene — — 2.7 (0.8) 2.7 (0.8)
Total Fixed Maturities. .........cccocvueeerimescrnescneceeecnens 173.5 5.2) 89.5 5.9) 263.0 (11.1)
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................... 54.9 @.1 2.2 (0.6) 57.1 @7
Other INndUSLIIES ......covevviinerenenrinrncceinesiereereeee 1.8 — 2.8 0.1) 4.6 0.1)
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .......ccoeeceervereeernereerresreervenesienenens 1.5 0.1 0.1 — 1.6 0.1)
Other INQUSLEIES ......oveeeecrererrecrnirereeereeereeeene 10.7 (1.8) — — 10.7 (1.8)
Other Equity Interests:
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships......coceeeeereneenncnenreceenencnnennenes 17.1 (1.5) — — 17.1 (1.5)
Total Equity Securities.........coccocecerenienvrenincencneneenee. 86.0 (11.5) 5.1 ©0.7) 91.1 (12.2)
TOtAL .ttt e $ 2595 § (167) % 946 $ (66) $ 3541 $ (23.3)

Unrealized losses on fixed maturities, which the Company determined to be temporary at December 31, 2011, were $11.1
million, of which $5.9 million was related to fixed maturities that were in an unrealized loss position for 12 months or longer.
Unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in
the preceding table under either the heading “Less Than 12 Months” were insignificant. There were no unrealized losses at
December 31, 2011 related to securities for which the Company has recognized credit losses in earnings in the preceding table
under the heading “12 Months or Longer.” Included in the preceding table under the heading “12 Months or Longer” are
unrealized losses of $0.2 million at December 31, 2011 related to securities for which the Company has recognized foreign
currency losses in earnings. Investment-grade fixed maturity investments comprised $5.7 million and below-investment-grade
fixed maturity investments comprised $5.4 million of the unrealized losses on investments in fixed maturities at December 31,
2011. Unrealized losses for below-investment-grade fixed maturities included unrealized losses totaling $0.2 million for one
issuer that the Company recognized foreign currency impairment losses in earnings for the year ended December 31, 2011. For
the other remaining below-investment-grade fixed maturity investments in an unrealized loss position, the unrealized loss
amount, on average, was less than 4% of the amortized cost basis of the investment. At December 31, 2011, the Company did
not have the intent to sell these investments and it was not more likely than not that the Company would be required to sell
these investments before recovery of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity. Based on the Company’s evaluation at
December 31, 2011 of the prospects of the issuers, including, but not limited to, the credit ratings of the issuers of the
investments in the fixed maturities, and the Company’s intention to not sell and its determination that it would not be required
to sell before recovery of the amortized cost of such investments, the Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of
the Company’s investments in fixed maturities presented in the preceding table were temporary at the evaluation date.

The vast majority of the Company’s preferred stocks in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2011 were perpetual
preferred stocks of financial institutions. The Company considers the debt-like characteristics of perpetual preferred stocks
along with issuer ratings when evaluating impairment. All such preferred stocks paid dividends at the stated dividend rate
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during the twelve-month period preceding the evaluation date. The Company concluded that the declines in the fair values of
these perpetual preferred stocks were temporary in nature, largely driven by market conditions, and since the Company intends
to hold the securities until recovery, these investments were not considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired at

December 31, 2011. The Company concluded that the unrealized losses on its investments in common stocks at December 31,
2011 were temporary based on the relative short length and magnitude of the losses. The Company’s investments in other
equity interests include investments in limited liability partnerships that primarily invest in distressed debt, mezzanine debt and
secondary transactions. By the nature of their underlying investments, the Company believes that its investments in the limited
liability partnerships also exhibit debt-like characteristics which, among other factors, the Company considers when evaluating
these investments for impairment. Based on evaluations of the factors described above that the Company considers when
determining whether a decline in the fair value of an investment in equity securities is other than temporary, the Company
concluded that the declines in the fair values of the Company’s investments in equity securities were temporary at

December 31, 2011.

The following table sets forth the pre-tax amount of OTTI credit losses, recognized in Retained Earnings for Investments in
Fixed Maturities held by the Company as of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, for which a portion of the OTTI loss has been
recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, and the corresponding changes in such amounts.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Balance at Beginning Of YEaL........ccvceeveirrererreieseineinesreseessiecsiessensesessessessensessesssssssessessans $ 39 $ 24 % 3.7
Additions for Previously Unrecognized OTTI Credit LOSSES.....cccevrueueuruenenenrererereeenenereseennes 1.1 22 5.3
Increases to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit LOSSES......c.coceciiicniircennininesiinenicnnans — — 0.4
Reductions to Previously Recognized OTTI Credit LOSSES ...ccoeevevererierreerirecieeneneercseeenes 0.1) 0.7) 1.7
Reductions due to Intent to Sell INVESIMENLS........cccovevirriirtrirtee sttt seeeeans —_ — ¢.1)
Reductions for Investments Sold During Period ...........ccoeeieevrconnieicniccneniesineceseneenene 0.3) — 0.2)
Balance at EOA 0f YEaL.....cococueierivicernerineesassssssssssssesssesnssssssassssssessssssssssssonsesssssesssses $ 4.6 $ 39 § 2.4

Equity Method Limited Liability Investments include investments in limited liability investment companies and limited
partnerships in which the Company’s interests are not deemed minor and are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. The Company’s investments in Equity Method Limited Liability Investments are generally of a passive nature in
that the Company does not take an active role in the management of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments. In 2012,
aggregate investment income (losses) from Equity Method Limited Liability Investments exceeded 10% of the Company’s
pretax consolidated net income. Accordingly, the Company is disclosing aggregated summarized financial data for its Equity
Method Limited Liability Investments. Such aggregated summarized financial data does not represent the Company’s
proportionate share of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investment assets or earnings. Aggregate total assets of the Equity
Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested totaled $3,643.6 million and $4,086.9 million as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Aggregate total liabilities of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in
which the Company invested totaled $421.0 million and $440.2 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Aggregate net income (loss) of the Equity Method Limited Liability Investments in which the Company invested totaled $134.6
million, $(13.8) million and $401.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. As of, and for
the year ended, December 31, 2012, the aggregated summarized financial data reflects the latest available financial information.
The Company’s maximum exposure to loss at December 31, 2012 is limited to the total carrying value of $253.0 million. In
addition, the Company had outstanding commitments totaling approximately $52.8 million to fund Equity Method Limited
Liability Investments at December 31, 2012.
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The carrying values of the Company’s Other Investments at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Loans to Policyholders at Unpaid Principal..........cccoveiirevicininenininieiesenesesseresesssesssssssesessssssssesssessseses $ 2663 $ 2539
Real Estate at Depreciated Cost........vvvvrrrrrerrinnrnisiimnenisneens o 226.2 2394
TTAAING SECUTILIES ....ooveveieierirteerieerrseesteeiaseertsestesestebersesasansesbensstosssensaissesessesansesessssessesesaneeseressessssenes 45 44
OBHET ... vieveeeeeeereeee et etcee et sss et et bs e st s e st e bebe s e e st st st e sesase st et b st stesebesane e sasasbeaas et sasbesssanansnesassssensssnsnns 0.5 0.6
TOLAL cuceeveriteiree e etreeses e sses e e seae e besse st sn st s sessae b s babebs b e betses b s b bebe ket sb s et sassseR SR e RSSO RO R e SR eReRSanr bR na e s e resenns $ 4975 $ 4983
NOTE 5. GOODWILL

Goodwill balances by business segment at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011

KeMPEL PIETEITEA .....v.vevceeieeeieereieicriresesierseetesseeerseseesessassssssessssestessasassssssssssssssssssessnssassssssesesssssssssesesens $ 496 $ 496
KEMPET SPECIAILY ..c.vvrverereeiieceinrereiireseeeeestsee st essessssesessesansasstsssossssesssnsesssntosesnessessensessosesssssessesseneen 42.8 42.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE ......ccceeruemerireinieitiitnreceniecenesceeee e saeseesssessbenssnsssensassnsssssessssesssssassssssssssons 2194 2194
TOUAL... vttt ittt e e tet et et e e et bt easteba st eb et e sebes et s etesasessabesas et et et esasease s et enere e s e e et erenanesnaeaeseseserin $ 3118 § 3118

The Company tests goodwill for recoverability on an annual basis at the beginning of the first quarter and, if circumstances or
events indicate that the fair value of a reporting unit may have declined below its carrying value, such tests are performed at
intervening interim periods. Accordingly, the Company tested goodwill associated with each of its reporting units for
recoverability on January 1, 2012 and January 1, 2011. However, no goodwill was associated with, and, accordingly, no testing
was required for the Kemper Direct segment. The Company principally used projections of discounted future cash flows to
estimate the fair values of the reporting units tested. For each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the
carrying value of the reporting unit, and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was recoverable at the
aforementioned dates tested.

Goodwill activity by business segment for the year ended December 31, 2010 is presented below.

Balance at Write-off Balance at

Beginning of End of
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS of Year Goodwill Other Year
Kemper PIEeferred ........ccoivuvnreeerininnererenrennesissesesssesssasesonsnssssessnsssessesssssssssassens $ 496 $ — 3 — $ 496
Kemper SPECIalty ......coevveverririerrrinenriniesenisiesesnesesssseseesssssssssssssossesssssossssessssss 42.8 — — 42.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .......c.coecieereienreineniiseaniiieinenesiseesasssesnessesssssesssnens 2394 (14.8) (5.2) 2194
TOtAL ettt e e sr et b ts st r bbb s sa s s sbebe b s ae bt srees $ 3318 $§ (148 $§ (52) § 3118

The Company tested goodwill associated with each of its reporting units for recoverability on January 1, 2010. The quoted
value of Kemper’s common stock was significantly below the book value per share of the Company at September 30, 2010 and
December 31, 2010. Accordingly, the Company also tested goodwill associated with each of its reporting units for
recoverability at these intervening interim dates. However, no goodwill was associated with, and, accordingly, no testing was
required for the Kemper Direct segment at any of the aforementioned dates in 2010. The Company principally used projections
of discounted future cash flows to estimate the fair values of the reporting units tested. Except for the Company’s Reserve
National reporting unit, for each reporting unit tested, the estimated fair value exceeded the carrying value of the reporting unit
at January 1, 2010 and each of the aforementioned dates, and the Company concluded that the associated goodwill was
recoverable at each aforementioned date tested.
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With respect to the Company’s Reserve National reporting unit, the Company evaluated the goodwill associated with it at four
different evaluation dates - January 1, 2010, March 31, 2010, June 30, 2010 and September 30, 2010. The company concluded
that the associated goodwill was recoverable at each of the first three aforementioned dates tested. With respect to the
September 30, 2010 test date, the Company determined that the goodwill was not recoverable and wrote off the entire $14.8
million of goodwill associated with Reserve National.

NOTE 6. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE RESERVES

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserve activity for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Beginning Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves:
Gross of Reinsurance at Beginning of Year..........cccuineinesnnnnnnsesescssensnniins $1,029.1 $1,1187 $1,211.3
Less Reinsurance Recoverables and Indemnification at Beginning of Year...........c.c...... 745 78.1 774
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at
Beginning of Year.......ooveveiineniniiicntiiiiiiniiisi st 954.6 1,040.6 1,133.9
Incurred Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
ContinUing OPETALONS ......cevrirruemscrireisiieresssssatsnssssssesiersesesss st isss st sssanas 1,253.1 1,338.5 1,310.5
Prior Years:
Continuing OPETALIONS ........cvvemvirimiurissiersiesstsissssssionsessitsseet sttt s st sasess (25.2) (35.0) (22.0)
Discontinued OPEIAtiONS.........ccvcvrisiririnesrrsiesssnnssssrsresssssses sttt sssas e sssessnas 6.3) 1.9 2.9
Total Incurred Losses and LAE related to Prior Years........cocvverennnenieisencnencicsiinns 3L5) (33.1) (24.9)
Total Incurred 10SSeS aNd LAE......coouivmriivrereerrrireeesseeseesesssssessssrisstosseesssnsssssssasssesssassessons 1,221.6 1,305.4 1,285.6
Paid Losses and LAE related to:
Current Year:
Contining OPETALIONS ......covvcriririririrererirereririesrsisisssssisrsesssesionstsssistiiissssssssstessssssens 8014 887.7 825.7
Prior Years:
Continuing Operations........... ettt aa st AR b et e n e e be bRt R bbb 451.2 472.9 510.8
Discontinued OPEIAtiONS..........cevuiermiiiereresessrssissssssssssssssessasesessssssssssisissssssetssnens 19.2 30.8 42.4
Total Paid Losses and LAE related to Prior Years.......ccoouveeeeiiiennenininennnesceescsnsnnniiias 470.4 503.7 553.2
Total Paid LoSSES aNd LAE ......cooicrieieeciereeneeecscintisininisnessssesssesinsssssssassassesssssssssssssssessosses 1,271.8 1,391.4 1,378.9
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Net of Reinsurance and Indemnification at
B OF Y AL reeeneeeeeeeeeereeesesseeessesessesesssesessessessnsonssssssssassnsassessantenssnsessassssssssassnesssassaranens 904.4 954.6 1,040.6
Plus Reinsurance and Indemnification Recoverables at End of Year........ccococeceeiccnnnnnnnnn. 66.2 74.5 78.1
Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves, Gross of Reinsurance at End of Year............... $ 9706 $1,029.1 $1,118.7

Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves are estimated based on historical experience patterns and current economic trends.
Actual loss experience and loss trends are likely to differ from these historical experience patterns and economic conditions.
Loss experience and loss trends emerge over several years from the dates of loss inception. The Company monitors such
emerging loss trends on a quarterly basis. Changes in such estimates are included in the Consolidated Statements of Income in
the period of change.

In 2012, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $31.5 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $12.6 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $18.9 million. Personal
automobile insurance loss and LAE reserves developed adversely by $2.2 million, homeowners insurance loss and LAE
reserves developed favorably by $11.7 million and other personal lines loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.1
million. Personal automobile loss and LAE reserves developed adversely for the 2011 accident year and developed favorably
for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years. Homeowners insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily
to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than expected for the 2011, 2010 and 2009 accident years and favorable
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development on certain catastrophes. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves included favorable development of
$12.6 million from continuing operations and $6.3 million from discontinued operations. Commercial lines insurance losses
and LAE reserves developed favorably from continuing operations due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss
patterns than expected for the four most recent accident years. Commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed
favorably from discontinued operations due primarily to the commutation of certain insurance liabilities that had been
previously assumed.

In 2011, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $33.1 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $29.3 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.8 million. Personal lines
insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than
expected for the 2010, 2009 and 2008 accident years and favorable development on certain catastrophes.

In 2010, the Company reduced its property and casualty insurance reserves by $24.9 million to recognize favorable
development of losses and LAE from prior accident years. Personal lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably
by $21.6 million and commercial lines insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably by $3.3 million. Personal lines
insurance loss and LAE reserves developed favorably due primarily to the emergence of more favorable loss patterns than
expected for the 2009, 2007 and 2006 accident years, partially offset by adverse development on certain hurricanes.

The Company cannot predict whether loss and LAE reserves will develop favorably or unfavorably from the amounts reported
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. The Company believes that any such development will not have a material
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position, but could have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial results for a given period.

Reinsurance and indemnification recoverables on property and casualty insurance reserves were $66.2 million and $74.5
million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These recoverables are concentrated with several reinsurers, the vast
majority of which are highly rated by one or more of the principal investor and/or insurance company rating agencies. While
most of these recoverables were unsecured at December 31, 2012 and 2011, the agreements with the reinsurers generally
provide for some form of collateralization upon the occurrence of certain events. The largest recoverable on property and
casualty insurance is from General Security National Insurance Company (“GSNIC™), a subsidiary of SCOR and is unsecured.
In 2002, the Company acquired two insurance companies from SCOR. Under the agreement governing the acquisition of these
insurance companies, SCOR and/or GSNIC are responsible for all liabilities of these insurance companies incurred prior to the
acquisition. Recoverables at December 31, 2012 and 2011 included $16.9 million and $21.8 million, respectively, from GSNIC.

NOTE 7. NOTES PAYABLE

Total debt outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Senior Notes at Amortized Cost: ‘
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 .....coovvroeuirieieieiioreeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e s sesesesesessesesesessseesssseesrenssseos $ 3573 § 356.8
6.00% Senior Notes due NOVEmMDBEr 30, 2015........coevmeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseseressesesesesesesessssssesss s sesssses 248.6 248.2
Mortgage Note Payable at AMOITZEA COSL......ivurereiririrriieereieeetiieteeseeeeesrseeeerseeeseeeasssseresssssasssssssens 5.5 5.6
Notes Payable at AMOTTZEA COSt......vvvmurrrireririreeieeeecesetstsisieeessisceeseseseseessssssssssssssessssssessssssesessssssees $ 6114 $ 6106
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Interest Expense, including facility fees, accretion of discount and write-off of unamortized credit agreement issuance costs for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement .......ooveveviveneeierennscsssescnicseneeennnsscessnnns $ 19 $ 20 §$ 2.0
Senior Notes Payable:

6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 ..ottt sessasnens 22.1 22.0 22.0

6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .....coovivverevieiienicieicenereeeeeieeeeeeecneeeessees 154 154 1.6

4.875% Senior Notes due November 1, 2010.......ccioiirieerireeeeereerreeeeneccenneenseennne — — 84
Mortgage Note Payable........ccovemmicvceiniiiiiiininerse i e 0.4 0.4 0.4
Interest Expense before Capitalization of INterest..........ovvevvveniininninniccnensnsesiseseeces 39.8 39.8 34.4
Capitalization Of INLEIEST.......c.coouriviiiiiicieree sttt (1.8) 2.5) (1.8)
Total INEETESt EXPENSE......cvueeeeererereiemeeecirescsiieisissessassesenssssass s nsssssssssasasssssssassssssnsssessssseses $ 380 $ 373 § 326

Interest Paid on Notes Payable, including facility fees, for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Notes Payable under Revolving Credit AGreement...........cocvviieeiineiivesnisniennensseesnnns $ 23 $ 12 8§ 1.2
Senior Notes Payable: '
6.00% Senior Notes due May 15, 2017 .......ccccovvmivniiiininirereieerisene e 21.6 21.6 21.6
6.00% Senior Notes due November 30, 2015 .........oovriieiiieeienceeciceniieisnee e 15.0 15.2 —
4.875% Sehior Notes due November 1, 2010......cccoveeieririicrinnierinnenresreseseessesessneennans — — 9.8
Mortgage Note Payable.........ccoocueeercueercieeiniiiii s sss s s sssssseas s 04 0.4 0.4
TOtal INETESt PAIG......cveveveviceeeirieteeeieeesrt st cee e st ere e seseseeesesasbsbsess s sss e s resssnass $ 393 $ 384 § 330

On March 7, 2012, Kemper entered into the 2016 Credit Agreement, a four-year, $325.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit
agreement, expiring March 7, 2016, with a group of financial institutions. The 2016 Credit Agreement replaced Kemper’s
Former Credit Agreement, a $245.0 million, unsecured, revolving credit agreement which was scheduled to expire on October
30, 2012 and was terminated on March 7, 2012. There were no borrowings under the Former Credit Agreement at either
December 31, 2011 or at its termination. The 2016 Credit Agreement provides for fixed and floating rate advances for periods
up to six months at various interest rates. The 2016 Credit Agreement contains various financial covenants, including limits on
total debt to total capitalization, consolidated net worth and minimum risk-based capital ratios for Kemper’s largest insurance
subsidiaries, United Insurance and Trinity. Proceeds from advances under the 2016 Credit Agreement may be used for general
corporate purposes, including repayment of existing indebtedness. There were no outstanding borrowings under the 2016 Credit
Agreement at December 31, 2012, and accordingly, $325.0 million was available for future borrowings. »

During the third quarter of 2011, Kemper borrowed $95.0 million under the Former Credit Agreement. The proceeds from the
borrowing were nsed, in part, to make a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to fully fund the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan under the funding requirements of Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA”).
The contribution consisted of cash of $32.2 million and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec common stock purchased from Kemper’s
subsidiary, Trinity (see Note 17, “Pension Benefits,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Kemper repaid $30.0 million
and $65.0 million of the borrowing in September and October of 2011, respectively. Kemper had no outstanding advances
under the Former Credit Agreement at December 31, 2011.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, Kemper borrowed $140 million under the Former Credit Agreement. As discussed below, Kemper
used a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of its 2015 Senior Notes to repay in full the borrowings under the Former
Credit Agreement.

In 2010, Kemper issued $250 million of its 6.00% senior notes due November 30, 2015. The 2015 Senior Notes are unsecured
and may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices.
Kemper issued the 2015 Senior Notes for proceeds of $247.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.21%.
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Kemper used a portion of the proceeds from the sale of the 2015 Senior Notes to repay borrowings of $140 million under the
Former Credit Agreement and to make a capital contribution of $60 million to its subsidiary, United Insurance.

In 2007, Kemper issued $360 million of its 6.00% senior notes due May 15, 2017. The 2017 Senior Notes are unsecured and
may be redeemed in whole at any time or in part from time to time at Kemper’s option at specified redemption prices. Kemper
issued the 2017 Senior Notes for proceeds of $354.8 million, net of transaction costs, for an effective yield of 6.19%.

In 2003, Kemper issued $200 million of its 4.875% senior notes due November 1, 2010 for an effective yield of 5.04%. The
2010 Senior Notes were repaid and retired on November 1, 2010.

NOTE 8. LEASES

The Company leases certain office space under non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to
ten years, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. The Company also leases certain equipment under
non-cancelable operating leases, with initial terms typically ranging from one to five years. Minimum rent is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Net rental expense for operating leases for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Minimum Rental EXPENSE .........cccvtvirniieinrernreisssiesersssesessssssesssessesssssessssssssessssssssseasssessens $ 332 § 315 $§ 356
Less Sublease Rental INCOME .........cccvureuereeueirisierrriteceeisesnseeevesersesseresosessssssssssssssssssssanes 2.5) 2.nH 2.4
Net Rental EXPENSE .....cccoeueureeriinieeeieieteetttsiesnsecensseessesesessssas sssesesesssesssssssssssssssssssosssssenes $ 307 $§ 294 $ 332

Future minimum lease payments under capital and operating leases at December 31, 2012 were:

Capital Operating

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Leases Leases
2003 bbb ekt m e R AR R e bbb e bbb et sas et asaeaebeseaetenenenestres $ 19 § 283
2004ttt et st st et et s bR e Sttt e R e nr et ke s se s s sateseneaseereeserens 14 23.5
2005 et et ettt e st saea s e e e e e Re e s e e s e e aeasasetbeseaeasarasesene 1.0 14.5
2016 eereiic ettt et s b bbbt et bbb a e s teRebeseRereserenasesanaras 1.0 12.2
2017 et bbb st ek b et se b bR n e e ss et e seRebeberebebenrasesasanaes 0.2 10.1
2018 aNd THETEATIEL .......coveiiecicircirieiriri sttt e s et bbb s ae s ses s st sensssesesssnsssasasans — 7.8
Total FUtUre PAYMENLS. ... .cccovieirrerirteieeirceietecsereee st stese e st essesenesene e be s sassesesebe s es st s sessssasasossnssenensaes $ 55 § 964
1855 IMPULEA INLETESE ........eeeerinirerereriiernreniereeesiseseeseresesasse e sresesesessasnsesessnsssasesesssessassenssessssssssssssssons (0.6)

Present Value of Minimum Capital Lease PAYMENLS.........c..ececvriviererrnrereieressiessssssesesseesseresesesessansssnes $ 4.9

The total of minimum rentals to be received in the future under non-cancelable subleases was $6.5 million at December 31,
2012.

NOTE 9. SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Kemper is authorized to issue 20 million shares of $0.10 par value preferred stock and 100 million shares of $0.10 par value
common stock. No preferred shares were issued or outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011. There were 58,454,390 shares
and 60,248,582 shares of common stock outstanding at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Common stock outstanding
included 313,424 shares and 289,659 shares at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, that have been issued, subject to
certain vesting and other requirements, in connection with the Company’s long-term equity compensation plans. See Note 10,
“Long-Term Equity-based Compensation,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements for an additional discussion of the
restrictions and vesting provisions.

On August 4, 2004, the Board of Directors declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right for each
outstanding share of common stock of Kemper, pursuant to a shareholder rights plan. The rights have a term of 10 years. The
description and terms of the rights are set forth in a rights agreement between Kemper and Computershare Trust Company,
N.A,, as rights agent.
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Kemper repurchased and retired 2.0 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an aggregate cost of
$60.7 million in 2012, Kemper repurchased and retired 0.9 million shares of its common stock in open market transactions at an
aggregate cost of $27.4 million in 2011. Kemper repurchased and retired 1.4 million shares of its common stock in open market
transactions at an aggregate cost of $34.4 million in 2010.

Various state insurance laws restrict the amount that an insurance subsidiary may pay in the form of dividends, loans or
advances without the prior approval of regulatory authorities. Also, that portion of an insurance subsidiary’s net equity which
results from differences between statutory insurance accounting practices and GAAP would not be available for cash dividends,
loans or advances. Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries paid dividends of $95.0 million in cash to Kemper in 2012. In 2013,
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries would be able to pay $179 million in dividends to Kemper without prior regulatory approval.
Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries had net assets of $2.5 billion, determined in accordance with GAAP, that were restricted from
payment to Kemper without prior regulatory approval at December 31, 2012.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are required to file financial statements prepared on the basis of statutory insurance accounting
practices which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s life
and health insurance subsidiaries was $457.8 million and $475.1 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Statutory net income for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries was $102.0 million, $116.2 million and $80.4
million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus for the Company’s
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was $844.8 million and $829.6 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Statutory net income for the Company’s property and casualty insurance subsidiaries was $40.6 million, $30.6
million and $117.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Statutory capital and surplus
and statutory net income exclude Fireside and parent company operations.

Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries are also required to hold minimum levels of statutory capital and surplus to satisfy regulatory
requirements, The minimum statutory capital and surplus, or company action level risk-based capital (“RBC"), necessary to
satisfy regulatory requirements for the Company’s life and health insurance subsidiaries collectively was $118.6 million at
December 31, 2012. The minimum statutory capital and surplus necessary to satisfy regulatory requirements for the Company’s
property and casualty insurance subsidiaries collectively was $300.0 million at December 31, 2012. Company action level RBC
is the level at which a company is required to file a corrective action plan with its regulators and is equal to 200% of the
authorized control level RBC.

In 2012, Kemper paid dividends of $56.9 million to its shareholders. Except for certain financial covenants under the 2016
Credit Agreement, there are no restrictions on Kemper’s ability to pay dividends to its shareholders. Certain financial
covenants, namely minimum net worth and a maximum debt to total capitalization ratio, under the 2016 Credit Agreement
could limit the amount of dividends that Kemper may pay to shareholders at December 31, 2012. Kemper had the ability to pay
without restrictions $332 million in dividends to its shareholders and still be in compliance with all financial covenants under
the 2016 Credit Agreement at December 31, 2012.

NOTE 10. LONG-TERM EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

On May 4, 2011, Kemper’s shareholders approved the 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan (“Omnibus Plan”). The Omnibus Plan
replaced the Company’s previous employee stock option plans, director stock option plan and restricted stock plan (collectively,
the “Prior Plans™). Awards previously granted under the Prior Plans remain outstanding in accordance with their original terms.
Beginning May 4, 2011, equity-based compensation awards may only be granted under the Omnibus Plan. A maximum number
of 10,000,000 shares of Kemper common stock may be issued under the Omnibus Plan (the “Share Authorization™). As of
December 31, 2012, there were 9,278,531 common shares available for future grants under the Omnibus Plan, of which
561,225 shares were reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of outstanding
performance-based restricted stock awards.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to-one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards” will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.
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Outstanding awards under the Omnibus Plan and Prior Plans at December 31, 2012 consisted of stand-alone stock options,
tandem stock option and stock appreciation rights, time-vested restricted stock and performance-based restricted stock.
Recipients of restricted stock are entitled to full dividend and voting rights on the same basis as all other outstanding shares of
Kemper common stock, and all awards are subject to forfeiture until certain restrictions have lapsed.

For equity-based compensation awards with a graded vesting schedule, the Company recognizes compensation expense on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately-vesting portion of the awards as if each award were, in
substance, multiple awards. Compensation expense is recognized only for those awards expected to vest, with forfeitures
estimated at the date of grant based on the Company’s historical experience and future expectations. Equity-based
compensation expense was $5.8 million, $5.3 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Total unamortized compensation expense related to nonvested awards at December 31, 2012 was $5.3 million,
which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, or the Board’s authorized designee, has sole discretion to determine
the persons to whom awards under the Omnibus Plan are granted, and the material terms of the awards. For stock options,
material terms include the number of shares covered by such options and the exercise price, vesting and expiration dates of such
options. Options are non-transferable and are exercisable in installments. Options to purchase Kemper’s common stock are
granted at prices equal to the fair value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant. Prior to 2003, only non-qualified stock
options had been granted. Beginning in 2003, options granted to employees were coupled with tandem stock appreciation rights
(“SARs”), settled in Kemper common stock. Employee options generally vest over a period of three and one-half years and
expire ten years from the date of grant. Each new member of the Board of Directors who is not employed by the Company
(“Non-Employee Director”) receives an initial option to purchase 4,000 shares of Kemper common stock immediately upon
becoming a director. Thereafter, on the date of each annual meeting of Kemper’s shareholders, eligible Non-Employee
Directors automatically receive annual grants of options to purchase 4,000 shares of common stock for so long as they remain
eligible directors. Such options granted to Non-Employee Directors are exercisable one year from the date of grant at an
exercise price equal to the fair market value of Kemper’s common stock on the date of grant and expire 10 years from the date
of grant.

All of the Company’s prior stock option plans included provisions, subject to certain limitations, to automatically grant
restorative, or reload stock options (“Restorative Options™), to replace shares of previously owned Kemper common stock that
an exercising option holder surrenders, either actually or constructively, to satisfy the exercise price and/or tax withholding
obligations relating to the exercise. The restorative feature was eliminated prospectively for original option awards granted on
or after February 3, 2009. Restorative Options may still be granted, subject to certain limitations, in connection with the
exercise of original options granted before February 3, 2009. Restorative Options are subject to the same terms and conditions
as the original options, including the expiration date, except that the exercise price is equal to the fair value of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant of a Restorative Option and cannot be exercised until six months after the date of grant. The grant of a
Restorative Option does not result in an increase in the total number of shares and options held by an employee, but changes the
mix of the two.

The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of each option on the date of grant. The
expected terms of options are developed by considering the Company’s historical share option exercise experience,
demographic profiles, historical share retention practices of employees and assumptions about their propensity for early
exercise in the future. Further, the Company aggregates individual awards into relatively homogenous groups that exhibit
similar exercise behavior to obtain a more refined estimate of the expected term of options. Expected volatility is estimated
using weekly historical volatility. The Company believes that historical volatility is currently the best estimate of expected
volatility. For original option grants made in 2010, the dividend yield assumed was the annualized continuous dividend yield on
Kemper common stock on the date of grant. The dividend yield in 2012 and 2011 was calculated by taking the natural
logarithm of the annualized yield divided by the Kemper common stock price on the date of grant. The Company believes that
basing the dividend yield on the current annualized yield is likely to be more consistent with the actual yield during the
expected life of the option. The risk free interest rate was the yield on the grant date of U.S. Treasury zero coupon issues with a
maturity comparable to the expected term of the option.
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The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes pricing model for options granted during the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, were as follows:

2012 2011 2010

RANGE OF VALUATION ASSUMPTIONS

Expected Volatility ..o, 29.36% -~ 53.84% 41.26% - 55.16% 40.55% - 50.51%
Risk Free Interest Rate .......cccoviveiiiiininiiiccinnnnnnns 016 - 1.26 130 - 2.87 170 - 3.20
Expected Dividend Yield...........coccooviiininiiiinniinnnnn 292 - 326 315 - 338 325 - 3.58
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE EXPECTED LIFE IN YEARS

Employee Grants........ccoovcveveeiviinnsinnneneneniinninnens 1 -7 35 -7 4 -7
Director Grants............ccccoeeeriiiincninicsinincinscinnnn, 6 6 6

Option and SAR activity for the year ended December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average Aggregate
Shares Average Remaining Intrinsic
Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Value

Options Per Share ($) Life (in Years) ($ In Millions)
Outstanding at Beginning of the Year.........ccccoecvvcenerenccenennes 3,632,398 $ 40.70
GIanted.......cooveeeueeieeeeiereereeeeerereeteesrreeteesrae e e eessesaesssesnseesanees 265,451 29.81
EXEICISEA...ueeueiiirreiieciireiect ettt eses e st san et e sbesse e aesaessensnens (222,949) 16.32
Forfeited or EXPired........cccoevereeciireneinecneereentsccsenneceseenens (482,846) 47.10
Outstanding at December 31, 2012.......ccccccemivieinrcnnncccrninenes 3,192,054 40.53 397 § 3.0
Vested and Expected to Vest at December 31, 2012................. 3,162,634 $ 40.64 393 § 29
Exercisable at December 31, 2012.......ccccooiiciecireeeciececeieane 2,736,989 $ 42.69 324 $ 2.0

The weighted-average grant-date fair values of options granted during 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $9.40, $9.11 and $7.60,
respectively. Total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $3.0 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Cash received from option exercises was $1.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.5
million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Total tax benefits realized for tax deductions from
option exercises were $1.0 million, $0.1 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Information pertaining to options outstanding at December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-
Weighted- Average Weighted-
Shares Average Remaining Shares Average

Subject to Exercise Price Contractual Subject to Exercise Price

Range of Exercise Prices ($) Options Per Share ($) Life (in Years) Options Per Share ($)
$ 10,00 - § 15.00 38,000 $ 13.55 6.09 38,000 $ 13.55
15.01 - 20.00 8,000 16.48 6.35 8,000 16.48
2001 - 25.00 293,750 23.75 7.28 161,312 23.64
25.01 - 30.00 584,750 28.64 8.16 266,123 28.20
30.01 - 35.00 6,614 31.92 5.84 2,614 31.18
35.01 - 40.00 340,577 37.25 4.81 340,577 37.25
40.01 - 45.00 400,084 43.56 1.46 400,084 43.56
45.01 - 50.00 1,185,747 48.62 242 1,185,747 48.62
50.01 - 55.00 334,532 50.85 1.03 334,532 50.85
10.00 - 55.00 3,192,054 40.53 3.97 2,736,989 42.69
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The grant-date fair values of time-based restricted stock awards are determined using the closing price of Kemper common
stock on the date of grant. Activity related to nonvested time-based restricted stock for the year ended December 31, 2012 was
as follows:

‘Weighted-
Average

Time-Based Grant-Date

Restricted Fair Value

Shares Per Share
Nonvested Balance at Beginning of the Year.........c.coccvciniiniiiiniiniincnecescseeeesesaeenes 116,784 $§  23.33
GIANTEA ...ttt et s st e s e er et sseeateseesssaeat b esesasersesssbeassesentansentassessetenssnsenseseenennes 72,125 29.90
VESEEA.......oieeeeeeeiieeectecceeeerteete e eeteeeneesseeeseeasseseeernees st sasesess s e sesansssesnseaseseannsetseeabeeasaaesraassseassaesaeesaannen (42,824) 2441
FOTTRILEA ...ttt et e et et essr e et b e e bt eeabe s sas e baesssbasaseasasensassssanssaasssanseesssasnsasasaesssannsean (19,736) 26.70
Nonvested Balance at ENd OF PErIOM.......coovvivemviiiiiiiiriiiinieioierrecniriesseessssesssseesssssessssssessssesssssesssane 126,349 §$ 26.19

Prior to February 3, 2009, only awards of time-vested restricted stock had been granted. Beginning on February 3, 2009, in
addition to time-vested restricted stock granted to certain employees and officers, the Company began awarding performance-
based restricted stock to certain officers and employees. The initial number of shares awarded to each participant of a
performance-based restricted stock award represents the shares that would vest if the performance goals were achieved at the
“target” performance level. The final payout of these awards will be determined based on Kemper’s total shareholder return
over a three-year performance period relative to a peer group comprised of all the companies in the S&P Supercomposite
Insurance Index.

Performance-based restricted stock awards are earned over a three-year performance period. If, at the end of the performance
period, the Company’s relative performance:

«  exceeds the “target” performance level, additional shares of stock will be issued to the award recipient;

+ s below the “target” performance level, only a portion of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally
issued to the award recipient will vest; or

+ is below a “minimum” performance level, none of the shares of performance-based restricted stock originally issued to
the award recipient will vest.

The grant date fair values of the performance-based restricted stock awards are determined using the Monte Carlo simulation
method. The Monte Carlo simulation model produces a risk-neutral simulation of the daily returns on the common stock of
Kemper and each of the other companies included in the Peer Group. Returns generated by the simulation depend on the risk-
free interest rate used and the volatilities of, and the correlation between, these stocks. The model simulates stock prices and
dividend payouts to the end of the three-year performance period. Total shareholder returns are generated for each of these
stocks based on the simulated prices and dividend payouts. The total shareholder returns are then ranked, and Kemper’s
simulated ranking is converted to a payout percentage based on the terms of the performance-based restricted stock awards. The
. payout percentage is applied to the simulated stock price at the end of the performance period, reinvested dividends are added
back, and the total is discounted to the valuation date at the risk-free rate. This process is repeated approximately ten thousand
times, and the grant date fair value is equal to the average of the results from these trials.

Activity related to nonvested performance-based restricted stock for the year ended December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Weighted-
Performance Average
-Based Grant-Date
Restricted Fair Value
Shares Per Share
Nonvested Balance at Beginning 0f the Year..........cccocvevivninrininnncniineecnneeseciesesessescssenene 172,875 $ 29.86
GIANLEA o.o.vviievieeieeeeieeceteeesee e sttt essbeeesssesesbsessbaseesbassssssseassseessasesesssnarssrasersresessrassrsessesssseersssessasesnssnens 68,575 36.65
VESEEA ....veievriierreeitieeireeeerreeetteseaesestaeeassee e st e aeesesesasees saraessebnae e s st aessatesnsntessssaeesaseasssseesnsnsessnnaassnsaesssts (51,596) 14.04
FOITRILEA ...veveeieieciee ettt sttt sb et et e st s e e bt s e st e sbessesseeseesaeeneesaeentessassnosnasrassnessesasanns 2,779) 31.11
Nonvested Balance at ENd Of PErIOQ ..........oovvvviirmeieiieriiecrtenireenreesseeesesssessssessssessesssesssesssesssassssenss 187,075 $ 36.70
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The number of additional shares that would be granted if the Company were to meet or exceed the maximum performance
levels related to the outstanding performance-based shares for the 2012 and 2011 three-year performance periods was 68,275
common shares and 63,725 common shares, respectively, (as “full value awards,” the equivalent of 204,825 shares and 191,175
shares, respectively, under the Share Authorization) at December 31, 2012. For the 2010 three-year performance period, the
Company exceeded target performance levels with a payout percentage of 114%. Accordingly, an additional 6,996 shares of
stock were issued to award recipients on February 2, 2013. For the 2009 three-year performance period, the Company exceeded
target performance levels with a payout percentage of 183%. Accordingly, an additional 40,727 shares of stock were issued to
award recipients on January 31, 2012 (the “2009 Additional Shares”).

The total fair value of restricted stock, including the 2009 Additional Shares, that vested during the year ended December 31,
2012 was $4.0 million and the tax benefits for tax deductions realized from the vesting on such restricted stock was $1.4
million. The total fair value of restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31, 2011 was $1.4 million and the
tax benefits for tax deductions realized from the vesting on such restricted stock was $0.5 million. The total fair value of
restricted stock that vested during the year ended December 31, 2010 was $2.2 million and the tax benefits for tax deductions
realized from the vesting on such restricted stock was $0.8 million.

NOTE 11. RESTRUCTURING EXPENSES

Activity related to restructuring costs from continuing operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 is
presented below:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Liability at the Beginning of Year:

Employee Termination COSES.........cccuereerresemiscusisissiseissrsesssss seseesessssnsssssssesssssssssssssass $ 07 $ 06 $ 1.6

Early Lease Termination COstS........cocociiiiierinninmnesissnssssssisiessssssssssssssassssmssssessssesssssessas 1.0 0.1 0.6

Other ASSOCIALEA COSLS.cuvevereererinircrtricseerireesesiisesitsaetssestsssises srssessssesnssesnarersssessssessanasanes — — —
Liability at the Beginning of Year ..ottt 1.7 0.7 22
Expenses Incurred:

Employee Termination COStS.......covvermiiiimrirtiierirninsensisessisssnssssrorssssesssssessissssesesssens 51 2.1 1.1

Early Lease TEIMINAHON COSES.....vvvvvereerrveresssresarsssesessessssesssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssessssassans 2.0 14 —

Other ASSOCIALEd COSES....c..cceueenercriririetiirinitsinesiieee st re e be e be e eb s s s asassesas 0.1 0.1 —
Total EXpenses INCUITEd ..ottt st ssnssesesssensssasssssess 7.2 3.6 1.1
Payments of:

Employee Termination COStS.........couriuiriiinmnmimsssmsississiseiniersisssssstsissssesssssesssssssssassess 3.2 20 2.1

Early Lease Termination COStS........ccocueiinimimsuiriiieriniiniininisneieisiensssessassessssssssssssenns 0.7 0.5 0.5

Other ASSOCIATEA COSS...veurrererirereerrrecrerrrereserisesisisrsssireesinss s msssseronssesessssssssssssessssnnsss 0.1 0.1 —
TOLAl PAYMENLS ....cococeeereeeniviisisisiiiesesisisissssisssssissssssssessssssssssssbasasssssssssssssasssssasssssassassssssssns 4.0 2.6 2.6
Liability at End of Year:

Employee Termination COStS.........coeuiiiniiinisisisiicsierenesersasseseseesssssssssssesssssssasesssssasaes 2.6 0.7 0.6

Early Lease Termination COStS........cccuvueririniemnicreniineiiiisrennsssieinssssssssssssssssessssessosesnss 23 1.0 0.1

Other ASSOCIAtEA COSES.......eveeeeeercrerirernrsriiereriiietsiieis et s s e s s s s ebens — — —
Liability at ENA 0 YEaT.....coccrerereeecceceerrerseeresereessessissssesssssetssssassssssssesssssssssnssssssnssesas $ 49 $ 1.7 § 0.7
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NOTE 12. INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE

The Company’s awards of restricted common stock contain a right to receive non-forfeitable dividends and participate in the
undistributed earnings with‘common shareholders. Accordingly, the Company is required to apply the two-class method of

computing basic and diluted earnings per share.

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator used in the calculation of Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per
Unrestricted Share and Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share for the years ended December 31,

2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

2012 2011 2010

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
Income from Continuing OPErations ...........ccoeueveriereveerererrrreeereeereseseeseesesessesessssessssssessseons $ 918 § 617 $§ 1624
Less Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Restricted Shares.............ccoeunee.... 0.5 03 0.8
Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares.............ccccceuvveennen... 91.3 61.4 161.6
Dilutive Effect on Income of Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares....... — — —
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Attributed to Unrestricted Shares................... $ 913 § 614 $ 1616
SHARES IN THOUSANDS
Weighted-Average Unrestricted Shares Outstanding.............cceevevvvvernererereererseresreresnssenesnenens 58,857.3 60,262.6 61,681.2
Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent SHares ..........c.coovversreereneenresseeniniereresenenes 141.7 103.9 85.7
Weighted-Average Unrestricted Shares and Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming

DIIILON. ...ttt et ese e seaesea e ssesessssssassssesess st ssassossnssanssssassssanssnsnsasesasesns 58,999.0 60,366.5 61,766.9
PER UNRESTRICTED SHARE IN WHOLE DOLLARS
Basic Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share............cocecernrenrnrerrenens $ 155 $ 102 $§ 262
Diluted Income from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted Share.............cocoeveeereenrnnee. $ 154 $§ 102 $§ 262

The dilutive effect of Investee Equivalent Shares on Income from Continuing Operations was not significant for the year ended

December 31, 2010.

Options outstanding to purchase 2.8 million, 3.3 million and 4.1 million shares of Kemper common stock were excluded from
the computation of Kemper Equity-based Compensation Equivalent Shares and Weighted-Average Common Shares and
Equivalent Shares Outstanding Assuming Dilution for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively,

because the exercise price exceeded the average market price.
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NOTE 13. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of Other Comprehensive Income Before Income Taxes for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes:
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Period Before Reclassification
AQJUSTMENL «....coeverereeeeecceeetrereeeseeserrseeseseseesnsesaesssesestsnsssssnssssssserssssssssrstssessssnssrstonsns $ 1579 $ 2321 $§ 1958
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........cocrviiiiiininnnee. (61.2) (30.9) (18.8)
Unrealized Holding Gains (LLOSSES).......ccourrevieriniirenininvenininnnniiimisesssssessesssssssssssas 96.7 201.2 177.0
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Period Before
Reclassification AdjUStMENL.........c.coveeniieeriiniiiiinniiie s sressens 1.6 0.4 (2.6)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........cccovveerivcrnnncncne — — 2.1
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments..........coveeviiinniiininineeeenens 1.6 04 (0.5)
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income of Former Investee..........ccovvivnniiririiniinnnne. — — 2.9
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeat.......c.ccocovviivins 294) (53.9) 27.9)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS .......cccvvvmerccrnnicesenisenins 16.2 8.7 1.2
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs ... 13.2) 45.2) 26.7)
Other Comprehensive Income Before Income Taxes........ocovvverimninininiiicninnnicresnsnenenns $ 81 § 1564 $ 1527

The components of Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (Expense) for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and

2010 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Period Before
Reclassification AQJUSIMENL.........ceeeverrernerisisnreressessessmeseesssssesssssesessesessssescsesssseseses $ (559 $ (825 $ (69.2)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income.........ccoeviiiiinnnnn 215 10.9 6.6
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES ..........ccevviniieininiciinicnniniinceinnnssennennes (344 (71.6) (62.6)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments Arising During the Period Before
Reclassification AdJUSLMENL.........ceeevuerereecrerisiniiisiniierctnscirres e essssssesssasanns 0.6) 0.1) 1.0
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income..........cccoeverrereruercnnenee — — (0.8)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustment...........cccccveecviiinnicninicniininnne. 0.6) 0.1) 0.2
Equity in Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss of Former Investee ..o — — (1.0)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year.........cccococeevvecnnene. 10.3 19.0 9.8
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs.......c..coeevceriveccnrenceernennanes 5.7 3.1) 0.5)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........cceeirrerernniesnincscensnnseenisessessnsseens 4.6 15.9 9.3
Other Comprehensive Income Tax Benefit (EXPense) ..., $ (304) § (55.8) § (54.1)
The components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:
DOLLARS INMILLIONS 2012 2011
Unrealized Gains on Investments, Net of Income Taxes:
Available for Sale Fixed Maturities with Portion of OTTI Recognized in Earnings.........c..cocvevueuennae $ 14 § 1.5
Other Net Unrealized Gains on INVESIMENLS........c.ccceevreerenininiminiiionniiniiieiinesinssseseessssenns 408.1 345.7
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments, Net 0f INCOme Taxes.......ccovvveerinrrenrnercorieneseseneeecssrencens 0.7 (0.3)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs, Net of Income Taxes.......cccovveeicriinnsnsieesisenennnns 97.5) (88.9)
Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME .......co.cceverrrririeieruererienteieceneecessennsseressesensssesessessesesessessscnes $ 3127 § 2580



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 14. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

Net Investment Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Investment Income:
Interest and Dividends on Fixed Maturities .........cccouevveieereeriecisreresesieseeceereseeseeneseans $ 2461 $ 2466 $§ 2438
Dividends on EQUILY SECUTILIES .....c.cccevrrrerurmeercrtririerccnnreesereseneesesecessesessencscssseesesensnens 25.7 252 16.0
ShOrt-term INVESIMENLS ........cccocverirreeierrerierenrerieriesserissesersssessessessessossessesessnsssesessessssssnes 0.2 0.1 03
Loans to POLICYNOIAETS ........ccovuevreeeeeiricineen sttt see st seseesees st st sssess et esesesnens 18.9 17.7 16.5
REAL ESTALE....cvueeeecreeneceirreceerreneeeenseesnesessssseseersesesseesessossessesssonsessssessessasesnsssassessessonsons 274 26.0 27.1
Equity Method Limited Liability InVestments ..........cccovvinvierivmnneeirenincenneeececrennenes 9.3 9.6 48.8
OBRET ...ttt st sr et e et s st s s e s s e e s s e sa e s aasse st e s anesressnesensanes 0.1 0.3 —
Total Investment INCOME.........o.oieiieirieicieiecreete et tere e sa s sse e s ssnene 3277 325.5 3525
Investment Expenses:
REAL ESTALE....c.couiiiieiiiiiciiniecicinicenresieestet e conseostsaestsrsosnanessssissssssesesssesessessessassossons 26.1 25.9 25.7
Other Investment EXPENSES ........cccovniriniineninincistieeiensssiseestseseeenssnsesessssosessseseesens 5.7 1.6 1.1
Total Investment EXPENSES .......c.cvviiviniriiiiiininniiiiiinssiisssesssiessssssssssssssssessses 31.8 27.5 26.8
Net Investment INCOME.........oceviererninerienieeriesiesenreessesessesssersnsessessssssssassssssssseessessessasssesses $ 2959 $§ 298.0 $ 3257

Other Receivables includes accrued investment income of $72.4 million and $76.1 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,

respectively.

The components of Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Fixed Maturities:

GAINS O SAIES......cecvrrerereerieererrseerreresteseestesessessessossesmastesesseseesnessssassessessesessassessassersans $ 569 § 142 $§ 215

LLOSSES 01 SALES .....eeerveceereieeieeecnteieesreeee sttt eestsre e st consee st se e s e e e e e et e eseees 0.1) 0.1) 0.1
Equity Securities:

GAINS O SALES......ooieeeeiecietieiiereeiertreeeeeesteste e aeteesesse st essebaesaersassesaessesaesassessensaneesessessessans 8.3 34.0 11.7

LOSSES 01 SALES .....ecutruecierenreriiiereeseissesseessesensossssssessssssessessssnssossssssssssssssssssssossossrnesensnss (0.2) (13.5) —
Former Investee — Intermec:

GAINS ON SALES....cvicteeriiiieiee et s see s e ssre e s saessessbessnesbe s sassesssassesstassesanensenaes — — 0.8
Real Estate:

GAINS ON SALES....ceeuieirieerereieriesesreeesessersesseseesessersessereesasstesesssessossesaesessssressessoaesassossossons 0.2 0.1 8.2
Other Investments:

GAINS ON SALES....cceeoerceicreieereeeerrrsaseriasseeeseestrsssseseeasssesaessentesesacestasessessassenansessassesnons — — 0.1

LLOSSES ONl SALES ....cvvrvrrereerrereererenrirerssesersesesrerrsrsrrsesserassesessesesnssesernesesnsressenesensassrerasassesns — (0.1) 0.1)

Trading Securities Net Gains (LOSSES) ...eveerererreereriarrereesaeserrerssessessssessassessossosessassassassessone 0.3 (0.9) 0.5
Net Realized Gains on Sales 0f INVESHMENTS...........c.ceeeerererieririeereierieieereesieseressesessesssessssenes $ 654 $§ 337 $§ 426

During the second and third quarters of 2010, Trinity sold a total of 1.5 million shares of Intermec common stock. As a result of
these sales, the Company’s approximate voting percentage in Intermec was reduced to 18% at September 30, 2010. As a result
of this change in ownership and other qualitative factors, the Company determined that its investment in the common stock of
Intermec no longer qualified for the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, Equity in Net Loss of Former Investee for the
year ended December 31, 2010 relates to the Company’s proportionate share of results that Intermec reported for a portion of

the year. During the fourth quarter of 2010, Trinity sold an additional 0.3 million shares of Intermec common stock. Net

Realized Gains on Sales of Investments includes gains of $5.4 million arising from the sales of Intermec common stock for the
year ended December 31, 2010, of which $0.8 million has been reported as net realized gains on sales of investee and $4.6
million has been included in net realized gains on sales of equity securities. In 2011, the Company disposed of its remaining
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holdings of 10.9 million shares of Intermec common stock, of which 3.6 million shares were sold in open market transactions at
a gain of $8.3 million and 7.3 million shares were contributed to Company’s pension plan at a loss of $7.0 million. See Note 17,
“Pension Benefits,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The components of Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income for the -
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
FIXEA MALUITEIES. ....ecveverveirrarereresesessieccieesecaeeseenaesseseaese e sesessssenesenssseastsssssssstssassetsnssassessesens $ 19s%$ (228 1449
EQUILY SECUIITIES......veueuerreeerrmceeresiisisniressnisisises s e renensb s st snas s st sts e s s b s s st assssassconssedon 1.9 (1.9) 2.1
REALESTALE ...veeiiieeieetieeeeresee st esee st et e sse e seeesa et e sas et e sses st e saebasses saaeshesasesbesbnssasbessnsanssbasnsansn 3.1 (7.2) —
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........coccuuvvvvrimiserreremssseisssesossisinsssssssssesens $ (69 $ (113) $ (16.5)

NOTE 15. INSURANCE EXPENSES

Insurance Expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
COTIMISSIONS w..vvveveieieererirereeerererssesessssesssssssesesesesssstssssstsssssssssssessnssesassesssesessssssnsssssssnsssssess $ 3661 $ 3635 § 3588
GENETAL EXPEISES ..vvveerveeieniiricritesesinnesisissisteesssiistebessssesessassss ssssssnssssessssassssassssesessessssssnns 262.9 270.1 273.5
Taxes, Licenses and Fees. 44.7 46.4 473
Total CoStS INCUITE .....coveeeenieeiieecteteceee ettt et a e e s s eaeas 673.7 680.0 679.6
Policy Acquisition Costs:

DELEITEA ..ot te et ba e ee et e et st bs e et st s s ne st st st sa e b s bs b s e e e r s (266.4) (268.5) (276.9)

ATNOTHZE .....veveveveeeeriieeerieieeeteeesseeenss s sen e sasssaestabat s st sssbs s b en s nsasn st saeaseneresess 257.0 260.7 272.2
Net Policy Acquisition Costs Deferred..........ovvnniiniiiviinivieiee s 4 (7.8) @.7
Life VIF and P&C Customer Relationships AMOrtized..........ccoeevvvvmmviniiiiencrinnnennsennnsennnens 8.0 114 11.0
INSUTANCE EXPENSES ..cevvenerenceenirinrcenicesiiniieesiassisssrisssnesssssssssestssessessinssessesensesssessasssssansens $ 6723 $ 683.6 $ 6859

Commissions for servicing policies are expensed as incurred, rather than deferred and amortized.
NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES

Current and Deferred Income Tax Assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
CUITENE TNCOME TAX ASSELS ....veveererenreresiererisiessessasrsessesestssrsasseseseesessenessesessessnsssesmasesssssessssssessssesssossossss $ 54 % 2.5
Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS.......iviicieeeieeererineeereetereseetesseseseeesssesenssseessosssstessessssesssesresssessrnesssesssssssss 6.6 10.7
Valuation Allowance for State INCOME TAXES......ccoivererrrierereneereeeetineeseereeensessesessnescssssasssessessssassesassenns (6.6) (6.8)
Current and Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS.....ccviveereererrerermrereneenineestsissesesseneesssissesnssssesssssessssssssssssssssesns $ 54 § 6.4

The components of Liabilities for Income Taxes at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011

Deferred INCome Tax LIGbilities .......ccecvrieeeriienenenstesteeninieesninseesisecssseneesseetsssessessecssssresssssnssssssessessaes $ 151 § —
Unrecognized Tax Benefits........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiie et sssn e s 6.4 6.2
Liabilities fOr INCOIME TAXES....cveererrrreererenirererasesessessessesteessnesesseestssseressosmsrnesssrsssessassenssssssenssssssssesssneses $ 215 § 6.2
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NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the Company’s Net Deferred Income Tax Assets
(Liabilities) at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Deferred Income Tax Assets:
INSUIANCE RESEIVES .....c.erueuiiiieirieinteienteect e stsesseress s e st st st s sbebessesessessasessssesesesbasessosensesensensnsssossnosense $ 793 $§ 768
Unearned Premitm RESETVES ....c.coceuiuieireireiecesiecststitnieraesrerearssassstessesessesessssasessesessasessssessssesessesesss 44.1 45.0
Tax Capitalization of Policy Acquisition Costs.............. et e 73.6 73.5
Net Operating Loss CarryfOrward............covecveveieinrieireseccreeseereeresteeecnesresneeessssessssessessessssensansens 100.7 98.1
Payroll and Employee Benefit ACCIUALS.........cccceveiieveriereneineriienserermeemssesantesessssssssssesssesaessssesssssseses 79.9 67.8
OBRET ...ttt ettt ettt e et se e e e s et et e e e e bas s bes s et assabase et essebesaebessrresersesannnenrereanans 10.7 11.7
Total Deferred INCOME TaX ASSELS.........cccvvrreverrerrerrreriereisteseesseresaeseseeseressesssseresesssessssesesnesesessessrsenens 388.3 372.9
Deferred Income Tax Liabilities:
Deferred Policy ACQUISIHION COSES.....ccccerirurireriereeiesenesesessessrionsssessssessssessesessesessssessssessssssensssesassesesne 104.1 102.9
Value of Insurance in Force Acquired, 25.2 25.9
INVESHMENLS........eveuiiiiieteiei ettt sttt e e st st et sta s sbe b basaesassasensssensssssensnsenarsesnsnesenns 208.4 182.3
DEPIECIADIE ASSELS .....cverviuecirieirieeisieirt et etestetest et esseeseb e s ressesassessssesessesessesentsssnsesensessasasessasesssersnne 29.3 22.5
GOOAWILL A1 LICENSES ...vvvivverreeerreiiererreeestestetestesteeaseeseeseersessessossessesaesessessensassensessesssssesessensensenssses 23.5 22.9
OBRET ...ttt ettt et et et et ebe e s e ses b s tsa st etessebesssaesesbessrnessaresenreneasetensssnnesanseserenss 6.3 5.7
Total Deferred Income Tax Liabilities..........ccoceveeveereeeerenrnnn. 396.8 362.2
Valuation Allowance for State Income Taxes 6.6 6.8
Net Deferred Income Tax Assets (Li@bilities).......cceerrrerrreiericieniirieiicresnseissesessesersesessssesssesssrsasssssssnssenns $ (@51 $ 3.9

Deferred Income Tax Assets include Net Operating Loss (“NOL”) Carryforwards of $100.7 million and $98.1 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, which include federal net operating loss carryforwards of $94.4 million and $91.2
million, respectively, and state net operating loss carryforwards of $6.3 million and $6.9 million, respectively. The expiration of
the federal net operating loss carryforwards and the related deferred income tax assets is presented below by year of expiration.

NOL Deferred Tax

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Carryforwards Asset
Expiring in:

2017 through 2020 .......cceueimiiririiercreereaeireseres st seesestae e sesssessssssesesessssssasesensesesnsssesssssssnnes $ 109.0 $ 38.2

2021 through 2025 ......ouiviieirieiciitrte et e e ssse s e e e e st ete e e sassesese e ssasesasesasareasesenons 53.6 18.8

2026 through 2030 ........ceeeieiieeieeeerteseeeeeeste et e s e sreresbee s sssesaessesnessessss e sessessensensosensesonsenne 321 11.2

2031 through 2032 .....cccovriirereerierrrreraerinteeesesestssesessssessssssssssesessssssssesasssssesesesesesssesesasens 74.9 26.2
TOAl AL YEAIS.....coviuiiiimiiiciitee ettt ettt ettt et sae sttt sea st sse s se e et esaobanessesensosansesanessanaass $ 269.6 $ 94.4

Except for the net operating losses scheduled to expire in 2031 through 2032, all of the federal net operating loss carryforwards
were acquired in connection with business acquisitions made in prior years and are subject to annual usage limitations under the
Internal Revenue Code. The Company expects to fully utilize these federal net operating loss carryforwards. The state net
operating loss carryforwards relate to Fireside, the majority of which are scheduled to expire in 2029. Deferred tax asset
valuation allowances of $6.6 million and $6.8 million were required at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and relate to
state income taxes for Fireside.

Income taxes paid were $52.2 million in 2012. Income taxes refunded, net of income tax paid of $57.1 million, were $4.1
million in 2011, and income taxes paid were $65.1 million in 2010, respectively.

The Company has not provided Federal income taxes on $14.7 million of Mutual Savings Life’s income earned prior to 1984
which is not subject to income taxes under certain circumstances. Federal income taxes of $5.1 million would be paid on such
income if it is distributed to shareholders in the future or if it does not continue to meet certain limitations.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010 is as follows:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Balance at Beginning of Year........cccococvninivininninnienninscnninsinnns $ 62 $ 78 $ 11.7
Reductions for Tax Positions of Current Period — (1.8) Qa.n
Additions for Tax Positions of Prior YEars.......cocccceveerererrmniesmiinicnininniisisinnssssessessensesnens 0.2 0.2 26.6
Reduction for Expiration of Federal Statute of Limitations........c..coecovevvvviverensicininieninnennnn. — — (28.8)
Balance at ENd Of YEaT.......ccvririiereicerencnieectniecnseneenensssessssssesassssressssssmsassessesssseressssassans $ 64 $ 62 $ 7.8

The statute of limitations related to Kemper and its eligible subsidiaries’ consolidated Federal income tax returns is closed for
all tax years up to and including 2006. The expiration of the statute of limitations related to the various state income tax returns
that Kemper and its subsidiaries file varies by state.

During the first quarter of 2012, the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) began an audit of the Company’s 2009 and 2010 federal
income tax returns. The Company reported a capital loss and a net operating loss in its 2009 federal income tax return and a net
operating loss in its 2010 federal income tax return. The Company has carried these losses back to earlier tax years. Even
though the Company has already received the refunds from carrying these losses back to such earlier tax years, approval by the
Joint Committee on Taxation (“JCT?) is still required by law. The JCT has requested that the IRS perform an audit of these
years before approving the refunds. In connection with the audit, the Company extended the federal statute of limitations
related to the 2007 and 2008 tax years until December 31, 2013. The Company does not anticipate a material modification to
the filed returns or the refunds that were received.

During the third quarter of 2012, the Illinois Department of Revenue began an audit of the 2009 and 2010 tax years. The
Company does not anticipate a material modification to the filed returns.

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are tax positions of $3.5 million,
$3.7 million and $5.7 million, respectively, for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is
uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred income tax accounting, other than for
interest and penalties, the disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the effective income tax rate but
would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. The liability
for unrecognized tax benefits included accrued interest of $2.9 million, $2.5 million and $2.1 million at December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively. Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2012 includes interest expense of $0.4 million
related to unrecognized tax benefits for prior years. Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes interest
expense of $0.4 million related to unrecognized tax benefits for prior years. Tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2010
includes a net interest benefit of $2.1 million, which is comprised of an interest benefit of $2.8 million resulting from the
expiration of the statutes of limitations referred to above, and interest expense of $0.7 million on unrecognized tax benefits for
prior years.

The components of Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Current Income Tax EXPENSe .....c.covviivirnicimniincniiniiiiciieneincsresassses e s sss e ssessesans $ @433)$§ 434§ (426
Deferred Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE).....c.ccccerrerriivininiiiiniiniiinienecnssesssssssssssesssssnsinens 129 35.2 25.1)
Unrecognized Tax Benefit..........ccccocvvmiiiiiniiiiiniiiiineieressste s senens ©.2) 1.6 39
INCOME TAX EXPENSE....cvurvecerercreiieereeeeseemmeseesestsesesisstssssss e ses st be s st sae bbb rs s nsnsaanes $ (306) $ (6.6) $ (63.8)



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
NOTE 16. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

A reconciliation of the Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense and Rate to the Company’s Effective Income Tax Expense and
Rate from Continuing Operations for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

2012 2011 2010

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Statutory Federal Income Tax Expense...................... $ 428 350% $ (23.9) 350% $ (79.3) 35.0%
Tax-exempt Income and Dividends Received

DEdUCHION .....cueeeerereienecireveere et s senees 139 11.4) 17.7 (26.0) 19.0 84)
State INCOMeE TaXES....c.cocvueerieerrrrirerirrenrrirenresernesesnnns 0.8) 0.7 (1.0) 1.5 (1.0) 0.4
Nondeductible GoodWill............cccoururirrenerrrrnerrenenens — — — — 5.2) 23
Other, Net.....c.coucveerrirereeerininecseeserese e 0.9) 0.7 0.6 (1.0) 2.7 (1.1)
Effective Income Tax Expense..........cccoevvvcevevenenennen $ (30.6) 25.0% $ (6.6) 9.5% $ (63.8) 28.2%

Comprehensive Income Tax Expense included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Income Tax Expense:

ContinUing OPETALIONS........cceevuererereirrrresisressesesieresesssesesssseseseresssesessssrsssssssssasasssassesons $ (306) $ (66) $ (63.8)

Discontinued OPEIations ..........ccccveeeeresreiesrevesrsnreseesresessesseessessssssssesssseseressorsssessssossses 7.3) 6.7) (10.3)
Equity in:

Net Loss Of FOIMEr INVESIEE. .....c.coveueceireienineeinieinieresessnesessesersesestesessssesssserssssssessssssens — — 0.1

Other Comprehensive (Income) Loss of Former INVEStEe ........coveevrrerernrrerreennenrenreenenas — — 1.0
Unrealized Appreciation on SECUTTLIES ........ccceceuererirericrirenieeenreie e s e ssesesesenere s eesee (34.9) (71.6) (62.6)
Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments on INVESIMENLS ........c.ccceveereerereereeererssrerssserennes 0.6) (0.1) 0.2
Tax Effects from Postretirement Benefit Plans............cccoeceenieveennennnecnnecensnnineesensncsnnnes 4.6 15.9 9.3
Tax Effects from Long-Term Equity-based Compensation included in Paid-in Capital....... (0.1) (1.0) 2.0
Comprehensive Income Tax EXPense.........cccvveeieverieniiinierieeienseennensererssessesnessessesessssensessens $ (684) $ (70.1) $ (130.1)

NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS

The Company sponsored two qualified defined benefit pension plans which merged on December 31, 2012 (the “Pension
Plan™). The Pension Plan covers approximately 3,100 retired and 2,800 active employees. The Pension Plan is generally non-
contributory, but participation requires or required some employees to contribute 3% of pay, as defined, per year. Benefits for
participants who are or were required to contribute to the Pension Plan are based on compensation during plan participation and
the number of years of participation. Benefits for the vast majority of participants who are not required to contribute to the
Pension Plan are based on years of service and final average pay, as defined. Prior to the merger of the plans, participants in one
of the plans were no longer accruing benefits and their benefits were frozen. The Company funds the Pension Plan in
accordance with the requirements of ERISA.
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

_ Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Projected Benefit Obligation for the years ended December 31, 2012 and
2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning 0f Year.........oooveeeieinennnceeenniiiiiii st $ 4413 § 3527
ACta]l REtUIN 0N PlAn ASSEES....cvevereeesiertrrreseeiereseessistissisissessesssns shastassssnesssasscssssssasssssssssssesnsssssssassssss 38.0 25.6
EMPIOYET COMMIIDULIONS ......oovvvervreisssscssesiessseeastsseisers st sss st bbb — 83.7
Plan Participants” CONtIBULIONS. ......cuuevurrserisirisssrisssssecsstisceias i bbb — 0.1
BENETIS PRI coreeeveveeeveeeeeeeeeer e eussesesessesesesssssessssasesssssestasensebssessassss e s et b s et e b s b st s bRt s b b s e (21.5) (20.4)
SEttIEITIENT BENETIES oovveveeveeeeeeeereeeeeeriertesseessessassesssessassssteostastesssssessssinsssssossantasssassessesssestsssssstostessesssestosans ©.2) 0.4)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd 0f Y. ....cccoorvieeinininiiiiiiiieiesinnnsissns ettt sesssanasssees 457.6 441.3
Benefit Obligation at Beginning 0f Year.......co.covunireniiniineriiiimiinnniii sttt 499.2 433.1
SEIVICE COSE 1uverreverereeeeessereasessssesesesessssssesassssessesescassststasestessssssstessrasssassatessssssesssssamssesssssssrisnsasasassnssnetassns 10.8 10.2
TIEETESE COSE cuvvrveeeeeeeeeeressesesseesessesnessesessassesssssesessessortontassstessersessesbessassesssssssessetsstsrissesssnsssssssssssereasassss 224 229
Plan Participants’ CONIIDULIONS. ........cvueruseessrisesesssemsenssesssssissti s — 0.1
BEIICTIS PRI o.rooooooeooooseoessseesseseessssssssesesessesesanesesesessasessssassssasassssssssessss s s s bbb as s inn (21.5) (20.4)
SEttIEINEIE BENETILS ...vveueeveeeeeereirrerieesessessesereseesessesesttssestssessssesesnsseesesssrassasssstastsosessstssssnessntsarssssnsseses 0.2) 0.4)
ACKUATIAL LOSSES ..v.eveveeeeeeisieiesesteresseseretesesteseseseseatestatossstssasestebssbatassaseasassetassasessasssautstsrossssssnssrsasasasnssases 43.2 53.7
Benefit Obligations at ENd 0f YEaT.......courieiiniinieisestseieceniisciiiisin sttt 553.9 499.2
Funded Status—Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan ASSets........occveernniiiiiniiniissinnn $ 963) $§ (579
Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income: -
ACCUMUIALEA ACIUATIAL LLOSS .. eererererivivereserssesesesesesessesessaessatanesestsssssssssssseressesssasssasssssasessasssssaccacsssns $ (166.4) $ (150.4)
PIIOT SEIVICE COSt.nnrnviueererirrerereerereseesessssesebeesescssentasestssssmanssssssssssessosnisssssasnasaseatssestesssestssssssssnsstssensnsss 0.1 0.2
Amount Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME ..o, $ (166.3) $§ (150.2)
Accumulated Benefit OBHZAtION ......c.eveeeeeeeerminiciiiniinriiisesssss sttt s e sees $ 5313 $ 480.5

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year presented in the preceding table under the headings, “2012”
and “2011” were December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

For one of the plans, the accumulated benefit obligation exceeded the value of plan assets at December 31, 2011. The Projected
Benefit Obligation, Accumulated Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets was $496.8 million, $478.1 million and
$438.7 million, respectively, at December 31, 2011 for such plan.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the Projected Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2012 and 2011
were:

2012 2011

DASCOUNE RALE ...evverersesroseseiresseseseseseesseansssssssessatrasssesesssessssssssorsssnsesassssasasessissesessatatatstsssssrssssssseserenssssasas 4.05% 4.60%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LEVELS ...t 3.08 3.27

Weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2012 and 2011 by asset category were:

ASSET CATEGORY 2012 2011
Cash and Short-term INVESHMENLS ........cccierrrerieeeneerieriiiesiistissnsn s te et s s e sse e nsstststesesssassnsssasas 12% 11%
Corporate Bonds and NOLES .........ouerirrisersserseississiisensstises i 33 31
Common and Preferred StOCKS ....ieiiiirrrrrieerinieniniisiiisiireeesssrsesstssssessssiessssssstsnsisisusssssssassssessasase 31 36
Exchange Traded FUNAS ........cccuiimireriieieiieisinisisiei sttt sttt st 17 12
OLhET ASSEES v.vveeveereeerereeeeerssssesseostessesseesssssessessssnsessesstsssessesssersisstesssessiossesesssernassassessesonsssssserssensiossssesssns 7 10
TOTAL cvvoveveeeereseeeereseesesesoussescosssessesesssessssesarsesasessasessesont st eaesaesesbossrsa s e sebeabe b e R s s e b e e oA eSS b s s s b et sa st 100% 100%
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

The investment objective of the Pension Plan is to produce current income and long-term capital growth through a combination
of equity and fixed income investments which, together with appropriate employer contributions and any required employee
contributions, is adequate to provide for the payment of the benefit obligations of the Pension Plan. The assets of the Pension
Plan may be invested in both fixed income and equity investments. Fixed income investments may include cash and short-term
instruments, U.S. Government securities, corporate bonds, mortgages and other fixed income investments. Equity investments
may include various types of stock, such as large-cap, mid-cap and small-cap stocks, and may also include investments in
investment companies and Kemper common stock (subject to Section 407 and other requirements of ERISA). The Pension Plan
has not invested in Kemper common stock.

The trust investment committee for the Pension Plan, along with its third party fiduciary advisor, periodically reviews the
performance of the Pension Plan’s investments and asset allocation. Several external investment managers, one of which is
Fayez Sarofim & Co. (“FS&C), manage the equity investments of the trust for the Pension Plan. One of Kemper’s directors,
Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and the majority shareholder of FS&C, a registered
investment advisory firm (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Each manager is allowed
to exercise investment discretion, subject to limitations, if any, established by the trust investment committee for the Pension
Plan. An independent fiduciary had sole investment discretion with respect to shares of Intermec common stock contributed by
the Company to one of the pension plans in 2011 until such shares were fully disposed of in 2012. All other investment
decisions are made by the Company, subject to general guidelines as set by the trust investment committee for the Pension Plan.

The Company determines its Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan Assets based primarily on the Company’s
expectations of future returns for the Pension Plan’s investments, based on target allocations of the Pension Plan’s investments.
Additionally, the Company considers historical returns on comparable fixed income investments and equity investments and
adjusts its estimate as deemed appropriate.

Fair value measurements for the Pension Plans’ assets at December 31, 2012 are summarized below:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value
Assets Inputs Inputs Dec. 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2012
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AUThOTItIES ..o $ 61 $ — 8 — 8 6.1
States and Political Subdivisions .......................... — 33 — 33
Corporate Bonds and NOtes ...........coecvrrrrrerernnnen. — 142.7 — 142.7
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 34 — 34
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........cocoecceermnresnsnesseenenerenens 82.2 5.6 — 87.8
Other Industries ........cceureeeerererieeniireiieeeeeeenae 48.2 0.7 — 48.9
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds..........cccveerrveeernnnnane. 79.6 — — 79.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......cococvvmueecieesevceee e eceeneeens — — 26.9 26.9
Short-term Investments.............c.ccovmrvvrvercirnreeneenane 55.8 — — 55.8
Receivables and Other .........ccccoeeeuieveeiiceiicennne 25 — 0.6 31
TOtal...ooiiii e $ 2744 $ 155.7 § 275 $ 457.6
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Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plans’ assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Corporate Other Equity Receivables
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Bonds Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year..........ccccveveevivcerncecinmnnnncninnens $ 1.0 § 372§ 32 § 414
Return on Plan Assets Held.......cccoeeveenvecieiincnnninninnniniinien — 1.7 0.1 1.8
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net.........cocoevcecvrceviinvecninnens — (12.0) 2.7 (14.7)
Transfer out of Level 3......oiiiiieieeiereereeeenreneeeenecenneeiens 1.0) — — (1.0)
Balance at December 31, 2012 .....ooreeeieeieeereeeneerceeenaeeennas $ — $ 269 $ 06 $ 275
Fair value measurements for the Pension Plans’ assets at December 31, 2011 are summarized below:
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable Fair Value
Assets Inputs Inputs Dec. 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2011
Fixed Maturities:
States and Political Subdivisions .............ceevevnnnes $ — 3 31§ — $ 3.1
Corporate Bonds and NOtes ........ccevuvriercrmneiiiiuenene — 135.4 1.0 136.4
Equity Securities:
Common Stocks:
INEEIMIEC . ccveeueereeenrecerneceeerecrrestsesrsssesrennens 40.2 — — 40.2
Manufacturing ........oceveeeieriisnninveseniessennesnesene 74.4 4.2 — 78.6
Other INdUStHEs ....coerveeeeerireeeriiniecerseneceensiesae 38.4 — — 384
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........ccoceovvcrinreirucnnnn 53.6 — — 53.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.....c...cceceveceevrnnsencninsinsniscnnines — — 37.2 37.2
Short-term INvestments..........ccevvveieriiiveriisneerisnneens 47.7 — — 47.7
Receivables and Other ...........cccovvvenniivcnncnenieenniennen 2.9 — 32 6.1
TOtAL ..ottt tees e ssesres e n s aesesresaeasnens $ 2572 § 1427 $ 414 $ 441.3

Additional information pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Pension Plans’ assets classified as Level 3 for the year
ended December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Corporate Other Equity Receivables
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Bonds Interests and Other Total
Balance at Beginning of Year........ccceeceeeeerurureerereerereeeresencecssneneene $ — 3 415 $ 37 $ 452
Return on Plan Assets Held........c.oooeivrecnvevveneieeencneceenneceenneee — 1.7 — 1.7
Purchases, Sales and Settlements, Net ........cccooeevveniiiiieiiinienanns — (6.0) (0.5) (6.5)
Transfers into Level 3.......oviiieiieieeiererrriecnnnceeseneestseeseeseenneas 1.0 — — 1.0
Balance at December 31, 2011 .....uvvioereevierernnrereererereeerenereseesens $ 1.0 § 372 % 32 §$ 41.4
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The components of Comprehensive Pension Expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Service Cost Earned DUring the Year............ocvveveeeiciereeeeriiee e esssssssnens $ 108 § 102 $ 9.0
Interest Cost on Projected Benefit Obligation............vcerueurerrerrareerreeierireresereecesesesesenns 224 229 224
Expected Return on Plan ASSELS.........ccceeerreeeerreeeuiisierrreserernseessresssssessssesssssassssssesssasases (29.8) (24.4) 23.7)
Net Amortization and Deferral..........ccovvvevevinininienriiieee e e 18.8 9.4 2.3
SEHIEIMENILS ...ttt st et ettt ese e sesae e st st e s st st st asssesssessssnsansasnns 0.3 — —
Pension EXpense RECOZIZEM..........cvruiemirrnninnecrirtnieeesrersesee st sisessessses s sesasssnssens 22.5 18.1 10.0
Unrecognized Pension Loss Arising During the Year.........ccocvvvevveveinneneeiecceneeeneccenenss 34.8 52.4 23.6
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized Pension Loss.........c.ccvvevreereeeseeeneeeseeesnenenns (18.8) 9.4) 2.3)
Comprehensive Pension EXPEnse.........occoovvivvvrivinienieiniseneirentessessesesiessessesnesseesssesseseesens $ 385 $ 611 $ 313

The Company estimates that Pension Expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 will include expense of $23.9 million
resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial loss included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income at December 31, 2012.

Total Pension Expense Recognized as presented in the preceding table includes service cost benefits earned and reported in
discontinued operations of $0.5 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the Pension Expense for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 were:

2012 2011 2010
DISCOUNE RALE ..ottt eteseee st seesenees st s et st sasasanssbesnsnsasns 4.60% 5.35% 6.00%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation Levels.........ccocvvveeeerieereeiieienienrenenennseresseeensnneens 3.27 2.47 2.88
Expected Long Term Rate of Return on Plan ASSets.......c.ccccceverenriennicvinernncnrearnnnsenens 7.00 7.00 7.00

On September 14, 2011, the Company made a voluntary contribution of $83.7 million to its defined benefit pension plan. The
contribution consisted of $32.2 million in cash and 7,309,764 shares of Intermec common stock with a fair value of $51.5
million on the date of contribution. On May 23, 2011, the Company requested a waiver from the U.S. Department of Labor
(“DOL”) related to the prohibited transaction rules under ERISA and the Internal Revenue Code for the one-time in-kind
contribution of the shares of Intermec common stock. On January 19, 2012, the DOL granted relief, from the prohibited
transaction rules retroactive to September 1, 2011.

The Company does not expect that it will be required to contribute to its Pension Plan in 2013, but could make a voluntary
contribution pursuant to the maximum funding limits under ERISA.

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018-2022

Pension Benefits .......oeeviviieiveeniiriierieceeeeseeenenens $ 227 $§ 239 $ 250 $ 262 $§ 274 $ 1553

The Company also sponsors a non-qualified supplemental defined benefit pension plan (the “Supplemental Plan™). The
unfunded liability related to the Supplemental Plan was $24.0 million and $21.7 million at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Pension expense for the Supplemental Plan was $1.8 million, $3.3 million and $3.1 million in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively. An actuarial loss of $1.3 million before tax and an actuarial gain of $2.9 million before tax is included Other
Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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NOTE 17. PENSION BENEFITS (Continued)

The Company also sponsors several defined contribution benefit plans covering most of its employees. The Company made
contributions to those plans of $7.8 million, $7.3 million and $6.8 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Under these
plans, the participants have several investment alternatives, including Kemper’s common stock held through the Kemper
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) Fund and the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. FS&C is a sub-investment advisor of the
Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. One of Kemper’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and majority shareholder of FS&C (see Note 24, “Related Parties,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). The fair
value of participants’ investments in Kemper’s ESOP Fund was $15.0 million, or 5.0% of the total investments in the defined
contribution benefit plans at December 31, 2012. The fair value of participants’ investments in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund
was $20.1 million, or 6.7% of the total investments in the defined contribution benefit plans at December 31, 2012.

NOTE 18. POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

The Company sponsors an other than pension postretirement employee benefit plan (“OPEB”) that provides medical, dental
and/or life insurance benefits to approximately 600 retired and 400 active employees (the “OPEB Plan™). The Company
generally is self-insured for the benefits under the OPEB Plan. The medical plan generally provides for a limited number of
years of medical insurance benefits at retirement based on the participant’s attained age at retirement and number of years of
service until specified dates and generally requires participant contributions, with most contributions adjusted annually.

Changes in Fair Value of Plan Assets and Changes in Accumulated Benefit Obligation for the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Beginning Of YEaL........cccveuiuermnnrsrerssmsrssssecssisssscsssisis st ssssssssess $ — 8 —
EMPIOYET CONIIDULONS ......cvrrerrrrrarissesisssssssssiesssesssenssssse i saa bbb s 3.0 32
Plan Participants’ CONEIIDULIONS.......c.evurvsrismiisserssssssssesisstietsiss s s s s 1.0 1.1
BEDETItS PRI o.ooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereseevessress e s sessstsbesaasescese st tsssatsas e sas s e R s s e s R e R e b e R b e et RO RS SRSEs b s R s e a s 4.0) 4.3)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at ENd OF YEaL......cccceivirniiiniinienisionsasnnscenistsesiisstsnseessssssssssssnssssss — —
Benefit Obligation at Beginning of Year......cccou ettt 44.7 41.1
SETVICE COSE wnvnveneeeeeeeeesresessessssestessesessessaseasnesteseaestssasiassssessessesasanassasessassesststeasestssttesssssstersessansssantassans 0.2 0.1
TIIEETESE COSE cvvereneeneeeeeecetsresresessessesaessasarsesssssoscesessssssstertasssasaseansebasbens st assassaseasestsstontatinnttesnsasansnssssassansss 1.6 1.9
Plan Participants’ CONIIDUHONS. .....iuivirerieisrssriecienssesetsstnets s 1.0 1.1
BENESAtS PAI c..voveeeeeeeeveeereeeiscre e rebe e stsabeseseaesratetsaereres e bR e b bbb e R eSS s e RS SRR SRS et 4.0) 4.3)
Modernization Act Subsidy RECEIVEd.......c.ciurimiimiinirimsirstirsnsniesenic sttt 1.0 0.4
ACtUArial (GAINS) LOSSES ...vuvueuerurisiriiretinserererssissstss sttt sttt 5.5 4.4
Obligations Transferred IO PIAn.......ccooveeuieiremseenieetiscmsisiinsini s 3.8 —
Benefit Obligation at ENd Of YeaL.......ccouueiuriuririsisisieisereissies st 42.8 44.7
Funded Status—Benefit Obligation in Excess of Plan ASSets........cccoveeiecnerscminneiniiiniiiecisisnnnnee $ 428 $ @447
Actuarial Gain Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprebensive INCOME.......ooveimimnnminssniisiincinenns $ 134 § 9.2

The measurement dates of the assets and liabilities at end of year in the preceding table under the headings “2012” and “2011”
were December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2012 and
2011 were:

2012 2011
DISCOUNLE RALE ....veevveeverveeiiitieseerersessaessassesasestsonsastsssesseasesstersrornasstastassesstsstssntsntessessssstssbesssirntsnesnsesasssaseines 3.15% 4.25%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LevVels ..o 2.10 2.10
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The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2012 was 7.0%
for 2013, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2017 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical benefits and 8.5% for
2013, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2020 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription drug benefits. The
assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2011 was 7.5% for
2012, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2017 and remaining at that level thereafter for medical benefits and 9.0% for
2012, gradually declining to 5.0% in the year 2020 and remaining at that level thereafter for prescription drug benefits.

A one—percentage point increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the Accumulated
Benefit Obligation at December 31, 2012 by $2.8 million and 2012 OPEB expense by $0.1 million. A one-percentage point
increase in the assumed health care cost trend rate for each year would increase the Accumulated Benefit Obligation at
December 31, 2011 by $2.8 million and 2011 OPEB expense by $0.1 million.

The components of Comprehensive OPEB Expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Service Cost Earned DUuring the Year............cevuiuevivvinceiecercnreeceeseesressesesessesss e esesons $ 02 § 01 § 0.1
Interest Cost on Accumulated Benefit Obligation...............cvveeuevvveeereeeereeseesrsseressessessssesns 1.6 1.9 2.1
Net Amortization and DEferTal...........cuiveiiereieceriececeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeese e eeesssess s seseseses e 1.2) (0.6) (1.1)
OPEB EXPEnse RECOZMIZED ......c.cvvururrernirirerieeeiieneeeeeeeaeesssesessseesesesssessesesesssssssssssessssseons 0.6 1.4 1.1
Unrecognized OPEB (Gain) Loss Arising During the Year...........ocovveeeveeeeevsvesrereerersernnn. (5.5) 44 43
Amortization of Accumulated Unrecognized OPEB Gaifl........c.c.eeevvvrevererereeereoesoseon, 1.2 0.6 1.1
Comprehensive OPEB Expense (BENEit)..........cuoveeeuiveeeimeeeeeeeeeeesessseseseseeeees e eoeoees $ @37 S 64 $ 6.5

The Company estimates that OPEB Expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 will include income of $1.0 million

resulting from the amortization of the related accumulated actuarial gain included in Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income at December 31, 2012.

The actuarial assumptions used to develop the components of the OPEB Expense for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010 were:

2012 2011 2010
DiSCOUNE RALE ...ttt ettt ea e e ee st er st 4.25% 4.40% 5.25%
Rate of Increase in Future Compensation LeVels....................oceveeveeerereeeeseesresresescesesrers 2.10 1.50 1.50

The Company expects to contribute $4.3 million, net of expected Modernization Act Subsidy, to its OPEB Plan to fund benefit
payments in 2013,

The following benefit payments (net of participant contributions), which consider expected future service, as appropriate, are
expected to be paid:

Years Ending December 31,

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018-2022
Benefit Payments:
Excluding Modernization Act Subsidy................... $ 48 $ 48 $ 48 §$ 47 $ 46 $§ 193
Expected Modemization Act Subsidy.................... 0.5) 0.5) 0.6) (0.6) (0.6) 2.4
Net Benefit Payments ............ccooeeviveeeeceenvecnvernececenenens $ 43 % 43 §$ 42 $ 41 § 40 § 16.9
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NOTE 19. BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Company is engaged, through its subsidiaries, in the property and casualty insurance and life and health insurance businesses.
The Company conducts its operations through four operating segments: Kemper Preferred, Kemper Specialty, Kemper Direct and
Life and Health Insurance.

The Kemper Preferred segment provides preferred and standard risk personal automobile insurance, homeowners insurance and
other personal insurance through independent agents. The Kemper Specialty segment provides automobile insurance to individuals
and businesses in the non-standard and specialty market through independent agents. The non-standard automobile insurance
market consists of individuals and companies that have difficulty obtaining standard or preferred risk insurance, usually because
of their adverse driving records or claim or credit histories. The Kemper Direct segment currently distributes personal automobile,
homeowners and renters insurance products through employer-sponsored voluntary benefit programs and other affinity
relationships. Prior to ceasing direct-to-consumer marketing activities in the third quarter of 2012, Kemper Direct also distributed
its products directly to consumers through a variety of direct-to-consumer websites, including its own websites. The Life and
Health Insurance segment provides individual life, accident, health and property insurance.

The Company’s earned premiums are derived in the United States. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as
those described in Note 2, “Summary of Accounting Policies and Accounting Changes,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. Capital expenditures for long-lived assets by operating segment are immaterial.

The Company does not allocate insurance reserves from its 2002 acquisition of certain insurance companies from SCOR (see
Note 6, “Property and Casualty Insurance Reserves,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements). It is also the Company’s
management practice to allocate certain corporate expenses, primarily compensation costs for corporate employees and related
facility costs, included in Interest and Other Expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Income to its insurance operations.
The amount of such allocated corporate expenses was $31.7 million, $33.0 million and $30.9 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company does not allocate Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments,
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings, interest expense on debt or retirement plans, and actuarial gains and losses on
its retirement plans to its operating segments.

Segment Assets at December 31, 2012 and 2011 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011
SEGMENT ASSETS

KEIMPET PTEFEITEA ......eecvvveeiiiiia ittt s $ 1,562.0 §$ 1,544.0
KEIMPET SPECIALEY ...eevvvvrverirsrunriarasersssessssssesi i ts st eb b s 684.6 615.8
KEIMPET DITECE ... vveveereeieeiaiaiieise e ssess bbb SRR 453.3 570.8
Life and HEalth INSULANCE ....e..eceeveeeerirreiireereeressessessessesessessesssstessossessonsensasessessessesmsssssessassesssssossssossssesssnss 4,781.8 4,802.5
Corporate and Other, NEt ..o s 527.4 401.6
Total Assets

............................................................................................................................................... $ 8,009.1 §$ 7,934.7
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Segment Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS
REVENUES
Kemper Preferred:
Earned Premitms........c.c.cveeiieiiuieierceese et seeee e st sessness et ssess s essans

Kemper Specialty:
Earned PIOIMIUINS . .....cvoueuireieeierceceie ettt eeeeeve e ees e sseerese s st

Kemper Direct:
Earned PIEIMIUINS.........vuvuiuriecieieieiirnirsinsie et ssss st eesesses s essesesesseesesseseseeseses

Life and Health Insurance;:
Earned PremiUMS. .......c.ouiieieieievietiteieter oot eeeeese e e ee e s e st ot eeee e
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2012

2011

2010

$ 8794 $ 8598 § 888.0

45.0 488 55.4
0.4 0.3 0.4
924.8 908.9 9438
419.8 4452 474.9
19.0 22.8 25.8
0.3 0.5 0.6
439.1 4685 501.3
168.0 2227 282.4
13.9 17.4 20.6
- 0.1 0.1
181.9 2402 303.1
639.9 645.9 644.1
2043 200.5 213.0
0.1 0.1 0.2
8443 846.5 8573
2390.1 24641  2,605.5
65.4 337 426
6.9  (113)  (16.5)
13.7 8.5 10.9

$2,462.3 $24950 $2,642.5
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NOTE 19. BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Segment Operating Profit for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
SEGMENT OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)
KEMPET PIEfEITEA ........oeeeeiereieicriicieieteeeette e tetesce st ansssss et tes e sesssaesesesessssssessnsnnsssansesenen $ (280) § (40.6) $ 669
KemPer SPECIALLY ..covereeircrieierieieirerte sttt et saesb et st s sesb s s st srsas s sness 2.8) 242 25.6
KEMPET DITECE ...ttt ettt ettt sas e e st osesa s s as st saesssasessasasns (4.8) 47.2) (7.9)
Life and Health INSULANCE .......c.coueeuecreeieccinicicrictiieeetsstssesieses st sssssessssasstsssssssnssaassonsons 140.4 1523 141.9
Total Segment Operating Profit.........c..ccccomicminninininnicctese s 104.8 88.7 226.5
Corporate and Other Operating LosS......cccoveminiiinineniiinceiiicenncessisesssssesssessnsseses (40.9) (42.8) (26.3)
Total Operating Profit.........coocveviiiinininiiiiccii e 63.9 45.9 200.2
Net Realized Gains on Sales of INVESIMENES ....c....courecnriiennineiriniiiiencenr e 65.4 33.7 42.6
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........ccccceccevmveceneirnninennnccnenencsnsecencnnes 6.9) (11.3) (16.5)
Income from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Loss of

FOIMET INVESIEE ..c..vviieeeeiiteeeccteeeececerreeesctr e e s eererrreessssraneeessssssssanesssssassnesssssnsnassssranaess $ 1224 $ 683 $ 226.3

Segment Net Operating Income for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
SEGMENT NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
Kemper Preferred ...ttt ettt sesesassnesesbesaesasessnenssnenenac $ @12) $§ (176) $ 529
Kemper SPECIalty ........ccccriviveniniiiiiinccnc e e e 1.2 19.8 21.0
KEMPET DITECE ...ttt ettt st s st s st bt s as st e st b ene 0.9) (27.5) W)
Life and Health INSUTANCE ....c.ccoveiiicriniiiiiicineiciteettc ettt sscens e ssseesessssesens 90.8 98.9 874
Total Segment Net Operating INCOME .........ccecevrveereececenirinreercceeererresesreseseseseresesseseeesene 79.9 73.6 159.6
Unallocated Net Operating LOSS ......c.cooevvecerrercriincirereencrennesriecseessesessssstssesesasssssesssssssassesns (26.1) (26.5) (14.4)
Consolidated Net Operating INCOME ........ccvruvmviiniiniiniccntrne e 53.8 47.1 145.2
Unallocated Net Income (Loss) From: A

Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments ..o 425 21.9 27.9

Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings.........coceccveeveererreresnnvesesresssseressesesessesesns “.5) (7.3) (10.7)
Income from Continuing OPETAtioNs..........ccerueureruriersineeeicsesensresonsissesessressrsissesssmseserssssenens $ 918 $ 617 § 1624

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs by Operating Segment for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and

2010 was:
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
KEMPET PLEfEITEA ... ceeeeecieiecerieieccietsisi s sestcistse et ssssssssssssss st asssessnsssassssssessssasessssssesssans $ 1478 $§ 1444 § 1526
Kemper SPecialty ........ccccomrvecnisieeninreinincennccneseeennscenennerens e eesrene 58.7 62.6 67.7
KEIMPET DITECL ...eeveeeeeeeereeeeeeeseeneestresessseseasssessesesseasasesesessenssetanseseesstsasenessassssssssssassessnsses 61 8.8 9.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .......cceverveuermiieeiirecteereetneeseeeteestessseeseeseseessesesessessessonseseons 44.4 449 42.1
Total AMOTHZATION.......cceiriicieriiciiiccrincete ettt sttt e e ee et ee s se e as $ 2570 $ 2607 $§ 2722
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Earned Premiums by product line for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
EARNED PREMIUMS
LAE «ovveieeeietceete et e et seese e e et et e b etk b be et e e s e ke s e R e eResee s e e eRanteaeatsse e esenetenetenent $ 3934 § 3951 $§ 396.7
ACCIAENt ANA HEAIN «.....ocoeeeeesesessssssasseeess s ssssssss s sssssssssssssssnssens 165.2 166.3 161.9
Property and Casualty:
Personal Lines:
AULOMODILE ......vveeiveereereierenieeesteeetsteseesesesesnssosassosessssessensassssasssesestsssntasenersensasesenes 1,050.1 1,129.4 1,249.5
HOMEOWIIETS ....couveveeiiereeieeetesteettensestestesssesteestease st assessaasssessessesssssstassessasnsessarsessassnesns 318.0 304.1 298.7
Other Personal........co.cccueveecieniieieriiceneestesteesrcsteeteseesteneessesseessessesssssseessessasssesassneoses 136.9 138.7 139.0
Total Personal LiNES ......cc.cocuieiieeieeiiceeiiectecseecteee e eere e caresrteseneesreessrssssnessvassnsessnasssnenn 1,505.0 1,572.2 1,687.2
Commercial AULOMODILE......c.ccoevuirrrrerrivinreruinienrereerneresssssesneseesmsessssesesesssssisessessosssssones 43.5 40.0 43.6
TOtal EArned PrEIMIUIS «....c.veveevieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeresestseessessesessseseossssssssessensossssesssssessessossensessesens $2,107.1 $2,173.6 $2,289.4

NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE

Catastrophes and storms are inherent risks of the property and casualty insurance business. These catastrophic events and
natural disasters include, without limitation, hurricanes, tornadoes, earthquakes, hailstorms, wildfires, high winds and winter
storms. Such events result in insured losses that are, and will continue to be, a material factor in the results of operations and
financial position of the Company’s property and casualty insurance companies. Further, because the level of these insured
losses occurring in any one year cannot be accurately predicted, these losses may contribute to material year-to-year
fluctuations in the results of the operations and financial position of these companies. Specific types of catastrophic events are
more likely to occur at certain times within the year than others. This factor adds an element of seasonality to property and
casualty insurance claims. The Company has adopted the industry-wide catastrophe classifications of storms and other events
promulgated by ISO to track and report losses related to catastrophes. ISO classifies a disaster as a catastrophe when the event
causes $25.0 million or more in direct losses to property and affects a significant number of policyholders and insurers. ISO-
classified catastrophes are assigned a unique serial number recognized throughout the insurance industry. The discussions that
follow utilize ISO’s definition of catastrophes.

The Company manages its exposure to catastrophes and other natural disasters through a combination of geographical
diversification, restrictions on the amount and location of new business production in such regions, and reinsurance. To limit its
exposures to catastrophic events, the Company maintains various catastrophe reinsurance programs for its property and casualty
insurance businesses.
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NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE (Continued)

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 is provided in various
layers as presented below: '

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Kemper Preferred, Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments:

RELAIMEA .....cueeiiiereeeierereeiee et eeesasreresreses e ossiststsss s sbsae e ebesessassrsssnsbensanssbans $ — 3 50.0 —%

15t Layer Of COVETAZE. ....cccovreererrrrrerereerreresesseneeesesesssesessrenesessssessssssssisesssssssrssssnsssss 50.0 100.0 65.0

2nd Layer of COVETAZE ......ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinee it eesee s s sne s snen 100.0 200.0 95.0

3rd Layer Of COVEIAZE -...coveeuireeeeericcerectsentnsctnr st ses s s senssssssssassassesssaesssasas 200.0 350.0 90.0

4th Layer Of COVEIAZE ........ccivorviisiniiiiisiinssiseisisssssisiss s ssssssnsnssssssessssassssessns 350.0 450.0 50.0
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RELAINEA ...ttt ettt ssat st sse e sesesnst st sesisasasss e sesnssssasssesesaneans $ — 3 8.0 —%

15t Layer Of COVETAZE. ...ccvecvruinrieeniicisiniccetiiesiisicstetessesisiistessssssssesssnsesssssssessssnsasasens 8.0 15.0 70.0

20d Layer Of COVETAZE ......covvevrerereereriercnteisseistesisesiisessssessestssssnssssssssssssssssssnsssssssenes 15.0 40.0 70.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Preferred segment in 2012 also included reinsurance coverage for
catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those described above. The catastrophe reinsurance program for
the Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Direct segments in 2012 also included reinsurance coverage from FHCF for
hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above.

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2011 to December 31, 2011 is provided in various
layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Up to of Coverage
Kemper Preferred Segment:

RELAINEA ...ttt es st escssssssassssssse st stesssebos s sstssesassasaniosaenns $ — 50.0 —%

1st Layer of Coverage..........ccovuveernruircerencne ettt et b e e ne e as et e s et bs 50.0 100.0 65.0

200 Layer Of COVEIAZE .....ccceueverueieerertreieriietiiissiisssstssssesassnsrossssssesessesssssassssssassns 100.0 200.0 95.0

3rd Layer Of COVEIAgE .......ccnvcirimiirnnimiiniisneiinessisrinessssssassessssssrsssesessssnsssssssssasons 200.0 350.0 90.0
Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments: ‘

RELAINEA .....cuevreereiereseeieereirtetessas it seec e sese et erssessastossasearsesesessenssasnenssssenersssasasaress $ — 3 3.0 —%

Ist Layer of COVETAZE. .....cccccvurrrirriimnniicicriiiesitiaetstssessiissesessisesssnsssssesssssasssssssssasses 3.0 16.0 100.0
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RELAINEG ....vovevereeeeceeiereinieisseecsesssesesssaessessescasencassssenesssssseseesssstserssesesssnsssesenssenssensisss $ — 3 8.0 —%

1st Layer of COVEIAZE. ..ottt st sae s 8.0 15.0 70.0

2Nd LaYET Of COVEIAEE ...ccveruerrecerenerrinienessnecsnsssesneessssesssssnes sssssosonsssassrssssssssssessassasses 15.0 40.0 100.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Preferred segment in 2011 also included reinsurance coverage for
catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those described above. The catastrophe reinsurance program for
the Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Direct segments in 2011 also included reinsurance coverage from FHCF for
hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above.



Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE (Continued)

Coverage for each catastrophe reinsurance program effective January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2010 is provided in various
layers as presented below:

Catastrophe Losses and
LAE

Percentage

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS In Excess of Upto of Coverage
Kemper Preferred Segment:

RELAINEA ...ttt sttt ettt se st a e st an s sa s nesnes $ — $ 50.0 —%

15t Layer Of COVETAZE......ccoueerivrierranierestsrereetsranresssesseressessesessesessssersssassessasensssosesses 50.0 100.0 65.0

20d LaYer Of COVETAZE «....ovveverrerrirrrrerransesreneesesraesessessessssesserssossessosssssssessassassessossoses 100.0 200.0 95.0

31d Layer Of COVETAZE ...couvevverrererreneirieniaseetestevessesssessessesssesssesssessasssessassasssessseneans 200.0 350.0 90.0
Kemper Direct and Kemper Specialty Segments:

RELAINEA .....covvoieeerereneneiereieieieeecrestneensts et st esenss e s ssssssssssesassnessassssessassosssssasssssssssnsns $ — 3.0 —%

15t Layer Of COVEIAZE. ...coeverrirerrentireerienrisiesisnseesissssansnereosssssnsssssessosassnssssasssesnsssoses 3.0 16.0 100.0
Life and Health Segment—Property Insurance Operations:

RELAINEA .....ooeuiirericiciericiei et sssssss s eesstesessassssssssessasssesanssnsssssossnassessnosssssssenesssosn $ — 8 8.0 —%

ISt Layer Of COVEIAZE....ovevvirrerrerenrenierteinseriesiesseneseniessessersssnesasssensorsesseseesessessessensessen 8.0 15.0 88.5

2nd Layer Of COVETAZE ......c.oeueveiriiieineniiieiiiitsesteestsreseesestetsre e s sesessesessesessensssens 15.0 40.0 100.0

The catastrophe reinsurance program for the Kemper Preferred segment in 2010 also included reinsurance coverage for
catastrophe losses in North Carolina at retentions lower than those described above. The catastrophe reinsurance program for
the Life and Health Insurance and Kemper Direct segments in 2010 also included reinsurance coverage from FHCF for
hurricane losses in Florida at retentions lower than those described above.

In the event that the Company’s incurred catastrophe losses and LAE covered by any of its catastrophe reinsurance programs
presented in the three preceding tables exceed the retention for that particular layer, each of the programs required one
reinstatement of such coverage. In such an instance, the Company is required to pay a reinstatement premium to the reinsurers
to reinstate the full amount of reinsurance available under such layer. The reinstatement premium is a percentage of the original
premium based on the ratio of the losses in excess of the Company’s retention to the reinsurers’ coverage limit.

Reinsurance premiums for the Company’s primary catastrophe reinsurance programs, the Kemper Preferred NC Program and
the FHCF Program reduced earned premiums for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 by the following:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010

KEmPET PIEfEITEA .......veeieeeieieieteieteicetc ettt ie et ieb ettt st sssebesesesesesasasessssssssasasssnassseses $ 246 $ 200 $ 219
KEMPET SPECIAILY ..vevveveererrerreeerinenseteiariaseesaesssessereassssessnosssssssensassessessansessaseesessessesseseassssesss 0.1 0.1 0.3
KEMPET DIFECL ...ttt ettt rcsrestssstsbssaessssessssnssbssbessessonssseans 04 0.8 0.8
Life and Health INSUTANCE .......ccceueeieieeerineecrenrercreenectnteeee e e siesene et rnen s ranans 2.0 23 3.6
Total Ceded Catastrophe Reinsurance PrEmIUMIS.........cccovevrruereerererereiesseniressessessesssnsesssesess $ 271 $ 232 § 266

Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the year ended December 31, 2011 for the Life and Health Insurance segment in the
preceding table includes a reduction of $0.2 million in the Company’s estimated reinsurance reinstatement premiums for prior
years. Catastrophe reinsurance premiums for the Life and Health Insurance segment in the preceding table includes reinsurance
reinstatement premiums of $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to reinstate coverage following certain
hurricanes.
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NOTE 20. CATASTROPHE REINSURANCE (Continued)

Catastrophe losses and LAE (including development), net of reinsurance recoveries, for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 by business segment are presented below.

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010

KEMPET PLETEITEW .. ..o eeecrenceeisescteieiseeesseseesrietsessiessassasessinssssssssssssssssbessssssssssssssssssssnss $ 992 $ 1387 $ 652
KeMPETr SPECIALLY .....covmiieiirtececrecetesttcetiet et sr s et sbes bbb s s b s reses 4.9 3.9 3.0
KEMPET DITECE ......cucceriiicreiiicnicteaisisnestics et er s e e b e e b e b e s eRs s e sn st asaasssannans 8.0 7.2 2.0
Life and Health INSUTANCE ......ccocvvrerveivcininniriiniiinnciieinsiesssesassssonsssassssassssssssassnssssess 6.1 7.6 7.9
Total Catastrophe Losses and LAE ...........ocoiinniniisnsnesssssseessssesens $ 1182 § 1574 § 78.1

Total Catastrophe loss and LAE reserves, net of reinsurance recoverables, developed favorably by $6.3 million, $6.4 million
and $1.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Kemper Preferred segment reported
favorable catastrophe reserve development of $6.2 million, $5.5 million and $4.9 million for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Life and Health Insurance segment reported adverse catastrophe reserve development of
$0.1 million and $3.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010, respectively and favorable catastrophe reserve
development of $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

In late October 2012, Superstorm Sandy, at one point a level two hurricane while over the Atlantic Ocean, caused a significant
amount of damage in several northeastern states. Catastrophe losses and LAE for the year ended December 31,2012 include $48.5
million related to Superstorm Sandy, of which $44.0 million is included in the Kemper Preferred segment.

In the second quarter of 2011, the United States experienced a high volume of spring storms, including a record level of
tornadoes in April. In the third quarter of 2011, the Company incurred claims related to Hurricane Irene. Catastrophe losses and
LAE for the year ended December 31, 2011 include $23.0 million related to Hurricane Irene, of which $22.1 million is included
in the Kemper Preferred segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to 2009, the Kemper Preferred segment experienced a higher severity of
catastrophe losses, due in part to a catastrophe loss of $12.9 million resulting from damage caused by hail in the state of
Arizona in the fourth quarter of 2010. No major hurricanes that significantly impacted the Company made landfall in the United
States during 2010.

The process of estimating and establishing reserves for catastrophe losses is inherently uncertain and the actual ultimate cost of
a claim, net of actual reinsurance recoveries, may vary materially from the estimated amount reserved. The Company’s
estimates of direct catastrophe losses are generally based on inspections by claims adjusters and historical loss development
experience for areas that have not been inspected or for claims that have not yet been reported. The Company’s estimates of
direct catastrophe losses are based on the coverages provided by its insurance policies. The Company’s homeowners and
dwellings insurance policies do not provide coverage for losses caused by floods, but generally provide coverage for physical
damage caused by wind or wind driven rain. Accordingly, the Company’s estimates of direct losses for homeowners and
dwellings insurance do not include losses caused by flood. Depending on the policy, automobile insurance may provide
coverage for losses caused by flood. Estimates of the number and severity of claims ultimately reported are influenced by many
variables, including, but not limited to, repair or reconstruction costs and determination of cause of loss that are difficult to
quantify and will influence the final amount of claim settlements. All these factors, coupled with the impact of the availability
of labor and material on costs, require significant judgment in the reserve setting process. A change in any one or more of these
factors is likely to result in an ultimate net claim cost different from the estimated reserve. The Company’s estimates of indirect
losses from residual market assessments are based on a variety of factors, including, but not limited to, actual or estimated
assessments provided by or received from the assessing entity, insurance industry estimates of losses, and estimates of the
Company’s market share in the assessable states. Actual assessments may differ materially from these estimated amounts.
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NOTE 21. OTHER REINSURANCE

In addition to the reinsurance programs described in Note 20, “Catastrophe Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, Kemper’s insurance subsidiaries utilize other reinsurance arrangements to limit their maximum loss, provide
greater diversification of risk and to minimize exposures on larger risks. The ceding of insurance does not discharge the primary
liability of the original insurer. Accordingly, insurance reserve liabilities are reported gross of any estimated recovery from
reinsurers in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with
the insurance reserve liability and are included in Other Receivables in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Earned Premiums ceded on long-duration and short-duration policies were not material for the years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010. Certain insurance subsidiaries assume business from other insurance companies and involuntary pools. Earned
Premiums assumed on long-duration and short-duration policies for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS 2012 2011 2010
Earned Premiums Assumed From:
CAPILOL...ceerverrerereecieeririeseretesesesertenssesesareensesesesenesesessstsosanassessasstssssssssersssressssasesssnarsssseness $ 250 $ 279 $ 30.1
ORCC .....oveerecrcereire e tstes e e senssesesssesess s essasessasesasersssansmsseseasasensesantssessesasessenroseses 8.2 9.0 9.6
OBRET ...verireieirrereniererierereteressrsresseressesesrssesestssessssesessesssesessasesssssasessesessessanssontsssssssesanseses 10.9 6.8 6.0
Total Earned Premiums ASSUMEd.........ccocveieenireienieereniisesssesesenasessssesssesessessssssasesssssssseses $ 441 § 437 $§ 457

Trinity and Capitol are parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of the business written by
Capitol. Capitol is a mutual insurance company and, accordingly, is owned by its policyholders. In the second quarter of 2012,
Capitol requested regulatory approval to amend such agreement with Trinity, effective April 1, 2012, whereby ceded losses for
dwelling coverage were capped. In the third quarter of 2012, Capitol received such regulatory approval. Incurred losses and
LAE assumed by Trinity were reduced by $2.6 million in the third quarter of 2012 in conjunction with such amendment. Trinity
and ORCC, a subsidiary of Capitol, are also parties to a quota share reinsurance agreement whereby Trinity assumes 100% of
the business written by ORCC.

Five employees of the Company serve as directors of Capitol’s five member board of directors. Nine employees of the
Company also serve as directors of ORCC’s nine member board of directors. Kemper’s subsidiary, United Insurance, provides
claims and administrative services to Capitol and ORCC. In addition, agents appointed by Kemper’s subsidiary, The Reliable
Life Insurance Company, and who are employed by United Insurance, are also appointed by Capitol and ORCC to sell property
insurance products for the Company’s Life and Health Insurance segment. The Company also provides certain investment
services to Capitol and ORCC.
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NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company classifies its Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities as available for sale and reports these
investments at fair value. The Company classifies certain investments in mutual funds included in Other Investments as trading

securities and reports these investments at fair value. The Company has no material liabilities that are measured and reported at

fair value.

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2012 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULNOTIHES ..eovveeeeirieecreirecierceeeneesecssseessneoneanns $ 1358 $ 2931 § — $ 428.9
States and Political Subdivisions ............ccceeveerennne — 1,401.4 — 1,401.4
Corporate Securities: :
Bonds and NOtes........covveeveeriveerercernreesseesarennnes —_ 2,632.4 361.0 2,993.4
Redeemable Preferred Stocks..........cocerrueeuneee — 279 4.7 32.6
Mortgage and Asset Backed........c.ccccocruecuneneee — 3.8 0.1 3.9
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities ..........cccceeueuenne 135.8 4,358.6 365.8 4,860.2
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 79.2 — 79.2
Other INAUSEIES ....coveevevvererccrnenenneerenrereneeneeeenes —_ 153 6.0 213
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing ........ccceceeeeecmereceereeceenernceenesneis 79.6 6.0 1.9 87.5
Other InduStries .....c.coveeeveecerereeerreersenconnseenas 60.1 1.2 54 66.7
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds..........c.cccccevvevvnurnnann, 125.9 — — 1259
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.......ccceeeeeeverereesereneeceenenseseoserns —_ — 141.3 141.3
Total Investments in Equity Securities..........c.ceeeene. - 265.6 101.7 154.6 521.9
Other Investments:
Trading SECUrities .......c.coeveeurereerericeenintrnnerreenereene 4.5 — — 4.5
TOLAL ...t cesse st esaesse e eseeneene $ 4059 $§ 4,4603 $ 5204 $ 5,386.6

At December 31, 2012, the Company had unfunded commitments to invest an additional $86.2 million in certain private equity
funds and mezzanine debt funds that will be included in Other Equity Interests.
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NOTE 22. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

The valuation of assets measured at fair value in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011 is
summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS , (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Fair Value
Fixed Maturities:
U.S. Government and Government Agencies and
AULROTIHES ..o eeeeeeeeeesconseeesens $ 153.6 $ 338.1 § — % 491.7
States and Political Subdivisions ...........ccccceeuveeene. — 1,852.6 — 1,852.6
Corporate Securities:
Bonds and Notes........cccceceveeeieecieeiiieneeniecieenen — 2,107.2 235.1 2,342.3
Redeemable Preferred Stocks.........cocevvervrneenne — 75.6 6.1 81.7
Mortgage and Asset Backed............ccconucnnnne. — 4.8 03 5.1
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities..........cccceeuvune. 153.6 4,378.3 241.5 4,773.4
Equity Securities:
Preferred Stocks:
Finance, Insurance and Real Estate.................. — 86.7 — 86.7
Other InduStries ........cccoeveerrenienverercrencnreennes — 14.9 5.6 20.5
Common Stocks:
Manufacturing .........ccceevereeceeerrereesersessonsessoseeses 74.7 5.0 3.7 834
Other Industries.........ccccceeeeieveveeereerieeceseenes 42.8 — 42 47.0
Other Equity Interests:
Exchange Traded Funds.........cccooeveevervncerrencenes 66.6 — — 66.6
Limited Liability Companies and Limited
Partnerships.........cccoveeeeeeieeencnnennnneescsnnnneans — — 93.1 93.1
Total Investments in Equity Securities ............c.vu..... 184.1 106.6 106.6 397.3
Other Investments:
Trading SECUTILIES ......veevevreerirenrerreeircrereesreeennen 4.4 — — 4.4
TOtAL ...ttt nens $ 342.1 $ 44849 $ 348.1 $ 5,175.1

The Company’s investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 1 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of
U.S. Treasury Bonds and Notes. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 1 in the two
preceding tabies consist of either investments in publicly-traded common stocks or exchange traded funds. The Company’s
investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 2 in the two preceding tables primarily consist of investments in
corporate bonds and redeemable preferred stocks, states and political subdivisions, and bonds and mortgage-backed securities
of U.S. government agencies. The Company’s investments in Equity Securities that are classified as Level 2 in the two
preceding tables primarily consist of investments in preferred stocks. The Company uses a leading, nationally recognized
provider of market data and analytics to price the vast majority of the Company’s Level 2 measurements. The provider utilizes
evaluated pricing models that vary by asset class and incorporate available trade, bid and other market information. Because
many fixed maturity securities do not trade on a daily basis, the provider’s evaluated pricing applications apply available
information through processes such as benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securities, sector groupings, and matrix pricing
to prepare evaluations. In addition, the provider uses model processes to develop prepayment and interest rate scenarios. The
pricing provider’s models and processes also take into account market convention. For each asset class, teams of its evaluators
gather information from market sources and integrate relevant credit information, perceived market movements and sector news
into the evaluated pricing applications and models. The Company generally validates the measurements obtained from its
primary pricing provider by comparing them with measurements obtained from one additional pricing provider that provides
either prices from recent market transactions or quotes in inactive markets or evaluations based on its own proprietary models.
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The Company investigates significant differences related to the values provided. On completion of its investigation,
management exercises judgment to determine the price selected and whether adjustments, if any, to the price obtained from the
Company’s primary pricing provider would warrant classification of the price as Level 3. In instances where a measurement
cannot be obtained from either pricing provider, the Company generally will evaluate bid prices from one or more binding
quotes obtained from market makers to value investments in inactive markets and classified by the Company as Level 2. The
Company generally classifies securities when it receives non-binding quotes or indications as Level 3 securities unless the
Company can validate the quote or indication against recent transactions in the market. For securities classified as Level 3, the
Company either uses valuations provided by third party fund managers, third party appraisers, the Company’s own internal
valuations or net asset values provided for Limited Liability Companies and Limited Partnerships. These valuations typically
employ valuation techniques, including earnings multiples based on comparable public securities, comparable yields as well as
industry specific non-earnings based multiples or discounted cash flow models. Valuations classified as Level 3 by the
Company generally consist of investments in various private placement securities of non-rated entities. In rare cases, if the
private placement security has only been outstanding for a short amount of time, the Company, after considering the initial
assumptions used in acquiring an investment, considers the original purchase price as representative of the fair value.

The majority of Investments in Fixed Maturities that are classified as Level 3 are priced using a yield approach. A yield
approach uses a risk-free rate plus a credit spread depending on the underlying credit profile of the security. For floating rate
securities, the risk free rate used in the yield is the contractual floating rate of the security. For each individual security, the
Company or the Company’s third party appraiser gathers information from market sources, relevant credit information,
perceived market movements and sector news and determines an appropriate yield for each security. The yield selected is then
used to discount the future cash flows of the security to determine the fair value. The Company separately evaluates yields
based upon asset class to assess the reasonableness of the recorded fair value. For Investments in Fixed Maturities, corporate
bonds and notes makes up the majority of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3. For corporate bonds and notes, the
primary asset classes are investment grade private placements, non-investment grade senior debt, non-investment grade junior
debt and other debt. Non-investment grade senior debt includes those securities that receive first priority in a liquidation and
non-investment grade junior debt includes any fixed maturity security with other than first priority in a liquidation.

The table below presents quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs utilized by the Company in
determining fair values for investments in corporate bonds and notes classified as Level 3.

Unobservable Total Range of Unobservable ‘Xsi%2§:

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Input Fair Value Inputs Yield
Investment Grade Private Placements ...........ccoceevevurveernerecenrnennns Yield $ 946 1.3% - 6.3% 4.0%
Non-investment Grade:

SENIOr DEDBL ....c.vevveverieieiiereieeeee ettt eenane Yield 77.7 57 - 18.0 9.1

JUNIOT DIEDL ..ottt ers s renes Yield 173.2 88 - 214 14.8
Other Dbt ....vvieteeeeeee ettt erenns Various 15.5
Bonds and Notes Classified as Level 3..........ccccocvvvevverveeerennennne $ 361.0

For an investment in a fixed maturity security, an increase in the yield used to determine the fair value of the security will
decrease the fair value of the security. A decrease in the yield used to determine fair value will increase the fair value of the
security, but the fair value increase is generally limited to par if the security is currently callable.
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Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2012 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Mortgage and Other
and Preferred and Asset Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year..........cccccvvuecee. $ 2351 § 61 § 03 § 135 § 931 § 348.1
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated Statement of
INCOME ..ottt 4.0 04 — 3.2 — 6.8
Included in Other Comprehensive Income. 14 0.5 — (1.3) 8.3 8.9
PUrChases......cceeveeeeereenrecmnneeseeneennonsesinneseenns 199.7 0.1 — 1.6 52.0 253.4
SetIEMENES ....coveeeerreereercrrrrrcsinseesresensnessernens (73.1) (1.6) ©.2) — (12.1) (87.0)
SALES ..o 0.9) — — 3.7 — (4.6)
Transfers into Level 3 ........ccocereveevnenccernnnennnn 09 — — — — 0.9
Transfers out of Level 3.......ccooceevivcvceeecienne. 6.1) —_ —_— — — (6.1)
Balance at End of Year.......c.ccccccoveeceveeeeenennes $ 3610 § 4.7 $ 01 § 133 § 1413 $§ 5204

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers between levels as of the end of the reporting period. There were no transfers
between Levels 1 and 2 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The transfers into Level 3 and out of Level 3 for the year ended
December 31, 2012 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

Information by security type pertaining to the changes in the fair value of the Company’s investments classified as Level 3 for
the year ended December 31, 2011 is presented below:

Fixed Maturities Equity Securities
Corporate Preferred
Bonds Redeemable Mortgage and Other
and Preferred and Asset Common Equity
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS Notes Stocks Backed Stocks Interests Total
Balance at Beginning of Year...........ccooceueunnee $ 1462 $ 45 § 04 § 147 § 752§ 2410
Total Gains (Losses):
Included in Consolidated Statement of
INCOME ..ot 0.7) — — 4.5 4.3 8.1
Included in Other Comprehensive Income. 34 1.6 — 3.1 (6.2) 4.3)
Purchases.........ccoceeveeeesveenieecnieseeeneeenreseences 131.6 — — 35 39.3 1744
Settlements......ccceceeivereerieerrereeernereesresreeenseenanes (50.3) — 0.1 (0.4) (19.5) (70.3)
SALES ..vovvveverrieerer ettt ene e (0.5) — — 5.7 — 6.2)
Transfers into Level 3 ......cccoceveenenciinincnnnns 54 — — — — 54
Balance at End of Year.......cccocoovvevcenceceinnccnne $ 2351 § 6.1 $ 03 $§ 135 § 93.1 § 348.1

Transfers into Level 2 from Level 1 were $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Transfers into Level 1 from Level
2 were $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for the year ended December 31,
2011 were due to changes in the observable inputs for one security. Transfers into Level 3 for the year ended December 31,
2011 were due to changes in the availability of market observable inputs.

The fair value of Notes Payable is estimated using quoted prices for similar liabilities in markets that are not active. The inputs
used in the valuation are considered Level 2 measurements. The fair value of Short-term Investments is estimated using inputs
that are considered Level 1 measurements.
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In the ordinary course of its businesses, the Company is involved in legal proceedings, including lawsuits, regulatory
examinations and inquiries. Except with regard to the matter discussed below, based on currently available information, the
Company does not believe that it is reasonably possible that any of its pending legal proceedings will have a material effect on
the Company’s financial statements.

Certain state insurance regulators, legislators and treasurers are involved in an array of initiatives that could result in significant
changes to unclaimed property laws and claims handling practices with respect to life insurance policies. These initiatives seek,
in various ways, to impose a new duty on the part of life insurers to proactively search for deaths of their insureds. For
example, Kentucky, New York, Maryland and Alabama have each enacted legislation, with effective dates of January 1, 2013,
June 17,2013, October 1, 2013 and January 1, 2014, respectively, that requires life insurers to compare their in-force policy
records against the database of reported deaths maintained by the Social Security Administration (the “SSA Death Master File™)
for the purpose of proactively identifying potentially deceased insureds for whom the life insurer has not yet received a death
claim. If state officials are successful in applying this new standard retroactively to existing life insurance policies, it will
fundamentally alter the responsibilities of the parties to such contracts by effectively eliminating contract terms that condition
claim settlement and payment on the receipt of notice and “due proof of death” of an insured. The outcome of the various state
initiatives could have a significant effect on, including acceleration of, the payment and/or escheatment of policy benefits and
significantly increase claims handling costs.

Kemper’s life insurance companies are currently the subject of an unclaimed property compliance examination by a private
firm retained by the treasurers of thirty-eight states. One state insurance regulator has also commenced a market conduct exam
of Kemper’s life insurance companies for the purpose of verifying such companies’ compliance with relevant regulations
governing life insurance claims handling and escheatment practices. It is the Company’s position that state officials lack
authority to establish new procedures that change existing contracts. In November 2012, the Company filed a declaratory
judgment action in state court in Kentucky asking the court to construe the Kentucky Unclaimed Life Insurance Benefit Act (the
“Kentucky Act”) such that it would only apply prospectively, i.e., only with respect to those life insurance policies issued on or
after the effective date of the Kentucky Act, consistent with the requirements of applicable Kentucky statutory law and
Kentucky and federal constitutional provisions. The case is currently in the discovery phase.

The Company cannot predict which states, if any, may enact legislation of this type or the outcome of other initiatives by state
officials. The Company does not use, nor does it believe it is required under applicable law or the terms of its life insurance
policies to use, the SSA Death Master File. The Company cannot reasonably estimate the amount of loss, if any, that the
Company would recognize if it were not to ultimately prevail in this matter.

NOTE 24. RELATED PARTIES

One of Kemper’s directors, Mr. Fayez Sarofim, is the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and the majority
shareholder of FS&C, a registered investment advisory firm. In the second quarter of 2010, Kemper’s subsidiary, Trinity,
entered into an agreement with FS&C whereby FS&C provides investment management services with respect to certain assets
of Trinity for a fee based on the fair market value of the assets under management. Such agreement is terminable by either party
at any time upon 30 days advance written notice. At December 31, 2012, Trinity had $125.2 million in assets managed by
FS&C. Investment Expenses incurred in connection with such agreement were $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.1 million for
the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

FS&C also provides investment management services with respect to certain funds of the Company’s defined benefit pension
plans. The Company’s defined benefit pension plans had $120.7 million, $107.1 million and $98.3 million in assets managed by
FS&C at December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company’s defined benefit pension plans incurred, in the
aggregate, expenses of $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 million to FS&C for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.
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With respect to the Company’s defined contribution plans, one of the alternative investment choices afforded to participating
employees is the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund, an open-end, diversified managed investment fund. FS&C provides investment
management services to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund as a sub-investment advisor. According to published reports filed by
FS&C with the SEC, the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund pays monthly fees to FS&C according to a graduated schedule computed
at an annual rate based on the value of the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund’s average daily net assets. The Company does not
compensate FS&C for services provided to the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund. Participants in the Company’s defined contribution
plans had allocated $20.4 million, $19.3 million and $18.2 million for investment in the Dreyfus Appreciation Fund at
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, representing 7%, 7% and 6% of the total amount invested in the Company’s
defined contribution plans at such dates.

The Company believes that the transactions described above have been provided on terms no less favorable to the Company
than could have been negotiated with non-affiliated third parties.

As described in Note 21, “Other Reinsurance,” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company also has certain
relationships with Capitol, a mutual insurance company which is owned by its policyholders, and its subsidiary, ORCC.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited)

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS 2012 2012 2012 2012 2012
Revenues:
Earned Premillms.........ccoveueereereeeereeeensencenmscsssressesssnessnssessessasns $ 5292 $ 5298 $ 5273 $ 5208 $2,107.1
Net Investment INCOME.........ccceeveereerersccnrenmnsiinieseieissnseseenieses ‘ 77.4 75.2 70.4 72.9 295.9
Other INCOME .......cveeeeereceeereceentrreesreeseneeseesesreoesssssssarssssssssss 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.8
Net Realized Gains on Sales of Investments...........ccoeccceevrureennee 4.9 4.1 50.9 55 654
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses..................... (0.5) 0.4 3.2 @3.1) 1.2)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME.....ceeereieiereecenrntccse ittt ns e —_ — — 0.3 0.3
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings..........cccecevvuneee 0.5) 04 3.2 2.8) 6.9)
TOtAl REVENUES......ovevrererereineeenneieceesetsnesissesessssnssssessensssssesesessones 611.2 608.9 645.6 596.6  2,462.3
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses.........ccoveereemnrencerincneninssesisennineisseensone 376.6 423.8 368.7 413.0 1,582.1
InSurance EXPenses ........coccveeveeeneermnnieissenesensisneseninsnnensorsesesne 162.4 167.7 172.7 169.5 672.3
Interest and Other EXPenses .......occoeveeereeerenerecesesesnneneensiuesessons 21.8 20.9 22.7 20.1 85.5
TOtal EXPENSES.....covrrreremrmereremsenmssisesesisissssssssssesessssorssssersssssnssssasnans 560.8 612.4 564.1 602.6 2,339.9
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.. 50.4 3.5) 81.5 6.0) 1224
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE)......coveererreneecnineentncnmnusnsessseesesissinns (14.1) 5.1 (25.9) 4.3 (30.6)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations ..............cevvivnenennens 36.3 1.6 55.6 1.7 91.8
Discontinued Operations:
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations before Income
TAXES ..eeverenvereererensesreresseseaesessassesentesessesaesseneonessneresssssessssren 12.3 1.0 0.1) 5.7 18.9
Income Tax Benefit (EXPense)........cccceeverrerenmecsnnniisniinisnniinns 5.0) ©.3) 0.1 2.1) (7.3)
Income from Discontinued Operations ...........cccovveerrnieiesrcrsnnseennnns 7.3 0.7 —_ 3.6 11.6
NEE INCOME ...ovoveeerieierenetecteeee e teseessesst st saebebosaene $ 436 $ 23 $§ 556 $ 19 $ 1034
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted
SHIATE: .eeiveevreirerreeeeiresreereereesreeseseesseeseeseeseeertentsssnssesrears s sssassressnes
BASIC vvevierererienieerienteseensesaesresseresscssaneesesessesnsssessentenesasssesaessene $ 061 § 003 $§ 095 $ (0.03) $ 155
DiIULEd ...ttt ettt seseene et eaestsr s srsre e b e $ 060 $§ 003 $ 095 $ (0.03) § 154
Net Income Per Unrestricted Share: -
BASIC ottt sttt ees et eas st st $ 073 $§ 004 $ 095 $ 003 § 175
DiIULEA ..ovveeeeerenrrrrcrrrreserreeseeseasessistessesss st sesassasserenseassnsaensaens $ 072 $ 004 $ 095 $§ 003 § 1.74
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share.........ccccoccevnvccnivencnnnne, $ 024 0.24 024 $§ 024 § 096

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares
outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Kemper Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NOTE 25. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (Unaudited) (Continued)

Year
Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Ended
Mar 31, Jun 30, Sep 30, Dec 31, Dec 31,
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTIS 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011
Revenues:
Earned Premiums............ccoveeeviuieeenierereeeeeeeeeseeeeesseeesssseseeesssenens $ 5460 $ 5481 $ 543.0 $ 5365 $2,173.6
Net Investment INCOME..........ccovveveereeereeerereeeereseereeeeeeer e 81.2 82.9 58.6 753 298.0
Other INCOME ........oeeeieiieietecciere et eerene 0.2 0.2 0.4 0.2 1.0
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of Investments ................ 142 17.8 4.2) 59 33.7
Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses:
Total Other-than-temporary Impairment Losses..................... (0.4) (1.3) (5.0) @.7 (11.4)
Portion of Losses Recognized in Other Comprehensive
INCOME ...ttt e e e enes — — — 0.1 0.1
Net Impairment Losses Recognized in Earnings............cc...e..... 0.4) (1.3) 5.0) (4.6) (11.3)
TOtaAl REVENUES ......vcevevveeereteereeieteeteeese et easess st esenesassaas 641.2 647.7 592.8 613.3 2,495.0
Expenses:
Policyholders’ Benefits and Incurred Losses and Loss
Adjustment EXPenses.........ccovecvreveerereeierenieseiesseneseresserensoneons 392.3 477.1 399.6 376.7 1,645.7
INSUIance EXPENSES .......ccvceivreereeeenieireerieeecteeecreere s essesseessesnans 166.1 170.6 176.8 170.1 683.6
Write-off of Other Intangibles Acquired...........covvvverennennen e — — — 13.5 135
Interest and Other EXPenses .........occccevvrerireeeerneeeeeeieceserereeennns 19.7 20.9 214 219 83.9
TOtAl EXPENSES...ccvuiriruecnieriieiiirerieristeresresssssessese e sse s e sssssesnerennsans 578.1 668.6 597.8 5822  2426.7
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes.. 63.1 (20.9) .0 311 68.3
Income Tax Benefit (EXPENSE).......ccovevvvreerrrrrnvereinsrnesnressreriessorvense (18.1) 11.5 6.1 6.1) (6.6)
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations ............cceceereereevereevnnnns 45.0 94 1.1 25.0 61.7
Discontinued Operations:
Income from Discontinued Operations before Income Taxes..... 94 9.3 0.6 0.2 19.5
Income Tax Benefit (EXpense).......ococeeuveververerenrenenresenreseseninenns 2.9) 3.2) 0.3 (0.9) 6.7)
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations...............ccceeerervennenen 6.5 6.1 0.9 0.7 12.8
Net INCOME (LOSS) ...verererererernerereereeiesesssesesreresessersssessssesssmorssrsnsons $ 515 8§ (B3 S 20 $§ 243 $ 745
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations Per Unrestricted - -
Share:
BASIC ..ttt e eas e s e et ae s e aens $ 074 $ (0.16) $§ 001 $§ 041 $ 1.02
DAIULEM cocevvvrreonreeressnneesesseresseessssssesssssssesssssnssssssssneens. 8 073 8 (0.16) § 001 $ 041 § 102
Net Income (Loss) Per Unrestricted Share:
BaSIC ..ttt et e ettt enrnen $§ 08 $ (006)$ 003 $ 040 $ 123
DHIULEA ...ttt e r et s e reere e $ 084 $ (006)$ 003 $§ 040 $ 123
Dividends Paid to Shareholders Per Share.............ccooooveverererererennne. $ 024 $ 024 $§ 024 § 024 $ 096

The sum of quarterly per share amounts does not equal per share amounts for the year due to differences in weighted-average shares and/or equivalent shares
outstanding for each of the periods presented.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KEMPER CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedules listed in Item 15. We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial
statements and financial statement schedules, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report
on Internal Control. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company’s
principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company’s
board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2012, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth herein. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its accounting for costs associated with
acquiring or renewing insurance contracts in 2012,

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 15, 2013
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not Applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, with participation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has
evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(¢)
and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™)) as of the end of the period
covered by this report. Based on such evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that, as of the end of such period, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective in ensuring that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified by the SEC’s rules and forms, and accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2012 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We, as management of the Company, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC, internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or
under the supervision of, a company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar
functions, and effected by the company’s board of directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and includes those policies and procedures that:

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

e Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

+  Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on
the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, we have concluded that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2012.

The independent registered public accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP, as auditors of Kemper’s consolidated financial
statements, has issued an attestation report on the effectiveness of management’s internal control over financial reporting based
on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

/s/  DONALD G. SOUTHWELL /s/  DENNIS R. VIGNEAU
Donald G. Southwell Dennis R. Vignean
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

February 15, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The attestation report of the independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, on the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting is included in Item 8 under the heading “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None
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PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Election of Directors,”
“Kemper Executive Officers,” “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock™ and “Corporate Governance” in the Proxy Statement
for Kemper’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Kemper plans to file such proxy statement within 120 days after
December 31, 2012, the end of Kemper’s fiscal year.

Kemper’s code of ethics applicable to its chief executive officer, chief financial officer and principal accounting officer (“Code
of Ethics for Senior Financial Executives™) is posted in the “Governance” section of Kemper’s website, kemper.com. Kemper
also intends to disclose any future amendments to, and any waivers from (though none are anticipated), the Code of Ethics for
Senior Financial Executives in the “Governance” section of its website.

Item 11, Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Executive Compensation,”
“Executive Officer Compensation and Benefits,” “Director Compensation,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation,” and “Compensation Committee Report” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2013 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders. The Compensation Committee Report to be included in such Proxy Statement shall be deemed to be furnished in
this report and shall not be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act as a
result of such furnishing in this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this Item is set forth in the table below and incorporated herein by reference to the section
captioned “Ownership of Kemper Common Stock” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities
Number of Securities Remaining Available
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average for Future Issuance
Exercise of Exercise Price of Under Equity
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Compensation Plans
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights or Programs (1)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders........ccoeerreererencceneneneresenennan. 3,192,054 § 40.53 9,278,531
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved by
Security Holders.........cccocoviiiiiincrinniininennnne — — —
TOtal.ue ittt st sanes 3,192,054 $§ 40.53 9,278,531
p—ooo0ouo

(1) Includes 561,225 shares reserved for future grants based on the achievement of performance goals under the terms of
outstanding performance-based restricted stock awards.

Kemper’s Omnibus Plan permits various stock-based awards including, but not limited to, stock options, stock appreciation
rights, time-vested restricted stock and performance-based restricted stock.

The design of the Omnibus Plan provides for fungible use of shares to determine the number of shares available for future
grants, with a fungible conversion factor of three to one, such that the Share Authorization will be reduced at two different rates,
depending on the type of award granted. Each share of Kemper common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options or
stock appreciation rights will reduce the number of shares available for future grant under the Share Authorization by one share,
while each share of Kemper common stock issued pursuant to “full value awards™ will reduce the number of shares available
for future grant under the Share Authorization by three shares. “Full value awards” are awards, other than stock options or stock
appreciation rights, that are settled by the issuance of shares of Kemper common stock and include restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance shares, performance units, if settled with stock, and other stock-based awards.

126



Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Related Person
Transactions” and “Director Independence” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the section captioned “Independent Registered Public
Accountant” in the Proxy Statement for Kemper’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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Item 15.

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report

1.

Financial Statements. The consolidated balance sheets of Kemper and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, together with the notes thereto and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP thereon
appearing in Item 8 are included in this 2012 Annual Report.

Financial Statement Schedules. The following four financial statement schedules are included on the pages immediately
following the signature pages hereof. Schedules not listed here have been omitted because they are not applicable or not
material or the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Schedule I Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties

Schedule II Parent Company Financial Statements

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance Schedule

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP, with regards to the Financial
Statement Schedules listed above, is incorporated by reference to the Report of Independent Registered Public Accountant
included in Item 8.

Exhibits. The following exhibits are either filed as a part hereof or are incorporated by reference. Exhibit numbers
correspond to the numbering system in Item 601 of Regulation S-K. Exhibits 10.1 through 10.25 relate to compensatory
plans incorporated by reference as exhibits hereto pursuant to Item 15(b) of Form 10-K.

3.1

32

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5
10.6

Restated Certificate of Incorporation (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Kemper’s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed August 29, 2011).

Amended and Restated Bylaws (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Kemper’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed August 29, 2011).

Rights Agreement between Kemper and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. as successor Rights Agent, including
the Form of Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rights of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, the
Form of Rights Certificate and the Summary of Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock, dated as of August 4, 2004 and
amended May 4, 2006 and October 9, 2006. (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Kemper’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed August 3, 2009).

Indenture dated as of June 26, 2002, by and between Kemper and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A,, as
successor trustee to BNY Midwest Trust Company, as Trustee (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Kemper’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 14, 2007).

Officers’ Certificate, including form of Senior Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00% Senior Notes due May 15,
2017 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 7,
2012).

Officers’ Certificate, including the form of Senior Note with respect to Kemper’s 6.00% Senior Notes due
November 30, 2015 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Kemper’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
November 24, 2010).

Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective February 3, 2009
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Kemper’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 4,

f(oe(%rgl?)‘er 1997 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective February 1, 2006 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2011).

Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated effective February 3, 2009 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Kemper’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 4, 2009).

Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Unit Plan, as amended and restated effective February 3, 2009
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 4,

f(oe(r)rglffer 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as amended and restated effective February 6, 2013.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as of
February 1, 2006 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
filed May 4, 2011).
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10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20

10.21

10.22

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Kemper 1995 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, as of
February 3, 2009 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Kemper’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
February 4, 2009).

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement under the Kemper 1997 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2011).

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan, as of February 1, 2006
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed May 4, 2011).

Form of Stock Option Agreement (including stock appreciation rights) under the Kemper 2002 Stock Option Plan,
as of February 1, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Kemper’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed February 3, 2011).

Form of Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and Restricted
Stock Unit Plan, as of February 1, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Kemper’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed February 3, 2011).

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2005 Restricted Stock and
Restricted Stock Unit Plan, as of February 1, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Kemper’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed February 3, 2011).

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement for Non-Employee Directors under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity
Plan, as of August 25, 2011 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Kemper’s Annual Report on Form
10-K filed February 17, 2012).

Kemper Pension Equalization Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011 (Incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2, 2011).

Kemper Defined Contribution Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2,
2011).

Kemper Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011
(Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2,
2011), and Amendment No.1, effective January 1, 2013.

Kemper is a party to individual severance agreements (the form of which, as amended and restated effective August
25,2011, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
November 2, 2011) with the following officers:

Donald G. Southwell (Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer)

John M. Boschelli (Vice President and Chief Investment Officer)

Lisa M. King (Vice President — Human Resources)

Edward J. Konar (Vice President)

Denise 1. Lynch (Vice President)

Christopher L. Moses (Vice President and Treasurer)

Scott Renwick (Senior Vice President and General Counsel)

Richard Roeske (Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer)

Dennis J. Sandelski (Vice President — Tax)

Frank J. Sodaro (Vice President — Planning and Analysis)

Dennis R. Vigneau (Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer)
Each of the foregoing agreements is identical except that the severance compensation multiple is 3.0 for Mr.
Southwell and 2.0 for the other executive officers.

Kemper Severance Plan, as amended and restated effective August 25, 2011 (Incorporate& herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Kemper’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed November 2, 2011).

Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as amended and restated effective February 4, 2013.

Form of Annual Incentive Award Agreement under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as of February 4,
2013.

Form of Multi-Year Incentive Award Agreement under the Kemper 2009 Performance Incentive Plan, as of
February 4, 2013.

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement - Installment Vesting Form under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity
Plan, as of February 4, 2013.
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10.23

10.24

10.25

10..26

10.27

12
21
23
24
31.1
31.2
32.1

322

101.1
101.2
101.3
101.4
101.5
101.6

Form of Stock Option and SAR Agreement - Retention Award Form under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan,
as of February 4, 2013.

Time-Vested Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as of February 4,
2013.

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the Kemper 2011 Omnibus Equity Plan, as
of February 4, 2013.

Kemper is a party to individual Indemnification and Expense Advancement Agreements with each of its directors,
as amended and restated effective February 1, 2012 (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Kemper’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 6, 2012).

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 7, 2012, by and among Kemper, the lenders party thereto, JP Morgan Chase
Bank, N.A,, as administrative agent, swing line lender and issuing bank, and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association and Fifth Third Bank, as co-syndication agents (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Kemper’s
Current report on Form 8-K filed March 12, 2012).

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of Kemper Corporation

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Power of Attorney (included on the signature page hereof)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to SEC Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (furnished pursuant to Item 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K).

XBRL Instance

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

(b) Exhibits. Included in Item 15(a)3 above
(c) Financial Statement Schedules. Included in Item 15(a)2 above
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

Each person whose signature appears below on the following page hereby appoints each of Donald G. Southwell, Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer, Dennis R. Vigneau, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Scott
Renwick, Senior Vice President and General Counsel, so long as such individual remains an executive officer of Kemper
Corporation, his true and lawful attorney-in-fact with authority together or individually to execute in the name of each such
signatory, and with authority to file with the SEC, any and all amendments to this 2012 Annual Report of Kemper Corporation,
together with any and all exhibits thereto and other documents therewith, necessary or advisable to enable Kemper Corporation
to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations, and requirements of the SEC in
respect thereof, which amendments may make such other changes in the 2012 Annual Report as the aforesaid attorney-in-fact
executing the same deems appropriate.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Kemper Corporation has duly caused this
2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, on February 15, 2013.

KEMPER CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of Kemper Corporation in the capacities indicated on February 15, 2013.

Signature

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL

Donald G. Southwell

/S/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU

Dennis R. Vigneau

/S/ RICHARD ROESKE

Richard Roeske

/S/ JAMES E. ANNABLE

James E. Annable

/S/ DOUGLAS G. GEOGA

Douglas G. Geoga

/S/ REUBEN L. HEDLUND

Reuben L. Hedlund

/S/ JULIE M. HOWARD

Julie M. Howard

/S/ ROBERT J. JOYCE

Robert J. Joyce

/S/ WAYNE KAUTH

Wayne Kauth

/S/ FAYEZ S. SAROFIM

Fayez S. Sarofim

/S/ DAVID P. STORCH

David P. Storch

/S/ RICHARD C. VIE

Richard C. Vie

Title

Chairman, President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(principal executive officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer)

Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (principal

accounting officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
INVESTMENTS OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES

SCHEDULE1

DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Dollars in Millions)
Amount
Amortized Carried in
Cost Fair Value  Balance Sheet
FIXEd MALUTILIES: «...vovveivrerierreeieereesesrseesteeessessasssssnssnsesassasessesseesssassssnsessaorsssnasnessassssases
BONAS aNd NOTES: ....ceereereerertereeererererenssssesesacesersesasssosesssssssssesassssssessesnsanessssssnsnsssans
United States Government and Government Agencies and Authorities.............. $ 384.0 $ 4289 § 428.9
States and Political SUDIVISIONS .......cocveerrrreierrresineesireseseesceessmsosasssnessseessesssasans 1,251.0 1,401.4 1,401.4
COTPOTALE SECULITIES: «...vuvuiscrcrenincrcririieretsrereans et ssnsssss s sesa s sosssosnsssnssssessssnsas
Other Bonds and NOLES ........ceceereiernccinneieneniiisisrensisisasisnssesssnessssasssssssansns 2,618.7 2,997.3 2,997.3
Redeemable Preferred StOCKS .....coerereineciniisinnnsinninsiiiciiennssessennssessssssssanns 30.1 32.6 32.6
Total Investments in Fixed Maturities........ccoccerreeereiccnrecensiinossressseisssissessnssssnsesessneens 4,283.8 4,860.2 4,860.2
EqUItY SECUIIHIES:...ccuvtivirirriiieritiiirennietrtsscss ettt s e
PIEfErTed SOCKS....veiveterrereiereereeneeietrrssnssetssessesessoresisssssnssssesssssnossrnssssnssessssssassons 93.8 100.5 100.5
COMIMON SEOCKS ... coveiireireeririecentrertsesseetscetestsssssstsssatssesemesssisssssssessessnsssensssesenes 126.1 154.2 154.2
Other EQUILY INTEIESES ...vveverreeerreesinirieririisinisisiisissereresesresnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 242.8 267.2 267.2
Total Investments in EQUItY SECUTItIES.........covviveiiriiireniiencinisisrinneisesseensesseessnsanns 462.7 521.9 521.9
Equity Method Limited Liability Investments at Cost Plus Cumulative
Undistributed Earnings .........co.eccoereveecmemeninnisiismsinnsisisssessssssssssssenssssssssssassosesssas 253.0 XXX.X 253.0
Loans, Real Estate and Other INVEStMENLS....:..ccceveeveeereenenmscsicsnsiisiiinesseniesessennens 497.5 XXX.X 497.5
Short-term INVESIIMENLS .......ccecveeeereerreeiereereeeeseessssesncesnsssessesssessessesnmsssssesnsssssesssssosasses 3275 XXX.X 3275
TOtA]l INVESHIIENES. c..uvveeeerreeneeeeeeesinseerasreesesesrssssessonessssnrssesameeenssssssssstsssssnonsssnsssssssesans $ 58245 m

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCHI-1
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SCHEDULE II

KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Millions)

December 31,
2012 2011

ASSETS
INVESIMENLS 1N SUDSIAIALIES ......ccceviiriviereriiie ettt e st eresseteseet et etsenesesessesensesessesensesessesesessesensosenes $2,744.0 $ 2,666.6
Fixed Maturities at Fair Value (Cost: 2011 — $13.1)..ccccviiirieeiecceecsieeeeeseseeseseeeeseeeesseeeeseseesesnssans — 13.1
Equity Securities at Fair Value (Cost: 2012 — $4.9; 2011 — $5.0)....c.ccccierireiineminenersieeseeeseneereneees 4.5 43
ShOFt-term INVESHIENLES .....c.ouvururiieeerirerceciseriseresesenesesetese et esstess s sesssesess s betstesstssorsssesessassnssesssssssssnas 183.5 7172
€SNttt a bbb et st e eeeeeseeeanens 2.2 122.4
Other RECEIVADIES.......c.vcceecercueeeinreirintrissistst sttt ass e ss et essssssssssssssssssssssaessaenesensesessnesasessasasssasans 7.2 5.7
Deferred INCOME TAXES......c.oecrmrerericerirecierrisnrerersisssessiesesssessesssssesssss st cessssessssssssssasensessssesessssnssorssass 75.4 57.6
OhET ASSELS....ovriiiemireeeeeeresceeiseetreesereas s s s b s s s b esasbessoesss st esas s s ass s saseseas et et seasessssesssassasaseasesasen 6.3 5.9
TOTAL ASSELS.....ccueveueeeriieieirieicirie it eee e eset et se s ee st se et srsas e se et sme st et ess e e eseesas e s sssantesessesasesesesessssessesns $3,023.1 $2952.8
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY -
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2017 (Fair Value: 2012 — $393.7; 2011 — $370.3)....cccvermemcreeerennen. $ 3573 $ 3568
Senior Notes Payable, 6.00% due 2015 (Fair Value: 2012 — $276.3; 2011 — $262.8 ).....o.eevovreerenreneee 248.6 248.2
Liabilities fOr INCOME TAXES.....c.cvurerrerrrrrrrererreeiesetsisreeisessioreseseseessssassossesssssssasssesesssssssesssssessssesssssss 77.6 85.3
Liabilities for Benefit PIANS...........ccccovruiueiiueeerteesiriesieissisiisessseeeeseseesssesseseseesssesssssssessssesessessesssssssesssen 172.8 140.5
Accrued Expenses and Other LIADIlIEIES .........ccvveceiueveveiriviieeeiececneteieseeseeseeesseesesesssesesssesessssessssseessiessses 5.1 5.4
TOtAl LAGDIIILIES. .......cuieivmeecerececireicireirinsisses st st sseesss s s eras e s teseseessses s e s s sesssses 861.4 836.2
Shareholders’ Equity:

COMMON SEOCK ...ttt ree e ettt ettt e e oe st et sseee s ss s s e e e e sesses 5.8 6.0

Additional Paid-in Capital...........c..cveueuerureerenmmerninissneiee s essesssesesse s sssssnseesssesssseeseesesssessssessas 725.0 743.9

Retained EAIMINGS ......cvevevereveieieei et bete e esaes e s s sasassessassssesesesesesesesssssssssesesssssssseeseesenen 1,118.2 1,108.7

Accumulated Other Comprehensive INCOME..........vurrveriirereiererireiesiecseinee e neeeeeesseeeseeeeseeseseessesns 312.7 258.0
Total Shareholders” EQUILY ........ccccvvuriecurirrirereuniectrneisieresecsstesssessessssstasnessssesssesesesaeesessessssesssesassessssassesssns 2,161.7 2,116.6
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EQUItY..........cevveerreerreerrrrineecerireisiiiesaeecsessssseesessessseessssessssssssssessens $3,023.1 §$2,952.8

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net INVESMENE INCOME........cvvererieeerretnerasreseeseeesetseessstsesessesesiesstssesissssnsssssssesseseressssesssnssnsses $ 0.2 $ 04 $ 1.7
Net Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of Investments ...........cocovvermennenninnenicsniconne 0.3 0.2) 0.5
TOtAL REVEIUES ...evveerererreriieetesersseesteeesesasessesesesesestasssensorssessssessensssesassasensosassssonsasssssoss 0.5 0.2 2.2
INLETESt EXPONSE.....ccuiriiiririiriirerisiristsrerstssse st stsst st sttt s sr e es bbbt r st b ot bbb s st s aasanes 39.5 39.4 34.1
Other Operating EXPENSES .....oeueuiuiiisierereriinemieninieistetsssssiranesssessssssessamsissssssisisissssmssssasnss 13.6 10.3 43
Total Operating EXPEnSes......cooviiirirmireiirieiateseseniisnisissst et essarsssssssssimsisasnes 53.1 49.7 38.4
Loss before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries...........cocoevreriicnnnnenee (52.6) (49.5) (36.2)
INCOME TaX BENELIt ....c.oiueereereeieerereeeeereree ettt st e sns e e s e b e s be st e b e s e saens 18.2 18.6 13.0
Loss before Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries...........coeeeiineeiiinienneninennnicncnnencnns 344 (30.9) (23.2)
Equity in Net Income of Subsidiaries..........cocovivevemiiennieveinreenisnnnsiesinnns rereeeenetsannteaias 137.8 105.4 201.1
NEEINICOME .veevvvireeiierereeeneesererssesesssessesesessasse st erese st seseesessaestsnsas st st assesertstssstsssnsassssersnesenns $ 1034 $ 745 § 1719

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION
PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in Millions)

For The Years Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
NEEINCOIME «..c.oveveeeerieeretrienrtrreertstesess st et ssesesses s esatessesesessssasesssssesesasesesersesobssersanssassssensasans $ 1034 § 745 $ 1779
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
Unrealized Holding Gains (Losses) Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SubSIGIaries .........cccceerreneieveeireniicesieseninnesssesereeseeeessseseseesnnnens 157.9 2315 195.7
Securities Held DY Parent........c.coceuvieviieiesieninisensinnessnssiesesssssesesssesssesesssesessosons — 0.6 0.1
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SubSIdIaries ..........cocecvieirierereieereiirieeierecvesreresesesee s ereessns (61.2) (30.2) (18.8)
Securities Held by Parent.........ccceeueueeivuninneenirneecciee e ssesssassssesessssons — ©.7 —
Unrealized HOIAING GAINS .....c.cuerverreerrirrerrinessisssssesesssesesssenssssessssessessssssssssssssssssssssns 96.7 201.2 177.0
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Year..........c..cccoevevevunee. (29.4) (53.9) (27.9)
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS .........cevevvrevvereenrerecenerenenns 16.2 8.7 1.2
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COStS ........couvvererevreierevceenreierereneenneereseeesenene (13.2) (45.2) (26.7)
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUSIMENtS...........ccevevriererererimeemesernsseseeseeneesesesossssseenes 1.6 0.4 (2.6)
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net INCOme.........covueveeneverrernnen. — — 2.1
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUSIMENLS.............ceeveeerereerirerereereresesneresssesessesssssessons 1.6 04 0.5)
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income of SubSIdiary ............covvvveerveeneinenencreirenereneeae — — 2.9
Other Comprehensive Income before INCOme TAXES ...ov.vivvveeenrmresveeesiesiireeeseeveneeeeseseesensnes 85.1 156.4 152.7
Income Tax Benefit (Expense):
Unrealized Holding Gains and Losses Arising During the Year:
Securities Held by SUbSIQIAIIES ......ccceevrirerriirinieeeteniiesieesere e seseseseseens (55.9) (82.3) (69.2)
Securities Held by Parent.........cccccocveercenirencninierinesnisnsnssessssssssessesssssesssssesssssasnes — 0.2) —
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income:
Securities Held by SUDSIQIATIES ........ccevvvveveeriieeiriicieeieeirsi et eseesesesesesresneens 21.5 10.7 6.6
Securities HEld DY Parent..........cocovevivieiererinieisieeieensereresseseseesesnssesessesssesssesessssossnens — 0.2 —
Unrealized Holding Gains and LOSSES.......cccoverreernreierireereneeieresereenseseresesesssnenesessesssenes (34.4) (71.6) (62.6)
Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit Costs Arising During the Yeat.........cccoevvevvvernene. 10.3 19.0 9.8
Amortization of Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COSES .........cevevvrevrerirerensenenevennne. 6.7 3.1 (0.5)
Net Unrecognized Postretirement Benefit COsts ........cccceevvrerereererevereneserereneneereseesnsenesene 4.6 15.9 9.3
Foreign Currency Translation AdjUStMENtS..........ccecevvererrienrereeeiesinieseesessesssesesserereesesens 0.6) 0.1) 1.0
Reclassification Adjustment for Amounts Included in Net Income..........cccceeeererererenennee — — (0.8)
Foreign Currency Translation AdjuStments..........ccecoeereevrreereersvesrnsesesseseesssseessesssseseseens 0.6) 0.1) 0.2
Equity in Other Comprehensive Income of Subsidiary ...........ccceveeeeernevnvnscnrnsieeseenenen —_ — (1.0)
INCOME TaX EXPEISE....c..eeeuiiieeiiiiieierieeteseecceeteeneearstsonsesanscaessssonssnesassssnsssasssssessnensesses 30.4) (55.8) (54.1)
Other Comprehensive INCOME .......coueuieuruerienirieerteerieete et e st et st ee st et e s et e essesasassnsens 54.7 100.6 98.6
Total Comprehensive INCOMIE. .....cc.c.eeveeeererteeterieseeteeeeeseeesetesaeeesessessessessessessessessesasssssans $ 1581 $ 1751 $ 276.5

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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KEMPER CORPORATION

PARENT COMPANY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Millions)

Operating Activities:
NEEINCOME.....ceveetieerecriereeireetereesteerestesesteestssussbasssestesstsaesbrssbssssossassssssaebasssessessnersesasnans
Adjustment Required to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operations:

Equity in Net Income of SubSIdiaries ..........cooouvirnieiiernioneinnnissnsessesesesescssesenns
Cash Dividends from SubSidiaries........cccouvieciinicinininniiiieninnneennsesnsessssessens
Cash Contribution to Defined Benefit Plan .........ccc.ccocuvvniinmiineniinniicsneerenesanennens
Net Realized (Gains) Losses on Sales of Investments..........ccoeevevnierennneenecssnsennene
OhET, NEL.....vcuveeieereererteererteesessesresseseesesseecosaesessesesnsessosstssssrsssesssssessossessesesnssernessanes
Net Cash Provided by Operating ACHVItIES........cocervemvrivierinieisniierisineinreseneressesesssessssenes
Investing Activities:
Capital Contributed to SUBSIQIArIESs .......cccevriiimiriiiiiriinierrii s ssesenene
Capital Distribution from Subsidiary..........cccuvivinriririiieiireeeee e
Maturity of Note Receivable from Subsidiary.........cccceeeriiiinienninninisinieisssesennens
Sales and Maturities of Fixed Maturiti€s. .......ccooccveisiniireissmienensiniesinisissininsssnsnesessseneas
Purchases of FiXed MAtUIItIEs .......coceeereererieeeererenienenrossesmisnmsrissmsissesesssssssessessessossessenes
Purchases of Common Stocks from Subsidiary.........cceeuvrrivcnnininnininnsiscnnscnnnnens
Change in Short-term INVESIMENLS ........covvueeriiinerininisininineeiennisenseissesnesesessssssesesssnsens
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing ACtiVItIEs......c.cocevreerertiveriireniiinsniseninsseesenesenes
Financing Activities:
Notes Payable Proceeds:
Senior Notes Payable Issued........cccooevenrvcreceiniccenienenns
Revolving Credit Agreement
Notes Payable Payments:
Senior Notes Payable Repaid...........ccuoeiuiiniininiiniiiiiiiieniseneesensesesnens
Revolving Credit AGLEEMENL .........covvviviviiiririinniiveiis et ssesssssesssesasssssnssssssasess
Cash Dividends Paid........cccceceerireeiinienniienniineiniinecieseiininiiessisesssesssesssssesssssssassesnes
Common Stock REPUICHASES ......cvovurviiriiniiririiiririririi st ssses s ssessssssssnes
EXercise 0f STOCK OPLIONS ....oveveueeeeeerrercineniiesiisisiissiisssisisstoisssissesesesssesssssesessssesasases
Excess Tax Benefits on Share Based AWards.........cccoecevinvniiininnnniisennnnninnisssnsienens

Net Cash Used by Financing ACHVILIES.......cccuvuriieininriiniinisinssssnnissisissesssssssssessssssissossssses

Increase (Decrease) i Cash ...t nsions

Cash, Beginming 0f YEaL.......cccecvciniviiiiiininiitiseststsrescsnnentsssasiss st ssesssssssssssacsssassossass

Cash, ENA OF YEAT......coiveuereeeeieerreeneecseeeecensesis s sssse s e b esas s sa s e s e s sa s e s s snsssassasnosanaces

For The Years Ended December 31,

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

SCHil-4

2012 2011 2010
$ 1034 $ 745 $ 1779
(137.8)  (1054)  (201.1)
95.0 70.8 147.4
—_ (322)  (15.0)
0.3) 0.2 (0.5)
85 355 (10.8)
68.8 434 97.9
— —  (110.0)
20.0 250.0 —
—_ — 20.0
13.1 — —_
— — (13.1)
— (50.8) —
(1063)  (35.4) 10.5
(732) ~_ 1638 (92.6)
_ — 24738
— 95.0 140.0
— —  (200.0)
— (95.0)  (140.0)
(56.9)  (582)  (54.6)
60.7) (274  (344)
13 0.2 0.5
0.5 0.2 0.2
(115.8) ~ (852)  (40.5)
(1202) ~ 1220 (35.2)
122.4 0.4 35.6
$ 22 $ 124 $ 04



SCHEDULE III

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

(Dollars in Millions)
Year Ended December 31, December 31,
Insurance
Claims Amortization
* and Of Deferred Deferred
Net Policy- Policy Other Policy
Premiums Other Investment holders’ Acquisition Insurance  Acquisition Insurance Unearned

Premiums Written Income Income Benefits Costs Expenses Costs Reserves Premiums
2012
Kemper Preferred..........ccocevevnnivnnneeernecniienene $ 8794 $ 8917 $ 04 § 450 $ 7090 $ 1478 $ 960 $ 72,7 $ 4523 $§ 4476
Kemper Specialty ........ocoerreeverrenerreerenerennns 419.8 415.1 0.3 19.0 350.4 58.7 32.8 17.9 215.9 1294
Kemper Direct.........cccovevevvirnniirnnreveresiereenenens 168.0 147.3 — 139 129.5 6.1 51.1 1.5 177.8 44.3
Life and Health (1) ......cccoeeerrereveevecnrnerenenenen 639.9 N/A 0.1 204.3 393.1 44.4 266.4 2113 3,168.6 29.6
Other ..ottt — N/A — 13.7 — — (31.0) — 117.6 —
Total....ooviiiiccereeeenietrere e $ 2,107.1 N/A $ 08 $§ 2959 $1,582.0 $ 2570 $ 4153 $ 3034 $4,1322 $§ 6509
2011 -
Kemper Preferred.......ccooovvcvvevnnnneereeennne $ 8598 $ 8688 § 03 § 488 $ 7096 $ 1444 § 954 § 706 $ 4162 $ 4359
Kemper Specialty ........ccocvemrrrveniicceennnennnennn. 445.2 438.2 0.5 22.8 352.8 62.6 28.9 186 - 2259 134.1
Kemper DIrect........ccoovvvevnirnierenesrereeseresennnns 222.7 209.0 0.1 17.4 197.6 8.8 67.5 24 2239 65.1
Life and Health (1) .....ccoreevrvrererirererrercrines 645.9 N/A 0.1 200.5 385.7 449 263.7 202.4 3,111.0 31.1
OtheT ...ttt e N/A — 8.5 s — (32.6) — 154.8 —
Total....ovicereceeerreer e $2,173.6 N/A § 1.0 § 298.0 $1,6457 $ 2607 § 4229 $ 2940 $4,131.8 $ 6662
2010 -
Kemper Preferred..........cooouveeveenrerererercennnn, $ 8880 $ 8722 § 04 $ 554 § 6335 § 1526 $ 907
Kemper SPecialty ...............veeveeeeienreerersnnn 474.9 457.2 0.6 25.8 383.0 67.7 25.0
Kemper Direct........cocovevcvveevennnenreeinierensenens 282.4 269.3 0.1 20.6 2239 9.8 77.3
Life and Health (1) ....ccccvuvvneererernrerreenenennes 644.1 N/A 0.2 213.0 406.8 42.1 251.7
(07317 SO — N/A — 10.9 — — (31.0)
Total....ooviicireecrner et $2,289.4 N/A $ 13 § 3257 $16472 §$ 2722 $ 4137

(1) The Company’s Life and Health Insurance employee-agents also market certain property and casualty insilrance products under common management.
Accordingly, the Company includes the results of these property and casualty insurance products in its Life and Health Insurance segment.

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit 12

KEMPER CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF CONSOLIDATED RATIOS OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Years Ended December 31,

2011 _ 2010 2009 2008

(Dollars in Millions)
2012
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes
and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee..............cccovrereunnnen. $ 1224
Fixed Charges, Excluding Capitalized Interest.............coevrevrerenne 43.3

$ 683 $ 2263 $ 2192 $ (64.9)
425 37.9 38.1 37.5

Eamings from Continuing Operations before Income Taxes and
Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee and Fixed Charges..... $ 165.7

$ 1108 $§ 2642 $§ 2573 $ (274)

IIEETESE.......eiviiiriicieteerncreeesernseisrennrs st seses s er b s et ses st sesenens $ 414 $ 406 $ 360 $ 361 $§ 358
RENtAl FACOT ...t nnesesesssesess st 1.9 1.9 1.9 2.0 1.7
Capitalized INETESL.........ccccerrrrererenrerereteeeeeee e sene 1.8 2.6 1.8 0.7 1.3
Total Fixed Charges..........c.cceueveeurvernsensereesssssesisaeseseesesseessseesens $ 451 § 451 $ 39.7.$% 388' $ 388
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (2)...........c.ccevevevevevermreeneurnnnen 3.7x 25x 6.7 x 6.6 x - (b)

(@)  The ratios of earnings to fixed charges have been computed on a consolidated basis by dividing earnings from continuing
operations before income taxes and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee and fixed charges by fixed charges. Fixed
charges consist of interest on debt and a factor for interest included in rent expense. Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations
before Income Taxes and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of Investee has the meaning as set forth in the Consolidated Statements

of Income included in this 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(b) Fixed charges exceeded ‘earnings from continuing operations before income taxes and Equity in Net Income (Loss) of
Investee and fixed charges by $66.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.



SCHEDULE IV

KEMPER CORPORATION
REINSURANCE SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010

(Dollars in Millions)

Percentage

Ceded to Assumed of Amount

Gross Other from Other Net Assumed to

Amount Companies Companies Amount Net
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Life Insurance in FOICE .....ccccuevieverereveenerisrererernesensecninene $21,3404 $ 6104 $§ 2429 §$ 209729 1.2%
PIEMIUMS .covoooveeresr s esnesnenennne
Life INSUTANCE........cocorererrnrerenieenirieneensreseeesessesssesessesenns $ 3928 § 14 $ 20 $ 3934 0.5%
Accident and Health Insurance.........ccccoeevvereeereerenennne. 165.5 0.4 0.1 165.2 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance .........co.occevereenneeeenenns 1,547.3 40.7 419 1,548.5 2.7%
Total PrEemiums.........cccouvueevvenrerrsnerenserrresnesessssesesssosessssesenns $ 2,1056 $ 425 $ 440 § 2,107.1 2.1%
Year Ended December 31, 2011 -
Life Insurance il FOICE ......cuvuinvinrenrineeeeeereeeeeeeeseesseesenes $21,6278 § 662.0 $ 2569 $21,222.7 12%
PIOMIUMS...ooovnrnrsn s
Life INSUTANCE .....cucveverrreeceeererriessse e esesesssssssesesensenns $ 3943 § 15 §$ 23§ 391 0.6%
Accident and Health Insurance............ccoveveveverivrernennens 166.5 0.3 0.1 166.3 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance ............ccoovvreereverenennne. 1,609.8 38.9 413 1,612.2 2.6%
Total Premiums.......c.coeveereeeceeiiniieinnseeineresesseeseessesenesenne $ 2,1706 $ 40.7 $ 437 § 2,173.6 2.0%
Year Ended December 31, 2010 -
Life Insurance in FOICE .....oouuviiimireeieeeceeeereeeeeeeossssneannens $219094 $§ 6953 $§ 272.6 $21,486.7 1.3%
PIEMIUMS covvvrvcrerensnrecvesnssn e
Life INSUTANCE ......ceueeererererereeeeee e ese s sssessesennas $ 39.1 $ 20 $ 27 $ 3968 0.7%
Accident and Health Insurance...........coceueveeerreneeereennn 162.0 0.3 0.1 161.8 0.1%
Property and Liability Insurance..........ccccccevveverveverennnne. 1,729.5 41.6 429 1,730.8 25%
Total PLEMIUINS. ......cveoveeeereienreriereresriseseeeesessesesscsrenessesaene $ 22876 $ 439 § 457 $ 2,289.4 2.0%

See Accompanying Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Donald G. Southwell, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being preparéd;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 2013

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL
Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos. 33-58300, 333-4530, 333-38981,

333-86935, 333-76076, 333-87898, 333-127216 and 333-173877 on Form S-8 and Nos. 333-127215, 333-142722 and
333-170297 on Form S-3 of our report, dated February 15, 2013, relating to the consolidated financial statements

and the financial statement schedules of Kemper Corporation and subsidiaries (the “Company”), and the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting, (which report expresses an unqualified opinion and

includes an explanatory paragraph as to the changes in the Company’s accounting for costs associated with acquiring or
renewing insurance contracts in 2012), appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2012.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chicago, Illinois
February 15, 2013



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Dennis R. Vigneau, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and :

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 15, 2013

/S/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU
Dennis R. Vigneau
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), Donald G.
Southwell, as Chief Executive Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ DONALD G. SOUTHWELL . ‘
Name: Donald G. Southwell ‘ :
Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Date:  February 15, 2013




Exhibit 32.2

Certification of CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Kemper Corporation (the “Company”) for the year ended

December 31, 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report™), Dennis R.
Vigneau, as Chief Financial Officer of the Company, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

/S/ DENNIS R. VIGNEAU
Name:  Dennis R. Vigneau
Title: Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 15, 2013
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Kemper Corporation Board of Directors

Left to Right: James E. Annable, David P. Storch, Douglas G. Geoga, Donald G. Southwell, Fayez S. Sarofim, Richard C.
Vie, Julie M. Howard, Reuben L. Hedlund and Wayne Kauth (Not Pictured: Robert J. Joyce)

Donald G. Southwell
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Kemper Corporation
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Secretary to the Federal Advisory Council of the
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President and Chief Executive Officer
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